
           

City Council and Successor Agency
to the Brea Redevelopment
Agency Agenda

Tuesday, January 21, 2020
5:30 p.m. - Closed Session
6:30 p.m. - Study Session

7:00 p.m. - General Session

Marty Simonoff, Mayor     Steven Vargas, Mayor Pro Tem
Cecilia Hupp, Council Member Christine Marick, Council Member Glenn Parker, Council Member

This agenda contains a brief general description of each item Council will consider. The City Clerk has on file
copies of written documentation relating to each item of business on this Agenda available for public
inspection. Contact the City Clerk’s Office at (714) 990-7756 or view the Agenda and related materials on the
City’s website at  www.cityofbrea.net. Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Council after
distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office at 1 Civic Center
Circle, Brea, CA during normal business hours. Such documents may also be available on the City’s website
subject to staff’s ability to post documents before the meeting.

Procedures for Addressing the Council
The Council encourages interested people to address this legislative body by making a brief presentation on a
public hearing item when the Mayor calls the item or address other items under Matters from the Audience. 
State Law prohibits the City Council from responding to or acting upon matters not listed on this agenda.

The Council encourages free expression of all points of view. To allow all persons the opportunity to speak,
please keep your remarks brief. If others have already expressed your position, you may simply indicate that
you agree with a previous speaker. If appropriate, a spokesperson may present the views of your entire group.
Council rules prohibit clapping, booing or shouts of approval or disagreement from the audience. PLEASE
SILENCE ALL PAGERS, CELL PHONES AND OTHER ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT WHILE COUNCIL IS IN
SESSION. Thank you.

Special Accommodations
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this
meeting, please contact the City Clerk’s Office at (714) 990-7757. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will
enable City staff to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility. (28 CFR 35.102.35.104 ADA Title
II)

Important Notice
The City of Brea shows both live broadcasts and replays of City Council Meetings on Brea Cable Channel 3
and over the Internet at www.cityofbrea.net. Your attendance at this public meeting may result in the recording
and broadcast of your image and/or voice as previously described. 



             

CLOSED SESSION
5:30 p.m. - Executive Conference Room

Level Three

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL - COUNCIL
 

1. Public Comment
 

Closed Session may convene to consider matters of purchase / sale of real property (G. C. §54956.8), pending litigation [G.C.§54956.9(d)(1)], potential litigation [G.C.
§54956.9(d)(2)(3) or (4)], liability claims (G. C. §54961) or personnel items (G.C.§54957.6). Records not available for public inspection.

 

2. Conference with City's Labor Negotiator Pursuant to Government Code §54957.6 - Regarding
the Brea Fire Management Association (BFMA) - Chris Emeterio, Negotiator, Cindy Russell,
Negotiator, and Mario E. Maldonado, Negotiator

 

3. Conference with Legal Counsel Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) –
Existing Litigation. Name of Case: Clark v. City of Brea et al. (Case No.
30-2019-01109202-CU-WM-CJC).

 

4. Conference with Real Property Negotiators Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8. 
Property:  Birch Hills Golf Course Lease
City of Brea Negotiators:  City Manager Bill Gallardo and Public Works Director Tony Olmos
Negotiating Parties: Imperial Golf, LLC
Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms of Payment

 

5. Conference with Real Property Negotiator Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8. 
Property:  235 S. Orange Avenue 
City of Brea Negotiator:  City Manager Bill Gallardo
Negotiating Party: Cathedral Partners, LLC 
Under Negotiation:  Leasehold Price and Terms of Payment

 

STUDY SESSION
6:30 p.m. - Executive Conference Room

Level Three

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL - COUNCIL
 

6. Public Comment
 

7. Clarify Regular Meeting Topics
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS
 

8.   Mayor Appointments 2020



8.   Mayor Appointments 2020
 

9.   Parks, Recreation, and Human Services Commission and Investment Advisory Committee
Recruitment

 

REPORT
 

10. Council Member Report/Requests
 

GENERAL SESSION
7:00 p.m. - Council Chamber

Plaza Level 

CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL - COUNCIL
 

11. Pledge of Allegiance: Fullerton Cadet Honor Guard
 

12. Invocation: Dan Cook, Brea Baptist Church 
 

13. Presentation: Visiting Students from Brea Sister City - Anseong, Korea
 

14. Presentation: Visiting Students from Brea Sister City - Hanno, Japan
 

15. Cultural Arts Commission Update to City Council
 

16. Report - Prior Study Session
 

17. Community Announcements
 

18. Matters from the Audience
 

19. Response to Public Inquiries - Mayor / City Manager
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS - This portion of the meeting is for matters that legally require an opportunity for public
input.  Audience participation is encouraged and is limited to 5 minutes per speaker.
 

20.   Public Hearing to Consider Solid Waste Services Rate Increase for Residential Customers
in Conformance with Assembly Bill 1594 - Receive public input, adopt Resolution No.
2020-001, approving the proposed solid waste services rate increase of $0.69 for residential
customers, and approve Amendment No. 1 to Agreement with Brea Disposal (Republic).  There is
no fiscal impact to the General Fund. 

 

21.   Approval of the Applications for Participation in the Community Development Block Grant



21.   Approval of the Applications for Participation in the Community Development Block Grant
Program (CDBG) for Fiscal Years 2020-21, 2021-22 and 2022-23 - After a Public Hearing,
adopt Resolution No. 2020-002 and 2020-003, approving Fiscal Years 2020-21, 2021-22 and
2022-23 applications to the County of Orange for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
funding.

 

ADMINISTRATIVE ITEM - This agenda category is for City Council consideration of a wide variety of topics
related to the City's operations. Public comments regarding items in this section should be presented during
"Matters from the Audience."
 

22.   Active Transportation Plan Final Report - Adopt Resolution No. 2020-004, a Resolution of the
City Council Authorizing the Adoption of the Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan.

 

CONSENT CALENDAR - The City Council/Successor Agency approves all Consent Calendar matters with
one motion unless Council/Agency or Staff requests further discussion of a particular item. Items of concern
regarding Consent Calendar matters should be presented during “Matters from the Audience."

CITY COUNCIL - CONSENT
 

23.   December 17, 2019 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes - Approve. 
 

24.   Opposition to the Modified Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA) Allocation
Methodology - Consideration of Resolution No. 2020-005, opposing the Regional Housing
Needs Assessment (RHNA) allocation methodology approved by the Southern California
Association of Governments (SCAG) Regional Council and request to the California Department
of Housing and Community Development (HCD) to intervene.

 

25.   Annual Maintenance Assessment in Landscape and Lighting Maintenance Districts 1
Through 7 - Adopt Resolution Nos. 2020-006 through 2020-012, Authorizing the Director of
Public Works to Prepare and File Reports Relating to Annual Maintenance Assessment in
Landscape and Lighting Maintenance Districts 1 Through 7.  There is no fiscal impact to the
General Fund. 

 

26.   Agreement with Linscott Law & Greenspan for City Traffic Engineering Services - Approve
Professional Services Agreement with Linscott, Law & Greenspan Engineers in the amount
not-to-exceed $150,000 per year for a period of three (3) years with three (3) optional one (1)
year extensions and include a one time not-to-exceed fee of $23,500 to prepare the Cliffwood
Neighborhood Traffic Calming Study; and Authorize City Manager to approve and execute
extension(s).  Funds for the scope of this PSA have been previously approved by the City Council
and no additional funds are requested at this time.  There is no impact to the General Fund. 

 

27.   Construction Contract for Civic Center Security System Improvement Project No. 7954 -
Award a construction contract to PeopleSpace for $178,649.50 for the installation of glass
demountable walls and doors; and authorize the City Engineer to approve change orders up to
10% of the contract amount.  There are sufficient funds in Capital Improvement Program Project
No. 7954 to fund the proposed scope of services.  

 

28.   Professional Services Agreements for Annual As-Needed Construction Materials & Soils



28.   Professional Services Agreements for Annual As-Needed Construction Materials & Soils
Testing Services for Various Capital Improvement Projects - Approve Professional Service
Agreements between City of Brea and Koury Engineering, United-Heider, Leighton and
Harrington for As-Needed Construction Materials and Soils Testing Services in the annual amount
not-to-exceed $50,000 per year per for a term of one (1) year with three optional one (1) year
extensions; and authorize the City Manager to approve any optional contract extensions.  All
costs for the Construction Materials and Soils Testing Services phase of projects are included in
the approved budgets for each project in the CIP. 

 

29.   Patrol Rifle Replacement - Approve the agreement with ProForce Law Enforcement to provide
sixty semi-automatic patrol rifles in the amount of $62,197.07.  The approved Fiscal Year 2019-20
Budget has sufficient funding available in the General Fund (110) for this purchase.

 

30.   New Position Allocation for Golf Course Specialist and Recycling Coordinator - Adopt
Resolution No. 2020-013 amending the City’s Classification Plan by adding two new job
descriptions of Golf Course Specialist, and Recycling Coordinator; amending the Part-Time
Employment and Benefits Policy by adding salaries for the two new positions; and amending the
position allocation list to reflect these changes in the Public Works Department along with the
addition of two time-limited full-time positions in the Community Development Department. 

 

31.   December Outgoing Payment Log and December 13, 20 & 27, 2019 and January 3, 10 & 17,
2020 City Check Registers  - Receive and file. 

 

CITY/ SUCCESSOR AGENCY - CONSENT
 

32.   December 22, 2019 Successor Agency Check Register - Receive and file. 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE ANNOUNCEMENTS
 

33. City Manager
 

34. City Attorney
 

35. Council Requests
 

COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS
 

ADJOURNMENT
 



Agenda Item   8. 
City of Brea

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo, City Manager 

DATE: 01/21/2020

SUBJECT: Mayor Appointments 2020

RECOMMENDATION
Confirm Mayor Simonoff's appointments for 2020. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
City Council policy provides for the Mayor to annually appoint individuals, subject to City Council
confirmation, to serve on the various City Council Committees, City Council/Citizens
Committees, Citizens Advisory Committees, and Joint Governmental Committees.   In addition to
the annual appointments, the City Council was also notified in the attached letter of an upcoming
expiring four-year term on the Orange County Mosquito and Vector Control District's Board of
Trustees.  

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by: Victoria Popescu, Deputy City Clerk
Concurrence: Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 
 

Attachments
OC Mosquito and Vector Control District Letter 





Agenda Item   9. 
City of Brea

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo, City Manager 

DATE: 01/21/2020

SUBJECT: Parks, Recreation, and Human Services Commission and Investment Advisory
Committee Recruitment

RECOMMENDATION
Review the recruitment timeline; designate two (2) City Council Members to serve on the
Interview Committee; and direct staff to schedule applicant interviews accordingly.  

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
The Brea City Code defines the process for recruiting City Commission and Committee members
when current member terms expire, or if an unscheduled vacancy occurs.  Currently, one (1)
vacancy exists on the Investment Advisory Committee as a result of an expired term, with a term
expiring on December 31, 2023.  Additionally, there is one (1) unscheduled vacancy on the
Parks, Recreation and Human Services Commission, with a term expiring on December 31,
2020.  

Staff proposes adopting the following recruitment timeline to recruit for both vacancies: 

Advertise vacancies on the City's website on Wednesday, January 22, 2020, and printed in
the Star Progress on Thursday, January 30, 2020
Application deadline February 10, 2020 at 5:30 p.m. 
Applicant interviews with City Council Interview Committee Members no later than the
week before the February 18, 2020 City Council Meeting. 
City Council appointment at the February 18, 2020 City Council Meeting

Applications will also be available for download from the City's website, at
http:///www.ci.brea.ca.us and in the City Clerk's Office.  

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by: Victoria Popescu, Deputy City Clerk
Concurrence: Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 



Agenda Item   20. 
City of Brea

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo, City Manager 

DATE: 01/21/2020

SUBJECT: Public Hearing to Consider Solid Waste Services Rate Increase for Residential
Customers in Conformance with Assembly Bill 1594

RECOMMENDATION
Receive public input, adopt Resolution No. 2020-001 approving the proposed solid waste
services rate increase for residential customers, and approve Amendment No. 1 to Agreement
with Brea Disposal (Republic).

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
About half of California’s waste stream is organic material, which includes green waste, food
waste, and other miscellaneous matter.  Currently, the majority of this waste ends up in landfills.
 
Green waste is primarily made up of grass clippings and leaves.  For many years, the County of
Orange (County) as the landfill operator has utilized the green waste as an organic buffer
between trash layers, also referred to as Alternative Daily Cover (ADC).  ADC is defined as cover
material that is placed on the active face of a municipal solid waste landfill at the end of each
operating day to control vectors, fires, odors, blowing litter, and scavenging.  Jurisdictions and
regional agencies receive diversion credit for ADC use, as it is not reported as regular trash
disposal.  Republic currently disposes of approximately 5,445 tons of green waste from Brea
each year.  The City receives diversion credit of approximately 5% for this material.  Through
December 31, 2019, the County did not charge for disposal of ADC since it was not considered
regular trash.
 
Within the last five years, California has established a goal to reduce the amount of organic
waste sent to landfills to 50 percent by 2020, and to 75 percent by 2025.  As a result of this
objective, Governor Brown signed Assembly Bill (AB) 1594 in September 2014.  Effective
January 1, 2020, AB 1594 specifies that ADC will no longer be considered diversion and will be
considered regular trash.  This means that Brea's diversion credit will be eliminated if we
continue to dispose the green waste at the landfill.  All California cities are required to divert at
least 50% of their trash from the landfills each year.  Brea's current diversion rate is 63%.  If the
diversion credit is eliminated, Brea's diversion rate will go down to 58% unless the green waste is
disposed somewhere other than the landfill.

The City has been working with its hauler, Republic Services, to address this matter.  At the City
Council meeting on November 19, 2019, Council reviewed the options available to be in
compliance with AB 1594, which included disposal of the green waste at a facility outside the
landfill or continue to dispose at the landfill and lose the diversion credit.  After reviewing the
options, the City Council decided that the green waste continue to be disposed at the landfill. 



options, the City Council decided that the green waste continue to be disposed at the landfill. 
Under this scenario, the City would still meet CalRecycle’s diversion rate since it would remain
above 50% and this option would also allow the City the flexibility to consider participating in
other recycling options that are expected to become available in the future, such as composting
at the landfill. 

The County of Orange is in the process of conducting a pilot composting program at their
landfills.  The pilot project involves the County of Orange accepting green waste for composting
at their San Juan Capistrano, Irvine, and Brea landfills.  The County is currently in the permitting
process for San Juan Capistrano and Irvine landfills.  Irvine is anticipated to be in operation in the
Summer of 2020 and San Juan Capistrano in 2021.  Brea’s permitting process is anticipated to
begin in 2021 and potentially open for business in 2022.  The City will continue to work closely
with the County of Orange to assure that Brea gets priority for composting of our green waste,
especially since Brea is a landfill host city.  If the composted material leaves the landfill, we
would expect to have our diversion credit restored. 

Currently, residents already pay for collection and transportation of green waste taken to the
landfill, but does not include disposal. Republic Services proposed a rate increase of $0.69 per
residential household per month for this option since it essentially adds the County's new tipping
fee to the residential trash rate.  See attached exhibit to Resolution for Rate Calculation. The
proposed rate increase will add the new County tip fee for treating the green waste as disposal.
 
Proposition 218 requires a mailed notice to each property owner and property tenant directly
responsible for paying the proposed fee increase (collectively, “rate payers”), followed by a
Public Hearing not less than 45 days after the mailing.  At the November 19, 2019 meeting, City
Council set the Public Hearing for the proposed rate increase for January 21, 2020, and directed
staff to mail out formal Public hearing notices to all residential households; in addition, staff has
also prepared a contract amendment and fee resolution for consideration at the January 21, 2020
in order to formally adopt the changes, if approved.
 
A notice to rate payers was sent out on December 2, 2019.   A copy is provided as Attachment 1
– Public Hearing Notice.   A Public Hearing is being held for City Council to review the results of
the Proposition 218 process, and to consider adopting the green waste rate increase for
residential customers in conformance with AB 1594.  Unless protests are received from a
majority of rate payers (50% + 1) prior to the conclusion of the Public Hearing, the City Council
can adopt a Resolution to impose this rate increase. In accordance with state law (Government
Code § 36936), at least three Council Members must vote in favor of the Resolution for it to be
adopted.

Three protests were received by staff at the time this report was prepared.  In order for there to
be a majority protest on this item, there needs to be 7,180 protest votes.

Contract Amendment

To document the proposed rate increase and changes to the green waste recycling
program, staff is recommending approval of Amendment 1 to original agreement.  In summary,
the three-page agreement simply states the change in law, includes exhibits showing
the proposed rate increase and rate calculation (back-up), and leaves the ability to negotiate in
good faith should a better disposal alternative come to fruition in the future.  



FISCAL IMPACT/SUMMARY
The increased cost for the disposal of green waste resulting from Assembly Bill 1594 will be
borne by Brea residential households (“rate payers”); therefore, there is no impact to the General
Fund.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by:  Gillian Lobo, Senior Management Analyst
Concurrence: Tony Olmos, P.E., Public Works Director

Attachments
Attachment 1 - Public Hearing Notice 
Resolution 
Amendment No. 1 
Exhibit F - Amendment No. 1 - Rate Increase 
Exhibit G - Amendment No. 1 - Rate Calculation 
Presentation 









RESO NO. 2020-001 
January 21, 2020 

 
1 

2377269.2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-001 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BREA, CALIFORNIA ADJUSTING SOLID WASTE SERVICES 
RATES FOR RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS IN CONFORMANCE 
WITH ASSEMBLY BILL 1594 (2014) 

 
 

A. RECITALS: 
 

(i) Republic Waste Services of Southern California, LLC (doing 

business as Brea Disposal and formerly known as Taormina Industries, LLC), a 

wholly owned subsidiary of Republic Services, Inc., provides refuse collection, 

recycling, and disposal services in the City of Brea pursuant to an exclusive 

franchise agreement. 

(ii) The State of California has established a goal to reduce the amount 

of organic waste sent to landfills to 50% by 2020, and to 75% by 2025.  In 

furtherance of this objective, the Legislature has enacted various legislation, 

including Assembly Bill (AB) 1594 in 2014. 

(iii) AB 1594 amended the California Integrated Waste Management Act 

(Waste Management Act) to eliminate diversion credits for green waste (a sub-

component of organic waste) used as alternative daily cover at solid waste landfills 

commencing January 1, 2020.   

(iv) All California cities are currently required to divert at least 50% of 

their trash from landfills, and report to CalRecycle on this and other waste 

management data annually.  

(v) Pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 40059, the Waste 



RESO NO. 2020-001 
January 21, 2020 

 
2 

2377269.2 

Management Act authorizes local governments to determine charges and fees for 

solid waste handling services. 

(vi) The City Council has evaluated options for minimizing the impact of 

AB 1594 on residential customers and has determined that the best solution at this 

time is for Brea Disposal to continue disposing of green material at a County of 

Orange landfill.  

(vii) On November 19, 2019, the City Council set a public hearing to 

consider a $0.69 increase of solid waste service rates for residential customers for 

billings on and after February 1, 2020 (with one “catch-up” in February 2020 for 

the January 2020 billing).   

(viii) In accordance with Proposition 218, on December 2, 2019, the City 

issued a mailed notice to each residential property owner and property tenant 

directly responsible for paying a proposed $0.69 increase of solid waste service 

rates (collectively, “rate payers”). 

(ix) In accordance with Proposition 218, on January 21, 2020, the City 

Council conducted a public hearing on the proposed increased solid waste service 

rates for residential customers. 

(x) The City did not receive written protests from a majority of rate 

payers (50% + 1) prior to the conclusion of the public hearing. 

(xi) All legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have 

occurred. 

B. RESOLUTION: 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FOUND, DETERMINED AND RESOLVED 



RESO NO. 2020-001 
January 21, 2020 

 
3 

2377269.2 

by the City Council of the City of Brea that: 

1. In all respects as set forth in the Recitals, Part A., above. 

2. The attached Exhibit A (Substitute Residential Rate Schedule 

(January - June 2020)) and Exhibit B (Substitute Residential Rate Schedule 

(January - June 2020) Methodology) are incorporated herein by reference. 

3. Based upon staff reports, data, and oral comments that have been 

received, the City Council finds that the rates found in the attached Exhibit A do 

not exceed the estimated amount required to provide green material disposal 

services for residential customers in compliance with AB 1594. 

4. Effective February 1, 2020, subject to execution of a corresponding 

amendment to its franchise agreement with the City, Brea Disposal is authorized 

to charge solid waste service rates for residential customers in accordance with 

the attached Exhibit A.  Commencing July 1, 2020, solid waste service rates for 

residential customers may be increased annually in accordance with the formula 

specified in the City’s contract with Brea Disposal. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of January 2020. 

 
 
 

Marty Simonoff, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST:    

Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 
  



RESO NO. 2020-001 
January 21, 2020 

 
4 

2377269.2 

I, Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the foregoing 

Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Brea 

held on the 21st day of January 2020, by the following vote: 

 
AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
 

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

ABSTAINED:     COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

 
 

Dated:     
 
 
 

   Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 
  



2377269.2 

EXHIBIT A 
Substitute Residential Rate Schedule (January - June 2020) 

 
 (attached) 

  



MONTHLY RESIDENTIAL RATES    CURRENT      CHANGE   NEW RATE

RATE BILLED TO RESIDENT $21.97 $0.69 $22.66

Contract with Brea Disposal.

EXHIBIT A
BREA RESIDENTIAL RATES - BILLED BY CITY OF BREA ON PUBLIC UTILITY BILL 

Fees effective February 1, 2020 & retroactive to January 1, 2020

Due to the passage of Assembly Bill 1594, commencing January 1, 2020, the County of Orange will begin charging
for the disposal of green material at the landfill because the green material no longer constitutes diversion through 
recycling. The purpose of the proposed increase to solid waste service rates for residential customers is to pay for 
the increased disposal costs.  The current versus new monthly solid waste rates are shown in the table below.  

If the City Council approves this item, increased rates will be billed on or after February 1, 2020.  The flow

For month of February 2020: increased rate of $22.66+ $0.69 catch-up increase from January, or $23.35, will be billed

of billings is anticipated to be as follows:

For month of January 2020: the old rate of $21.97 will be billed

Commencing July 1, 2020, rates may be increased annually in accordance with the formula specified in the City's 
   For month of March 2020 and beyond: the increased rate of $22.66 will be billed



2377269.2 

 
EXHIBIT B 

Substitute Residential Rate Schedule (January - June 2020) Methodology 
 
 

(attached) 
 
 
 
 



 
MONTHLY RESIDENTIAL RATES    CURRENT      CHANGE   NEW RATE   % CHANGE
 
TRASH COLLECTION PORTION $5.670 $5.67 0.00%
YARD WASTE COLLECTION $2.570 $0.63 $3.20 24.55%
RECYCLING PORTION $4.910 $4.91 0.00%
FUEL PRICING INDEX (+ or -) $0.820 $0.82 0.00%

"NET TO HAULER" $13.97 $0.63 $14.60 4.52%

LANDFILL DISPOSAL PORTION     
GATE FEE - OC $2.750 $2.75 0.00%

TRANSFER - CVT $1.280 $1.28 0.00%
SUB-TOTAL "TRASH DISPOSAL" $4.030 $4.03 0.00%

YARD WASTE PROCESSING $1.560 $1.56 0.00%
    

SUB-TOTAL L/F & YARD WASTE $5.59 $0.00 $5.59 0.00%
(PAID TO CVT ACTUAL TONNAGE)   

RECYCLING/DISPOSAL CREDIT ($0.45) $0.00 ($0.45) 0.00%

COST OF SOLID WASTE SERVICE $19.11 $0.63 $19.74 3.30%

FRANCHISE PORTION @ 10% $1.91 $0.06 $1.97 3.14%

SUB-TOTAL OF RATE $21.02 $0.69 $21.71 3.28%
ROUNDED TO: $21.02  $21.71  

   
   
MAINTENANCE SERVICES COSTS $0.95 $0.00 $0.95 0.00%

RATE BILLED TO RESIDENT $21.97 $0.69 $22.66 3.14%

BREA RESIDENTIAL RATES - BILLED BY CITY OF BREA ON PUBLIC UTILITY BILL 
Fees effective February 1, 2020 & retroactive to January 1, 2020

EXHIBIT B - AB 1594 RATE CALCULATION













MONTHLY RESIDENTIAL RATES    CURRENT      CHANGE   NEW RATE

RATE BILLED TO RESIDENT $21.97 $0.69 $22.66

Contract with Brea Disposal.

EXHIBIT F
BREA RESIDENTIAL RATES - BILLED BY CITY OF BREA ON PUBLIC UTILITY BILL 

Fees effective February 1, 2020 & retroactive to January 1, 2020

Due to the passage of Assembly Bill 1594, commencing January 1, 2020, the County of Orange will begin charging
for the disposal of green material at the landfill because the green material no longer constitutes diversion through 
recycling. The purpose of the proposed increase to solid waste service rates for residential customers is to pay for 
the increased disposal costs.  The current versus new monthly solid waste rates are shown in the table below.  

If the City Council approves this item, increased rates will be billed on or after February 1, 2020.  The flow

For month of February 2020: increased rate of $22.66+ $0.69 catch-up increase from January, or $23.35, will be billed

of billings is anticipated to be as follows:

For month of January 2020: the old rate of $21.97 will be billed

Commencing July 1, 2020, rates may be increased annually in accordance with the formula specified in the City's 
   For month of March 2020 and beyond: the increased rate of $22.66 will be billed



MONTHLY RESIDENTIAL RATES    CURRENT      CHANGE   NEW RATE   % CHANGE

TRASH COLLECTION PORTION $5.670 $5.67 0.00%
YARD WASTE COLLECTION $2.570 $0.63 $3.20 24.55%
RECYCLING PORTION $4.910 $4.91 0.00%
FUEL PRICING INDEX (+ or -) $0.820 $0.82 0.00%

"NET TO HAULER" $13.97 $0.63 $14.60 4.52%

LANDFILL DISPOSAL PORTION
GATE FEE - OC $2.750 $2.75 0.00%

TRANSFER - CVT $1.280 $1.28 0.00%
SUB-TOTAL "TRASH DISPOSAL" $4.030 $4.03 0.00%

YARD WASTE PROCESSING $1.560 $1.56 0.00%

SUB-TOTAL L/F & YARD WASTE $5.59 $0.00 $5.59 0.00%
(PAID TO CVT ACTUAL TONNAGE)

RECYCLING/DISPOSAL CREDIT ($0.45) $0.00 ($0.45) 0.00%

COST OF SOLID WASTE SERVICE $19.11 $0.63 $19.74 3.30%

FRANCHISE PORTION @ 10% $1.91 $0.06 $1.97 3.14%

SUB-TOTAL OF RATE $21.02 $0.69 $21.71 3.28%
ROUNDED TO: $21.02 $21.71

MAINTENANCE SERVICES COSTS $0.95 $0.00 $0.95 0.00%

RATE BILLED TO RESIDENT $21.97 $0.69 $22.66 3.14%

EXHIBIT G - AB 1594 RATE CALCULATION
BREA RESIDENTIAL RATES - BILLED BY CITY OF BREA ON PUBLIC UTILITY BILL 

Fees effective February 1, 2020 & retroactive to January 1, 2020



1/16/2020

1

Residential Trash Rate Increase  
Assembly Bill 1594

Public Hearing

City Council Meeting

January 21, 2020



1/16/2020

2

Presentation Overview

Background

Previous City Council Action

Short & Long‐Term Strategies

Contract Amendment 

Public Hearing Notice & Process

Recommendation

2



1/16/2020

3

Background
 About half of California’s waste stream consists of organic 

material.

 Organic waste is defined by CalRecycle as: 
“food waste, green waste, landscape and pruning waste, 
nonhazardous wood waste, and food‐soiled paper waste that 
is mixed in with food waste.”

 A sub‐component of organic waste is green waste. 

 Green waste is used at the landfills as a buffer between trash 
layers (Alternative Daily Cover)  
• Helps control vectors, fires, odors, blowing litter and scavenging  

3



1/16/2020

4

Background
 Jurisdictions receive diversion credit for ADC, not 

currently considered trash

 County does not currently charge the City for ADC 
disposal

 California’s goal by 2020 is to reduce organic waste 
sent to landfills to 50%; and by 2025 to reduce it to 
75%.

4



1/16/2020

5

California Assembly Bill 1594

 In September 2014, Governor Brown signed 
Assembly Bill 1594 (AB 1594) into law

Effective January 1, 2020, ADC will no longer be 
considered diversion and will be counted as 
regular trash

County has begun charging for green waste sent 
to the landfill (charged at the disposal rate)

5



1/16/2020

6

City of Brea’s current vs. future 
Recycling Outlook

City is currently above the State’s 50% diversion 
rate goal

Brea’s current diversion rate is 63%

 If diversion credit is eliminated, Brea’s diversion 
rate will decrease to 58% (if disposing at landfill).
Brea would remain in compliance with AB1594.

6



1/16/2020

7

Previous City Council Action

Summary of Options Discussed: 

 Republic Services can compost the City’s green 
waste by processing and transporting to their 
partner facility, Agromin in Chino
Diversion credit is given by CalRecycle

 Dispose green waste at landfill and have it be 
counted as trash 
No diversion credit is given by CalRecycle

7



1/16/2020

8

Previous City Council Action (cont’d)

 November 19, 2019‐ City Council Meeting
• Selected option with least financial impact: 
Dispose of green waste at landfill and have it be counted 
as trash (no diversion credit given)
Proposed rate increase of $0.69 per residential household

• Directed staff to:
Set Public Hearing for January 21, 2020
Mail notices to residential property owners

• Staff also prepared  a Contract Amendment and 
Resolution to consider at time of Public Hearing

8



1/16/2020

9

Proposed Residential Rate Increase

9

MONTHLY RESIDENTIAL RATES CURRENT CHANGE NEW RATE

RATE BILLED TO RESIDENT $21.97 $0.69 $22.66

If the City Council approves this item, increased rates will be billed on or after February 1, 2020.  The flow

of billings is anticipated to be as follows:

 For month of January 2020: the old rate of $21.97 will be billed

 For month of February 2020: increased rate of $22.66+ $0.69 catch‐up increase from January, or $23.35, will be billed

 For month of March 2020 and beyond: the increased rate of $22.66 will be billed

 Commencing July 1, 2020, rates may be increased annually in accordance with the formula specified in the City's 

Contract with Brea Disposal.



1/16/2020

10

Rate Methodology for Disposal of Green waste

10

2020 cost/ton $          60.50 

Current cost/ton $          44.74 

Cost Difference $          15.76 

Annual Tons 5,445 

Total Cost $   85,813.00 

Residents 11,335 

Annual Cost/Resident $            7.57 

Monthly Increase $            0.63 

Franchise Rate 10%

Franchise Fee $            0.06 

Cost/Month/Resident $            0.69 



1/16/2020

11

Short & Long‐Term Strategies
 Selected Option:

• Dispose green waste at landfill and have it be counted as trash 
(no diversion credit given)

• Short‐term:
City will still exceed CalRecycle’s recycling diversion rate
and be in compliance with AB 1594.
Minimal cost impact to residents 

• Long‐term: 
City has flexibility to participate in other recycling options 
anticipated to become available in the future (e.g. County of 
Orange composting at landfill)

11



1/16/2020

12

County of Orange Compost Pilot Projects

12

Valencia Greenery 
(Brea)

Bee Canyon Greenery 
(Irvine)

Capistrano Greenery 
(San Juan)



1/16/2020

13

County of Orange Compost Pilot Projects

13

CEQA Permitting OpenConstruction



1/16/2020

14

Contract Amendment 

Significant Components include:

Documentation of change in law effective 
January 1, 2020

Exhibits reflecting proposed rate increase and 
rate calculation (back‐up) 

Ability for Republic and the City to negotiate in 
good faith should a better disposal alternative come 
to fruition in the future

14



1/16/2020

15

Public Hearing Notice & Process 

Process to conform to Prop 218 requirements
•45 day hearing notice

•Majority protest (50% + 1) by ratepayers precludes 
adoption of proposed rate increase

•December 2, 2019: mailed out public hearing notices 
to residential property owners (ratepayers)

•City Clerk received 3 protest letters.  Final tally at 
conclusion of public hearing. 

15



1/16/2020

16

Recommendation

 Conduct Public Hearing 

 Receive final protest vote tally 

 Adopt Resolution 

 Approve Amendment No. 1

16



1/16/2020

17

Questions?

17



Agenda Item   21. 
City of Brea

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo, City Manager 

DATE: 01/21/2020

SUBJECT: Approval of the applications for participation in the Community Development Block
Grant Program (CDBG) for Fiscal Years 2020-21, 2021-22 and 2022-23.

RECOMMENDATION
After a Public Hearing, adopt the Resolutions approving Fiscal Years 2020-21, 2021-22 and
2022-23 applications to the County of Orange for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
funding.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
The Federal Housing and Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) was
established under legislation passed by Congress in 1974 to provide housing and other
assistance for low-income persons.  It is funded by the Federal Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD) and administered by the County of Orange for cities under 50,000 in
population.

The City has been very successful in receiving CDBG grants to implement the Single Family
Housing Rehabilitation Program, alley improvements identified in the Neighborhood
Enhancement Plan, and capital improvements to Pioneer Hall and the Senior Center.  Project
eligibility is limited as the County only funds what is deemed "high priority projects," including
addressing homelessness, housing rehabilitation, alley improvements, senior centers, and
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) improvements.

The City has received CDBG funding each year for the past 45 years for housing rehabilitation of
single family homes owned by low-income residents.  Qualified homeowners must meet federally
prescribed requirements to participate in the Program.  Each year, approximately 10 to 15 homes
are improved and many neighborhoods in Brea have been enhanced.

The historic buildings used for the Brea Senior Center have also undergone renovations with
CDBG funds from the Public Facilities & Improvements component of the Program.  The
proposed project for the upcoming fiscal year is to install and improve ADA curb accessibility
ramps at various locations in the city.

The County released the Fiscal Years 2020-21, 2021-22 and 2022-23 CDBG application
package on November 20, 2019 and required that completed applications be submitted by
December 23, 2019.  This timeframe did not allow the opportunity to bring the application to the
City Council prior to submittal.  The County requires a Council resolution in order for Brea's
applications to be considered in the competitive process.



Tonight's Public Hearing is being conducted to conform to HUD and County requirements to give
the public an opportunity to participate in the application process.  At the conclusion of the Public
Hearing, the Council is asked to approve, by separate resolutions, the City's participation in
the CDBG grant programs detailed below:

Housing Rehabilitation Program
Single family rehabilitation loans and grants will be used to correct health, safety and building
code violations.  The majority of the funds received will be utilized for single family home loans
and mobile home grants.  The remaining funds will be used for program delivery expenses to
perform inspections of the project sites, contract document preparation, and coordinating
contractors/construction.  The recipients of the loans and grants must be low-income
households, which is defined as earning 80% or less of the County median income.  The
requested grant amount is $180,000 for each Fiscal Year (2020-21, 2021-22 and 2022-23).

Public Facilities & Improvements
The application requests Public Facilities & Improvements funds to implement accessibility
improvements at various locations, with a primary focus on areas near public facilities.  The
requested grant amount is $150,000 for Fiscal Year 2020-21.

As part of the County's requirements, the resolutions proposed for adoption authorizes the
Mayor, or his/her designee, to execute for and on behalf of the City of Brea, the necessary
agreements and/or any other documents or instruments required for participation in the Urban
Counties Program for acceptance of the CDBG funds under Bid No. 012-192301.

COMMISSION/COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
The Finance Committee reviewed the application for the Single Family Housing Rehabilitation
Program at its meeting on January 14, 2020 and recommended moving the item to Council for
approval.

Additionally, at that same meeting, staff notified the Finance Committee members that the
application for Public Facilities & Improvements Program funds would be combined with the
application for Housing Rehabilitation for the City Council Public Hearing on Tuesday.  Each
application has a separate resolution.

FISCAL IMPACT/SUMMARY
The City of Brea applies annually to the County of Orange for Federal Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG) funding in order to provide low-income single family rehabilitation loans and
grants to qualified Brea homeowners.  Additionally, the City typically applies for funding in the
Public Facilities & Improvements component of the Program.  Eligible uses of this funding
includes ADA accessibility ramps.

The CDBG application for the Single Family Housing Rehabilitation Program is a multi-year
application (Fiscal Years 2020-21, 2021-22 and 2022-23). $180,000 is being requested for each
fiscal year, and there is no match requirement.  Staff implementing the Program is paid from the
Housing Successor Fund.  Thus, there is no negative fiscal impact to the General Fund.

The CDBG application for Public Facilities & Improvements is a single-year application (Fiscal
Year 2020-21) and is requesting $150,000 to install and improve ADA curb accessibility ramps at
various locations in Brea.  There is no match required and this action will have a positive impact



on the General Fund by providing alternative funding for an important community benefit.

Staff recommends adoption of the attached Resolutions approving the two applications.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by:  Marie Dao, Management Analyst
Concurrence:  Chris Emeterio, Acting Community Development Director
 

Attachments
Application Package 
Resolution - HR 
Application for Public Facilities & Improvement Funds 
Resolution - PFI 



PROAOSALS MUST IE RECf,tVED ON OT
BEFOnE

Decembcr 23, 2019

By

l2:00 P.M. Prcillc Time

RFP Number
012-19230t

REeuEsr FoR PRoposAL (RFp)

The County of Orange, OC Community Resources/OC Housing (hereinafter refoned to as "Count/) is solicitingproposals ("Proposal" or "Proposals").from qualified firms (he-reinifter referreo to as ajpiicanls;i, ti, provrue nig[priority Housing R€habilitiation ('HR") and Public Facilities & lmprovements gnr&t"f iro1ects. Appticants must
meet the minimum qualmcations and requir€ments set forth in the Requegt Fo, eroiosai 1;nri;i'ano must ue
capable of providing all core services set forth in the scopo of Services, attached in beaioir li and incorporateo
herein by this reference.

This RFP is sot out in the following format:

SECTION I lntroduction and lnstruc-tions to Appticants
SECTION lt Scope of Services
gEqTlON lll Proposal Response Requirements
SECTION lV Modet Contract

PROPOSALS ARE DUE DECEMBER 23. 2Oi9 By 12:00 p.M. pacific Ttmo (pn.
This RFP is a paper bid. See comptet€ instructions in Section l, ltem C.

All qu-ertlone and inqulrlee related to this RFP must b€ dlroct€d to: Nina Campmas (hereinaffer may alsobe refened to as "contrad Administrator")^via vww.Bidsync.cgT (RFp w". oii-igjsoiJ. -ior 
ei6sync

assistance, please contiact BidSync Vendor Support Team it aoo.sgd-S3g9, Option r. nppri,mnis are not to
contact othor county personnel with any questions or clarifications conceming thi; RFp.

J!: 9:$" ll.inistrator will provide all official communication @nceming this RFp. With respect to this RFp,
any (nunty rcsponse other than from the Contract Administrator and in writing will be unauihorized and the
County shall bear no responsibility for any and all r6lianco upon the unauthorizei communication.

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL INSTRUCTTONS:
I ST'BMIT HARDCOPY SIOMJD APPLICAMT PROPO6AUS)

TO COUN'I'Y PR@URMENT OIfICE SUBMIT ATJDIT
AI-EICTRONICALLY VIA [L{SH DRIVE

2. RETURN THIS PAOE SIONED
1, ALL SUBMMALS ART|'IO BU IDENIIFIED WITH

RrP 40t2.192101
4, tOR rURTIIcR INFORMATION. COI{TACTI

www.EldSync.com

DATE: Nov€mber 20, 2019

I ltAvE
TERMS,

READ, UNDERSTOOD AND AGRT]E TO ALLSTA{EMf,N'TS IN THIS Rf,QUEST IOR PROPOSAI, (RFP) AND,I'O THIicoNDrrroNs! AppLIcATroN(s) AfiD ExHrBlts ntronrsceo Hrneti.

Company ame (as it app€ars on your invoice and W9) Fed ID#

1 Civic Ce Circle Brea cA92821

SiBnaturc (Sign Title

arie Dao 7141671-4461
Name of person lo contact in rcfercnce to this Proposal Phone Number

Counly of Ordnge
OC Communily Resources

Page 2 ol 18 RFP No. 012-192301

,|



Section tll: Attachment A Applicont Proposol

HOUSING REHABILITATION AND
PUBL]C FACILITIES & IMPROVEMENTS FY

2020-21
APPLICANT PROPOSAL

Bid # 012-192301

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS CHECKLIST

Applicants must submit complete Housing Rehabilitation and/or Public Facilities and lmprovements
Applicant Proposal via sealed package. Please confirm all Parts with supporting documentation
are submitted prior to the RFP deadline.

Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in the body of this Attachment A (Applicant Proposal) will have the
meanings set forth in the body of the RFP.

Applicants muat answer all questions within each section as applicable, as outlined in the following
key:

ALL APPLICANTS MUST COMPLETE PART I

APPLICANTS SUBMITTING APPLICANT PROPOSALS FOR COMPONENT A: HOUSING
REHABILITATION MUST COMPLETE APPLICATION FOR PART II

APPLICANTS SUBMITTING APPLICANT PROPOSALS FOR COMPONENT B: PUBLIC FACILITIES &
IMPROVEMENTS MUST COMPLETE PART III

PART l: MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS (FOR COMPONENT A & B)

A: Applicant lnformation

B. Applicant Profile

C: Proiect lnformation

D: Organizational Background

PART ll: HOUSING REHABILITATION (COMPONENT A)

(HOUSING REHABILITATION APPLICANTS MUST COMPLETE PART I AND PART II)

B: Funding Request, Accomplishment Budget, Leveraging and Project Budget

dcco;;"nity Resourcrs

E: Civil Rights Laws Compliance and HUD Standing

F: Signature and Assurances

A: Priority Needs, HUD Eligibility Requirements and National Objective



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements- Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I - FY 2O2O-21

C: Performance Objectives and Outcomes

D: Organizational Project Capacity and Experience

E: Organizational/Project Readiness

F. Environmental lnformation Form

Supplemental Document lnstructions: Parts/Components requesting supplemental or
narrative information should be formatted per the following:

1. Each response must be typewritten; double-spaced; and in Arial font, size 12-point print.

2. Not to exceed one (1) page per question.

3. Responses should include the question and be concise but detailed enough to address what is

being asked.

4. Failure to completely answer all items and/or provide the required documents may result in your
Applicant Proposal being disqualified from consideration.

5. Hardcopies of Single Audit Reports and/or Audited Final Statements are not required. Electronic
copies of these documents must be uploaded on Flash Drives.

PART lll: PUBLIC FACILITIES & IMPROVEMENTS (COMPONENT B)
(PUBLIC FACILITIES & IMPROVEMENTS APPLICANTS MUST COMPLETE PART I AND PART III)

A: Priority Needs, HUD Eligibility Requirements and National Objective

B: Funding Request, Accomplishment Budget, Leveraging and Project Budget

C: Performance Objectives and Outcomes

D: Organizational Project Capacity and Experience

E: Organizational/Project Readiness

F: Environmental lnformation Form

Poge 2 ol 50 HR ond PF & I APPLICANT PROPOSAL

Refer to Section l.C. of the RFP for lnstructions and procedures for submittal.

OC Cofifi|nity Resoutces
RFP Bid i 012-192301



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements- Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I - FY 2O2O-21

A. APPLICANT INFORMATION

'1. Applicant Name: CiW of Brea

1 Civic Center Circle

City/State/Zip Brea, CA 92821

(714) 990-7600 Fax:

Email

(714\ 990-2258

App licant Website: www.citvofbrea.net maried@citvofb a.net

*DUNSNumber: 040516791 W-9(Federal lD Numbe0 95-6000681

2. Authorized Person: For the purposes of this RFP, the "Authorized Person" is the individual

within your organization who has the authorily to enter into a contract. The authorized person

will be copied on all correspondence.

Authorized Person's Name

Authorized Person's Title:

William Gallardo

Citv Manaoer

Phone

Email:

(7 14\ 990-77 11

(i.e., Executive Director, Organization's Signature Authority)

Fax: (714\ 990-2258

billoa(Ocitvof brea. net

X Check here if the address for the Authorized Person is the same as that of the organization

Address:

City/State/Zip

3. Contact Person: For the purpose of this RFP, the "Contact Person" will be the
primary recipient for all correspondence related to this RFP. The contact person
should be available to respond to any inquiries throughout the RFP process.

Contact Person's Name: Marie Dao

OC Community Resources

RFP Bid i 012-192301
Poge j ol 50 HR ond PF & I APPLIUNT PROPOSAL

PART I

Address:

Phone:

*The Countv reouires o volid D-U-N-S number upon opplicotion submittol. lf needed. vour oroonizotion mov
obtoin one ot no cost at www.dnb.com.



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements

tRRlisslllll.P8if;l
Contact Person's Title: Manaoement Analvst I

(714\ 671-4461 Fax: (714\ 990-2258

maried@citvofbrea. net

X Check here if the address for the Contact Person is the same as that of the organization

Address:

City/State/Zip:

Phone:

Email:

OC CommuniA Resources
RFP Bid # 012-192301

Poge 4 of 50 HR ond PF & I APPLICANT PROPOSAL



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements- Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I - FY 2O2O-21

B. APPLICANT PROFILE

1 . Applicant's Legal Name: Citv of Brea

2. Business Address: 1 Civic Center Circle. Brea. CA 92821

3. Telephone Number: (714) 990-7600 F ax: (714) 990-2258

Website Address: www.citvofbrea. net Email Address: maried@citvofbrea. net

Years in Ope ration: 101 Length of time in current localion: 39 years

4

5

lf yes, State of lncorporation: California

OC Community Resources
RFP Bid # 412-192i01

Poge 5 of 50 HR ond PF & I APPLICANT PROPOSAL

6. ls your firm:

Non-Profit 501(c)(3) lYes 8No

For-Profit nYes trNo

Local Government XYes lNo

Faith-based trYes I No

Sole Proprietorship trYes trNo

lf yes, indicate if doing business under a different name:

lncorporated trYes trNo



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements

tRRJl,"?I}llleB?".,?l

1. Project Title: Sinole Familv Rehabilitation

Pro.ject Address: City-wide

City/State/Zip Brea, CA 92821

FY 2O2O-21 Housing Rehabilitation
Amount Requested 180 000$

Maximum funding amount for Housing Rehabilitation projects $200,000

FY 2020-21 Public Facilities & lmprovements
Amount Requested $_

. Maximum funding amount for Public Facilities and lmprovements is $150,000 with
no leveraged funds and $350,000 with 20% leveraged funds.

Applicants may propose for one or more services requested in this RFP. A separate
Applicant Proposal is required for each service component. The Orange County Urban
County Program is comprised of 11 cities with populations under 50,000 (participating

cities). The 11 participating cities include Brea, Cypress, Dana Point, Laguna Beach,

Laguna Hills, Laguna Woods, La Palma, Los Alamitos, Seal Beach, Stanton, and Villa
Park. Along with 2 participating metro cities with populations over 50,000 - Placentia and
Yorba Linda, which are funded using their own HUD allocation.

2. Urban County Program

ls your agency a participating city or the County of Orange OCCR/Housing and

Community Development that will be submitting a proposal as part of this RFP?

EYES NNO

b. lf not, since only one (1) application per jurisdiction, per year for Housing
Rehabilitation and Public Facilities and lmprovements will be accepted, please

attached written documentation (from an authorized person) from either the
participating city or the County of Orange OCCRI/HPD-HP advising the County to

accept your Proposal as part of this RFP.

3. Provide a high-level summary description of your project.

See applicant response attachment.

(lf more space is needed, please attached a separate sheet)

a

OC Cofimuoity Resources
RFP Bid i 012-192301

Poge 6 oJ 50 HR ond PF & I APPLIUNT PROPOSAL

C: PROJECT INFORMATION



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements- Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I - FY 2O2O-21

C: PROJECT INFORMATION (Continued)

4. Minority-Owned and Women-Owned business (MBE/WBE)

a. Will this project provide an opportunity to hire MBE and/orWBE business?

XYes trNo

b. Describe all actions your organization has taken in support of HUD's goal to provide

Opportunities to MBE/WBE's.

See applicant response attachment

(lf more space is needed, please attach a separate sheet)

OC Community Resources

RFP Bid # 012-192301
Poge 7 ol 50 HR ond PF & I APPLICANT PROPOSAL



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements- Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I - FY 2O2O-21

D: ORGANIZATIONAL BACKGROUND

Answer each question below in approximately one to four paragraphs, not to exceed one (1)
page per question, if applicable. Each response must be typewritten; double-spaced; and in
Arial, size 12-font. Your responses should include the question, be concise but detailed enough
to address what is being asked.

1. Does your organization expend $750,000 or more a year in federal funds?

X Yes nruo

2. ls the applicant a Non-Profit organization? n Yes No

3, Describe the organization's goals, objectives, and mission

4. Provide a brief description of your organization's accounting system and controls in place.

5. Describe the organization's fund development method

6. List the person(s) who have legal authority to sign contracts and other legal documents,
payment requests, and checks related to this Applicant Proposal. Provide a copy of the Board

Resolution/Meeting Minutes which grants signing authority to these individuals for all contracts,
amendments, extensions and renewals resulting from this RFP process.

Audits must be conducted by an independent CPA and must include a description of
corrective action taken for any findings identified by the auditor, both of which will be
reviewed by the OC Housrng Accounting Manager or designated staff. Submit required
audited documents via Flash Dive as it relates to your organization:

a Applicants who have expended Federal funds in excess of $750,000 are required to
submit two (2) years of Single Audit reports (FY 2016117 and FY 2017118). Refer to
Section ll.D.2. of the RFP document for more details related to Single Audit requirements.

Or

b Applicants who are not subject to Single Audit reports requirements are required to submit
two (2) years of audited financial statements (FY 2016117 and FY 2017l18).

Audited Financial Statements will include

. Balance Sheet (Statement of Financial Position) - lncluding all supporting schedules
(i.e. Detailed Aged Payables, Aged Receivables, Notes Payable, etc.);

. lncome Statement (Profit and Loss Statement);

. Statement of Cash Flow;

. Retained Earnings; and

OC Community Resources

RFP Bid d 012-192301
Poge 8 oJ 50 HR ond PF & I APPLICANT PROPOSAL

7. Audit Requirements as defined in Section l.H. of the RFP:



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements

tRRlisBIIIll.:Bif,?|
. Any footnotes to the statements.

Submit Single Audit reports and Audited Financial Statements on a flash drive. Paper
copies will not be accepted.

L Please provide proof of Non-Profit Status or Business License

10. CurrenUPast Litigation or Judgements: Has your organization been sued in the last five (5)
years? lf yes, provide detailed information regarding litigation (Court and case number),
judgements involving your organization(s) or any company your organization holds a controlling
interest in, or any company that holds an interest in your organization(s), or any of the principal
officers of the organization(s).

'1 1. CurrenUPast Liens or Monetary Judgements: ln the last five (5) years, has your organization
had any liens or monetary Judgements issued against your organization or any company your
organization holds a controlling interest in, or any company that holds an interest in your
organization, or any of the principal officers of the organization, lnclude in your response the
date of Iien(s)/judgement(s) issued, date closed, dollar amount(s) and description/explanation
The County, at its discretion, may request additional information or back-up material.

13. Have any unfavorable rulings been handed down by any court against your organization or
executive director in the past five years? lf yes, please provide an explanation.

14. Does your organization currently have any unresolved fiscal, reporting or program issues with
any of its funding sources? lf yes, please provide an explanation.

15. Provide an organizational chart of your organization, including key staffing for the project.

16. Provide a copy of your organrzation's Board of Director's list.

17. lf your organization is a non-profit, provide a copy of your organization's 501 (c)(3). Also provide
an IRS tax-exempt letter dated no later than December 2014, or a Certificate of Status provided
by the Secretary of State, Business Programs Division. Online Certificates of Status can be
found on the lnternet at: htto://www.sos.ca.oov/business/Ddf/be ircform.odf. (Process may take
up to 24 calendar days).

19. Provide a copy of the minutes of your organization's board meeting where the proposed project
was discussed.

20. Provide IRS 990 form "Return of Organization Exempt from lncome Tax, if applicable".

OC CommuniW Resources
RFP Bid H 012-192301

Poge 9 ol50 HR ond PF & I APPLICANT PROPOSAL

8. ln the past ten years, has your organization ever had its non-profit status revoked or withheld by
the lRS, the Secretary of State, the State Attorney General, or the Franchise Tax Board? lf yes,
please provide an explanation.

12. Are any of your managers or staff with fiscal responsibilities involved in litigation presently that
has any bearing on fiduciary trust or employee relations? lf yes, please provide an explanation.

18. Provide a copy of your organization's Articles of lncorporation and By-Laws.



Housing Rehabilitation and Pub_!ic Facilities & lmprovements
Apolicant Prooosal
Hh hruo prar - rv )ozo-z,r

1

E: ClvlL HTS LAWS COMPLIANC E AND HUD ST DING

Has your organizatron been a pasl recipient of assistance under a HUD McKinney Act
program or the HUD Single Family property Disposition Homeless program?

tryes gNo

lf you have been a recipient under oither of these programs, has your organizalion
experienced any poect or construction delay, HUD finding or outstranoing auoit ttrat xuo
d.eems. serious regarding the administration of HUD McKinney Act programs or the
HUD Single Family Property Division Homeless program?

Dyes ENo

lf 1ou answered 'Yes," please attact a brief description of the circumstances and
outcomes.

2

3. Applicants must b€ in compliance with applicable civil rights laws and Executive orders.
Applications will be r€jected if lour agency has any of the following: ('l) Any pending civil
rights lawsuits instituted by the U.s. Dopartm€nt of Justice; 1z; nny non-comptiance
with civil rights statutes, Executive orders or regulations ai a 

'result of formal
administrative proceedings, unless the applicant is operating under a HUD_
approved compliance agreemenl dssigned to corr€ct the area of non-compliance or is
cunently negotiating such en agreement; (3) Any unresolved secretarial charge of
discrimination issues under Seclion 810 (g) of the Fair Housing Act, as imptemented 

-by 
24

cFR 103.400; (4) Any adjudication of a civil rights violation in a civil action brought agiinst
the agency by a private individual, untess the applicant is opsrating in compliance iith a
court order designed to conect the area of non-compliance or the applicant has discharged
any..responsibility arising from such litigation; (5) Any defenal of the processing of
appllcations from the sponsor imposed by HUD under Tifle Vl of the civii Rights Ait of
1q6_4, tle Attorney Gen€rat's Guidetines (28 CFR S0.3) or the HUD Tifle Vl regitations 24
cFR 1 .8) and procedurgs, or under section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 19i3 and HUD
Section 504 regulations (24 CFR 8.57).

lf one or mo
description.

re of the above five situations exist within )rcur agency, please attach a brief

tdnhq
Authorized Signature batE

William llardo Citv Manaoer
Title

I

OC Conmunlty Resources
RFP Bid t 072-792301

Print Name

Poge 10 ol 50 HR dnd PF & I APPLICANT PROPOSAI



Housing Rehabilitation and PuIic Facilities & lmprovements
Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I _ FY 2O2O-2'I

F: SIGTATURES AND ASSURANCES

1. Non-Dhcriminatlon: This agency will, through all possible means, ensure equal
opportunity for all persons to receive services, to participat€ in the voluntesr structur€, and
to be employ€d regardless of age, handicap, national background, race, religion, or sex.
An existing sectarian nature of the agency shall not sutfer impairment under this
agreement, but participation in r€ligious obsenrances, rituals or s€rvices will nol be
required as a conditlon of r€csiving food, services, or shelter paid for by this grant.

2. Accountabiligr: we commit this agency, if a grant is received, to provide all reports to the
County of Orange as required; to oxpend monies only on eligible costs to keep complete
documentation (copies of all cancoled checks, invoic€s, receipts, etc.) on all sxpenditures
for a minimum of three )€ars; to spend all funds and close out the program on the required
date; to retum any unused funds to the county of orange; to cooperate with monitoring or
site visits, and; to provide complete documentation of €xpens€s to the county of orangL, if
requested, by th€ required date.

3. Non'colluslon: This Applicant Proposal is genuine, and not sham or collusive, nor mado
in the interest or on behalf of any person not hsrein named; the Applicanuproposer has not
directly induced or solicited any other Applicant/proposer to put in a'sham proposal,
or any other person, lirm or corporation to refrain from submitting a proposal; the
Applicanvproposer has not in any manner sought by collusion to secure for him/herself an
advantrage over any other proposer.

we affirm that all information in thls Appllcant propG.l is true and corrsct to the bestof our knowledge and that the Applicant under our authority will executo its
responsibility undar tho proposed contract and adhere to all othor applicable rules and
regulatlons to the fullest extent possible.

Flrst Authorized Porson Signatur€
l2

Date

Mayor

City Manager
Tite

Christine Marick
Prht Fl6t Authorlzod Percon's Name Trtle

Person Signa

William Gallardo
Print S€cond Authorized P€rson's Name

OC Community Resourcet
RFP Eid H O12-192i01

Poge 11 oJ 50 t HR ond PF & I APPLICAN| PROPOS L

-4+[r-



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements
Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I - F\ 2O2O-21

F: SIG},|ATURES AND AIiSUBANGES (Contlnuod)

4. I am authorized by my Board of Directors, City Council, Board of Trustees, or other legally
qualified officer to submit this Proposal on behalf of the 'Applicant."

5. Applicant is not cunenfly on any Federal, State of Califomia or local Debarment List.

6. Applicant will provids records to show fiscal solvency, if r€quired.

Applicant will meet all applicable Federal, State, and local compliance and regulatory
requirem€nts including, but ar€ not limited to, the following:

a. Ensuring that records accurately reflect actual performance
b. Maintaining record confidentiality, as requir€d
c. Reporting financial, participant, and performance dala, as requir€d
d. Meeting requirements of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973
e. Meeting all applicable labor laws, including Child Labor Law standards
f. Meeting all lobbying certification and disclosure of lobbying activities

requirements.

I recognize that I must give assurance for each item above, 'a' through 'f, as applicabte. tt I
cannot, this Applicant Proposal and my overall Proposal will be automatically rejected.

7. Applicant will nol use funds for customers in the construction, operation, or maintenance
of ny to be us€d for sectarian rnstruction or religious worship.

D8t€ Signed

eily Mana-qer
Prinl TitePrint Name

OC Community Resources
RFP qid | 012-192301

William Gallardo

Poqe 12 ol 50 ' HR ond PF & I APPLTCANT PROPOSAL



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements
Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I - FY 2O2O-21

F: SIGNATURES AND ASSURANCES (Continued)

8. Validity of Proporal/Application

The County requires that all Applicant Proposals be valid for at least three hundred sixty-
five (365) days from this RFP's closing date. Appticant Proposals which are not vatid for
at least three hundred sixty-fiv€ (365) days will be considered non-responsive and subject
to rejection.

Applicant hereby that Applicant's Applicant Proposal is valid for three hundred
st the RFP Closing Date.

Date Si9n6d

Citv Manaoer
P.int Name Print Tlle

9. Certification of UndersEnding

The County assumes no responsibility for any understanding of the Applicant or
repres€ntation made by any of the County's officers, emplol,ees or agents during or
prior to th6 execution of any Contract rosulting from this RFP unless:

a. Such understanding or rspresenlations are expressly stated in the final executed
contract; and

b. The final executed contract expressly providos that the County assumes such
responsibility.

ng has been considered in

Required Dato Sienod

Citv Maneoer
Pdnt Name Print Tite

10. Minimum Qualifications Statement

Applicant hereby certifies that it meets all minimum qualifications and requirements as
set

lgnatu16 Roquired Oato Signed

City Manaqer
Prinl TlUe

Poge 13 of 50

By signing below, Applicant certifies that such understandi

II

OC Community Resources
RFP Bid t 012-792301

, HR ond PF & I APPLICANT PROPOSAL

William Gallardo

William Gallardo

in

William Gallardo
Prlnt Nam€



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements
Aoolicant Prooosal
nh Aruo pral - ry lozo-z,r

F: SIGNATURES ANO ASSURANCES (Conflnued)

'l 1 . Cortificate of lnaurance

Applicant hereby certifies Applicant's willingness
rnsurance cove
stg tng

Signaturo

William G lardo
Print Name

12. Conflict of lntorost

Pdnl Nams

Applicant horeby c€rtifies that: (l) Applicant has provided the County with the disclosures
required in (a) and (b) below as part of its Application, or (ll) that no relationships as
outlined in (a) and (b) €xist.

Disclose any financial, business or other relationship with the County, any other
entity that the County Board of Supervisors governs, or any County Board mbmber,
officer or employee, which may have an impact, effsct or influence on the outcome
of the services you propose to provide. provido a list of current clients, employees,
principals or shareholders (including family members) who may have a finincial
interest in the outcome of services you propose to provido.

Disclose any financial, business or other relationship within the Iast three (3) years
with any firm or member of any firm who may have a financial interest in ths

and ability to provide the required
and certificates as set forth in the attached Model Contract by

Oale

to bs performed under the RFP or el Contract.

Oate Signed

Print

a

b

OC Commalty Resources
RFP Btd i 012-192301

Poge 14 ol 50 HR ond PF & I APPLICAN| PROPOSAL

City Manaqer

William Gallardo Citv Manaoer
Print Til,€



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & tmprovements
Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I - FY 2020.21

F: SIGNATURES AND ASSURANCES (Continued)

'13. Statement of Compliance

A statement of compliance with all parts of this RFp or a listing of exceptions and
suggested changes must be submitted in response to this RFp.

Applicant hereby certifies (Applicant must certify either a orb by signing below):

a. This Applicant Proposal is submitted in strict compliance with the terms and
requirements of the RFP and by submitting this Applicant proposal, Applicant agrees
to all terms and requirements of the RFp including, but not limited to, the termi and
conditions set forth el Contract and its Attachments and Exhibits that are

'*15U e RFP, and no exceptions are proposed.

Sighature required

OR

b. This Applicant Proposal is submitted in strict compliance with the terms and
requirements of th€ RFP, including the terms and conditions set forth in the Model
Contract and its Attachments and Exhibits that are made part of Section lV of the
RFP, except for those exceptions expressly listed as required by this RFp and
attached hereto.

Signature requirsd

The parts/components for each proposed exception to this RFp, including, but not
limited to Section lV - Model Contract, must include:

'1. The complete provision Applicant is taking exception to;
2. The RFP page number and section of the provision Applicant is taking

exception to;
3. The suggested rewording by way of track changes (Microsoft Word format);
4. Reason(s) for submitting the proposed exception; and
5. A description of any impact the proposed exc€ption may have on the services

to be provided.

OC Community Resources
RFP Bid t012-792301

Poge 15 ol 50 HR ond PF & I APPLICANI PROPOSAL

'14. Exceptions to the RFP Requirements

Exceptions that the Applicant has to any of the RFp requirements must be discussed
under this section. Exceptions will be reviewed by OC Community Resourcas (OCCR)
staff to evaluate the qualifications of the Applicant to meet program and service
requirements. occR reserves the right to reject a proposal that is not consistent with
the requirements of this RFP.



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements- Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I - FY 2O2O-21

PART II

PART [: HOUSTNG REHABIL|TATION (COMPONENT A)

A. PRIORITY NEEDS, HUD ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS AND NATIONAL OBJECTIVE

1. Refer to Part ll. B: Funding Request, Accomplishment Budget, Leveraging & Project
Budgef, enter the total dollar amount of Urban County funds that will be used by this
project ne)d to the community development need that best fits your project's scope.
Projects may address more than one community development need; however, in order
to be considered as addressing a "High Priority" community development need, at least
51% of the Urban County's funds must be applied towards a high priority need.

Projects must meet a national objective as identified by HUD Regulations Criteria for
National Objectives (24 CFR 570.208).

Depending on funding source, the proposed activity must be eligible as defined by HUD
Regulations under Basic Eligible Activities (24 CFR 570.201\

The population to be served or to benefit from the project must principally be low to
moderate-income as defined by HUD. See HUD lncome Limits for Housing Rehabilitation
Projects chart below.

Priority Needs

Check
Box

Priority Housing
Rehabilitation Needs

Priority Needs
Level

Urban County
Funds

Leveraged
Funds

X Owner - Single Family High $180,000 $112,656

Owner - Multi Rehab Renter High

Renter - Single Family Rehab High

Renter - Multi Family Rehab High

Special Populations High

HUD Low-Mod lncome Limits (Maximum Levels) Median lncome $ 97,900
Household

Size

Ext. Low

30%

Very Low

50o/o

Low

80%
1 $24,9s0 $41,550 $66,500
2 $28,500 $47,500 $76,000
J $32,050 $53,450 $85,500
4 $35,600 $59,350 $94,950
A $38,450 $64,100 $102,550
b $41,300 $68,850 $110,150
7 $44,1 50 $7s,600 $ 1 17,750

I $47,000 $78,350 $125,130

OC Corfi rnu n ity R esources
RFP qid i 012-192301

Poge 16 oJ 50 HR ond Pf & I APPLICANT PROPOSAL



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements- Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I - FY 2O2O-21

A PRIORITY NEEDS, HUD ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS AND NATIONAL OBJECTIVE
(Continued)

2. HUD Demographics:

a. Does this project help prevent homelessness? Yestr NoX

b. Does this project help the homeless? YesE NoX

c. Does this project help those with HIV or AIDS? Yes! NoX

d. Does this project primarily help persons with disabilities? Yestr NoX

3. Answer the following:

a. Summarize the Scope of Services for your project including the minimum number
of units to be assisted by federal funding.

b. Why is the project needed?

c. Describe how the project preserves a low and moderate-income neighborhood or
provides other community benefits.

4. Answer each question below in approximately one to four paragraphs.

a. Based upon your description of this pro.iect in Secfion A: Pioity Needs Chafi,
state how your organization will address meeting a priority need with your
performance and outcomes. ln your description, state how your performance
objectives and performance outcomes apply to the project's beneficiaries and
specifically explain how this project will affect the beneficiaries.

b. Describe what tools your organization will utilize to measure this pro,ecl's effect
on the intended beneficiaries. In your description include how your organization
will measure its success in meeting the needs of the project's beneficiaries.

c. Describe the specific population that your prqect will serve (i.e., low to
m oderate-income).

d. Describe the intended benefits to the population being served (i.e., preservation of
a low to moderate-income neighborhood).

e. Describe the ramifications if your project is not recommended for funding in this fiscal
year.

OC Corn m u n ity R e sou r ce s

RFP Bid # 012-192301
Poge 17 ol S0 HR ond PF & I APPLICANT PROPOSAL



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements- Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I - FY 2O2O-21

B: FUNDING REQUEST, ACCOMPLISHMENT BUDGET, LEVER,AGING AND PROJECT
BUDGET

FY 2020-21 Funding Request and Accomplishment Budget is a snapshot of your minimum

and maximum requested project budget. Complete the chart by providing the minimum and
maximum requested amount for your projecl, leveraged amount for your project, and
accomplishmenl level for your project.

1 . Complete table below.

FY 2O2O-21 FUNDING REQUEST AND ACCOMPLISHMENT BUDGET

Minimum Funds Request

Example 2020-21 Project

A. Ivlinimum Funds Request $ 75,000 $180,000

B. Leveraging Subrecipient Funds $ 50,000 $1'r2,656

C. Total Minimum Funds Request (A+B) $ 125,000 $292,6s6

D. Goals/Accomplishments 15 Units 11 units

Maximum Funds Request

A. Maximum Funds Request $ 200,000 $180,000

B. Leveragrng Subrecipient Funds $ 60,000 $1 12,656

C. Total Maximum Funds Request (A+B) $ 260,000 $292,656

D. Goals/Accomplishments 30 Units 1 1 units

For FY 2020-21 if new allocation funding does not increase or decrease, the estimated funding
amount for (HR) activities would be the same. However, this is also dependent on how many
(HR) project applications are submifted in the FY 2O2O-21 RFP and the amount of unallocated
funding availability.

OC Community Resources
RFP Bid # 012-192301

Poge 18 of 50 HR ond PF & I APPLICANI PROPASAL



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements- Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I _ FY 2O2O-21

B: FUNDING REQUEST, ACCOMPLISHMENT BUDGET, LEVERAGING AND PROJECT
BUDGET (Continued)

WMFunding Request and Accomplishment Budget is a snapshot of your minimum and
maximum requested project budget. Completethe chart by providing the minimum and maximum
requested amount for your project, leveraged amount for your project, and accomplishment level
for your project.

FY 2021-22 FUNDING REQUEST AND ACCOMPLISHMENT BUDGET

Minimum Funds Request

Example FY 2021-22 Project

A. Minimum Funds Request $ 75,000 $180,000

B. Leveraging Subrecipient Funds $ 50,000 $1 12,6s6

$ 125,000 $292,656

D. Goals/Accomplishments 15 Units '10 units

A. Maximum Funds Request $ 200,000 $180,000

B. Leveraging Subrecipient funds $ 60,000 $1 12,656

C. Total Maximum Funds Request (A+B) $ 260,000 $292,656

D. Goals/Accomplishments 30 Units 10 units

Fot FY 2021-22lunding will be estimated as being the same asFY 2O2O-21, dependent on HUD
allocations and unallocated funding availability.

OC Community Resources
RFP Bid i 012-192301

Poge 19 ol 50 HR ond PF & t APPLTCANT PROPOSAL

2. Complete table below.

C. Total Minimum Funds Request (A+B)

Maximum Funds Request



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements- Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I - FY 2O2O-21

B. FUNDING REQUEST, ACCOMPLISHMENT BUDGET, LEVERAGING AND PROJECT
BUDGET (Continued)

FY 2022-23 Funding Request and Accomplishment Budget is a snapshot of your minimum and
maximum requested project budget. Complete the chart by providing the minimum and maximum
requested amount for your pro.iect, leveraged amount for your project, and accomplishment level

for your project.

3. Complete table below

FY 2022.23 FUNOING REQUEST AND ACCOMPLISHMENT BUOGET

Minimum Funds Request

Example FY 2022-23 Project

A. Minimum Funds Request $ 75,000 $ 180,000

B. Leveraging Subrecipient Funds $ 50,000 $1 12,656

$ 125,000 $292,656

D. Goals/Accomplishments 15 Units 10 units

Maximum Funds Request

A. Maximum Funds Request $ 200,000 $180,000

B. Leveraging Subrecipient funds $ 60,000 $1 12,656

C. Total Maximum Funds Request (A+B) $ 260,000 $292.656

D. Goals/Accomplishments 30 Units 10 units

Fot FY 2022-23lund ing will be estimated as being the same as FY 2020-21 , dependent on HUD
allocations and unallocated funding availability.

OC Cofimunity Resources

RFP Bid # 012-192301
Poge 20 of 50 HR ond PF & I APPLICANT PROPOSAL

C. Total Minimum Funds Request (A+B)



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements
Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I _ FY 2O2O-21

B. FUNDING REQUEST, ACCOMPLISHMENT BUDGET, LEVERAGING AND PROJECT
BUDGET (Continued)

FY 2020-21 Com plele P roject Budget Chaft below, by listing the specific activities that
will be paid for by Urban County funds and your leveraged dollars for each phase of this
project (complete this activity by using the information you provided in the Fundlng Reguest
and Accomplishment Budget porlion of Part ll.B).

4. Complete table below.

5. Provide a detailed description of each project activity listed in above table.

See applicant response attachment.

Project Costs
Urban

County
Leveraged
Resources Total

Proiect Activitv: Desion/Proiect $ 50,000 $ 30,000 $ 80.000
Project Activity: Construction $ 25,000 $ 20,000 $ 45,000

Total Project Cost $ 75,000 $ 50,000 $ 125,000

Project Costs
Urban

County
Funds

Leveraged
Resources Total

Project Activity: Desiqn/Proiect
Project Activity: Construction
Project Activity: Complete 1 1 units $180,000 $1 12,6s6 $292,656

Proiect Activity:
Project Activity:
Proiect Activity:
Proiect Activity
Project Activity:
Project Activity
Project Activity:
Total Project Cost

-

OC Communiy Resources
RFP Bid n 012-192301

Poge 21 oj 50 HR ond PF & I APPLICAN| PROPOSAL

FY 2020.21 PROJECT BUOGET CHART



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements
Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I - FY 2O2O-21

B. FUNDING REQUEST, ACCOMPLISHMENT BUDGET, LEVERAGING AND PROJECT
BUDGET (Continued)

FY 2021-22 Complete Project Budget Chaft below, by listing the specific activities that
will be paid for by Urban County funds and your leveraged dollars for each phase of this
project (complete this activity by using the information you provided in the Fund,ng Reguest
and Accomplishment Budget pottion of Part ll.B.

6. Complete table below.

7. Provide a detailed description of each project activity listed in above table.

See applicant response attachment.

Project Costs
Urban

County
Leveraged
Resources Total

Proiect Activitv: Desiqn/Proiect $ 50.000 $ 30,000 $ 80,000
Project Activity: Construction $ 25,000 $ 20,000 $ 45,000

$ 125,000Total Project Cost $ 75,000 $ 50,000

Project Costs
urban

County
Funds

Leveraged
Resources Total

Project Activity: Desiqn/Protect
Proiect Activity: Construction
Project Activity: Complete 10 units $180,000 $1 12,6s6 $292,656

Proiect Activity:
Project Activity:
Proiect Activity:
Proiect Activity
Project Activity
Project Activity
Project Activity:
Total Project Cost

OC Comfiunity Resoutces

RFP Bid # 012-192301
Poge 22 of 50 HR ond PF & 1 APPLICANT PROPOSAL

FY 202'1.22 PROJECT BUDGET CHART



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements- Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I - FY 2020.21

9. Provide a detailed description of each project activity listed in above table.

See applicant response attachment.

Project Costs
Urban

County Total
Leveraged
Resources

Proiect Activitv: Desion/Proiect $ 50,000 $ 30.000 $ 80,000
Project Activity: Construction $ 25,000 $ 20,000 $ 45,000

Total Project Cost $ 75,000 $ s0,000 $'125,000

Project Costs
Urban

Countv
Fund6

Leveraged
Resources Total

Proiect Activity: Desion/Proiect
Project Activity: Construction
Project Activity: Complete 10 units $180,000 $292,656

Project Activity
Project Activity
Project Activity
Project Activity
Project Activity
Project Activity
Project Activity
Total Project Cost

OC Cofimunity Resources
RFP Bid d 012-192301

Poge 23 oJ 50 HR ond Pr & I APPLICANT PROPOSAL

B. FUNDING REQUEST, ACCOMPLISHMENT BUDGET, LEVERAGING AND PROJECT
BUDGET (Continued)

FY 2022-23 Complete P roject Budget Charf below, by listing the specific activities that
will be paid for by Urban County funds and your leveraged dollars for each phase of this
project (complete this activity by using the information you provided in the Funding Request
and Accomplishment Budget portion of Part ll.B.

8. Complete table below.

FY 2022-23 PROJECT BUDGET CHART

$1 12,656



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lm provements
Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I _ FY 2O2O-21

C: PERFORMANCE OBJECTIVES AND OUTCOMES

Using the definitions below, complete the Performance Objectives and Outcomes table
below by stating project activity, output, performance objectives and performance
outcomes.

Activity ldentify pro.iect activities geared towards completing project, set
quantifiable units of accomplishments (e.9., planning, construction,
inspections).

ldentify project outputs such as proposed units of accomplishments (what do
you hope to achieve from your project, (e.9., complete 1,000 linear feet of
sidewalk).

Output

Performance Objectives

Suitable Livino Environment: ln general, this objective relates to activities
that are designed to beneflt communities, families, or individuals by
addressing issues in their living environment.

Decent Affordable Housinq: The activities that typically would be found
under this objective are designed to cover the wide-range of housing
possible under HOME, CDBG, HOPWA, or ESG. This objective focuses on
housing programs where the purpose for the project is to meet the individual
family or community needs, not programs where the housing is an element of
a larger effort.

Creatinq Economic Ooportunities: This objective applies to the types of
activities related to economic development, commercial revitalization, or job
creation.

Performance Outcomes

Availabilitv/Accessibilitv: This outcome category applies to activities that
make services, infrastructure, housing, or shelter available or accessible to
low and moderate-income people, including persons with disabilities. ln this
category, accessibility does not refer only to physical barriers, but also to
making the affordable basics of daily living available and accessible to low
and moderate-income people.

Affordability This outcome category applies to activities that provide
affordability in a variety of ways in the lives of low and moderate-income
people. It can include the creation or maintenance of affordable housing,
basic infrastructure hook-ups, or services such as transportation or day
care.

Sustainabilitv (Promoting Livable or Viable Communities): This outcome
applies to projects where the activity or activities are aimed at improving
communities or neighborhoods, helping to make them livable or viable by
providing benefits to persons of low and moderate-income or by removing or
eliminating slums or blighted areas, through multiple activities or services that

Poge 24 of 50 HR ond PF & I APPLICANT PROPOSAL

b

c

a

OC Cofimunity Resoutces
RFP Bid i 012-192301

b.



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements- Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I - FY 2O2O-21

sustain communities or neighborhoods.

C: PERFORMANCE OBJECTIVES AND OUTCOMES (Continued)

2. Complete table below.

PERFoRMANcE OBJECTIVES AND OUTCoMES

Example

Activity Outputs Performance Objectives Performance Outcomes

lnspection 15 Units Suitable Living Environment Availability/Accessibility

Construction 15 Units Decent Affordable Housing Sustainability

Activity Outputs Performance Objectives Performance Outcomes

lnspection 10 units Suitable Living Environment Availability/Accessibility

Const./Rehab 10 units Decent Affordable Housing Sustaina bility

OC Community Resources

RFP Bid # 012-192301
Poge 25 of 50 HR ond PF & I APPLICANT PROPOSAL



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements- Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I - FY 2O2O-21

D: ORGANIZATIONAUPROJECT CAPACITY AND EXPERIENCE

Has your organization received funding for this type of activity during the
previous three years?

EYes trNo

lf you answered, "Yes", complete Prevbus Funding Table below by identifying the
contract number, award amount, program income, if generated; and any unspent
funds.

lf you answered "No" above, submit a letter signed by this Applicant's authorized
person that identifies one reference from three different funding sources from whom
you have received funding in the past three years. The letter must include contact
information for the three references (funding source), the amount of funding awarded
from each reference, explanation of the use of funds, duration of funding awarded,
and state whether or not contractual performance measures were achieved.

Describe the reason why funds remain unspent in the Previous Funding Table
above. lnclude an explanation of how the organization intends to complete the project.

Describe the role of key administrators, staff members, contractors, and volunteers
within your organization and their role in implementing the proposed project. lnclude
experience, education, and licensing qualifications in your description.

Please submit a copy of your most recent audit (within the last two years) by an
independent CPA and a description of corrective action taken for any findings identified by
the auditor, both of which will be reviewed by the OC Housing Accounting Manager or
designated staff.

Applicants who have expended Federal funds in excess of $750,000 are required to submit
two (2) years of Single Audit reports (FY 2016117 and FY 2017/18). Refer to Section ll.D.2.

1

2

3

4

5

PREVIOUS FUNDING TABLE

Year Contract
Number

Award
Amount

Prooram lncome
deneraled

(lf Applicable)
Unspent Funds

from Award

2017-18 17-23-0002-HR 5180,000 5203,t72 s24,188

18-23-0002-HR s190,000 56,e 1s 5114,903

2019-20 19-23-0002-HR s190,000 5L60,724 S181,02s

OC CommuniW Resources

RFP Bid $ 012-192301
Page 26 of 50 HR ond PF & I APPLICANT PROPOSAL

2018-19

Describe the organization's experience administering this type or similar project.



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements- Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I - FY 2020.21

D: ORGANIZATIONAUPROJECT CAPACITY AND EXPERIENCE (Continued)

Or

Submit copies of organization's Audited Financial Statements for FY 2016/17 and FY
2017t18.

Audited Financial Statements will include

Balance Sheet (Statement of Financial Position) - lncluding all supporting schedules
(i.e. Detailed Aged Payables, Aged Receivables, Notes Payable, etc.);
lncome Statement (Proflt and Loss Statement);
Statement of Cash Flow;
Retained Earnings; and
Any footnotes to the statements.

NOTE: YOUR AUDIT SHOULD BE UP LOADED TO A FLASH DRIVE AS A
SEPARATE PDF. PAPER COPIES WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED.

Applicants who have expended Federal funds m excess of $750,000 please see PART l: D
O rg anization al B ackground, ltem 7.

Poge 27 oI50 HR ond PF & I APPLICANT PROPOSAL

of the RFP document for more details related to Single Audit requirements.

OCCommunity Resources
RFP Bid # 012-192301



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements- Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I - F\ 2O2O-21

E: ORGANIZATIONAL/PROJECT READINESS

'1. Project milestones are an effective method of demonstrating overall project
readiness. Enter the date the milestone action was completed in column 1.

lf the milestone action is in progress, enter the start and end dates in columns 2
and 3. lf the action is not applicable to your proiect, check column 4.

2. lnclude in your Application documentation regarding all completed milestone actions (i.e.,
Minute Order/Board Resolution, public hearing notice, closed session notice and/or Agenda
and applicable documentation for Milestone Actions, A through E). All Applicants must
immediately schedule meetings with your organization's boards to ensure, if selected, all
council/board approvals are submitted priorto contract signing by your organization. Please
include any prepared staff report as a response to this RFP and identify your council/board
schedule meeting date.

PROJECT/ORGANIZATION READINESS CHART
1

Action
Complete

2
Action

ln Progress
Start Date

J
Action

ln Progress
End Date

4
Action

N/A

Milestone Actions

A. Governing Body approval to apply for funds 214t20

B. Minute Order/Board Resolutron 2t4t20

C. Project found in current annual budget 7t1t19
Staffing/Consultant assigned for design/
lmplementation

7t1t19

D. Feasibility Study X
Design X
Project in concept phase X
RFP/RFQ process administered x

Consultant contract with design engineer
Negotiated

x

Final plans and specifications written x
Finals plans and specifications approved X

Environmental Approvals (CEOA/NEPA) X

E. Acquisition/Rehabilitation X

OC Comfiunity Resoutces
RFP Bid i 012-192301

Poge 28 of 50 HR ond PF & I APPLICANT PROPOSAL



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements- Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I - FY 2O2O-21

2

E: ORGANIZATIONAL/PROJECT READINESS (Continued)

For Applicants: When submitting to your council/board, the approval via a resolution/board
approval-minutes should include:

[Sample Cou n cillBoard Resoluti on]

ThekgenSy_AameLsubmifted (or will be submitting) an application under FY 2020-21, FY 2021-22
AND FY 2022-23 FOR HOUS,,VG REHABILITATION AND FY 2O2O-21 FOR PUBLIC FACILITIES &
IMPROVEMENTS REQUESTFOR PROPOSAL BID NO. 012.192301.

TheJAggcy_nprnpl desires fo accept the award of CDBG funds and authorizes the execution of the
necessary agreements, contracts and amendments and other conesponding documentation to accept
the CDBG funds.

NOW, THEREFORE, THEJeqp1gylsmetr HEREBY, RESOLvES, AND ORDERS AS FOLLOWS:

1. The [aqencv namel hereby accepts the award of CDBG funds through the County's Urban
Counties Program, which will be used to suppoft the [aqencv namel Housinq Rehabilitation
[proiect namel Project and the [aqencv namel Public Facilities & lmorovements [proiect namel
Project under Bid No. 012-192301 .

TheJagency_lauel authorizes the I lndividual Titlel or his/her designee to execute, for and on
behaff of the faqencv namel, the necessary agreements(s) and/or any other documents or
instruments required by the County and/or the Unlfed Stales Depaftment of Housing and Urban
Development for pafticipation in the Urban Counties Program and/or for acceptance of the
CDBG funds under Bid No. 012-192301.

4. lnclude in your Applicant Proposal a brief explanation as to why a given milestone action is
not applicable to the pro.iect, if necessary.

OC Community Resources
RFP Bid # 012-192301

Pdge 29 ol 50 HR ond PF & I APPLICANT PROPOSAL

3. lnclude in your Applicant Proposal a written status for all milestone actions marked as "ln
Progress." lnclude supporting documentation to support progress.



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements
Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I _ FY 2O2O-21

F: ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION FORM

OC Housing
150'l E. St. Andrew Place,'l't Floor, Santa Ana, CA 92705

Environmental lnformation Form
NEPA (24 CFR Part 58)

Existing Environmental Conditions: (Please, describe the surrounding environment around your project)

The proposed project is exempt from CEQA by Section 15301. The single family housing rehabilitation funds would
be allocated to Class I projects as defined in CEQA.

Project Title: Single Famaly Rehabilitation
Program Activlty(ies): Rehabilitate lowvery low-income single family housing
Name of Subrecipient: City of Brea
Fund Type(s): tr CDBG ! HOME tr ESG n NSP tr OCHA,/Operating Reserves E CoC

EGeneral Fund
Contract Number(s): N/A
Contract Amount: $ N/A

Project Location: (Provide precise address and include Census Tract No. lf confidential, please insert
"Suppressed" and provide Census Tract No.)

City-wide assistance for lovvery low-income households.

Project Activity Level Description: (Please provide in detail the level of services you provide or the scope
of rehabilitation and/or construction your project will involve. lf needed, please use attachments.)

(Projects involving new construction, rehabilitation or acquisition activities re! complete the
Supplemental Site lnformation portion of this form)

Funds will be used for program delivery expenses and correcting health & safety issues, code violations, and other
areas of maintenance decline. While dealing with needed repairs, this rehab work will help to preserve the supply of
affordable housing in the Brea community.

OC Comfiunity Resoutces
RFP Bid # 012-192301

Poqe 30 of 50 HR ond PF & t APPLICANT PROPOSAL



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements- Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I - FY 2O2O-21

Previous Governmental Actions/Approvals Received On Your Project (lf applicable, please list and attach
a copy of any discretionary approvals you received on your project from a City or other County Agency.)

City Council

Discretionary Approval(s) Needed From City/County To Complete Your Project(s):

Required building permits will be obtained through the city and/or state as necessary.

I hereby declare that the statements furnished above, including any exhibits attached hereto represent all
information required for this assessment. Said statements together with any exhibits attached hereto are true
and correct.

Manaqement Analvst I

Signature Title Date

Supplemental Site lnformation

PLEASE PROVIDE ALL KNOWN INFORMATION AS REQUESTED - CHECK ALL BOXES THAT
APPLY

(All PF&|, Acquisition, Rehabilitation and/or New Construction Activities must include site
ohotos and site plan)

Proposed Project Type: il New Construction Ll Acquisition

Lr Rehabilitationll Acquisition/Rehabilitation

OC Comfiunity Resoutces
RFP Bid i 012-192301

Poge 31oJ S0 HR ond PF & I APPLICANT PROPOSAL



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements- Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I - FY 2O2O-21

Description of the Proposal: lnclude all contemplated actions, which are geographically, or
functionally a composite part of the proiect, regardless of the source of funding. [24 CFR 58.32, 40
cFR 1508.251

Proposed Site: Zoning Designation

General Plan Land Use Designation

ls project in a floodplain? (attach copy)

Existing Use(s) tr Vacant n Residential Commercial lndustrial

Other:

Size of Site

Age of Existing Structures:

OC Community Resources
RFP Bid # 012-192301

Pdge 32 of 50 HR ond PF & I APPLICANT PROPOSAL

F: ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION FORM (continued)

Interior and exterior improvements to oualified low/verv low-income households citv-wide, Includino.

but not limited to floorino. paintino. electrical. plumbino. roofino, termite and drv-rot damaoe.

FEI\/A Map No:

tr

_ Acres _ Sq. Ft. Assessor's Parcel No:

years Year built:



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lmprovements- Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I - FY 2020.21

F: ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION FORM (Continued)

Prior Use(s)/Development(s) :

n Residential n lndushial ! Commercial tr Agriculture Other:

lf residential use, number of units: Proposed Existing

2 Bedroom # of Units 3 Bedroom # of Units 4+Bedroom # of Units

Total Number of Units:

Existing Conditions and Trends: Describe the existing conditions of the pro.iect area and its
surroundings. [24 CFR 58.a0(a)]

Citv-wide proiects

ls current zoning and use appropriate for the proposed site? lf not, present a plan for obtaining any

discretionary approvals.

N/A

Prior Analysis:

Have there been any prior Environmental Reviews completed for the proposed site or project within
the last five (5) years. lf yes, please attach copies of the Environmental Review. tr Yes B No

OC Cofimunity Resoutces
RFP Bid I 012-192301

Poge 33 of 50 HR ond PF & I APPLICANT PROPOSAL

Studio # of Units 1 Bedroom # of Units_

Total Number of Buildings:



Housing Rehabilitation and Public Facilities & lm provements
Applicant Proposal
HR AND PF&I - FY 2O2O-21

F: ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION FORM (Continued)

Has the site been involved in any other proposals previously submitted to this office?

tr Yes 8No

Title of Prior Proposal:

Applicant's Name:

Eventual Result: ! Project Not Funded

n Project Funded $

tr Project Completed Date Completed

n Project Cancelled Date Cancelled

Describe why proiect was cancelled

REMAINOER OF THIS PAGE WAS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

OC Cornmu nity Resources
RFP qid i 012-192301

Poge 34 ol 5A HR ohd PF & t APPLICANT PROPOSAL



PART I

SECTION C: PROJECT INFORMATION



PART I.
SECTION C: PROJECT INFORMATION

Question 3. Provide a highJevel summary description of your project.

Funds will be used to rehabilitate approximately 'l l qualified low-income, owner-occupied

residential single family units, including program delivery expenses to complete the rehab

projects.

Question 4. Minority-Owned and Women0wned business (MBDMBE)
b. Describe all actions your organization has taken in support of HUD's goal to

provide opportunities to MBE/WBE's.

The City of Brea has established a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program

in accordance with federal regulations. lt is the City's policy to ensure nondiscrimination,

to create a level playing field on which all can compete fairly, and to remove barriers to

participation. The policy states the City of Brea never discriminate against anyone in

connection with the award of any contract on the basis of race, color, sex, or national

origin. The entire 13-page policy is available upon request.



PART I

SECTION D: ORGANIZATION BACKGROUND



PART I.
SECTION D: ORGANIZATION BACKGROUND

Question 3. Describe the organization's goals, objectives, and mission.

Maintain a Safe Environment for Breans

Public safety is a basic element of Brea's quality of life. The city will continue to use

education and prevention approaches as well as enforcement and appropriate

maintenance of facilities to enhance people's sense of security.

Ensure Brea Remains a Special Place

Brea's small lown atmosphere, our sense of community, and our physical assets make

Brea a special place. The city resolves to protect Brea's hillside and canyon areas and

foster family values, quality education, cultural understanding, a vibrant civic and cultural

life, and an involved and caring citizenry.

Protect & Enhance Brea as a Balanced Communitv

A successful community sustains itself by ensuring a balance in physical, economic, and

human development. A balanced community provides residents and businesses with the

infrastructure and services which fulfill the diverse expectations of the community. A

balanced community will provide a variety of land uses, promote economic health, and

create and retain jobs while diversifying the revenue base needed to support services

and maintain a sound reserve fund. A balanced community will also ensure a diversity of

affordable housing opportunities for all elements of Brea, from the young to the old.

lncrease Breans' Sense of Civic Ownership

The city commits itself to two-way communication and interaction with the community to

facilitate vision building, long-range planning, and organizational excellence. These

elements are necessary for the long{erm success of the community.



Question 4. Provide a brief description of your organization's accounting system
and controls in place.

The City of Brea uses a standard fund basis accounting system in accordance with the

Governmental Accounting Standards Board State and Local Accounting Principles. We

have established internal controls as to the segregation of duties related to the various

accounting processes such as general ledger, payroll, accounts payable, revenues,

journal entries, capital assets, etc. These internal controls are subject to being

tested/reviewed annually by our contract CPA firm who prepares our audited financial

statements and our federal Single Audit Report. Recommendations for improvement in

internal controls are noted in the auditor's letter on internal controls that is prepared at the

end of each year's audit engagement. Please see the City's CAFR, Note 1 - Summary

of Significant Accounting Policies (included on flash drives). This accounting system

incorporates budgetary information as to both revenues and expenditures. During the

fiscal year, all departments have access to the accounting system information as to the

reporting of both budgetary and actual revenues and expenditures to provide for

monitoring of all operations of the city. The accounting system also generates year-end

financial reports necessary for the preparation of audited financial statements. Our

internal controls are based on General Accepted Accounting Principles and are reviewed

annually as part of the audited financial statements by Brea's independent auditor. We

are also providing a copy of the City's Grants Management Policies and Procedures for

your file (included on flash drives),



Question 5. Describe the organization's fund development method.

The City's process for fund development follows the Governmental Accounting Standards

Board guidelines. The city process for fund development is a focus on increasing

accountability and control of the financial resources. As to HUD's Community

Development Block Grant (CDBG) program, the City of Brea has always mainlained as a

condition of participation a separate special revenue fund to account for all assets,

revenues (both CDBG grant income and program income) and expenditures. As to

assets funded with CDBG monies, this is related to accounting for all loans for the single

family housing rehabilitation program.

Question 6. List the person(s) who have legal authority to sign contracts and other
legal documents, payment requests, and checks related to this Applicant Proposal.
Provide a copy of the Board Resolution/Meeting Minutes which grants signing
authority to these individuals for all contracts, amendments, extensions and
renewals resulting from this RFP process.

Christine Marick, Mayor (subject to change after Council reorganization)

William Gallardo, City Manager

City Council approved Resolution will be provided after the Public Hearing of January 21,

See enclosed flash drives.

2020. Sample provided as Exhibit D.

Question 7. Audit Requirements as defined in Section l.H. of the RFP:
a. Applicants who have expended Federal funds in excess of $750,000 are

required to submit two (2) years of Single Audit reports (FY 2016-17 and FY
2017-',t81.



Question 8. ln the past ten years, has your organization ever had its non-profit
status revoked or withheld by the lRS, the Secretary of State, the State Attorney
General, or the Franchise Tax Board? lf yes, please provide an explanation.

Not applicable

Question 9. Please provide proof of Non-Profit Status or Business License.

Not applicable.

Question 10. CurrenUPast Litigation or Judgements: Has your organization been
sued in the last five (5) years? lf yes, provide detailed information regarding
litigation (Court and case number), judgements involving your organization(s) or
any company your organization holds a controlling interest in, or any company that
holds an interest in your organization(s), or any of the principal officers of the
organization(s).

No contract-related currenUpast litigation or judgements.

Question 11. CurrenUPast Liens or Monetary Judgements: ln the last five (5) years,
has your organization had any liens or monetary judgements issued against your
organization or any company your organization holds a controlling interest in, or
any company that holds an interest in your organization, or any of the principal
officers of the organization. lnclude in your response the date of
lien(s)/judgement(s) issued, date closed, dollar amount(s) and
description/explanation. The County, at its discretion, may request additional
information or back-up material.

No contractrelated currenupast liens or monetary judgements

No managers or staff with fiscal responsibilities involved in litigation.

No contract-related unfavorable ruling by any court against Brea or City Manager.

Question 12. Are any of your managers or staff with fiscal responsibilities involved
in litigation presently that has any bearing on fiduciary trust or employee relations?
lf yes, please provide an explanation.

Question 13. Have any unfavorable ruling been handed down by any court against
your organization or executive director in the past five years? lf yes, please provide
an explanation.



Question 14. Does your organization currently have any unresolved fiscal,
reporting or program issues with any of its funding sources? lf yes, please provide
an explanation.

The City of Brea is still awaiting resolution of a program issue related to a Land and Water

Conservation Fund (LWCF) grant. The issue has to do with having another federal grant

funding a portion (subsequent phase) of the capital improvement project that included the

LWCF grant (awarded for the initial phase of the project). This program issue needs to

be resolved as it involves a pending reimbursement. Additional information can be

provided upon request.

Question 15. Provide an organizational chart of your organization, including key
staffing for the project.

Organizational chart provided as Exhibit A

Question 15. Provide a copy of your organization's Board of Director's list.

City Council Members*:

Christine Marick, Mayor

Marty Simonoff, Mayor Pro Tem

Cecilia Hupp, Council Member

Glenn Parker, Council Member

Steven Vargas, Council Member

.Subject to change after Council reorganization

Question 17. lf your organization is a non-profit, provide a copy of your
organization's 501(cX3). Also provide an IRS tax-exempt letter dated no later than
December 2014, or a Certificate of Status provided by the Secretary of State,
Business Programs Division.

Not applicable



Question 18. Provide a copy of your organization's Articles of lncorporation and
By-Laws.

Not applicable

Question 19. Provide a copy of the minutes of your organization's board meeting
where the proposed project was discussed.

City Council approved Resolution will be provided after the Public Hearing of January 21,

2020. Sample provided as Exhibit D.

Question 20. Provide IRS 990 form "Return of Organization Exempt from lncome
Tax, if applicable."

Not applicable



PART ll: HOUSING REHABILITATION (COMPONENT A)

SECTION A. PRIORITY NEEDS, HUD ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS AND
NATIONAL OBJECTIVE



PART ll: HOUSING REHABILITATION (COMPONENT A)
SECTION A. PRIORITY NEEDS, HUD ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS AND NATIONAL
OBJECTIVE

Question 3.a. Summarize the Scope of Services for your project including the
minimum number of units to be assisted by federal funding.

This project is exclusively geared to address the requirements of single-family low/very

low-income owner-occupied residential rehabilitation. Funds will be used to rehabilitate

approximately ten single-family units, including program delivery expenses to complete

the rehab projects.

Question 3.b. Why is the project needed?

Housing rehabilitation is essential to maintaining and improving Brea's neighborhoods

and low-income housing stock. For the low/very low-income families which this program

benefits, it becomes essential that money be made available for preservation of the

affordable single-family housing within our neighborhoods.

Question 3.c. Describe how the project preserves a low and moderate-income
neighborhood or provides other community benefits.

It will provide the assistance necessary for property improvement for low/very low-income

families, disabled residents, and seniors to obtain needed repairs, therefore preserving

the low/very low housing stock of our community and enhancing the neighborhoods.

Question 4.a. Based upon your description of this project in Section A: Priority
Needs Chart, state how your organization will address meeting a priority need with
your performance and outcomes. ln your description, state how your performance
objectives and performance outcomes apply to the project's beneficiaries and
specifically explain how this project will affect the beneficiaries.

Housing Rehabilitation of single-unit low/very low-income owner-occupied residential

structures is listed as a high priority per the County's Consolidated Plan. The Program



assists households with home repairs to correct health and safety issues and bring homes

up to current building codes. The Housing Rehabilitation Program also benefits the

community by keeping neighborhoods and Brea's affordable housing stock in good

condition, thus extending the life of these properties. Program beneficiaries' quality of life

will improve when their homes are made safer and more comfortable. Given the high

cost of living in Orange County, this program is the only way low-income participants

would be able to complete these needed improvements.

Question 4.b. Describe what tools your organization will utilize to measure this
project's effect on the intended beneficiaries. ln your description include how your
organization will measure its success in meeting the needs of the project's
beneficiaries.

Many program participants have mobility/accessibility challenges. This program assists

those participants by providing accessibility ramps, railings/grab bars, smooth/even

flooring, etc. in order for them to move about their residences freely without obstacles,

therefore improving their quality of life.

Question 4.c. Describe the specific population that your project will serve (i.e., low
to moderate-income).

The program is exclusively geared to provide single-family owner-occupied residential

rehabilitation to very low and low-income households.

Question 4.d. Describe the intended benefits to the population being served (i.e.,
preservation of a low to moderate-income neighborhood).

It will provide assistance necessary for property improvement for low/very low-income

households to receive needed health and safety repairs, preserve the lowivery low

housing stock of our community, and enhance neighborhoods.



Question 4.e. Describe the ramifications if your project is not recommended for
funding in this fiscal year.

lf not funded, the City will not be able to rehabilitate any homes and address the health

and safety issues, code violations, and other areas that could lead to neighborhood

deterioration. The current challenges to the city's budget and staffing make CDBG

funding more critical than ever for low-income neighborhoods and households.



PART ll: HOUSING REHABILITATION (COMPONENT A)

SECTION B: FUNDING REQUEST, ACCOMPLISHMENT BUDGET, LEVERAGING
AND PROJECT BUDGET



PART ll: HOUSING REHABILITATION (COMPONENT A)
SECTION B: FUNDING REQUEST, ACCOMPLISHMENT BUDGET, LEVERAGING
AND PROJECT BUDGET

The City of Brea will utilize $180,000 through a combination of loans and grants to

complete housing rehabilitation projects for 11 income-qualified property owners,

including program delivery expenses to complete the projects.

Question 9. Provide a detailed description of each project activity listed in above
table.

The City of Brea will utilize $180,000 through a combination of loans and grants to

complete housing rehabilitation projects for ten (10) income-qualified property owners,

including program delivery expenses to complete the projects.

Question 5. Provide a detailed description of each project activity listed in above
table.

Question 7. Provide a detailed description of each project activity listed in above
table.

The City of Brea will utilize $180,000 through a combination of loans and grants to

complete housing rehabilitation projects for ten (10) income-qualified property owners,

including program delivery expenses to complete the projects.



PART ll: HOUSING REHABILITATION (COMPONENT A)

SECTION D: ORGANIZATIONAL/PROJECT CAPACTIY AND EXPERIENCE



PART ll: HOUSING REHABILITATION (COMPONENT A)
SECTION D: ORGANIZATIONAUPROJECT CAPACITY AND EXPERIENCE

Question 2. Describe the reason why funds remain unspent in the Previous
Funding Table above. lnclude an explanation of how the organization intends to
complete the project.

The unspent balance of $24,188 from Fiscal Year 2017-18 was due to unforeseen

contractor delays and challenging home owner participants.

The unspent balance of $1 14,903 from Fiscal Year 20t8-19 was due to unforeseen

weather delays, contractor delays, contractor unavailability, and challenging home owner

participants.

The unspent balance of $181 ,025 from Fiscal Year 2019-20 (current grant cycle) will be

spent by the deadline.

Question 3. Describe the role of key administratorc, staff members, contractors,
and volunteers within your organization and their role in implementing the
proposed project. lnclude experience, education, and licensing qualifications in
your description.

Experience of our staff ranges from supervising the CDBG Housing Rehabilitation

Program, to experience working with building code requirements and code enforcement

activities relating to health and safety violations. This gives staff the knowledge to

implement the program effectively and in a timely manner. The Management Analyst in

charge of Brea's housing programs has four (4) years of experience implementing the

CDBG program, as well as over (4) years of experience in the City's Building and Safety

Division. The consultant providing program delivery services has over 17 years of

experience successfully implementing housing rehabilitation programs.



Question 4. Describe the organization's experience administering this type or
similar project.

Housing Rehabilitation projects have been a part of Brea's housing programs for over 40

years. Trained staff members continue to apply their knowledge and expertise to day{o-

day activities on each project from beginning to completion.

Question 5. Please submit a copy of your most recent audit (within the last two
years) by an independent CPA and a description of corrective action taken for any
findings identified by the auditor, both of which will be reviewed by the OC Housing
Accounting Manager or designated staff.

The City of Brea's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), dated June 30,2017

and June 30,2018 have been included on a flash drive with this proposal. The 2019

CAFR will be posted online at: http://www.ci.brea.ca.us/documentcenter/view/679 once

available.

Applicants who have expended Federal funds in excess of $750,000 are required
to submit two (2) years of Single Audit reports (FY 2016-17 and FY 2017-'18).

The City of Brea's Single Audit reports dated June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2018 have been

included on a flash drive with this proposal.



PART ll: HOUSING REHABILITATION (COMPONENT A)

SECTION E: ORGANIZATIONAUPROJECT READINESS



PART ll: HOUSING REHABILITATION (COMPONENT A)
SECTION E: ORGANIZATIONAL/PROJECT READINESS

Question 2. lnclude in your Application documentation regarding all completed
milestone actions (i.e., Minute Order/Board Resolution, public hearing notice,
closed session notice and/or Agenda and applicable documentation for Milestone
Actions, A through E). All Applicants must immediately schedule meetings with
your organization's boards to ensure, if selected, all council/board approvals are
submitted prior to contract signing by your organization. Please include any
prepared staff report as a response to this RFP and identify your council/board
schedule meeting date.

City Council action will take place on January 21 ,2020. lncluded with this proposal is a

copy of the Council Staff Report and Public Hearing Notice as Exhibits B and C.

Question 3. lnclude in your Applicant Proposal a wriften status for all milestone
actions marked as "ln Progress." lnclude supporting documentation to support
progress.

A Public Hearing will be held at the Council meeting on January 21, 2020, where an action

willtake place. lncluded with this proposal is a copy of the Council Staff Report and Public

Hearing Notice as Exhibits B and C.

Question 4. lnclude in your Applicant Proposal a brief explanation as to why a
given milestone action is not applicable to the project, if necessary.

The milestone actions under section "D" do not apply to Housing Rehabilitation as this

program assists only privately-owned single-family residences.



Exhibit A

o;
3tt
o.

.sfi

6,.
o

3

tz
19
qE

F E!
!b
co -6

=

-E
9EioEO

sE
!

=

o6,!a
o

.9
E
E

q!9
aa

Fa

,

e

E
I

E
aiu
E5
Es E

E

a

.9

t
i

{,1.EI

0,,t
oq,

6

f
o

I

a/
@

=2
I

.E sg
g;

!o
q3

6i
E

-

I

U

,E

,9

o

.9

pJ(
gE

9:3*
E,5

a

E

a

!

19

l-q

I
U
z
o
l-

N

=
oq
o
l-
(J



Exhibit B

City of Brea

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo, City Manager

DATE: 0112112020

SUBJEGT: Approval of the application for participation in the Community
Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) for Fiscal Y ears 2020-21 ,

2021-22 and 2022-23.

RECOMTIIENDATION

Approve the application for Fiscal Years 2020-21 ,2021-22,2022-23 for Housing
Rehabilitation to the County of Orange for Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) funding.

BAC KGROUN D/DISCUSSION

The Federal Housing and Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG)
was established under legislation passed by Congress in 1974 to provide housing and
other assistance for low-income persons. lt is funded by the Federal Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and administered by the County of Orange
for cities under 50,000 in population.

The City has been very successful in receiving CDBG grants to implement the Single
Family Rehabilitation Program, alley improvements identified in the Neighborhood
Enhancement Plan, and capital improvements to Pioneer Hall and the Senior Center.
Project eligibility is limited as the County only funds what is deemed "high priority
projects," including addressing homelessness, housing rehabilitation, alley
improvements, and senior centers.

The City has received CDBG funding each year for the past 45 years for housing
rehabilitation of single family homes owned by low-income residents. Qualified
homeowners must meet federally prescribed requirements to participate in the
Program. Each year, 10 to 15 homes are improved and many neighborhoods in Brea
have been enhanced.

The County released the Fiscal Years2020-21,2021-222022-23 CDBG application
package on November 20,2019 and required that completed applications be
submitted by December 23,2019. This timeframe did not allow the opportunity to
bring the application to the City Council prior to submittal. The County requires a
Council resolution in order for Brea's application to be considered in the competitive
process.



Tonight's Public Hearing is being conducted to conform to HUD and County
requirements to give the public an opportunity to participate in the application
process. At the conclusion ofthe Public Hearing, the Council is asked to approve by
resolution the City's participation in the Fiscal Years 2020-21 , 2021-22 and 2022-23
CDBG grant program.

The Single Family Rehabilitation Loans will be used to correct health, safety and
building code violations. The majority of the funds received will be utilized for single
family home loans and mobile home grants. The remaining funds will be used for
program delivery expenses to perform inspections of the project sites, contract
document preparation, and coordinating contractors/construction. The recipients of
the loans and grants must be low-income households, which is defined as earning
80% or less of County median income. The requested grant amount is $180,000 for
all three Fiscal Years (2020-21 ,2021-22 and 2022-23).

COMMISSION/COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

The Finance Committee reviewed this item at its meeting on January 14,2020 and
recommended moving to Council for approval.

FISCAL IMPACT/SUMi'ARY
The City of Brea applies annually to the County of Orange for Federal Communig
Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding in order to provide low-income single
family rehabilitation loans and grants to qualified Brea homeowners.

The CDBG application for Fiscal Years 2020-21 ,2021-22 and 2022-23 are requesting
$180,000 for the Single Family Housing Rehabilitation Program, where no match is
required. Staff implementing the Program is paid from the Housing Successor Fund.
Thus, there is no negative fiscal impact to the General Fund.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by: Marie Dao, Management Analyst
Concurrence: David Crabtree, Community Development Director



Exhibit C

CITY OF BREA
PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

NOTICE lS HEREBY GIVEN that the Brea City Council will conduct a public hearing on
Tuesday, January 21,2020, at 7:00pm, or as soon thereafter as the matter can be
heard, in the Council Chambers of the Civic and Cultural Center, 1 Civic Center Circle,
Brea, California, to consider the adoption of a resolution approving the City's Fiscal Years
2020-21,2021-22 and 2022-23 Grant Application to the County of Orange for the
Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG).

FURTHER INFORMATION may be obtained at the Office of the City Clerk or by calling
(714) 990-7756.

ALL INTERESTED PARTIES are invited to attend said hearing and express opinions on
the matter outlined above.

lf you challenge this ordinance in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues
you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written
correspondence delivered to the Office of the City Clerk at, or prior to, the public hearing.

Dated: December 20, 2019

Lillian Harris-Neal
City Clerk of City of Brea

Publish: January 9,2020



Exhibit D

RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BREA TO
APPROVE THE CITY'S PARTICIPATION IN THE FISCAL YEARS 2020.
21, 2021.22 AND 2022-23 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK
GRANT PROGRAM (CDBG) WITH THE COUNTY OF ORANGE

A.@:
(i) lt is the intent of the City of Brea to participate in the filing of an application

with the County of Orange for a grant authorized under the Housing and Community

Development Act of 1974, and the Cranston/Gonzales National Affordable Housing Act

of '1990, as amended.

(ii) The Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended,

authorizes cities under 50,000 in population to enter into cooperation agreements with

the County in which they are located for the purpose of undertaking essential housing

and community development activities.

(iii) The federal government requires participating cities to provide certifications

that the funds will be obtained and utilized pursuant to Federal law and policy.

(iv) lt is necessary that the City adopt certain projects as described in the

project summary section of the application before filing the application with the County of

Orange for funding authorized under the Community Development Act of 1974 as

amended.

(v) The City of Brea submitted an application under Fiscal Years 2Q20-21,

2021-22and2022-23 for Housing Rehabilitation under Proposal Bid No. 0'12-192301.



(vi)The City of Brea desires to accept the award of CDBG funds and authorizes

the execution of the necessary agreements, contracts and amendments and other

corresponding documentation to accept the CDBG funds.

B, RESOLUTION:

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF BREA, HEREBY, RESOLVES, AND

ORDERS AS FOLLOWS:

(i) The City of Brea hereby accepts the award of CDBG funds through the

County's Urban Counties Program, which will be used to support the City of Brea's

Housing Rehabilitation Program under Project Bid No. 012-192301 .

(ii) The City of Brea authorizes the Mayor or hisiher designee to execute, for

and on behalf of the City of Brea, the necessary agreement(s) and/or any other

documents or instruments required by the County and/or the United States Department

of Housing and Urban Development for participation in the Urban Counties Program

and/or for acceptance of the CDBG funds under Bid No. 012-192301 .

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of January 2020.

Christine Marick, Mayor

ATTEST:
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk



l, Lillian Harris Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the

foregoing Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Council of the City of Brea,

held on the 21st day of January 2020 by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:

ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:

Dated:

Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk



RESO NO. 2020-002
January 21, 2020

1

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-002

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BREA TO 
APPROVE THE CITY’S PARTICIPATION IN THE FISCAL YEARS 2020-
21, 2021-22 AND 2022-23 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK 
GRANT PROGRAM (CDBG) WITH THE COUNTY OF ORANGE

A. RECITALS:

(i) It is the intent of the City of Brea to participate in the filing of an application 

with the County of Orange for a grant authorized under the Housing and Community 

Development Act of 1974, and the Cranston/Gonzales National Affordable Housing Act 

of 1990, as amended.

(ii) The Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, 

authorizes cities under 50,000 in population to enter into cooperation agreements with 

the County in which they are located for the purpose of undertaking essential housing 

and community development activities. 

(iii) The federal government requires participating cities to provide certifications 

that the funds will be obtained and utilized pursuant to Federal law and policy.

(iv) It is necessary that the City adopt certain projects as described in the 

project summary section of the application before filing the application with the County of 

Orange for funding authorized under the Community Development Act of 1974 as 

amended.

(v) The City of Brea submitted an application under Fiscal Years 2020-21, 

2021-22 and 2022-23 for Housing Rehabilitation under Proposal Bid No. 012-192301.



RESO NO. 2020-002
January 21, 2020

2

(vi)The City of Brea desires to accept the award of CDBG funds and authorizes 

the execution of the necessary agreements, contracts and amendments and other 

corresponding documentation to accept the CDBG funds.

B. RESOLUTION:

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF BREA, HEREBY, RESOLVES, AND 

ORDERS AS FOLLOWS:

(i) The City of Brea hereby accepts the award of CDBG funds through the 

County’s Urban Counties Program, which will be used to support the City of Brea’s 

Housing Rehabilitation Program under Project Bid No. 012-192301.

(ii) The City of Brea authorizes the Mayor or his/her designee to execute, for 

and on behalf of the City of Brea, the necessary agreement(s) and/or any other 

documents or instruments required by the County and/or the United States Department 

of Housing and Urban Development for participation in the Urban Counties Program 

and/or for acceptance of the CDBG funds under Bid No. 012-192301.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of January 2020.

Marty Simonoff, Mayor

ATTEST:
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk



RESO NO. 2020-002
January 21, 2020

3

I, Lillian Harris Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the foregoing 

Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Council of the City of Brea, held on 

the 21st day of January 2020 by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAIN: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Dated:

Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk



































































RESO NO. 2020-003
January 21, 2020

1

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-003 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BREA TO 
APPROVE THE CITY’S PARTICIPATION IN THE FISCAL YEAR 2020-21
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM (CDBG) 
WITH THE COUNTY OF ORANGE

A. RECITALS:

(i) It is the intent of the City of Brea to participate in the filing of an application 

with the County of Orange for a grant authorized under the Housing and Community 

Development Act of 1974, and the Cranston/Gonzales National Affordable Housing Act 

of 1990, as amended.

(ii) The Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, 

authorizes cities under 50,000 in population to enter into cooperation agreements with 

the County in which they are located for the purpose of undertaking essential housing 

and community development activities. 

(iii) The federal government requires participating cities to provide certifications 

that the funds will be obtained and utilized pursuant to Federal law and policy.

(iv) It is necessary that the City adopt certain projects as described in the 

project summary section of the application before filing the application with the County of 

Orange for funding authorized under the Community Development Act of 1974 as 

amended.

(v) The City of Brea submitted an application under Fiscal Year 2020-21 for the 

Public Facilities and Improvements Program under Proposal Bid No. 012-192301.



RESO NO. 2020-003
January 21, 2020

2

(vi)The City of Brea desires to accept the award of CDBG funds and authorizes 

the execution of the necessary agreements, contracts and amendments and other 

corresponding documentation to accept the CDBG funds.

B. RESOLUTION:

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF BREA, HEREBY, RESOLVES, AND 

ORDERS AS FOLLOWS:

(i) The City of Brea hereby accepts the award of CDBG funds through the 

County’s Urban Counties Program, which will be used to support the City of Brea’s efforts 

to install and improve ADA Accessibility Ramps under Project Bid No. 012-192301.

(ii) The City of Brea authorizes the Mayor or his/her designee to execute, for 

and on behalf of the City of Brea, the necessary agreement(s) and/or any other 

documents or instruments required by the County and/or the United States Department 

of Housing and Urban Development for participation in the Urban Counties Program 

and/or for acceptance of the CDBG funds under Bid No. 012-192301.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of January 2020.

Marty Simonoff, Mayor

ATTEST:
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk



RESO NO. 2020-003
January 21, 2020

3

I, Lillian Harris Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the foregoing 

Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Council of the City of Brea, held on 

the 21st day of January 2020 by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAIN: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Dated:

Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk



Agenda Item   22. 
City of Brea

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo, City Manager 

DATE: 01/21/2020

SUBJECT: Active Transportation Plan Final Report 

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt Resolution for City Council approval of the Brea Connecting the Core Active
Transportation Plan.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
In 2017, Brea Envisions identified several initiatives and values that the Community
envisioned for Brea’s future. Specifically, creating and enhancing this community to be
healthy and walkable, improving and enhancing public spaces and recreational amenities,
and improving and maintaining safety in the City and developing different transportation
options to move around Brea. The City had great success with the Tracks at Brea trail
system but recognized more will need to be done to continue to provide safe, comfortable
routes and connections for residents of all ages and abilities to travel within the City.

The Brea Core Plan was subsequently initiated to review the central core of the City. With
respect to mobility, the City received a grant from Caltrans (Caltrans Sustainable
Transportation Grant) to look at improving safety and access of major east-west corridors
like Lambert Road and Imperial Highway and north-south corridors like Brea Boulevard
and State College Boulevard. The grant helped fund community engagement efforts,
collect data on existing conditions, develop plans for remedies to circulation and mobility
challenges and to develop a plan for potential future improvements. 

The Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan (ATP) – See Attachment 2 -
identifies mobility challenges and recommends a toolbox of potential solutions to improve
circulation within Brea’s core. The community-driven Plan develops a vision for a
connected and safe transportation system for all, organized by three core elements
including:

Provide access for all users
Focus on safety enhancements
Institute creative design solutions

A robust community engagement effort was the primary component in obtaining
infrastructure and program recommendations for the Plan, with both high-tech and
high-touch strategies conducted to maximize the number and quality of responses from
members of the community. Over 25 in-person events were conducted and 2,500 public



comments were received through the duration of Plan development, which occurred from
February through December 2019. Engagement consisted of technical working group
meetings with city staff and community members, traditional public workshops, pop-up
activities, safe routes to school activities and a multi-day community charrette with
one-on-one interviews with resident and business stakeholder groups. Complementing
the in-person events were interactive online surveys and web maps on the Brea Core
Plan website at planbrea.com. Notifications of in-person and online engagement were
provided through printed flyers and postings on social media sites.

The Plan’s first engagement phase included a series of interactive boards that determined
the community’s priorities for access, design and safety. Pop-up events were the key
source for obtaining input during this phase. Interactive and colorful boards were
leveraged to attract attention at a series of public events and meetings throughout the
City. Respondents prioritized improvements to pedestrian and bicycle facilities and
increased connectivity throughout Brea Core Plan Area for access. To improve safety,
slowing the speed of motor vehicle traffic, improving crosswalks and lighting were key
priorities. The addition of trees and benches were the top desired design improvements.

The second phase of community engagement solicited infrastructure improvements for
key corridors in Brea’s core. Similar to the first engagement phase, interactive table
activities were created as a key component to engage community members throughout
the City. Participants noted the need for better connectivity to local trails and more
bikeways, particularly along Berry Street and Brea Boulevard. Participants expressed
safety concerns, specifying locations for speed bumps near schools and enhanced
crosswalks for pedestrians. The addition of trees, shade, pedestrian scaled lighting, and
water features were the top desired design related improvements. Based on feedback
received during the first and second phase of community engagement, a Draft Plan was
developed that included the following components:

A set of goals and policies expanded upon the three core elements of the Plan. 
Increasing access by creating an environment in the Brea Core Plan Area
where all people can navigate comfortably.
Creating an environment in the Brea Core Plan Area that feels safe and
welcoming for people of all ages and abilities.
Developing places and streets in the Brea Core Plan Area that are
comfortable and pleasant through instituting creative design solutions.

A toolbox of improvements outlining a range of facility types to improve
pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular infrastructure, and site-specific design
improvements to improve wayfinding, lighting and landscaping throughout the Brea
Core Plan Area.
A detailed set of improvement options for ten corridors in the Brea Core Plan
Area. Each corridor includes a description of opportunities, recommendations to
consider with sketches illustrating potential improvements, and specific grant
opportunities to fund infrastructure tailored to each corridor.
An outline of steps to implement Plan recommendations, including pursuit of
funding, coordination with regional agencies, environmental review, additional
outreach to be conducted, development of design drawings and construction
coordination.

Following the release of the Draft Plan, a third phase of engagement was conducted to
receive comments on the Plan from the community. The Draft Plan was presented at an



open house and at four pop-up activities held throughout the City. Activity booths provided
participants an opportunity to review the Draft Plan and to participate in an online survey,
with over 400 unique interactions received. Responses received from the survey
demonstrated strong support for improvement options proposed in the Plan, with 85%
supporting Plan recommendations.

Further demonstrating Plan improvements upon release of the Draft Plan, a complete
streets demonstration event was held in November 2019. A temporary high visibility
crosswalk was installed for students to use at the Brea Junior High Park crossing at
Country Lane and Lambert Road. Approximately 90 Brea Junior High School students, as
well as some parents and teachers attended the event. The event provided games and
other activities to engage students with complete streets concepts and active
transportation safety tips. Similar to the online survey, there was overwhelming support for
pedestrian and bicycle improvements.

FISCAL IMPACT/SUMMARY

There is no fiscal impact associated with the adoption of the Brea Connecting the Core
Active Transportation Plan. While the Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation
Plan recommends approximately $20 million dollars in potential infrastructure
improvements throughout the Brea Core Plan area, the City is not obligated to fund Plan
recommendations. City Council adoption of the Plan will enable City Staff to pursue
program and infrastructure funds through the Caltrans Active Transportation Program,
which distributes over $440 million dollars in pedestrian and bicycle improvements every
2 years. The next grant cycle is expected to be released in Spring 2020. Having an
adopted Active Transportation Plan is a key component in being competitive for not only
pursuing Caltrans Active Transportation grant funds, but grants through other statewide
and regional programs, including OCTA’s Bicycle Corridor Improvement Program, the
Recreational Trails Program administered by California State Parks, and Urban Greening
Grant Funding administered through the California Natural Resources Agency. Additional
opportunities to fund recommendations may be available through collection of developer
fees as properties in the Brea Core Plan Area turn over. 

SUMMARY 

Approval of the Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan would allow
staff to pursue grant funding for pedestrian and bicycle improvements in the Brea
Core Plan Area. The plan will also serve as a component to help update the
General Plan with respect to circulation, urban design, and bikeways. Overall, this
will result in the advancement of community initiatives described in the Brea
Envisions Strategic Plan, as well as incorporate community input received
throughout the development of the Brea Connecting the Core Active
Transportation Plan.



RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by: Maribeth Tinio, Senior Planner
Concurrence: Jennifer A. Lilley, AICP, City Planner
 

Attachments
1. Draft Resolution 
1. Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 



RESO NO. 2020-004
January 21, 2020

1

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-004

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BREA 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ADOPT THE CITY OF BREA CORE 
CONNECTIVITY AND ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

A. RECITALS:

(i) The City Council of the City of Brea authorized the City Manager on

July 11, 2017 to execute all Restricted Grant Agreements with the California 

Department of Transportation to advance the development of the Brea Connecting 

the Core Active Transportation Plan.

(ii) The Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan provides 

infrastructure and program recommendations for corridors in the Brea Core Plan 

Area.

(iii) Having an adopted Active Transportation Plan is an important 

component for municipal agencies in California to be competitive for statewide and 

regional funds, including grant funds available through the Caltrans Active 

Transportation Program.

(iv) Therefore, adoption of the Brea Connecting the Core Active

Transportation Plan will enable City of Brea staff to pursue grant funding to 

implement transportation improvements, advancing community-driven initiatives in 

the Brea Envisions Strategic Plan and community feedback received throughout 

the development of the Plan.



RESO NO. 2020-004
January 21, 2020

2

B. RESOLUTION:

NOW, THEREFORE, it is found by the City Council of the City of Brea to adopt the 

Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of January, 2020.

_______________________________
Marty Simonoff, Mayor

ATTEST:_________________________
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk

I, Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the foregoing 

Resolution was passed at a regular meeting of the City Council, held on the 21st day of 

January, 2020, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAIN: COUNCIL MEMBERS:
Dated: 

_____________________________

_____________________________
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk



JANUARY 2020

BREA

ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



BREA

connecting the core
ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

JANUARY 2020

This document was funded through a Caltrans Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant.

ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



TABLE OF CONTENTS
Chapter 1  Introduction - Setting the Vision............................................................1-1

  A Vision for a Connected and Safe  
Transportation System for All  

  Overview of Contents

Chapter 2  Community Outreach - Engaging the Public.......................................2-1
  What We Heard From the Community
  Technical Working Group Meetings
  Kick-Off Workshop
  Pop-up Activities

Chapter 3  Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today......................3-1
  Purpose of the Brea Core Active  

Transportation Plan
  Relevant Plans, Policies, and Programs
  Safety and Education Programs
  A Snapshot of the Community  

and Circulation

Chapter 4  Goals and Policies - Responding to Guiding Elements.......................4-1
  Developing a Policy Framework  

Based on Community Input
  Guiding Elements 

Chapter 5  Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs.......5-1
  Improvement Options by Corridor

 � Birch Street
 � Brea Boulevard
 � Imperial Highway
 � State College Boulevard
 � Berry Street 

 � Poplar Avenue
 � Lambert Road
 � Randolph Avenue
 � Associated Road
 � The Tracks

  Community Design Charrette
  Workshop on the Draft Plan
  Safe Routes to School Activities
  Spreading the Word

  Mobility and Transit Connectivity
  Walking and Biking in Brea Today
  Equity

ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



CHAPTER 1
Introduction - Setting the Vision
CHAPTER 1

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan1-2 Introduction - Setting the Vision

This page intentionally left blank. 

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 1-3Introduction - Setting the Vision

As part of advancing community-driven 
initiatives from the Brea Envisions Community 
Strategic Plan, the Brea Connecting the Core 
Active Transportation Plan represents a col-
laborative community-based effort to prepare 
a Plan for improving mobility for bicyclists, 
pedestrians, transit riders, and motorists in 
the heart of the City. With funding provided by 
Caltrans through a Sustainable Transportation 
Planning Grant, this Plan provides a set of im-
plementable actions to guide future improve-
ments and serves as a foundation for a safe, 
sustainable, and connected community.  

A Vision for a Connected 
and Safe Transportation 
System for All 
This Plan was developed with community 
input gathered through a series of workshops, 
meetings with local stakeholders, pop-up 
events, and a design charrette. Feedback 
received during the outreach process was 
organized by the guiding initiatives of access, 
safety and design. These initiatives are at the 
core of this Plan and are the blueprint for a fully 
connected transportation network of complete 
streets that safely move people in Brea’s Core. 
In addition to community outreach, this Plan 
was also informed by nationally recognized best 
practices in the design of streets, bikeways, and 
the pedestrian realm.  A detailed description 
on the Plan’s guiding initiatives are further 
described below.

Provide Access for All.  The Connecting the 
Core Active Transportation Plan envisions 
the heart of Brea with seamless connections 
between the area’s residential neighbor-

hoods, shopping centers, cultural centers, civic 
facilities, and parks and open spaces, regardless 
if one is walking, biking, driving, or considering 
to take public transportation.

Focus on Safety Enhancements. Through a 
range of recently instituted national surveys, 
over 60% of Americans are interested in walking 
and biking more but do not because of safety 
concerns, whether those concerns are real or 
perceived. As part of this Plan, recommenda-
tions will focus on elements including safety, 
access, design, and community outreach to 
address sidewalk, bikeways, and crossing im-
provements in areas where the public expressed 

concerns or repeated bicycle and/or pedestrian 
collision incidents occurred. 

Institute Creative Design Solutions. While 
increasing access and safety are important 
elements for encouraging walking and biking, 
without proper design of walking and bicycling 
facilities these improvements will not be 
fully realized.  Giving the proper attention to 
places and streets through creative design 
solutions will ensure transportation improve-
ments proposed in this Plan are responsive to 
community needs and are well utilized when  
constructed.  

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan1-4 Introduction - Setting the Vision

Overview of Contents
CHAPTER 1  INTRODUCTION - 
SETTING THE VISION

This chapter presents factors that lay the 
foundation and development of this Plan, 
including the document’s vision and organiza-
tion of content. 

CHAPTER 2  COMMUNITY 
OUTREACH – ENGAGING THE 
PUBLIC

A primary focus of this Plan involves engaging the 
community, generating meaningful input from 
a wide range of organizations and individuals 
throughout Brea to ensure that walking, biking 
and transit improvements truly reflect the 
needs of residents, employees and visitors to 
Brea’s Core. Online and in-person interfaces 
provided multiple opportunities for community 
members to submit input and stay connected 
throughout Plan development. This chapter 
outlines engagement strategies that guided the 
Plan’s generation, as well as a summary of input 
received from those strategies.

CHAPTER 3  EXISTING 
CONDITIONS – WALKING AND 
BIKING IN BREA TODAY 

As a snapshot of walking, biking, and transit 
conditions in Brea’s Core, this chapter presents 
an overview of existing land uses, demograph-
ics, and transportation services; an assessment 
of existing sidewalks, bikeways, and trails; and 
an overview of relevant planning documents and 
ongoing programs.

INTRODUCTION

EXISTING CONDITIONS

COMMUNITY  
OUTREACH

GOALS AND POLICIES

NETWORK  
RECOMMENDATIONS

APPENDIX

11

22

33

44

55

AA

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 1-5Introduction - Setting the Vision

CHAPTER 4  GOALS, POLICIES 
AND ACTIONS – RESPONDING 
TO GUIDING ELEMENTS 

The Plan’s Goals, Policies and Actions are 
directly informed by community input, framed 
by initiatives from the Brea Envisions Community 
Strategic Plan, and organized by the Plan’s 
guiding initiatives of access, design, and safety. 
This chapter presents Goals, Policies and Actions 
that will guide Plan recommendations for in-
frastructure improvements and programs to 
support walking, biking, and connecting to transit. 

CHAPTER 5  NETWORK 
RECOMMENDATIONS – 
OUTLINING PROJECTS AND 
PROGRAMS 

Moving forward from planning to implemen-
tation, this chapter outlines a menu of options 
for the location of pedestrian and bicycle im-
provements to create a safe, connected, and 
attractive transportation network. This chapter 
provides a brief written description and map of 
each corridor, a toolbox of infrastructure im-
provements, steps to expedite implementation, 

cost estimates, and funding sources tailored to 
each corridor’s location and type of improve-
ments.  

APPENDIX  BACKGROUND 
DATA AND INPUT 

The appendix, attached as a separate document, 
includes the Caltrans ATP Checklist, detailed 
community input on walking and bicycling 
needs, collision data in the Brea Core Area, the 
Safe Routes to School Walk Audit Presentation, 
and a breakdown of improvement costs.

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan1-6 Introduction - Setting the Vision

This page intentionally left blank. 

ATTACHMENT 2



CHAPTER 2
Community Outreach - Engaging 
the Public

CHAPTER 2

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan2-2 Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

This page intentionally left blank. 

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 2-3Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

What We Heard From 
the Community
From February to November 2019, the City of 
Brea, in partnership with the Local Government 
Commission (LGC), PlaceWorks, Crowdbrite, 
Here LA, and IBI Group (collectively known as the 
Project Team), engaged community members, 
businesses, and decision-makers within City 
government and from neighboring communi-
ties to inform this Active Transportation Plan. 
Together, the Project Team conducted extensive 
community and stakeholder engagement to 
explore options to improve access, design, and 
safety for walking, bicycling, and transit in the 
Brea Core Plan Area. 

Over 25 events were hosted over the course 
of the outreach process to ensure trans-
parency and encourage the community’s 
involvement. The events include a series of 
pop-up activities, workshops, and meetings 
with stakeholders. The events were open to 
all ages and held at key locations in the Brea 
Core Plan Area that drew local residents, em-
ployers/employees, and school students/
staff. As a result of this effort, over 2,500 
comments were received. 

Principal events included:

  Technical Working Group Meetings: 

 � February 20, 2019 

 � March 27, 2019  
 

  Kick-Off Workshop: May 4, 2019

  Pop-Up Activities, Round 1: May 11 - July 4, 
2019

 � Public Works & Fire Department 
Open House

 � The Tracks at Brea

 � La Floresta

 � National Senior Health Fitness Day

 � Brea Downtown

 � Community Center

  Safe Routes to Schools Activities:

 � Brea Junior High School: Walk Audit 
(February 8, 2019) & Presentation 
of Walk Audit Observations (May 23, 
2019)

 � Laurel Elementary School:  April 
23rd, 2019

  Community Design Charrette: June 19 & 
20, 2019

  Pop-Up Activities, Round 2: July 24 - August 
23, 2019

 � Tracks at Brea

 � La Floresta

 � Parklet in Brea Downtown 

 � Brea Community Center

 � Concerts in the Park at City Hall Park

 � Brea Fest

 � Mercury Insurance (Greenbriar 
Campus)

 � Mercury Insurance (Imperial 
Campus)

  Draft Plan Workshop: October 9, 2019

  Draft Plan Pop-Up Activities: October 
23-30, 2019

 � The Tracks 

 � Brea Downtown 

 � Brea Community Center 

 � Coffee Bean across the street from 
Brea Junior High School

  Pop-Up Demonstration with Students at 
Brea Junior High Park: November 7, 2019

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan2-4 Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

Technical Working 
Group Meetings
Outreach and engagement kicked off with for-
mation of a Technical Working Group, com-
prised of “ambassadors” from the community 
including Brea residents, Orange County Health 
Care Agency (OCHCA), City of Brea staff, staff 
from the Cities of Fullerton and Yorba Linda, and 
Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) 
staff. Ambassadors guided the development of 
community outreach events, assisted in the pub-
lication of community events, identified ways to 
encourage public participation, and reviewed 
proposed improvements developed by the 
Project Team. The Technical Working Group met 
on February 20th, March 27th, and December 
11th, 2019.

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 2-5Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

Kick-Off Workshop
City staff and the Project Team hosted a Kick-Off 
Workshop on May 4, 2019 to kickstart commu-
nity engagement and awareness of the project. 
Community members were invited to partici-
pate by reviewing a series of educational and 
informational boards and by providing input by 
selecting their priorities for improvements on 
pop-up boards. Activities and stations included:

  Boards which provided context for the Plan, 
including a menu of potential design improve-
ments.

  ‘Pop-up’ boards that provided an overview 
of the project and were a means to illicit 
feedback from community members. The 
content of these pop-up boards are described 
in the Section ‘Pop-Up Activities: Round 1 
Pop-Up Activities’. 

  Temporary demonstration of a parklet with 
outdoor furniture and landscaping.

  A self-guided walk and bike audit station. 
Community members were provided an 
overview of the audit checklists and directed 
to a website to conduct the audit at various 
locations in the Brea Core Plan Area.

  Police Department staff distributed promo-
tional giveaways and talked about safe prac-
tices while interacting with motor vehicles 
and pedestrians as a cyclist. The Police De-
partment also checked for helmet safety, 
ensuring helmets were properly fitted.

  Brea Junior High School students presented 
results of the February 8, 2019 walk audit.

  Two Wheeler Dealer Bicycles, a local bicycle 
shop, set up a station where they performed 
bicycle checks, tune ups, and provided bicycle 
safety information. 

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan2-6 Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

Pop-Up Activities
A key component of obtaining input from the 
community included going to “where the people 
are” through “popping-up” at key locations 
throughout the City. The pop-up activities were 
engaging the public in fun, interactive activi-
ties to solicit feedback on walking and biking 
improvements in the Brea Core Plan Area. Two 
sets of interactive activities were developed as 
part of the Plan.  With over 7 pop-ups conducted 
during the first round, over 796 comments were 
received from the community as a result of con-
ducting the activities. The pop-up activities and 
public input received from those activities are 
summarized on the following pages. Detailed 
comments and results from the pop-up activi-
ties are presented in Appendix B and C. 

ROUND 1 POP-UP ACTIVITIES

The first set of pop-up activities were used to 
assess priority improvements from community 
members to inform preliminary design concepts 
presented during the Community Design Char-
rette.

Feedback was collected from May 4, 2019 
through June 12, 2019 at the following locations 
and/or public events:

  Kick-Off Workshop at the Brea Civic Center

  Public Works & Fire Department Open House

  The Tracks at Brea

  La Floresta

  National Senior Health Fitness Day

  Brea Downtown

  Community Center

Description of Round 1 Pop-up Activities

The purpose of the exercise was to provide 
contextual information on existing conditions, 
educational information on walking and biking 
improvements, and to understand what the 
Community’s priorities are for walking and 
biking.  Participants were asked to interact with 
five boards as outlined below:

  Board 1: The first board in the pop-up activity 
includes an overview of the project. The board 
then asked participants: “Do you live or work 
in Brea?” Participants placed a sticker on the 
map to indicate where they live and/or work. 

  Boards 2-4: These boards asked participants 
which initiative (access, design, or safety) 
was their top priority for the Brea Core Plan 

Area. After selecting their priority, a pin was 
given to participants.

  Board 5:  The last board asked participants to 
identify where they would like to see improve-
ments. This board also provided Comment 
Cards, participants were prompted to “fill-in-
the-blank” for the following prompts: 

 � More ways to improve.....

 � I would walk/bike more if.....

 � Other comments/concerns

 � Write your email address below to stay 
updated! 

A summary of feedback received from the Round 
1 Pop-Up Activities is presented on Page 2-9, with 
open-ended comments shown in Appendix B.

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 2-7Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

CONNECTING THE CORE
Active Transportation Plan
CONNECTING THE CORE
BREA

The City of Brea is continuing a collaborative e
 ort with the community to prepare 
a long-range plan for improving mobility for bicyclists, pedestrians, transit riders, 
and motorists in the heart of the City. The project will provide an action plan to 
guide future improvements.  

COLOR PALETTE

STYLE 
GUIDE

RGB: 230-68-129

 CMYK: 0-87-17-3

RGB: 250-168-52

 CMYK:  0-39-90-0

RGB: 69-175-155

CMYK: 85-81-1-2

RGB: 0-107-155

CMYK: 100-39-12-18

RGB: 0-153-145

CMYK: 98-14-52-0

PRINT-BASED TYPOGRAPHY (ADOBE TYPEKIT FONTS) 

HEADING 1
P22 Underground, Book, ALL CAPS, 22 PT

HEADING 2
P22 Underground, Medium, ALL CAPS, 16 PT

Subheading
P22 Underground, Medium, 12 PT

Body text. 

Benton Sans, Book, 10 PT, 12.5 PT LEADING

Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetuer 
adipiscing elit, sed diam nonummy nibh 
euismod tincidunt ut laoreet dolore magna 
aliquam erat volutpat. Ut wisi enim ad minim 
veniam, quis nostrud exerci tation ullamcorper 
suscipit lobortis nisl ut aliquip ex ea commodo 
consequat.

STYLE
GUIDE

RGB: 250-168-52

 CMYK:  0-39-90-0

PRIMARY
COLORS

SECONDARY
COLORS

RGB: 65, 64, 66

 CMYK:  68-62-58-46

Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan

BODY TEXT
COLOR

What will the plan do?

Select and prioritize improvements for 
implementation. 

Identify improvements to streets, sidewalks, and public 
spaces in the City based on community input.

Defi ne where the community wants to walk and bike 
within the Core area.  

Continue the Brea Envisions conversation and dig 
deeper in the community’s values and vision for 
improving mobility within the heart of the City.

Project Schedule 2019

Existing Conditions

Outreach

Draft Plan

Final Plan

Spring Summer Fall Winter

Where i liveWhere i live
Place a green dot to show us 

where you live in the City.

Where i WORKWhere i WORK
Place a blue dot to show us 
where you work in the City.

BIRCH ST

H
A

R
B

O
R

 B
LV

D

P
U

EN
T

E 
ST

LAMBERT RD
CARBON CANYON RD

B
ER

R
Y

 S
T

BREA BLVD

CENTRAL AVE

P
A

LM
 S

T

57

WHITTIER BLVD

ST
A

T
E 

CO
LL

EG
E 

B
LV

D

K
R

A
EM

ER
 B

LV
D

R
O

SE
 D

R

BREA MALL  

IMPERIAL HWY BR
EA

 B
LV

D

ASSO
CI

A
T

E D
 R

D

VALE
N

CI
A A

V
E

PARTICIPATE TODAY!

Complete the 
mapping activity 
below. 1

Tell us what 
to prioritize by 
taking a pin from 
the board.

2 Tell us where 
to focus 
improvements 
on a map of 
Brea.

3 Fill out a 
comment card 
to tell us more 
about your vision 
for mobility in 
Brea’s Core!

4

Brea Core Study Area

Brea City Boundary

 An environment where all people can navigate comfortably. 

If ACCESS improvements are your priority, take a pin from this board. 
Replace the pin with a sticker that indicates your top priority for access (see key below).

Which Element is 

Access

Bike 
Improvements

Pedestrian 
Improvements

Wayfinding & 
Signage

Your top priority 

An environment that feels comfortable and pleasant. 

If DESIGN improvements are your priority, take a pin from this board. 
Replace the pin with a sticker that indicates your top priority for design (see key below).

Design

Landscaping & 
Shade

Clean 
Comfortable 
Streets

Pleasant & 
Enjoyable

Round 1 Pop-up Board #1 Round 1 Pop-up Board #2 Round 1 Pop-up Board #3

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan2-8 Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

ImprovementsImprovements

COLOR PALETTE

STYLE 
GUIDE

RGB: 230-68-129

 CMYK: 0-87-17-3

RGB: 250-168-52

 CMYK:  0-39-90-0

RGB: 69-175-155

CMYK: 85-81-1-2

RGB: 0-107-155

CMYK: 100-39-12-18

RGB: 0-153-145

CMYK: 98-14-52-0

PRINT-BASED TYPOGRAPHY (ADOBE TYPEKIT FONTS) 

HEADING 1
P22 Underground, Book, ALL CAPS, 22 PT

HEADING 2
P22 Underground, Medium, ALL CAPS, 16 PT

Subheading
P22 Underground, Medium, 12 PT

Body text. 

Benton Sans, Book, 10 PT, 12.5 PT LEADING

Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetuer 
adipiscing elit, sed diam nonummy nibh 
euismod tincidunt ut laoreet dolore magna 
aliquam erat volutpat. Ut wisi enim ad minim 
veniam, quis nostrud exerci tation ullamcorper 
suscipit lobortis nisl ut aliquip ex ea commodo 
consequat.

STYLE
GUIDE

RGB: 250-168-52

 CMYK:  0-39-90-0

PRIMARY
COLORS

SECONDARY
COLORS

RGB: 65, 64, 66

 CMYK:  68-62-58-46

Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan

BODY TEXT
COLOR

Help us Focus

Help us decide where to focus improvements. 
Using your knowledge of access, design, and safety 
improvements, use the coded stickers below to tell us 
where you would like to see improvements in Brea. 

around the city

BIRCH ST

H
A

R
B

O
R

 B
LV

D

P
U

EN
T

E 
ST

LAMBERT RD
CARBON CANYON RD

B
ER

R
Y

 S
T

BREA BLVD

CENTRAL AVE

P
A

LM
 S

T

57

WHITTIER BLVD

ST
A

T
E 

CO
LL

EG
E 

B
LV

D

K
R

A
EM

ER
 B

LV
D

R
O

SE
 D

R

BREA MALL  

IMPERIAL HWY BR
EA

 B
LV

D

ASSO
CI

A
T

E D
 R

D

VALE
N

CI
A A

V
E

Place a dot where we should focus access, design, or safety improvements in the City. 

Brea Core Study Area

Brea City Boundary

safetyDesignAccess

WHERE TO FOCUS IMPROVEMENTS

PLACE YOUR ADDITIONAL COMMENTS HERE!

Stickers for pop-up boards #2-#4

Round 1 Pop-up Board #5Round 1 Pop-up Board #4

For Brea’s Core?

An environment that feels secure & welcoming for all people. 

If SAFETY improvements are your priority, take a pin from this board. 
Replace the pin with a sticker that indicates your top priority for safety (see key below).

Safety

Slower vehicles 
& tra�c 
enforcement

More 
crosswalks & 
bike facilities

Well-lit and 
visible

More ways to improve…   (access/design/safety)

Other comments / concerns

Write your email address below to stay updated!

I would walk/bike more if…  

Comment card
Have more to share? Let us know your 
thoughts and tell us how we should 
improve mobility within the Core.

COLOR PALETTE

STYLE 
GUIDE

RGB: 230-68-129

 CMYK: 0-87-17-3

RGB: 250-168-52

 CMYK:  0-39-90-0

RGB: 69-175-155

CMYK: 85-81-1-2

RGB: 0-107-155

CMYK: 100-39-12-18

RGB: 0-153-145

CMYK: 98-14-52-0

PRINT-BASED TYPOGRAPHY (ADOBE TYPEKIT FONTS) 

HEADING 1
P22 Underground, Book, ALL CAPS, 22 PT

HEADING 2
P22 Underground, Medium, ALL CAPS, 16 PT

Subheading
P22 Underground, Medium, 12 PT

Body text. 

Benton Sans, Book, 10 PT, 12.5 PT LEADING

Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetuer 
adipiscing elit, sed diam nonummy nibh 
euismod tincidunt ut laoreet dolore magna 
aliquam erat volutpat. Ut wisi enim ad minim 
veniam, quis nostrud exerci tation ullamcorper 
suscipit lobortis nisl ut aliquip ex ea commodo 
consequat.

STYLE
GUIDE

RGB: 250-168-52

 CMYK:  0-39-90-0

PRIMARY
COLORS

SECONDARY
COLORS

RGB: 65, 64, 66

 CMYK:  68-62-58-46

Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan

BODY TEXT
COLOR

Comment Card for Pop-up Board #5

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 2-9Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

KEY TAKEAWAYS FROM COMMENT          
 CARDS - ROUND 1 POP-UPS

  Improvements to Bicycle Facilities 
and Increased Connectivity through-
out Brea Core Plan Area are the Top 
Desired Access Improvements.

  Improvements to Bicycle Facilities is 
the Top Safety Concern. Bicycle facility 
improvements were followed by slowing 
the speed of motor vehicle traffic, im-
proving crosswalks and lighting.

  The Addition of Trees and Benches 
are the Top Desired Design Improve-
ments.

ACCESSACCESS

DESIGNDESIGN

SAFETYSAFETY

BIKE IMPROVEMENTS
PEDESTRIAN  

IMPROVEMENTS
WAYFINDING & 

SIGNAGE

LANDSCAPE & SHADE PLEASANT & ENJOYABLE
CLEAN & COMFORTABLE 

STREETS

SLOWER VEHICLES & 
TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT WELL-LIT & VISIBLE

MORE CROSSWALKS & 
BIKE FACILITIES

86 96 17

82 56 34

81 78 63

ROUND 1 POP-UP RESULTS

BREA
Connecting 
the core

Access
Pin

Pins given to Round 1 Pop-Up participants

BREA
Connecting 
the core

Design
Pin

BREA
Connecting 
the core

Safety
Pin

I   
Bre

a 

BREA
Connecting 
the core

Kids
Pin

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan2-10 Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

  Parklet in Brea Downtown 

  Brea Community Center

  Concerts in the Park at City Hall Park

  Brea Fest

  Mercury Insurance (Greenbriar Campus)

  Mercury Insurance (Imperial Campus)

Description of Round 2 Pop-Up Activities

The Round 2 Pop-Up Activities consist of two 
information boards and three interactive tables, 
which were taken to the locations mentioned 
above. The information board summarizes com-
munity feedback received during the Round 1 

ROUND 2 POP-UP ACTIVITIES 

The second series of pop-up activities collected 
feedback on bicycle and pedestrian improve-
ments proposed during the Community Design 
Charrette on June 19-20, 2019. Input received 
from the pop-up activities informed network 
recommendations in this Plan. 

Feedback was collected from July 24, 2019 
through August 23, 2019 at the following loca-
tions:

  Tracks at Brea

  La Floresta

Round 2 Pop-Up Outreach

Pop-Up Activities and provides a map of pedes-
trian and bicycle improvements. 

The three interactive tables present a set of po-
tential options for bicycle and pedestrian im-
provements on each corridor within the Brea 
Core Plan Area. Each participant was given a set 
of “chips” to identify their top five improvements. 
After completing the table activity, community 
members were given comment cards to provide 
input on the map of suggested locations for pe-
destrian and bicycle improvements. A summary 
of feedback received from the Round 2 Pop-Up 
Activities is presented on pages 2-14 & 2-15, with 
open-ended comments shown in Appendix C. 

Round 2 Pop-Up Outreach Round 2 Pop-Up Outreach

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 2-11Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

57
BIRCH ST

THE TRACKS

IMPERIAL HWY

LAMBERT RDB
ER

R
Y

 S
T

P
O

P
LA

R
 A

V
E

LA
U

R
EL

 A
V

E

ELM ST

R
A

N
D

O
LF

 A
V

E

ST
A

T
E 

CO
LL

EG
E 

B
LV

D

BREA MALL  

BR
EA

 B
LV

D
FL

O
W

ER
 A

V
E

ASSO
CI

A
T

ED
 R

D

CONNECTING THE CORE
Active Transportation Plan
CONNECTING THE CORE
BREA

The City of Brea is continuing a collaborative effort with the community to prepare a long-
range plan for improving mobility for bicyclists, pedestrians, transit riders, and motorists in 
the heart of the City. The project will provide an action plan to guide future improvements.  

COLOR PALETTE

STYLE 
GUIDE

RGB: 230-68-129

 CMYK: 0-87-17-3

RGB: 250-168-52

 CMYK:  0-39-90-0

RGB: 69-175-155

CMYK: 85-81-1-2

RGB: 0-107-155

CMYK: 100-39-12-18

RGB: 0-153-145

CMYK: 98-14-52-0

PRINT-BASED TYPOGRAPHY (ADOBE TYPEKIT FONTS) 

HEADING 1
P22 Underground, Book, ALL CAPS, 22 PT

HEADING 2
P22 Underground, Medium, ALL CAPS, 16 PT

Subheading
P22 Underground, Medium, 12 PT

Body text. 

Benton Sans, Book, 10 PT, 12.5 PT LEADING

Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetuer 
adipiscing elit, sed diam nonummy nibh 
euismod tincidunt ut laoreet dolore magna 
aliquam erat volutpat. Ut wisi enim ad minim 
veniam, quis nostrud exerci tation ullamcorper 
suscipit lobortis nisl ut aliquip ex ea commodo 
consequat.

STYLE
GUIDE

RGB: 250-168-52

 CMYK:  0-39-90-0

PRIMARY
COLORS

SECONDARY
COLORS

RGB: 65, 64, 66

 CMYK:  68-62-58-46

Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan

BODY TEXT
COLOR

Design

Clean & Comfortable Streets 18%

Landscaping & Shade 45%
Pleasant & Enjoyable 37%

Safety

More Crosswalks & Bike Facilities 27%

Slower Vehicles & Traffic Enforcement 39%

119

Well-lit & Visible 34%

Which element is your top priority for Brea’s core?

What do you think about the network? Post your comments below!

WHAT WE HEARD

152

Access

Wayfinding & Signage 8%

Bike Improvements 46%
Pedestrian Improvements 46%

134

Initial Community Pop-ups (Spring, 2019)

N

Brea Core Study Area
Pedestrian Improvements
Bike Improvements

Round 2 Pop-up Board #1

CONNECTING THE CORECONNECTING THE CORE
BREA

How to 

Participate

Stack your chip on the 
circle next to the 
improvements you’d like 
to see.

Buffered bike lane
Cycle track 
with parking

Buffered bike lane 
with parking

shared use path 
(East side)

shared use path 
(south side)

Would connect 
between the Tracks & 
Arovista Park

Remove 1 travel lane 
in each direction

Would connect 
between Downtown 
and Civic Center

Keep the same 
number of travel 
lanes

1

Crosswalk markings at 
intersections like Imperial. 

Mid-block crossing at future 
Tracks extension.

Crosswalk markings at 
intersections

Mid-block crossings 
between long blocks

Enhanced 
crosswalks

Enhanced 
crosswalks

signage & 
Wayfinding

signage & 
Wayfinding

Take a look at the potential 
proposed improvements 
for each street. There are 
several possible designs 
that could fi t, for both 
bicyclists and pedestrians.

2

new sidewalks widened sidewalks

trees & lighting trees & lighting

Likely would not 
take additional 
roadway to 
construct

Narrowed or 
reduced number 
of lanes

Berry ST Birch ST

Remove 1 travel lane 
in each direction

Remove 1 travel lane 
in each direction but 
no street parking 
added

Keep the same 
number of travel 
lanes

Remove 1 travel 
lane in each 
direction

Read through the 

proposed improvements

Stack your Chips!

Cycle track 
with sidewalk extension

Round 2 Table Activity #1

CONNECTING THE CORECONNECTING THE CORE
BREA

Brea Blvd State 
College blvd

Imperial Hwy

Buffered bike lane Buffered bike lane

Keep the same 
number of travel 
lanes

Keep the same 
number of travel 
lanes

Cycle track 
with parking

Remove center 
turn lane 

All-way crossing at 
Brea Blvd & Birch St

Enhanced 
crosswalks

signage & 
Wayfinding

widened sidewalks

trees, lighting & 
Street furniture

Narrowed or 
reduced number 
of lanes

*  Bike improvements not currently 
proposed for this street

I'd like to see bike 

improvements here

High visibility 
crosswalk markings 
at intersections

High visibility 
crosswalk markings 
at intersections

Enhanced 
crosswalks

Enhanced 
crosswalks

signage & 
Wayfinding

signage & 
Wayfinding

widened sidewalks

widened sidewalks

trees & lighting

trees & lighting

Narrowed or 
reduced number 
of lanes

Narrowed or 
reduced number 
of lanes

shared use path 
(east side)

Would connect to 
the Tracks

Narrowed or 
reduced number of 
lanes, or narrowed 
median

Narrowed or reduced 
number of lanes, or 
narrowed median

Two-Way
Cycle track 

*

 Round 2 Table Activity #2

CONNECTING THE CORECONNECTING THE CORE
BREA

Put your comment below

Poplar ave Other ideas?Lambert rd

I'd like to see bike 

improvements here

Crosswalk markings 
at intersections

Mid-block crossing 
at Junior High Park

Enhanced 
crosswalks

signage & 
Wayfinding

widened sidewalks

trees & lightinG

On south side of street only

Retain all travel & turn lanes

Sharrow markings

Neighborhood-scaled 
Traffic CircleS

Would connect 
to the Tracks

High visibility 
crosswalk markings 
at intersections

Enhanced 
crosswalks

signage & 
Wayfinding

trees & lighting

*  Bike improvements not currently 
proposed for this street

*

 Round 2 Table Activity #3

 (street name)

Enhanced Crosswalks
Signage & Wayfinding
Other:

Pedestrian Improvements
Bike Facilities

i'd like to see

improvments on...

Comment Card for Table Activity #3

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan2-12 Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

CONNECTING THE CORE
Active Transportation Plan
CONNECTING THE CORE
BREA

TOOLKIT OF POTENTIAL 
DESIGN IMPROVEMENTS*

Bike Tools

Pedestrian Tools

Buffered bike lane

New/widened sidewalks

May require 
narrowed lanes 
or reduction in 
travel lanes

May require 
narrowed lanes 
or reduction in 
travel lanes

Bike lane with painted buffer along traffic side

Added sidewalks or widened sidewalks

+

+

+

+

-

-

Safer for people 
on bikes

Safer for 
pedestrians

May help to 
slow vehicles

Aesthetically 
pleasing

May require 
narrowed lanes 
or additional 
reduction in lanes

May not fit in 
all places

Bike lane with buffer and street parking

+

++
+
+

+
-

-

Safer for people 
on bikes

Safer at night
Provides shade
Cleans the air
Aesthetically pleasing

Includes 
curbside parking

Buffered bike lane
with parking

shared use path

Neighborhood-scaled 
Traffic CircleS

May require 
narrowed lanes 
or reduction in 
travel lanes

Slows trafficMay slow 
traffic

Path on sidewalk that accomodates people 
walking and biking 

Small circular traffic calming devices at 
intersections

+

++

+

+
+

+
+

-

--

Widened 
sidewalk 

Increases safetyMakes pedestrians 
more visible

Off-road bike 
path provides 
safety

Facilitates bike 
movement
Aesthetically pleasing

Increases safety
Aesthetically pleasing

Two-Way cycle track

May require 
greater reduction 
in travel lanes
Possible conflicts 
at driveways

A two-way bike lane that is separated from 
travel lanes 

through vertical barriers or parking.

+
+

-
-

cycle track

Likely requires 
greater 
reduction in 
travel lanes

Adds elements 
to the sidewalk

A bike lane that is separated from travel lanes 
through vertical barriers or parking

+

+

+

+

-

-

Even safer for 
people on bikes

Even safer for 
people on bikes

Orients people & 
announces district

Bikes can pass 
behind outboard 
bus platforms

Bikes can pass 
behind outboard 
bus platforms

Helps people get 
where they are going

Amenities added to the sidewalk for pedestrians

trees, lighting, & 
Street furniture

enhanced crosswalks wayfinding signage
High visibility crosswalk markings or 

addition of mid-block crossings
Directional markings and signage to 

key destinations

Aesthetically 
pleasing

*  These tools have been identified by the design team as 
feasible for Brea’s streets. Learn about each design tool here.

Round 2 Pop-up Board #2

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 2-13Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

ROUND 2 POP-UP RESULTS
CONNECTING THE CORECONNECTING THE CORE
BREA

How to 

Participate

Stack your chip on the 
circle next to the 
improvements you’d like 
to see.

Buffered bike lane
Cycle track 
with parking

Buffered bike lane 
with parking

shared use path 
(East side)

shared use path 
(south side)

Would connect 
between the Tracks & 
Arovista Park

Remove 1 travel lane 
in each direction

Would connect 
between Downtown 
and Civic Center

Keep the same 
number of travel 
lanes

1

Crosswalk markings at 
intersections like Imperial. 

Mid-block crossing at future 
Tracks extension.

Crosswalk markings at 
intersections

Mid-block crossings 
between long blocks

Enhanced 
crosswalks

Enhanced 
crosswalks

signage & 
Wayfinding

signage & 
Wayfinding

Take a look at the potential 
proposed improvements 
for each street. There are 
several possible designs 
that could fi t, for both 
bicyclists and pedestrians.

2

new sidewalks widened sidewalks

trees & lighting trees & lighting

Likely would not 
take additional 
roadway to 
construct

Narrowed or 
reduced number 
of lanes

Berry ST Birch ST

Remove 1 travel lane 
in each direction

Remove 1 travel lane 
in each direction but 
no street parking 
added

Keep the same 
number of travel 
lanes

Remove 1 travel 
lane in each 
direction

Read through the 

proposed improvements

Stack your Chips!

Cycle track 
with sidewalk extension

CONNECTING THE CORECONNECTING THE CORE
BREA

How to 

Participate

Stack your chip on the 
circle next to the 
improvements you’d like 
to see.

Buffered bike lane
Cycle track 
with parking

Buffered bike lane 
with parking

shared use path 
(East side)

shared use path 
(south side)

Would connect 
between the Tracks & 
Arovista Park

Remove 1 travel lane 
in each direction

Would connect 
between Downtown 
and Civic Center

Keep the same 
number of travel 
lanes

1

Crosswalk markings at 
intersections like Imperial. 

Mid-block crossing at future 
Tracks extension.

Crosswalk markings at 
intersections

Mid-block crossings 
between long blocks

Enhanced 
crosswalks

Enhanced 
crosswalks

signage & 
Wayfinding

signage & 
Wayfinding

Take a look at the potential 
proposed improvements 
for each street. There are 
several possible designs 
that could fi t, for both 
bicyclists and pedestrians.

2

new sidewalks widened sidewalks

trees & lighting trees & lighting

Likely would not 
take additional 
roadway to 
construct

Narrowed or 
reduced number 
of lanes

Berry ST Birch ST

Remove 1 travel lane 
in each direction

Remove 1 travel lane 
in each direction but 
no street parking 
added

Keep the same 
number of travel 
lanes

Remove 1 travel 
lane in each 
direction

Read through the 

proposed improvements

Stack your Chips!

Cycle track 
with sidewalk extension

CONNECTING THE CORECONNECTING THE CORE
BREA

Brea Blvd State 
College blvd

Imperial Hwy

Buffered bike lane Buffered bike lane

Keep the same 
number of travel 
lanes

Keep the same 
number of travel 
lanes

Cycle track 
with parking

Remove center 
turn lane 

All-way crossing at 
Brea Blvd & Birch St

Enhanced 
crosswalks

signage & 
Wayfinding

widened sidewalks

trees, lighting & 
Street furniture

Narrowed or 
reduced number 
of lanes

*  Bike improvements not currently 
proposed for this street

I'd like to see bike 

improvements here

High visibility 
crosswalk markings 
at intersections

High visibility 
crosswalk markings 
at intersections

Enhanced 
crosswalks

Enhanced 
crosswalks

signage & 
Wayfinding

signage & 
Wayfinding

widened sidewalks

widened sidewalks

trees & lighting

trees & lighting

Narrowed or 
reduced number 
of lanes

Narrowed or 
reduced number 
of lanes

shared use path 
(east side)

Would connect to 
the Tracks

Narrowed or 
reduced number of 
lanes, or narrowed 
median

Narrowed or reduced 
number of lanes, or 
narrowed median

Two-Way
Cycle track 

*

CONNECTING THE CORECONNECTING THE CORE
BREA

Brea Blvd State 
College blvd

Imperial Hwy

Buffered bike lane Buffered bike lane

Keep the same 
number of travel 
lanes

Keep the same 
number of travel 
lanes

Cycle track 
with parking

Remove center 
turn lane 

All-way crossing at 
Brea Blvd & Birch St

Enhanced 
crosswalks

signage & 
Wayfinding

widened sidewalks

trees, lighting & 
Street furniture

Narrowed or 
reduced number 
of lanes

*  Bike improvements not currently 
proposed for this street

I'd like to see bike 

improvements here

High visibility 
crosswalk markings 
at intersections

High visibility 
crosswalk markings 
at intersections

Enhanced 
crosswalks

Enhanced 
crosswalks

signage & 
Wayfinding

signage & 
Wayfinding

widened sidewalks

widened sidewalks

trees & lighting

trees & lighting

Narrowed or 
reduced number 
of lanes

Narrowed or 
reduced number 
of lanes

shared use path 
(east side)

Would connect to 
the Tracks

Narrowed or 
reduced number of 
lanes, or narrowed 
median

Narrowed or reduced 
number of lanes, or 
narrowed median

Two-Way
Cycle track 

*

61

23

41

66

86

20

54

50

35

48

55

123

63

45

65

48

41

92

123

32

47

48

103

54

41

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan2-14 Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

ROUND 2 POP-UP RESULTS (CONTINUED)
CONNECTING THE CORECONNECTING THE CORE
BREA

Brea Blvd State 
College blvd

Imperial Hwy

Buffered bike lane Buffered bike lane

Keep the same 
number of travel 
lanes

Keep the same 
number of travel 
lanes

Cycle track 
with parking

Remove center 
turn lane 

All-way crossing at 
Brea Blvd & Birch St

Enhanced 
crosswalks

signage & 
Wayfinding

widened sidewalks

trees, lighting & 
Street furniture

Narrowed or 
reduced number 
of lanes

*  Bike improvements not currently 
proposed for this street

I'd like to see bike 

improvements here

High visibility 
crosswalk markings 
at intersections

High visibility 
crosswalk markings 
at intersections

Enhanced 
crosswalks

Enhanced 
crosswalks

signage & 
Wayfinding

signage & 
Wayfinding

widened sidewalks

widened sidewalks

trees & lighting

trees & lighting

Narrowed or 
reduced number 
of lanes

Narrowed or 
reduced number 
of lanes

shared use path 
(east side)

Would connect to 
the Tracks

Narrowed or 
reduced number of 
lanes, or narrowed 
median

Narrowed or reduced 
number of lanes, or 
narrowed median

Two-Way
Cycle track 

*

CONNECTING THE CORECONNECTING THE CORE
BREA

Put your comment below

Poplar ave Other ideas?Lambert rd

I'd like to see bike 

improvements here

Crosswalk markings 
at intersections

Mid-block crossing 
at Junior High Park

Enhanced 
crosswalks

signage & 
Wayfinding

widened sidewalks

trees & lightinG

On south side of street only

Retain all travel & turn lanes

Sharrow markings

Neighborhood-scaled 
Traffic CircleS

Would connect 
to the Tracks

High visibility 
crosswalk markings 
at intersections

Enhanced 
crosswalks

signage & 
Wayfinding

trees & lighting

*  Bike improvements not currently 
proposed for this street

*

CONNECTING THE CORECONNECTING THE CORE
BREA

Put your comment below

Poplar ave Other ideas?Lambert rd

I'd like to see bike 

improvements here

Crosswalk markings 
at intersections

Mid-block crossing 
at Junior High Park

Enhanced 
crosswalks

signage & 
Wayfinding

widened sidewalks

trees & lightinG

On south side of street only

Retain all travel & turn lanes

Sharrow markings

Neighborhood-scaled 
Traffic CircleS

Would connect 
to the Tracks

High visibility 
crosswalk markings 
at intersections

Enhanced 
crosswalks

signage & 
Wayfinding

trees & lighting

*  Bike improvements not currently 
proposed for this street

*

KEY TAKEAWAYS FROM 
COMMENT CARDS - ROUND 2 
POP-UPS

  Participants noted the need 
for better connectivity to local 
trails and more bikeways, par-
ticularly along Berry Street and 
Brea Boulevard.  

  Participants expressed safety 
concerns, specifying locations  
for speed bumps near schools  
and enhanced crosswalks for 
pedestrians. 

  The addition of trees, shade, 
pedestrian scaled lighting, 
and water features were the 
top desired Design related im-
provements. 

40

56

86

52

48 30

33

82

49

35

45

116

52

26

79

27

20

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 2-15Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

Community Design 
Charrette
OVERVIEW

Over 50 participants, comprised of Brea resi-
dents, City staff, representatives of small busi-
nesses and major employers, school staff, and 
other stakeholders attended the Community 
Design Charrette that took place on June 19th 
and 20th, 2019.

Key community engagement activities during 
the Community Design Charrette included:

  June 19th

 � Meeting with City Directors to discuss 
community feedback received to-date 
and the proposed format of the Com-
munity Workshop

 � Focus group meeting with Principals of 
Brea Junior High School & Laurel Ele-
mentary School

 � Focus group meeting with Mercury In-
surance, a company with two employ-
ment centers in the Brea Core Plan Area

 � Focus group meeting with Simon 
Property Group/Brea Mall

 � Community Workshop open to mem-
bers of the public

  June 20th

 � Focus group meeting with the Senior 
Center Council

 � Meeting with City Directors to review 
preliminary designs as a result of com-
munity input during the Community 
Workshop

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan2-16 Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

COMMUNITY WORKSHOP

The primary community engagement activity 
was a Community Workshop that took place 
during the Community Design Charrette on 
June 19th from 6:30pm–8:30pm. The workshop 
began with a presentation that provided partici-
pants with an overview of the project, a summary 
of community input received to-date, and po-
tential methods to improve access, design, and 
safety in the Brea Core Plan Area.

After the presentation, attendees participated in 
an interactive map activity through small groups. 
Each group indicated where they like to walk and 
bike, where they would like to see walking and 
biking improvements occur, and what type of 
improvements they would like to see (e.g. addi-
tional lighting, traffic calming features, bicycle 
facilities, etc.). Images of the interactive maps 
with the community’s comments are included 
in Appendix D. At the end of the meeting, each 
group presented their comments to all meeting 
attendees. A summary of these comments 
are presented in Table 2-1, with a summary of 
detailed comments in Appendix E.

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 2-17Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

Table 2-1: Summary of Comments from June 19, 2019 Community Workshop

Areas for Improved 
Signage

Areas for Improved 
Crossings at 
Intersections

Bicycle  
Improvements Only

Sidewalk  
Improvements Only

Mixed Sidewalk  
& Bicycle  

Improvements

Improvements to 
Lighting

Brea Boulevard   Lambert Road

  Imperial Highway

  Lambert Road

  Cypress Street

  Bracken Street

  Birch Street

  Imperial Highway

  All roadways in 
the Brea Core 
Plan Area

- - -

Birch Street   State College 
Boulevard

  Randolph Avenue

  Poplar Avenue

  Brea Boulevard

  Alleyway behind 
Laurel Elementary 
School

  Between Redwood 
Avenue and Poplar 
Avenue

  Between  Poplar 
Avenue and 
Randolph Avenue

- -   All roadways in 
the Brea Core Plan 
Area

  Between Flower 
Avenue and Brea 
Boulevard

Lambert Road   Brea Boulevard   At Napoli Drive

  At Madrona Avenue

  At Brea Boulevard

  At Country Lane

  At Oak Place

  At State College 
Boulevard

  At the 57 Freeway 
Underpass

-   On the south side 
of the roadway for 
the extent of the 
Brea Core Plan 
Area

- -

Berry Street   Between Vanguard 
Way & Mercury 
Lane

  Imperial Highway

  The full extent of 
Berry Street

- -   All roadways in 
the Brea Core Plan 
Area

-

The Tracks at Brea   The full extent of 
The Tracks at Brea

  Berry Street

  Brea Boulevard

  State College 
Boulevard

- -   Expand Trail to 
the disconnected  
flood channel 
just west of Brea 
Downtown and 
east of La Floresta

-

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan2-18 Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

Table 2-1 (continued): Summary of Comments from June 19, 2019 Community Workshop

Areas for Improved 
Signage

Areas for Improved 
Crossings at 
Intersections

Bicycle  
Improvements Only

Sidewalk  
Improvements Only

Mixed Sidewalk  
& Bicycle  

Improvements

Improvements to 
Lighting

State College 
Boulevard

-   At Lambert Road

  The Tracks at Brea

  Birch Street

  Imperial Highway

  All locations 
connecting 
Brea Mall with 
Commercial/Retail 
Centers to the East

  The full extent 
of State College 
Boulevard

- - -

Randolph Avenue   Birch Street   Birch Street

  Connecting the 
Civic Center 
with the Brea 
Community Center 
to the West

  Madison Way

  Brea Mall entrance

  Imperial Highway

- -   The full extent of 
Randolph Avenue

-

Imperial Highway   Berry Street

  Brea Boulevard

  At Brea Boulevard

  At Berry Street

  At State College 
Boulevard

  At Randolph 
Avenue

-   On the north side 
of the roadway for 
the extent of the 
Brea Core Plan 
Area

- -

Flower Avenue - - -   Between Ash 
Street and the 
southern boundary 
of the Brea Core 
Plan Area

- -

Poplar Avenue   Birch Street   Birch Street - -   The full extent of 
Poplar Avenue

Alleyway Behind Laurel 
Elementary School

- - -   Between Ash 
Street and Imperial 
Highway

- -

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 2-19Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

KEY TAKEAWAYS FROM FOCUS GROUP MEETING WITH PRINCIPALS FROM BREA JR. 
HIGH SCHOOL & LAUREL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

Laurel Elementary School

  Most students are dropped off or get to/from school via a van service

  Approximately 15-20 students walk or bike to school 

  Pick-up/drop-off causes backup onto Imperial Highway

  It is difficult to see students in crosswalks at Birch Street and Flower Avenue, this is due to the 
angular orientation of the crosswalks 

  Dangerous to cross Imperial Highway 

  Challenges with school drop-off especially along Imperial Highway – look for opportunities to 
better circulate cars

  Parents drop their kids off at Brea Baptist Church Parking lot, therefore there are several kids 
crossing Birch Street

  Evaluate current crossing guards during drop off and pickups

  Groups of kids walk along Birch Street to attend the afterschool program at Brea Community 
Center

Brea Junior High

  Pick-up/drop-off causes traffic issues on Lambert Road and Country Lane 

  Crosswalks at Brea Boulevard and Lambert Road are not aligned

  Add signage indicating that students are present

  Kids walk to Boys and Girls Club along Brea Boulevard

  75+ students bike or walk to school 

  Bike racks are always full

  Utility boxes on Brea Boulevard and Lambert Road make it more difficult for pedestrians

  Look for opportunities to set back the crosswalk buttons farther from the street

  Parents often pick up their kids at CVS and surrounding shopping centers, so there are a sig-
nificant number of kids crossing both Lambert Road and Brea Boulevard

  Look for opportunities for more defined or enhanced crosswalks

FOCUS GROUP MEETINGS

City staff, with the support of LGC, conduct-
ed approximately 1-hour separate focus group 
meetings with representatives from Brea Junior 
High School and Laurel Elementary School, 
Mercury Insurance, Simon Property Group/
Brea Mall and the Senior Center Council. Attend-
ees were provided maps of the Brea Core Plan 
Area to mark up and were asked a series of inter-
view questions (see Appendix F) with the goal of 
learning how they travel to, from, and within the 
Core Area as well as obstacles and opportunities 
that can be addressed in the Active Transporta-
tion Plan. 

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan2-20 Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

KEY TAKEAWAYS FROM FOCUS GROUP  
 MEETING WITH THE SENIOR CENTER    
 COUNCIL

  Walking to Brea Downtown from the 
Senior Center is challenging.

  Desire benches and lighting along the 
Tracks at Brea.

  Desire bathrooms and water fountains in 
Brea Downtown.

  Most seniors drive, only seniors who 
don’t have the ability or means to drive 
take the senior center shuttle.

  There aren’t consistent sidewalks 
on Berry Street near Mercury Lane, 
Vanguard Way and Lambert Road.

KEY TAKEAWAYS FROM FOCUS GROUP MEETING WITH SIMON PROPERTY GROUP/BREA 
MALL STAFF

  There is no sidewalk north of the Mall (from Birch Street).

  Lack of connectivity for bicycles and pedestrians in the Brea Core Plan Area. 

  Connect Brea Core Plan Area with the Tracks at Brea.

  Do not like that industrial areas are clearly visible on the north side of the Tracks at Brea. 
Improve landscaping and add lighting.

  Pedestrian and bicycle facilities on Birch Street need improvement. Suggest residential 
shuttle, pedestrian paths that are well-landscaped, lit, separated from motor vehicle traffic, 
integrate art and add wayfinding signage.

  Support the ideas of a shuttle system (maybe residents are free, small fee if not) from Brea 
Mall, pedestrian paths that are well-landscaped, lit, and separated from motor vehicle traffic.

  Support the integration of art and wayfinding signage in the Brea Core Plan Area

  Continue discussion with Brea Mall to integrate a mobility hub (south side of Mall near 
Imperial Highway).

  Look for opportunities for pedestrian improvements and landscaping along Birch Street and 
State College

  Would like to look at better connections into the Mall from Birch Street

  Improve pedestrian experience with art along the street or Tracks

  Consider an Art/Uber/Lyft hub on Mall property on corner of State College and Birch

  Need clear pronounced connections – maybe more meaningful crossing at State College and 
Birch Street

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 2-21Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

KEY TAKEAWAYS FROM FOCUS GROUP MEETING WITH MERCURY INSURANCE STAFF

  Mercury Insurance does not currently have incentives for employees who use alternative 
transportation to commute.

  Majority of employees are temporary with short-term (approximately 1-year) contracts and 
work 9am-5pm. 

  Mercury Insurance is adding 75 new employees to its Berry Street location.

  Supports the creation of a bike share program, particularly near The Tracks at Brea.

  Employees feel unsafe using the underpass to Birch Street behind the parking structure to 
get to/from Brea Downtown.

  Difficult pedestrian connections from the Berry Street building to Downtown

  Challenging to walk to Brea Plaza from the Greenbriar Lane Mercury Insurance location.

  Imperial Highway is difficult to cross as a pedestrian or bicyclist for employees trying to 
access the Berry Street Mercury Insurance location.

  Interested in more landscaping and shade both along the streets and The Tracks

  Limited bike paths along Birch Street and often have to ride on sidewalk or unprotected lane 
because of parking on the street

  Concerns of safety along The Tracks/Flood Control Channel due to transients

  Look for opportunities of bike share at Brea Plaza or Downtown that Mercury employees 
could utilize

  Employees don’t like to walk along Imperial Highway 

  Time constraints during lunch makes it difficult to walk or bike anywhere – how to best  
improve efficiency and connections? 

  Shuttle or circulator would be beneficial if it was efficient

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan2-22 Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

MEETINGS WITH CITY  
DIRECTORS

The Project Team met on two occasions with 
City Directors, and other senior staff from the 
Community Development Department, Com-
munity Services Department, the Office of the 
City Manager, Public Works, the Police Depart-
ment, and the Fire Department.

At the first meeting on June 19th, the Project 
Team provided City Staff an overview of the com-
munity feedback received to-date.  The meeting 
provided the attendees an opportunity to partic-
ipate in the pop-up activity exercise and review 
existing conditions in the Brea Core Plan Area. 

A second meeting was held June 20th, the day 
after the evening Community Workshop (as de-
scribed in the Community Workshop section of 
this chapter on page 2-17). During this meeting,  
active transportation-related improvements  
were presented as rendered concepts. The 
improvements were based on feedback from 
the community. The Directors provided addi-
tional feedback in response to the preliminary 
concepts—assisting with the refinement of 
proposed improvements to be included in the 
Draft Active Transportation Plan.

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 2-23Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

KEY TAKEAWAYS FROM MEETINGS WITH CITY DIRECTORS

  Coordinate improvements or additions to bicycle facilities to ensure improvements tie in with 
facilities in adjacent Cities.

  Bicyclists need more safe crossings, for both east/west and north/south routes and at more 
frequent intervals throughout the Brea Core Plan Area.

  Install shared pedestrian and bicycle facilities rather than eliminating vehicle travel lanes.

  The City does not have funding to underground utilities along Imperial Highway.

  The greatest opportunity for improved and/or new bicycle facilities are along Brea Boulevard, 
Birch Street, Lambert Road, and Berry Street.

  Narrow travel lanes to 10 feet where improved and/or new bicycle lanes are feasible.

  Vehicle travel lanes can be reduced at Brea Boulevard between Brea Downtown and Lambert 
Road and on Birch Street.

  Birch Street is an opportunity where widening sidewalks and installing lighting is feasible.

  The City of Brea is in the process of conducting a feasibility study to fill in sidewalk gaps along 
one side of roadway on Berry Street.

  Several participants indicated that sidewalk and crosswalk improvements proposed along 
Imperial Highway will be a challenge to implement due to coordination with Caltrans. 

  At Brea Boulevard and Birch Street, there are opportunities to improve conditions for pedes-
trians, including installing a diagonal crossing or a dedicated pedestrian signal, bulb outs, 
mid-block crossing refuge islands, or roundabouts.

  In order to fund design improvements, additional funding sources will need to be secured. 

  Additional funding sources and potential costs should be identified in the recommendations 
and Draft Plan. 

  Draft Plan should include pros and trade offs for recommendations.

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan2-24 Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

Draft Plan Workshop - Interactive Online Survey Draft Plan Workshop - Outreach Results

Draft Plan Workshop - Lounge area with the 
Draft Plan set up on tables

Draft Plan Workshop - Outreach Results

Draft Plan Outreach 
Additional outreach and pop-up activities were 
organized upon release of the Draft Plan. An 
open-house style workshop was held on October 
9, 2019 where activity booths provided partici-
pants an opportunity to review the Draft Plan. The 
booths were set-up with a map that detailed the 
location of the proposed improvements, render-
ings of the improvements, print-outs of the Draft 
Plan, boards with Round 1 and Round 2 Pop-Up 
Results, and an interactive online survey. The 
interactive online survey was open to the public 
for input from October 10, 2019 to November 8, 
2019. City staff also conducted pop-up activities 
in Brea to encourage the public’s review of the 
Draft Plan and participation in the interactive 
online survey, with the pop-ups occurring on the 
following dates and locations: 

  October 23, 2019 - The Tracks 

  October 25, 2019 - Brea Downtown 

  October 29, 2019 - Brea Community Center 

  October 30, 2019 - Coffee Bean across the 
street from Brea Junior High School 

The online interactive survey asked a series 
of questions designed to gauge the public’s 
interest on recommended bicycle and pedestri-
an improvements. Over 400 unique interactions 
were received by community members through 
the survey’s duration.  Overall, surveyors were 
in support of improvement options discussed in 
Chapter 5 of this Plan, with most improvement 
options receiving 70% support or greater from 
survey respondents. The full survey and results 
are available in Appendix G. 

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 2-25Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

Safe Routes to School 
Activities
WALK AUDITS

OCHCA assisted both Brea Junior High School 
and Laurel Elementary School to conduct 
walk audits on April 8, 2019 and April 23, 2019. 
Students, Community Development and media 
staff from the City of Brea and Principals from 
both schools participated in the walk audits. 
Staff from the after-school program attended 
the Laurel Elementary School walk audit.

Brea Junior High School students conducted 
a presentation of outcomes of the Brea Junior 
High School Walk Audit on May 23, 2019. The 
presentation is included in Appendix H. 

LAUREL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL WALK 
AUDIT OBSERVATIONS

  Motor Vehicles Back-Up on Imperial 
Highway During Pick-Up & Drop-Off. 

  Few Crosswalks along Imperial 
Highway. Long distances between des-
ignated crosswalks incite pedestrians to 
cross Imperial Highway where no cross-
walk is present.

  Faded Crosswalks and Stop Limit 
Lines within School Catchment Area.  
Motor vehicles may be less aware that 
pedestrians are present and use the 
roadway to cross.

  Motor Vehicles Speed along Imperial 
Highway.

Narrow Sidewalk at Lambert Road & Cliffwood 
Avenue

Student Measures Uneven Sidewalks at Lam-
bert Road & Pomelo Avenue

Bicycles Forced onto Sidewalk at Lambert Road & 
State College Boulevard

Crowded Pick-Up at Country Lane north of Lambert 
Road

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan2-26 Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

BREA JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL WALK AUDIT TAKEAWAYS

  Poor Sidewalk Conditions. Raised or cracked sidewalks hinder pedestrian movements. This 
condition was observed along East Lambert Road at Pomelo Avenue, Orange Avenue, Brea 
Boulevard and Oak Place.

  Bicyclists Using Sidewalks. Bicyclists were observed riding on sidewalks on East Lambert 
Road in the Brea Junior High School parking lot, State College Boulevard, Country Lane, and 
Orange Avenue.

  Narrow, Unprotected Sidewalks. Narrow sidewalks or no buffer between sidewalks and  
roadways put pedestrians into close proximity with motor vehicles. Pinch points were 
observed along Lambert Road at Cliffwood Avenue and Cashew Avenue.

  Speeding Motor Vehicles. Motor vehicles were observed speeding in the school zone while 
children were present near Brea Junior High School. 42 MPH speeds were observed at the 
intersection of Lambert Road and Country Lane.

  Dangerous or Undesignated Pick-Up & Drop-off Locations. Parents were observed 
dropping off students in the no stopping zone at Brea Boulevard in front of Brea Junior High 
School. Parents also pick up students at Country Lane, which is not a designated pick-up 
zone, creating a dangerous conflict between motor vehicles and pedestrians as students try 
to cross Country Lane to go home or other locations via Lambert Road.

  Motor Vehicle/Pedestrian Conflicts. Motor vehicles were observed stopping beyond the 
limit line at stop signs at the intersection of Lambert Road and Country Lane. This can force 
students to walk around cars and move into close proximity with traffic areas.

  Lack of Designated Crosswalks. The painted ‘Stop’ signs on the ground are faded and lack 
parallel lines indicating a designated crosswalk along Lambert Road at Oak Place and Country 
Lane. Therefore, it could be unclear to motor vehicles that pedestrians may be present and 
use the roadway to cross.

  Suggested Aesthetic Improvements & Identification of Damaged Facilities.
 � Plant trees or other plants along walkways (Lambert Road and Country Lane, South 

Side of Lambert Road between Brea Junior High School and the 57 Freeway).

 � Damaged chain link fence on the East side of Bristol industries.

 � Graffiti at 782 State College Boulevard.

 � Damaged signage at Lambert Road and Cashew Avenue and Orange Avenue.

POP-UP DEMONSTRATION 
WITH BREA JUNIOR HIGH 
SCHOOL

On November 7, 2019, OCHCA, in partnership 
with the City and LGC, held a complete streets 
demonstration event where a temporary high 
visibility crosswalk was installed for students to 
use at Brea Junior High Park. 

Approximately 90 Brea Junior High School 
students, as well as some parents and teachers 
attended the event. The temporary high-
visibility crosswalk received positive feedback 
by students, parents, and City and Brea Junior 
High School administrative staff.

The temporary high-visibility crosswalk was 
loaned to OCHCA by the Southern California 
Association of Governments (SCAG) Go Human! 
Campaign kit of complete streets parts. In 
addition to the crosswalk, SCAG, the City of Brea, 
and others provided games and other activities 
to engage students with complete streets 
concepts and active transportation safety tips.

Additional information and photos from the 
event are in Appendix I.

Brea Junior High School students cross a high-visibility 
crosswalk on November 7, 2019

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 2-27Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

Spreading the Word
Public events were advertised through the City’s 
website and social media sites, e-blasts were 
submitted to community members and press 
releases were produced at key milestones.  
Members of the Technical Working Group were 
also encouraged to inform members of the 
community about the Plan. Additionally, flyers 
and posters on the Plan were created and dis-
played at local businesses and public loca-
tions in the Brea Core Plan Area. The City, with 
support from Crowdbrite, created a dedicat-
ed home page, planbrea.com, which includes 
the project purpose and background, past and 
upcoming activities, a comment portal for input 
and feedback, a walk audit checklist, and other 
resources. 

Flyer promoting the June 2019 Community Design Workshop

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan2-28 Community Outreach - Engaging the Public

This page intentionally left blank. 

ATTACHMENT 2



CHAPTER 3
Existing Conditions - Walking 
and Biking in Brea Today

CHAPTER 3

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan3-2 Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

This page intentionally left blank. 

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 3-3Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

Purpose of the Brea 
Core Active  
Transportation Plan
This Brea Connecting the Core Active Transporta-
tion Plan provides recommendations to support 
the development of a transportation system 
that encourages bicycle and pedestrian activity. 
The Plan incorporate strategies for creating 
an environment that is walkable and bikeable 
within the Brea Core Plan Area. To better under-
stand the issues that limit or constrain walking 
and bicycling and key areas of opportunity, this 
chapter includes the following:

  A description of the Brea Core Plan Area

  A summary of relevant plans, policies, and 
programs

  A list of safety and educational programs

  An overview of the demographics and com-
muting patterns in the Brea Core Plan Area

  A summary of existing mobility and transit 
facilities

  A description of current bicycling and walking 
conditions

  Analysis of bicycle and pedestrian safety 

  A summary of Wayfinding Signage

LOCAL CONTEXT & PLAN AREA

The City of Brea is in the northeast corner of 
Orange County, bordering Los Angeles and San 
Bernardino counties. The City is bounded by La 
Habra to the west, unincorporated areas of Los 
Angeles County to the north, Chino Hills to the 
east, Fullerton and Placentia to the south, and 
Yorba Linda to the southeast (Figure 3-1). Due 
to the City’s proximity to nearby counties and 
accessibility to SR-57, residents can reach the 
Riverside (SR-91), Pomona (SR-60), San Ber-
nardino (I-10), Santa Ana (I-5), and Newport 
(SR-55) freeways in a relatively short distance. 
Via Fullerton and Anaheim, Brea residents have 
access to Amtrak and Metrolink commuter rail 
services. Chino Hills State Park, Craig Regional 
Park, Carbon Canyon Regional Park, and The 
Tracks at Brea Trail attract residents and visitors 
from across the region. Users of the parks and 
trails may walk, bike, and enjoy picnic facilities or 
recreational activities offered. Within the City are 
many amenities that include shopping, dining, 
and popular local destinations that generate 
walking and biking activity. Figure 3-1 presents 
the City’s regional context, including adjacent 
cities, the roadway network, and transportation 
infrastructure. 

The Brea Core Plan Area is roughly bounded by 
Lambert Road to the north, Imperial Highway 
to the south, Berry Street to the west, and the 
SR-57 Freeway to the east (Figure 3-2). The study 
area contains several key roadways that are re-
gionally significant—Imperial Highway, Lambert 
Road, Brea Boulevard, State College Boulevard, 
and the SR-57 Freeway. Along or adjacent to 
these corridors are large, regionally significant 
commercial centers and mixed-use districts. 
This includes Brea Mall, Brea Marketplace 
Shopping Center, Brea Plaza Shopping Center, 

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan3-4 Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

Development Chapter. The City’s land use policies 
reflect the community’s goal of maintaining Brea’s 
character and quality of life—yet the policies are 
responsive to evolving needs. In Brea, commer-
cial and industrial land use areas are concentrat-
ed along Lambert Road and Imperial Highway. The 
two primary corridors and businesses that operate 
in the City are a draw for regional employment and 
economic activity. Within the Brea Core Plan Area, 
there is a mix of residential types and densities, as 
shown in Brea’s General Plan Land Use Map (Figure 
3-3). The figure depicts an even distribution of low 
density residential, high density residential, mixed 
use, regional commercial, general commercial, 
public facilities, light industrial, and general indus-
trial uses within the 785-acre Plan Area. The Brea 
Core Plan Area’s distinct commercial assets have 
facilitated mixed-use development and nodes that 
can support a comprehensive network of bicycle 
and pedestrian focused improvements. 

Brea Gateway Center, and Brea Downtown. 
In the Plan Area are also a number of industri-
al businesses that draw commuters from the 
region. The former Union Pacific Railroad right-
of-way traverses the Plan Area and spans the 
eastern border, through Brea Downtown, and 
to the western border, much of which has been 
repurposed as the Tracks of Brea Trail, offering 
dedicated pathways for pedestrians and bicy-
clists. Other key destinations in the Plan Area 
include civic and cultural destinations such as 
the Brea Civic & Cultural Center, Brea Post Office, 
Brea Community Center, Lagos de Moreno Park, 
Brea Junior High School, and Laurel Elementary 
School. 

THE CITY’S LAND USE FORM  

The City of Brea’s 2003 General Plan illustrates 
the City’s land use form and presents the City’s 
development goals in the Plan’s Community 

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 3-5Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

Figure 3-1: Regional Location

Diamond Bar

La Habra Heights

Industry

Chino Hills

Fullerton Yorba Linda

Placentia

La Habra

Anaheim

BREA

Legend

Brea Core Plan Area

City of Brea

Los Angeles County

Orange County

San Bernardino County

1 Mile

57

142

90

Craig 
Regional 

Park

Chino Hills 
State Park

Brea Dam 
Recreational 

Area

Carbon Canyon 
Regional Park

Yorba Linda Blvd

Chapman Ave

Commonwealth Ave

Bastanchury Rd Imperial Hwy

K
ra

em
er

 B
lv

d

A
ss

oc
ia

te
d

S
ta

te
 C

ol
le

ge
 B

lv
d

Imperial Hwy

Lambert Rd

Central Ave

H
arbor B

lvd

B
re

a 
B

lv
d

P
ue

nt
e 

S
t

B
er

ry
 S

t

Pathfinder Rd

Colima Rd

Birch St

PUENTE H I L L S
C

H
IN

O
 H

I L L S

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan3-6 Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

Figure 3-2: Brea Core Plan Area

57

Brea Mall

Brea Plaza

Craig Regional 
Park

Downtown 
Brea

Tracks @ 
Brea Trail

City Hall Park 
& Plunge

Arovista 
Park

Tamarack 
Park

Greenbriar 
Park

Laurel Elementary 
School

Brea Community 
Center

Brea Civic & 
Cultural Center

Lagos De 
Moreno Park

Brea Marketplace 
Shopping Center

Brea Junior 
High School

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

BIRCH ST

B
E

R
R

Y 
S

T

CENTRAL AVE

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

LAMBERT RD

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

57

Brea

Fullerton

Legend

Brea Core Plan Area

City of Brea

City of Fullerton

0.25 Miles

Brea Senior
Center

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 3-7Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

Figure 3-3: General Plan Land Use

Legend
Hillside Residential

Low Density Residential

Medium Density Residential

High Density Residential

Mixed Use I

Mixed Use II

Mixed Use III

Regional Commercial

General Commercial

Neighborhood Commercial

Recreational Commercial

Office/Financial

Light Industrial

General Industrial

Public Facilities

Parks/Recreation/Open Space/Parks Recreation

Natural Open Space

Cemetery

0 0.25 0.50.125 Miles

¯

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan3-8 Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

Relevant Plans, Policies, 
and Programs 
LOCAL PLANS AND POLICIES

Brea Envisions Community Strategic Plan

The 2017 Brea Envisions Community Strategic 
Plan details the community’s core values and 
objectives that will guide development and 
governance for the following 20 years. The 
principles outlined in the document will inform 
numerous efforts, including the Capital Improve-
ment Program, Parks and Recreation Master 
Plan, and all phases of the Brea Connecting 
the Core Plan. The Brea Envisions community 
outreach process included various committees 
and was developed over three phases. The result 
of community input greatly influenced develop-
ment of Themes and Strategic Initiatives such 
as connectivity, land use and housing, economic 
development, leisure and culture, energy and 
sustainability, open space, public safety, trans-
portation and fiscal responsibility. The outreach 
process led to the development of refined values 
for each Theme. Specific to the Active Transpor-
tation Plan, the Brea Envisions Strategic Plan 
details the following Strategic Initiatives:

  Promote a healthy and active lifestyle
  Promote a walkable community 
  Enhance and promote pedestrian-friendly 

development throughout our community and 
within public spaces

  Further develop public spaces such as parks, 
trails, and facilities for recreational experienc-
es and programs

  Continue developing and enhancing parkland 
and recreational space in underserved areas

  Develop different transportation options for 

moving around Brea and to promote alter-
nate transportation options 

  Develop different transportation options to 
move around within the larger region that 
also help alleviate traffic due to Brea’s day-
time population increase 

The initiatives mentioned above will guide and 
inform the Brea Connecting the Core Active 
Transportation Plan. 

Brea Connecting the Core Phase 1 Summary 
Report 

The Brea Connecting the Core effort presents 
the community’s vision for a focused area within 
the City and will continue to develop over various 
phases. The City conducted numerous outreach 
events to solicit input from the community, the 
feedback and input received led to the identifica-
tion of specific needs within the core focus area. 
This process was the direct application of the Brea 
Envisions Strategic Plan, and showcases how the 
Brea Connecting the Core project will be informed 
by the Strategic Initiatives outlined in the plan. 
The 2019 Phase 1 Summary Report includes an 
assessment of zoning, development regulations, 
public improvements, design, economic develop-
ment, implementation, and mobility needs. The 
report assessed active transportation opportuni-
ties at a high level and presents initial concepts 
for bikeway and walkway improvements within 
the core area. The Phase 1 Summary Report led 
to the formal study and development of the City’s 
Active Transportation Plan (Phase 2). 

General Plan – Circulation 

Adopted in 2003, the City of Brea’s General 
Plan presents objectives and policies that will 
guide future development, public services, and 

resource management. The plan describes 
Brea’s community vision for new housing, 
improved public utilities and facilities, and 
economic growth. The Circulation chapter within 
the Community Development element of the 
plan details how the transportation network will 
support growth and the above-mentioned initia-
tives. The chapter includes sections that specify 
policies for the pedestrian circulation system 
and bikeways with the aim to offer a variety mul-
timodal transportation options. It details that 
pedestrian connections should provide access 
to commercial activity centers such as Brea 
Downtown and public transit. Other chapters 
and sections within the General Plan outline 
goals and policies for trails and sidewalks. The 
plan lists the development of bike lanes along 
Lambert Road, Brea Canyon Channel, Union 
Pacific Rail Trail, Berry and Puente Streets, and 
Carbon Canyon Road as priority locations. 

The Tracks Community Outreach Report

The Tracks is an abandoned railroad right of 
way that was converted into a trail for recre-
ational activity, walking, and biking. The Tracks 
Community Outreach Report, enacted in 2010, 
details the community-based engagement 
process the city undertook to build consensus 
to ultimately set the goal of creating a 50-acre 
linear park. The document summarizes the 
result of various outreach methodologies, 
including surveys and workshops, to ensure that 
future development of the trail design reflects 
the community’s input. The Tracks is within the 
Brea Core Plan area and was identified as a key 
destination and community asset in the Brea 
Connecting the Core Phase 1 Summary Report. 

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 3-9Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

REGIONAL PLANS, POLICIES, 
AND PROGRAMS

La Habra Bikeway Master Plan

The 2017 La Habra Bikeway Master Plan sets 
the blueprint for expanding the city’s bikeway 
network and improving safety for a better 
bicycling environment. The plan proposes a 
system of bikeways that provide connections to 
key destinations and activity centers. The goals, 
policies, recommendations, and action items in 
the plan promote strategies that meet the com-
munity’s vision for a sustainable and safe bikeway 
system. Facilities and bikeways proposed with 
a connection to Brea include a Class I bikeway 
along the Union Pacific Railroad Right-of-Way 
(potentially connecting to The Tracks at Brea 
Trail), closing the gap along La Habra Boulevard 
by extending the existing bikeway, a Class II bike 
lane along Whittier Avenue, and a Class I bike 
path along Imperial Highway. The plan addition-
ally provides Design Guidelines for bicycling fa-
cilities that includes signage and dimensions for 
bicycle paths by bikeway type. 

City of La Habra Complete Streets Plan 

The 2019 City of La Habra Complete Streets 
Master Plan sets the goal of transforming 
La Habra into a more walkable and active 
community. By adopting complete streets 
policies, the city aims to provide enhanced fa-
cilities that could be used by users of all ages 
and abilities. The plan proposes short and long 
term projects with the objective of encouraging 
the adoption of sustainable practices and active 
transportation. Relevant to the Brea Core area, 
the plan proposes a connection to OC Loop 
via Whittier and Brea by adding a dedicated 
walkway/bikeway along the Union Pacific 

Railroad Right-of-Way. It also provides recom-
mendations for key corridors along Lambert 
Road, Beach Boulevard, and Imperial Highway 
leading into Brea. The improvements include the 
addition of bikeways, traffic calming measures, 
and enhancements to pedestrian crossings. 

Fullerton Bicycle Master Plan

The Fullerton Bicycle Master Plan, adopted in 
2012, is an appendix to the City’s General Plan 
and serves as a “stand-alone bicycle element.” 
The plan provides goals and policies that 
enhance the bikeway network and advocate the 
adoption of the bicycle as a commuting and rec-
reational mode. The proposed bikeway improve-
ments focus on expanding the city’s existing 
network, with a particular focus on providing 
access to the City’s key destinations, including 
Downtown Fullerton, Cal State Fullerton, com-
mercial and business districts, and connec-
tions to recreational trails. Adjacent to the Brea 
Core plan boundary, the plan proposes a Class 
III Bicycle Route along Puente Street and State 
College Boulevard. The plan also proposes a 
Class I Bicycle Path along Associated Road. 

Orange County Council of Governments 
Complete Streets Initiative Design Handbook 

The 2016 Orange County Council of Governments 
(OCCOG) Complete Streets Initiative Design 
Handbook was developed to provide community 
groups and jurisdictions in Orange County with 
best practices and design guidelines for the de-
velopment of Complete Street Plans and Circula-
tion Elements of General Plans. The document is 
divided into two parts: Part A – Vision and Policy 
Framework, and Part B – Design Guidance. Part A 
provides tools to assist jurisdictions with identify-
ing functions and classifications of streets, and it 
also details policies for use in policy documents 

such as Complete Street Plans and Active Trans-
portation Plans. Part B details goals, guidance on 
the design of street elements, costs, standards 
and technical guidance prepared by other orga-
nizations. The ultimate goal of this document is 
to streamline coordination on various Complete 
Street Plan efforts for agencies and jurisdictions 
within Orange County. 

Fourth District Bikeways Strategy

The 2012 Fourth District Bikeways Strategy 
proposes regional bikeways for improved con-
nectivity within the Fourth Supervisorial District 
in Orange County, which includes the City of Brea. 
The effort was led by the Orange County Trans-
portation Authority (OCTA), with participants 
from the County of Orange and local jurisdictions 
within the district. The plan divides the proposed 
improvements into potential near-term projects 
and multi-jurisdictional projects that would 
require coordination between local municipalities 
for focused corridors within the region. Relevant 
to the Brea Core Plan Area, the Plan identifies 
Brea Creek – Bastanchury Road, and the Union 
Pacific Railroad Right-of-Way, as well as the Brea 
Mall – Cal State Fullerton – Santa Ana River 
corridors as key segments. For the Brea Mall – 
Cal State Fullerton – Santa Ana River segment, 
the plan lists the following opportunities: (1) 
increase connections to Brea Mall, Cal State 
Fullerton, Metrolink, and the Santa Ana River; (2) 
build upon the existing bikeways already in place; 
(3) and fill in the gaps along the corridor. For the 
Union Pacific Railroad Right-of-Way segment, 
the plan proposes a connection to Coyote Creek 
and the development of a Class I multi-use trail 
in Yorba Linda. For the Brea Creek – Bastanchury 
Road segment, the plan aims to improve connec-
tions between the Buena Park Metrolink station 
and St. Jude Hospital. 

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan3-10 Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

OC Active: Orange County’s Bike + Ped Plan 
(anticipated to be adopted in 2019)

The Orange County Transportation Authority 
(OCTA) developed OC Active, a comprehensive 
framework for bikeway and pedestrian planning 
countywide. The plan sets a vision for local mu-
nicipalities in the region to seek funding and 
implement local bicycle and pedestrian infra-
structure. The plan enables local agencies to 
develop their own plans, with the OC Active plan 
as a foundation to promote regional collabora-
tion. The plan identifies bikeway and walkway 
improvements that provide connectivity to 
regional assets and promotes cross jurisdiction 
coordination for active transportation planning. 

2009 OCTA Commuter Bikeways Strategic Plan

The Orange County Transportation Authority 
(OCTA) developed the Commuter Bikeways 
Strategic Plan (CBSP) in 2009. The plan’s 
objective is to develop a bikeway network that 
makes the bicycle a viable option for commuting. 
The Plan identifies Brea Mall as a key regional 
employment center and designates the sur-
rounding area as a bikeway priority zone. Within 
the zone, the plan proposes regional priority 
projects; the proposals include a Class I bike path 
along the Union Pacific Railroad Right-of-Way 
between Palm Street in La Habra through the 
City of Brea to Valencia Avenue in Placentia, and 
a Class II bike lane along Birch Street between 
Mercury Lane and State College Boulevard. 

STATE AND FEDERAL POLICIES 

State of California Complete Streets Act (2008)

In 2008, the California State Legislature adopted 
The Complete Streets Act (AB 1358), which 

requires that jurisdictions “plan for a balanced, 
multimodal transportation network that meets 
the needs of all users of streets, roads, and 
highways, defined to include motorists, pedes-
trians, bicyclists, children, persons with dis-
abilities, seniors, movers of commercial goods, 
and users of public transportation, in a manner 
that is suitable to the rural, suburban, or urban 
context.”

Americans with Disabilities Act (1990, updated 
2010)

The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), first 
adopted in 1990, protects people with disabili-
ties from discrimination in employment, public 
services, public accommodations, and telecom-
munications. Title II of the ADA requires that the 
services and programs of local and State gov-
ernments be readily accessible to and usable by 
individuals with disabilities. It calls for removing 
physical barriers, such as stairs, and providing 
auxiliary aids to help persons with visual, hearing 
or sensory impairments. In addition, Title II 
seeks to ensure that people with disabilities have 
access to existing public transportation services, 
including buses and paratransit services. 

RELEVANT AGENCIES AND 
ORGANIZATIONS

Carrying out successful bicycle and pedestri-
an projects in Brea requires collaboration with 
other government agencies and local organiza-
tions. The following agencies and organizations 
are key players in catalyzing and leveraging 
public support for bicycle and pedestrian efforts 
in Brea.

California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans)

The California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans) is responsible for the maintenance 
and operation of state routes and highways, 
and the agency is a major source of bicycle 
and pedestrian projects. In 2013, Governor 
Brown signed legislation that created the Active 
Transportation Program (ATP), which consoli-
dates existing federal and state transportation 
programs, including the Transportation Alter-
natives Program (TAP), Bicycle Transportation 
Account (BTA), and State Safe Routes to School 
(SR2S), into a single program with funding of 
$223 million a year from a combination of state 
and federal funds.

Southern California Association of Govern-
ments (SCAG) 

The Southern California Association of Govern-
ments (SCAG) is a Metropolitan Planning Orga-
nization (MPO) designated under state law as a 
Regional Transportation Planning Agency and as 
a Council of Government. SCAG develops long-
range regional transportation plans, including 
sustainable community strategies and regional 
transportation improvement programs for 
Imperial, Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, San 
Bernardino, and Ventura County. 

Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA)

The Orange County Transportation Authority 
(OCTA) operates Orange County’s public trans-
portation system. OCTA also assists in the coor-
dination of active transportation efforts county-
wide through OC Active (ATP) and the OCTA 
Commuter Bikeways Strategic Plan. 

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 3-11Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

Orange County Council of Governments

The Orange County Council of Governments 
(OCCOG) is a voluntary joint-powers agency made 
up of member agencies that include 34 incorporat-
ed cities in Orange County. The OCCOG serves as 
a regional voice for its member agencies. OCCOG 
developed the 2016 Complete Streets Handbook 
and Funding Toolkit to assist jurisdictions to coor-
dinate Complete Streets initiatives. 

RELEVANT GUIDES AND 
MANUALS

While street infrastructure projects are always 
site-specific, they generally adhere to existing 
national and state level engineering standards 
and guidelines. In addition to regulatory engi-
neering manuals, several street and bikeway 
design manuals provide valuable guidance for 
active transportation projects.

Separated Bike Lane Planning and Design Guide 
– FHWA (2015)

This 2015 guide, developed by the Federal 
Highway Administration (FHWA), recommends 
design strategies for bikeways that are physically 
separated from vehicular traffic by spatial and/
or physical buffers (Class IV Protected Bicycle 
Lanes). The guide discusses siting consider-
ations and strategies for integrating bicycle facil-
ities with other transportation infrastructure.

Highway Design Manual – Caltrans (2006, latest 
revision 2017)

The California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans) Division of Design provides guidance 
for State highways, including engineering 
elements such as geometry (e.g., roadway 
curvature), intersections, pavement types, soils, 

and hydrology. The Manual is the primary source 
for bikeway standards in California. It includes 
sections on multi-modal approaches, such as 
enhanced pedestrian crossings, bicycle/pe-
destrian over crossings and under crossings, 
separated bikeways, and more.

California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control 
Devices – Caltrans (2014, Revised 2018)

The CA MUTCD conforms with and builds upon 
(rather than replaces) the National MUTCD, 
and contains California-specific standards and 
guidance for traffic control devices including 
“signs, signals, markings, and other devices 
used to regulate, warn, or guide traffic, placed 
on, over, or adjacent to a street, highway, pedes-
trian facility, or bikeway by authority of a public 
agency having jurisdiction.”

Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices 
(MUTCD) - FHWA (2009, Revised 2012)

The MUTCD sets national standards for traffic 
signs, signals, and pavement markings, including 
those related to bikeways and pedestrian 
crossings. The manual seeks to improve safety 
and efficiency by ensuring general uniformity 
across the United States, while encouraging in-
novation and flexibility amongst state agencies.

National Association of City Transportation 
Officials (NACTO) Guides

Founded in 1996, NACTO is a national coalition 
of transportation officials from over 40 cities 
that is “committed to raising the state of the 
practice for street design and transportation by 
building a common vision.” NACTO has produced 
four highly valuable guidebooks providing com-
prehensive guidance for designing streets for 
all road users: the Urban Street Design Guide 

(2011), Urban Bikeway Design Guide (2013), 
Transit Street Design Guide (2015), and Urban 
Street Stormwater Guide (2017). 

Safety and Educational 
Programs
EDUCATION, ENFORCEMENT, 
AND EVALUATION PROGRAMS

Association of Pedestrian and Bicycle Profes-
sionals (APBP) Webinars Hosted by OCTA

Each month, OCTA hosts APBP webinars at 
varying jurisdictions in Orange County. Every 
webinar focuses on a topic and presents an op-
portunity to learn about active transportation 
and Complete Streets initiatives and policies 
from industry professionals. OCTA hosts the 
webinars for free and participants are encour-
aged to attend throughout the region. 

Be Safe Be Seen

OCTA sponsored a county-wide educational and 
safety program that seeks to prevent pedestrian 
and bicycle collisions and injuries. As the Brea 
Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 
was developed, the program hosted a series of 
events and activities:

  OC Bike Adventures Workshops: Safe 
cycling classes

  Operation Bright Lights: Events that distrib-
uted lights and helmets throughout Orange 
County

  Operation Be Seen: Activities that distribut-
ed light reflectors and safety information on 
buses

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan3-12 Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

A Snapshot of the 
Community and  
Circulation 
POPULATION AND 
EMPLOYMENT

According to the most current American 
Community Survey (ACS) 5-year population 
estimates (2017), the City of Brea has a popu-
lation of 41,921 residents. To further understand 
population distribution within the Brea Core 
Plan Area, a study area was defined utilizing four 
census tracts. Below is an overview of popula-
tion and employment statistics in the study area:

  The study area is comprised of approximate-
ly 22,270 residents—which equates to 53.1 
percent of the City’s total population. 

  Data from the 2015 Longitudinal Employ-
er-Household Dynamics study indicates a 
total of 35,611 jobs exist in the study area. 

  The five largest employment industries in the 
Brea Core study area are:

1. Finance and Insurance – 15.9 percent

2. Retail Trade – 15.2 percent

3. Manufacturing – 13.2 percent

4. Accommodation and Food Services – 
11.2 percent

5. Administration & Support, Waste Man-
agement and Remediation – 9.0 percent

COMMUTING PATTERNS 

In 2017, within the study area, 79.6 percent of 
residents commuted to work by driving alone. 
This percentage is lower than the City’s at 81.1 
percent and higher than the State’s at 73.6 
percent. Within the study area, a total of 3.3 
percent of residents walk to work and 1.2 percent 
use a bicycle to commute; when compared to 
the County and the State, more residents in the 
study area walk or bike to work. Utilization of 
public transportation is lower within the study 
area when compared to the City, neighbor-
ing cities, the County, and the State—only 1.3 
percent use public transit. A total of 7.1 percent 
of residents in the Brea Core study area work 
from home, this percentage is the highest when 
compared to the City, neighboring cities, the 
County, and the State (see Table 3-1).

In comparison to neighboring cities, the County, 
and the State there are more residents who travel 

less than 10 minutes to work within the study 
area. A total of 11.6 percent of residents within the 
Brea Core Plan Area travel less than 10 minutes 
to work (see Table 3-2). However, residents within 
the study area that travel 60 minutes or more 
represent the largest percentage of commuters. 
The average travel time to work for residents 
within the study area is 31.8 minutes, which is 
higher than the County (27.4 minutes) and the 
State (28.8 minutes), but lower when compared 
to the City of Brea overall (33.4 minutes). It is 
worth noting that ACS data, collected from 2013-
2017, does not capture people commuting on The 
Tracks at Brea, a key corridor for pedestrians and 
bicyclists in the City, which opened in 2018.  The 
City may continue to monitor updates to ACS 
data to evaluate changes in commuting patterns 
as a result of The Tracks and other walking and 
bicycling infrastructure constructed in the Brea 
Core Plan Area.

Cyclist along State College Boulevard

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 3-13Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

RECREATION PATTERNS

To better understand how Brea’s constitu-
ents walk and bike, the City may consider the 
following strategies to obtain more detailed data 
on people walking and biking in the Brea Core 
Plan Area:

  Develop intercept surveys to gather informa-
tion on how people utilize bikeways, trails and 
sidewalks. 

  When vehicle counts are being conducted on 
roadways, also collect counts on pedestrians 
and bicyclists. 

  Retain a firm that specializes in the collection 
of pedestrian and bicycle counts to set up 
equipment that will specifically count people 
walking and biking in key locations.

Mobility and Transit 
Connectivity 
MAJOR ACTIVITY 
DESTINATIONS & 
EMPLOYMENT CENTERS

The Brea Connecting the Core Active Transporta-
tion Plan aims to improve connections to key des-
tinations within the Plan Area (Figure 3-4). Major 
activity destinations represent where people go 
for work, school, shopping, dining, entertainment, 
and exercise—consequently these sites generate 
the most trips. The location of the following 
major destinations serve as a guide for assessing 
mobility needs within the Brea Core Plan Area:

  Brea Mall and Civic Center Environs: Cur-
rently there are three sub-areas in the Brea 
Mall and Civic Center environs, including:

 � The regional-serving Brea Mall

 � The Civic Center Area 

 � The Brea Marketplace Shopping Center 

 � Brea Place and Financial Commons

The areas that include the Brea Mall and Civic 
Center environs have different land uses but 
primarily comprises of commercial use; the 
area is to the west of SR-57. Brea Place and 
Financial Commons is located along State 
College Boulevard north of Birch Street, a 
significant job center with standard daytime 
operating hours with mixed use developments 
currently being constructed. The Civic Center 
area includes the Brea Civic and Cultural 
Center which contains City Hall, Community 
Center, Post Office, Curtis Theater, Library, 
and Art Gallery. The Brea Mall and Brea Mar-
ketplace Shopping Center facilities consist 
largely of retail and restaurants.

  Brea Plaza: Brea Plaza is a retail center 
located to the east of the SR-57. The retail 
center has undergone extensive renova-
tion and is directly adjacent to a job center, 
Mercury Insurance.

  Lambert Road Industrial: South of Lambert 
Road is one of the City’s major job centers. As 
industrial development has changed in the 
current economy, traditional blue collar in-
dustries have been supplemented with high 
technology, flex-tech and other similar uses. 

  Brea Downtown: The Brea Downtown area 
is one of the City’s mixed use development 
sites. Within Downtown there is a mix of retail, 
restaurants, entertainment, and housing. 
This activity-generating site attracts local 
and regional visitors. 

  Mercury Lane Office and Industrial: The 
Mercury Lane Office and Industrial area is Brea Civic & Cultural Center

Brea Downtown

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan3-14 Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

Table 3-1: Commuting Behavior by Transportation Mode

Mode of Travel (%) Brea Core 
Study Area Brea Fullerton La Habra Orange County California

Car, Truck, or Van — Drove Alone 79.6 81.1 77.9 80.3 78.6 73.6

Car, Truck, or Van — Carpooled 7.4 7.2 11.1 11.1 9.8 10.4

Public Transportation 1.3 1.7 2.6 2.3 2.2 5.2

Walked 3.3 2.2 3.1 1.8 1.9 2.7

Bicycle 1.2 0.4 0.8 0.5 0.8 1.1

Motorcycle and other means 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.5

Worked at Home 7.1 6.3 3.6 3.1 5.6 5.6

Source: 2017 American Community Survey

Table 3-2: Travel Time to Work

Mode of Travel (%) Brea Core 
Study Area Brea Fullerton La Habra Orange County California

Less than 10 minutes 11.6 10.5 9.5 8.3 8.4 9.7

10 to 14 minutes 11.1 11.3 12.9 12.0 12.6 12.6

15 to 19 minutes 10.7 9.7 13.6 13.2 15.3 14.9

20 to 24 minutes 11.6 11.8 13.1 14.2 16.0 14.4

25 to 29 minutes 6.0 5.6 4.8 6.1 6.4 6.0

30 to 34 minutes 14.2 14.2 16.4 13.6 17.2 15.0

35 to 44 minutes 8.6 8.2 6.3 9.5 7.0 6.9

45 to 59 minutes 11.0 11.6 9.9 10.6 7.6 8.7

60 or more minutes 15.3 17.2 13.5 12.4 9.4 11.8

Mean travel time to work (minutes) 31.8 33.4 29.8 30.3 27.4 28.8

Source: 2017 American Community Survey

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 3-15Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

  Residential Neighborhoods: Within and in 
the vicinity of the Plan Area are a mix of resi-
dential units—the housing density in the area 
varies between single family homes, townho-
mes, and apartment complexes.

TRANSIT SERVICE AND 
FACILITIES

Providing a multimodal network and compli-
mentary commuting options will reinforce 
the existing mixed use development in the 
Brea Core Plan Area. At the Brea Mall property 
there is a transit hub that serves local trips and 
regional destinations such as Brea Mall, Profes-
sional Businesses, and California State Universi-
ty Fullerton (Figure 3-5). It is a key bus transit/
transfer location in North Orange County.  OCTA 
has also studied the State College Boulevard 
corridor for potential rapid bus or BRT service 
and this transit center would serve as the 
northern terminus of the corridor.

Currently within Brea, the Orange County Trans-
portation Authority (OCTA) operates five routes 
that connect Brea residents to neighboring 
cities and regional transit centers. In addition, 
Foothill Transit operates one bus route that 
connects from Pomona through Diamond Bar 
to Brea-Olinda High School and the Brea Mall. 
The following regional and local routes currently 
serve Brea and the Core Plan Area, all of which 
stop at the Brea Mall Transportation Center:

  OCTA Route 57: Brea Mall to Newport Trans-
portation Center 

  OCTA Route 129: La Habra to Anaheim 
Canyon

  OCTA Route 143: La Habra to Brea via Ful-
lerton Transportation Center

located west of the Brea Canyon Channel 
between Lambert Road and Imperial Highway. 
The buildings are predominately one to two 
story and have industrial, office, and light 
manufacturing uses. Though the Mercury 
Lane area is adjacent to the Brea Downtown 
area, there are physical and functional facil-
ities that limit connectivity to the area. This 
area is also a job center, containing Mercury 
Insurance’s west campus. Along Mercury 
Lane there is a vehicle and pedestrian bridge 
that provides connectivity to The Tracks and 
the Brea Downtown Parking Structure. 

  Imperial Highway Commercial: The Imperial 
Highway Commercial area has a mix of retail 
and commercial uses. Imperial Highway is a 
major regional corridor with significant traffic 
passing through. Expansion of the roadway 
to accommodate traffic demand has created 
an auto-oriented environment, resulting in 
fragmented commercial development and 
negative impacts on walkability. This area is 
located on the south-east boundary of the 
Brea Core Plan Area along Imperial Highway, 
across from the Brea Mall. 

  Schools: While there is currently only one 
school within the Brea Core Plan Area, west of 
the SR-57 there are 5 schools in the vicinity of 
the project boundary. Improving walking and 
biking conditions near and around schools 
will generate pedestrian and biking activity. 
Laurel Elementary School is located on 
Flower Street, just north of Imperial Highway 
and south of Birch Street—along the southern 
boundary of the Plan Area. Brea Junior High 
School, Fanning Elementary School, Arovista 
Elementary School, and Mariposa Elementa-
ry School are located along or adjacent to key 
arterials in the Plan Area. 

Brea Mall Transportation Center

Brea Mall Transportation Center

  OCTA Route 153: Brea Mall to Anaheim 
Regional Intermodal Transportation Center 
(ARTIC)

  OCTA Route 213: Brea Park and Ride to 
Irvine

  Foothill Transit Route 286: Brea Mall to 
Pomona

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan3-16 Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

Figure 3-4: Major Activity Destinations & Employment Centers

Legend

Brea Core Plan Area

City of Brea

City of Fullerton57

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

BIRCH ST

B
E

R
R

Y 
S

T

CENTRAL AVE

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

LAMBERT RD

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

57

Brea

Fullerton

AS
SO

C
IA

TE
D

 R
D

ASSO
CIA

TED R
D

ELM ST

0.25 Miles

Brea Mall and 
Civic Center Environs

Brea
Plaza

Downtown

Lambert Road Industrial

Mercury Lane 
O�ice & 

Industrial

Imperial Hwy  Commercial

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 3-17Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

Figure 3-5: Transit Service and Underserved Transit Areas

Legend

Brea Core Plan Area

City of Brea

City of Fullerton

Brea Transit Center

Bus Stops

Park and Ride Locations

Underserved Areas

OCTA Bus Routes

57

129

143

153

213

Foothill Transit

286

0.25 Miles

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

BIRCH ST

B
E

R
R

Y 
S

T

CENTRAL AVE

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

LAMBERT RD

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

57

Brea

Fullerton

ASSO
CIA

TED R
D

ELM ST

57

A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
D RD

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan3-18 Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

The Fullerton Transportation Center (accessible 
from Brea by OCTA Route 143) is located along 
Harbor Boulevard and Santa Fe Avenue in the 
City of Fullerton. At this facility, Brea residents 
have access to commuter rail services, including 
Metrolink’s Orange County and 91/Perris Valley 
routes and Amtrak’s Pacific Surfliner. The City 
of Brea currently operates Seniors on the Go!, 
a van service that offers scheduled and planned 
trips to eligible seniors.

Walking and Biking in 
Brea Today
The following section describes Brea’s bicycle 
and pedestrian infrastructure. This section 
further explains how the City’s existing network 
provides connectivity to activity centers within 
the Plan Area. 

BICYCLE NETWORK

Bikeways are categorized into four types. Figure 
3-6 illustrates the types of bikeways.

  Class I (bike paths) also known as multi-use 
paths, are separated completely from motor 
vehicle traffic and usually shared with pedes-
trians.

  Class II (bike lanes) are delineated lanes 
within the roadway for the exclusive use of 
bicycles. Vehicle and pedestrian cross-flow 
are permitted. The striping is supported by 
pavement markings and signage. Class II 
bikeways can be enhanced by features such 
as green paint or painted buffers.

  Class III (bike routes) are located on 
roadways on which bicyclists share the 
roadway with motor vehicles. Bike routes 

Figure 3-6: Bikeway Types

LANE
BIKE

Class I - O�-Street Multi-Use Path Class II - On-Street Bicycle Lane Class III - On-Street Bicycle Route

Class I (Bike Path)

LANE
BIKE

Class I - O�-Street Multi-Use Path Class II - On-Street Bicycle Lane Class III - On-Street Bicycle Route

Class II (Bike Lane)

LANE
BIKE

Class I - O�-Street Multi-Use Path Class II - On-Street Bicycle Lane Class III - On-Street Bicycle Route

Class III (Bike Route)

LANE
BIKE

Class I - O�-Street Multi-Use Path Class II - On-Street Bicycle Lane Class III - On-Street Bicycle Route

LANE
BIKE

Class I - O�-Street Multi-Use Path Class II - On-Street Bicycle Lane Class III - On-Street Bicycle Route

LANE
BIKE

Class I - O�-Street Multi-Use Path Class II - On-Street Bicycle Lane Class III - On-Street Bicycle Route

LANE
BIKE

Class I - O�-Street Multi-Use Path Class II - On-Street Bicycle Lane Class III - On-Street Bicycle Route

Class IV (Cycle Track)

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 3-19Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

are designated by signage and/or shared 
roadway bicycle markings (sharrows). 

  Class IV bikeways (cycle tracks) are within 
or adjacent to a roadway and separated from 
traffic by a physical barrier such as bollards, 
on-street parking, or planters. This design 
allows an exclusive right-of-way for bicycle 
travel.

Existing Bicycle and Trail Facilities

Within the Brea Core Plan Area, bicycle facili-
ties are being developed and expanded to build 
upon existing facilities. The Tracks is the City’s 
newest dedicated pedestrian and bicycle path 
and considered the primary bikeway in the Plan 
Area. There is a Class I multi-use path east of 
Berry Street that connects to The Tracks and is 
the only bikeway with a direct linkage to the trail. 
Along Brea Boulevard there is a Class II bikeway 
between Lambert Road and Birch Street. On 
the eastern side of the Plan Area, there are frag-
mented segments of Class II bikeways along 
State College Boulevard and Birch Street. The 
two segments are adjacent to Brea Marketplace 
Shopping Center, north of Brea Mall. A Class 
II bikeway runs along Berry Street to Central 
Avenue. Figure 3-7 illustrates existing bikeways 
in the Brea Core Plan Area. 

Bicycle Parking

Bike parking is typically located around public 
transportation stations, large businesses, city 
centers, and other locally and regionally sig-
nificant attractions or destinations. Bicycle 
amenities include both short- and long-term 
bicycle parking facilities. Short-term facilities, 
intended for parking duration of less than two 
hours, include bike racks and corrals. Short-
term bike racks are readily available and are 

The Tracks at Brea - Bike Repair Station

Multi-use path at The Tracks Class II Bike Lane along Brea Boulevard

Class II Bike Lane along Berry Street

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan3-20 Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

Figure 3-7: Bicycle Network and Facilities

Legend

Brea Core Plan Area

Dedicated Ped and Bike Paths

Bike Lanes

Bike Routes

City of Brea

City of Fullerton

Existing Bikeways

0.25 Miles

57

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

BIRCH ST

B
E

R
R

Y 
S

T

CENTRAL AVE

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

LAMBERT RD

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

57

Brea

Fullerton

ASSO
CIA

TED R
D

ELM ST

A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
D RD

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 3-21Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

located at most activity centers within the Plan 
Area, including Brea Mall, the Brea Civic and 
Cultural Center, Brea Downtown, Brea Gateway 
Shopping Center, Brea Marketplace, and Lagos 
de Moreno Park. Schools are also another 
common location for bicycle parking. Both 
Laurel Elementary School and the Brea Junior 
High School contain bicycle racks that are fre-
quently utilized. Long-term facilities, including 
bike lockers, are more secure than bike racks and 
can shield bicycles from the elements. There are 
no bike lockers currently located in the Plan Area.

PEDESTRIAN NETWORK

This section details the existing pedestrian 
network within the Brea Core Plan Area and 
addresses opportunities for improvement. 

Existing Sidewalk Network

The pedestrian network is comprised of sidewalks 
and multi-use paths—enabling residents to walk 
to their destination along dedicated paths and 
reduces conflicts with other travel modes. In the 
Brea Core Plan Area, sidewalks exist along the 
majority of roadways, including all residential 
streets. However, there are missing segments, 
which are highlighted in Figure 3-8. Currently, 
the majority of missing sidewalk segments are 
located at the Lambert Road and Berry Street 
intersection in the northwest section of the Plan 
Area. At and near this intersection on Lambert 
Road, on both the northern and southern sides, 
there are a total of five segments of missing 
sidewalk; on Berry Street there is one segment 
missing just south of Lambert Road (however 
note that north of Lambert Road, Berry Street 
has an additional seven segments missing, 
though this is outside the Brea Core Plan Area). 
South along Berry Street on both sides of the 

road, there are two short segments of missing 
sidewalk—one segment is south of the Union 
Pacific Railroad Right-of-Way, the other segment 
is between the Union Pacific Railroad Right-of-
Way and Imperial Highway. Imperial Highway 
contains missing sidewalks along the southern 
side of the road—one segment is located at the 
Berry Street intersection; the second segment is 
located at the SR-57 intersection between State 
College Boulevard and Associated Road. Another 
segment with missing sidewalk infrastructure 
exists along the eastern side of State College 
Boulevard between Birch Street and Imperial 
Highway, located at the southeast area of the 
Plan Area. Outside of the arterial road network, 
local roadways containing industrial land uses, 
such as those in the Mercury Lane Office & In-
dustrial and Lambert Road Industrial areas, often 
contain roadways where there are only sidewalks 
on one side, and on occasion roads where there 
are no sidewalks at all. 

Walkability

Walkability is measured by the degree to which 
a pedestrian network encourages walking and 
is influenced by all aspects of the built environ-
ment. Pedestrian facilities and amenities include 
benches, store frontage, shade, wayfinding, and 
landscaping treatments. Pedestrian facilities are 
critical elements that improve connectivity and 
provide functionality. Enticing pedestrian envi-
ronments leverage infrastructure improvements 
to provide shade, places to rest, and barriers to 
vehicular traffic. High quality pedestrian facili-
ties consider in its design the surrounding built 
environment and encourage people to walk 
longer distances. 

Sidewalk adjacent to Brea Marketplace

High visibility crosswalk at Brea Boulevard and Birch 
Street intersection

Long-term bicycle locker solution

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan3-22 Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

Figure 3-8: Pedestrian Facilities

Existing

Sidewalk Gaps

0.25 Miles

57

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

BIRCH ST

B
E

R
R

Y 
S

T

CENTRAL AVE

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

LAMBERT RD

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

57

Brea

Fullerton

ELM ST

Legend

Brea Core Plan Area

City of Brea

City of Fullerton

A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
D RD

A
S

S
O

CIATED RD

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 3-23Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

Pedestrian Facilities

Pedestrian facilities include crosswalks, pedes-
trian crosswalk signals, lighting, street trees, 
and curb ramps. Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA) compliant sidewalks should be provided 
on major pedestrian pathways and routes. To 
improve the City’s pedestrian network, inter-
sections should comply with ADA requirements. 
Facility improvements that provide access to des-
tinations that attract pedestrian travel, such as 
schools, parks and stores should be prioritized. 

Connectivity

Connections to transit and key activity centers 
are dependent on the pedestrian network and 
impact a person’s decision to utilize public trans-
portation. Routes to school and public facilities 
(e.g., Laurel Elementary School, Lagos de Moreno 
Park) attract youth, therefore these routes are 
critical in the pedestrian network. Though there 
are sidewalks adjacent and leading up to main 
destinations and public facilities within the Brea 
Core Plan Area, further enhancements can 
increase perceived safety and usage of streets.

Pedestrian Crossings

Pedestrian crossings are vital elements of the 
sidewalk network. Pedestrian crossings could 
be enhanced by high-visibility markings or 
pavement treatments such as color stamps. 
Crossings could also be signalized with audible 
signals and pedestrian countdowns to allow 
for adequate crossing time for pedestrians. 
Within the Brea Core Plan Area, the Birch Street 
and Brea Boulevard intersection was hatched 
with markings to add to visibility, however the 
city may consider updating the crosswalks 
with textured crossings or artistic treatments 
to allow for increased pedestrian visibility. 

Other crosswalks at key intersections in the 
Plan Area are marked with traditional parallel 
lines, there is opportunity to add high-visibility 
ladder markings or textured/colored concrete 
features at select crosswalks. Priority for these 
improvements should be given to intersections 
directly adjacent to activity centers (e.g., parks, 
schools, civic destinations, shopping centers) or 
locations with high rates of pedestrian collisions. 

Network Gaps

There are noticeable gaps in lighting, sidewalks, 
and crossing infrastructure throughout the 
Brea Core Plan Area. The area has inconsis-
tent placement of sidewalks, curbs and pedes-
trian amenities, including street furniture, bus 
shelters, and shade-providing trees primarily 
around the key destinations adjacent to indus-
trial areas or major corridors such as the SR-57 
and Imperial Highway. Most sidewalks are not 
designed to support the high levels of pedestri-
an activity outside of Brea Downtown, especially 
those typically associated with corridors with 
heavy vehicular traffic (e.g., Imperial Highway). 
Additionally, many sidewalks do not provide 
pedestrian buffers, such as street trees and 
landscaping, which improve safety (including 
perceived safety).

BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN 
SAFETY

Safety, and the perception of safety, greatly 
impacts whether people choose to walk or 
bike. Therefore, the assessment of bicycle and 
pedestrian collision data can be indicative of 
where bicyclist and pedestrian safety may po-
tentially be compromised. The data was used 
to determine if collision patterns exist and the 
degree of injuries that occurred. Bicycle and 

pedestrian collision data from the California 
Statewide Integrated Traffic Records System 
(SWITRS) was used to develop the following as-
sessment, see Appendix J. 

Bicycle Collisions

From 2011 to 2015, there were a total of 79 
bicycle collisions in Brea—zero collisions were 
fatal, 2 collisions (3 percent) resulted in severe 
injuries, 45 collisions (57 percent) resulted in 
a visible injury, and 32 collisions (41 percent) 
resulted in injury that included complaint of 
pain. The majority of collisions occurred on 
weekdays between 6:00 A.M. and 8:00 P.M. The 
top three Primary Collision Factor (PFC) Viola-
tions occurred for the following reasons:

1.  38 percent of collisions occurred while the 
automobile had the right of way

2. 13.9 percent of collisions were a result of 
unsafe speeds

3. 12.7 percent of collisions were along the 
wrong side of the road

When assessing the bicycle collisions occurred 
throughout Brea, the majority of collisions 
occurred along arterial roadways and key 
corridors. Of the 79 bicycle collisions that 
occurred citywide, approximately 41 percent 
occurred within the Brea Core Plan Area. The 
site with the most collisions within the Plan Area 
is at the Birch Street and Brea Boulevard inter-
section; a total of 10 collisions occurred at this 
intersection. The site with the second highest 
level of collisions occurred at the Berry Street 
and Imperial Highway intersection; a total of 7 
collisions occurred at this intersection. 

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan3-24 Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

Table 3-3: OTS Bicycle, Pedestrian and Overall Collision Rankings (2012-2016)*

Mode of Travel 2016 2015 2014 2013 2016

Bicycle 56/94 45/93 46/89 49/92 47/92

Pedestrian 49/94 69/93 48/89 75/92 53/92

Composite ** 40/94 27/93 18/89 32/92 19/92

Notes: *Rankings are categorized from the highest rates of collisions to the lowest rates 
(e.g., ranking 1/94 suggests a community has the highest rate of collisions with 94/94 having the lowest rate of collisions)

**Composite refers to the combined rate of all collisions (e.g., vehicle-vehicle, single vehicle, pedestrian-vehicle, and bicycle-vehicle)

Collision rankings for Brea and other communities across California are available on the OTS website at http://www.ots.ca.gov/collision-rankings

Pedestrian Collisions

In the same time period, from 2011 to 2015, 
a total of 44 pedestrian collisions occurred 
in Brea—1 collision was fatal, 2 collisions (4 
percent) resulted in a severe injury, 19 collisions 
(43 percent) resulted in visible injuries, and 23 
collisions (52 percent) resulted in injury that 
included complaint of pain. The collision that 
resulted in a fatality occurred at the intersec-
tion of Poinsettia Avenue and Pear Street, a res-
idential area approximately one mile west of the 
Brea Core Plan Area. Collisions were reported 
on all 7 days of the week between 3:00 A.M. and 
midnight. The top three PFC Violations occurred 
for the following reasons:

1.  40.9 percent of collisions occurred when 
the pedestrian had the right of way

2.  27.3 percent were a result of a pedestrian 
violation

3.  6.8 percent were reported as a hazardous 
violation

The majority of the 44 pedestrian collisions in 
the City from 2011-2015 (57 percent) occurred 
within the Brea Core Plan Area. The site with 
the most pedestrian collisions occurred at the 
Brea Boulevard and Imperial Highway intersec-
tion; a total of 9 occurred at this site. The inter-
section with the second highest level of colli-
sions occurred at State College Boulevard and 
Imperial Highway; a total of 5 pedestrian colli-
sions occurred at this intersection. 

Collision Rates

While SWITRS does not provide the opportuni-
ty for communities to easily compare collision 
data with communities of similar population 
sizes across California,  the Office of Traffic 
Safety provides collision rankings on an annual 
basis, with 2016 being the most current year 
available.  Table 3-3 summarizes how the City of 
Brea ranks in comparison to other incorporat-
ed cities throughout the State of California with 
populations of 25,001 to 50,000 residents from 
2012-2016.  

According to OTS rankings, Brea ranks slightly 
safer than average for bicyclists when compared 
to other similar-sized communities statewide for 
4 out of 5 years, while being safer on average for 
all 5 years for pedestrians.  While these statis-
tics reflect the City’s commitment in providing 
safe infrastructure, additional transportation 
improvements will further reduce the amount of 
collisions that occur in Brea, encouraging con-
stituents to walk and bike in the Brea Core Plan 
Area.  Providing separated and protected facili-
ties will be especially helpful in keeping collisions 
between bicyclists and pedestrians low as more 
people decide walk and bike to destinations in 
Brea, as vehicle collisions in Brea are higher than 
the statewide average, as reflected in Table 3-3.

WAYFINDING SIGNAGE

Wayfinding signs have been installed along Birch 
Street, Brea Boulevard, State College Boulevard, 
Lambert Road, and at Brea Plaza to create a 
sense of “arrival” at key destinations in the City. 
The City’s Five-Year Implementation Plan (2010-

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 3-25Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

CalEnviroScreen uses environmental, health, 
and socioeconomic information to rank census 
tracts, with higher scores suggesting higher 
pollution burden and vulnerability.

As shown in Figure 3-9, according to CalEn-
viroScreen 3.0, the four census tracts that 
define the study area and are within the Brea 
Core project boundary score between 45 and 
65 (out of a score of 100), which are approxi-
mately at the midpoint of pollution burden and 
vulnerability when compared to other census 
tracts across California. Two census tracts in the 
study area score between 41 and 50, one census 
tract scores between 50 and 55, and the north-
ernmost census tract of the study area scores 
between 60 and 65. While census tracts within 
the Brea Core Plan Area do not rank among 
the state’s most disadvantaged per CalEnviro-
Screen 3.0, census tracts in the City of La Habra 
and  Fullerton do rank amongst the top 25% in 
the state.  Improving walking and biking con-
nections from destinations within Brea’s Core 
to surrounding communities such as La Habra 
and Fullerton will help advance statewide goals 
of reducing pollution and improving mobility for 
disadvantaged communities.

Pedestrian Kiosk - Brea Downtown

Sign at The Tracks entry/exit point

Wayfinding elements in Brea Downtown

2014) set the objective of expanding, improving, 
and creating a consistency among the City’s 
wayfinding signs. While wayfinding, particularly 
in Brea Downtown, is extensive, coordinated and 
updated, it is focused on guiding vehicles to des-
tinations and parking. While The Tracks also has 
a coordinated set of identification signs at its 
entrances and educational/ interpretive signs 
through the trail’s extent, there are no signs that 
identify how to get to The Tracks, other bikeways, 
or bicycle parking within the City or Plan Area. 
Developing a coordinated wayfinding program 
consisting of signs and web-based platforms 
focused on bicycle and pedestrian mobility will 
help build awareness of existing facilities and 
potentially support non-motorized travel to des-
tinations within Brea.

EQUITY
A key component of the Caltrans Active Trans-
portation Program is to expand mobility for 
disadvantaged communities, with funding for 
walking and biking projects and programs pri-
oritized for these communities. As the key 
measurement in determining disadvantaged 
communities statewide, CalEnviroScreen is a 
mapping tool and formula that helps identify 
California communities that are disproportion-
ately burdened by, and vulnerable to, multiple 
sources of pollution. As one of the most fre-
quently utilized measurements for determining 
prioritization of grant funding on transportation 
infrastructure projects throughout California, 
the tool produces results for each census tract 
in the State on a 100-point scale, with 100 points 
being the most disadvantaged. The tool was 
developed by the Office of Environmental Health 
Hazard Assessment (OEHHA) and the Califor-
nia Environmental Protection Agency (CalEPA). 

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan3-26 Existing Conditions - Walking and Biking in Brea Today

Figure 3-9: CalEnviroScreen Results for Brea Core Plan Area

CalEnviroScreen 3.0 Results (June 2018 Update)

Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO, USGS,

CalEnviroScreen 3.0 Results (June 2018 Update)

11 - 20%

21 - 30%

31 - 40%

41 - 50%

51 - 60%

61 - 70%

71 - 80%

81 - 90%

5/1/2019, 12:32:33 PM
0 0.5 10.25 mi

0 0.8 1.60.4 km

1:36,112

Web AppBuilder for ArcGIS
County of Los Angeles, Bureau of Land Management, Esri, HERE, Garmin, INCREMENT P, USGS, METI/NASA, EPA, USDA | OEHHA |

ATTACHMENT 2



CHAPTER 4
Goals and Policies - Responding 
to Guiding Initiatives

CHAPTER 4

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan4-2 Goals and Policies - Responding to Guiding Initiatives

This page intentionally left blank. 

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 4-3Goals and Policies - Responding to Guiding Initiatives

Developing a Policy 
Framework Based on 
Community Input
Goals, Policies and Actions that will guide bicycle, 
pedestrian and trail projects and programs in 
the Brea Core Plan Area were developed based 
on extensive community input gathered through 
a variety of methods, including: 

  Feedback received from local stakeholders, 
including businesses within the Brea Core 
Plan Area, through a series of in-person 
meetings.

  Comments received from community mem-
bers at multiple community events and work-
shops, where project-related information and 
activities were provided to build interest in 
the Plan and gain feedback. 

  Feedback received from community mem-
bers through the Brea Core Plan Area website 
and online surveys. 

  Communication with City staff throughout 
the development of the Brea Connecting the 
Core Active Transportation Plan. 

Guiding Initiatives
While the Goals, Policies and Actions presented 
in this chapter were developed based on commu-
nity input, they are organized based on the doc-
ument’s guiding initiatives of improving access, 
design and safety of pedestrian and bicycle fa-
cilities in the Brea Core Plan Area. Additionally, 
Policies and Actions outlined in this chapter are 
aligned with specific initiatives described in the 
Brea Envisions Strategic Community Plan.

GOALGOAL
POSITIVE OUTCOME OF 

IMPLEMENTING THE PLAN

POLICY

ACTION

POLICY
METHOD OR STRATEGY TO  

ACHIEVE A GOAL

ACTION
PRACTICAL STEP TO  

IMPLEMENT A POLICY

Outdoor sculpture along Brea Boulevard

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan4-4 Goals and Policies - Responding to Guiding Initiatives

Goal A. Provide access for people of all ages 
and abilities

Policy A-1. Develop a safe and comprehensive network of dedicated 
bicycle and pedestrian facilities.

Action A-1.a

Enhance Existing Sidewalks and Bikeways to increase comfort and safety for people walking and 
biking, focusing on dedicated and vehicle-separated facilities where possible. 

Action A-1.b

Complete the Walking and Biking Network in Brea’s Core and fill in existing pedestrian and bicycle 
gaps to build a continuous network of sidewalks and bikeways. 

Action A-1.c

Create a Comprehensive Walking and Biking Network through selecting a network of streets to 
prioritize walking and bicycling improvements. 

Action A-1.d

Designate Priority Walking and Biking Streets to create a street network that will connect to key 
destinations in the Brea Core Plan Area, citywide and surrounding region. 

Policies and Actions responding to Goal A will focus on creating an environment in the Brea Core Plan 
Area where all people can navigate comfortably, increasing access through the incorporation of:

New or enhanced bikeways. 
New or enhanced sidewalks 

or trails.

New or improved wayfinding 
signage to guide pedestrians and 

bicyclists to destinations.

Stencils demarcating bicycle and pedestrian paths

Two-way protected bikeway crossing at intersection

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 4-5Goals and Policies - Responding to Guiding Initiatives

Policies and Actions in A-1 link to the following Brea Envisions Strategic Plan Initiatives: 

  Develop pedestrian and bicycle friendly streets throughout the City. (Value – Alternative Trans-
portation Options, Initiative 1 – Develop different transportation options for moving around 
Brea and to promote alternative transportation options, Page 26)

  Develop walking and bicycle trails separate from the streets.  (Value – Alternative Transpor-
tation Options, Initiative 1 – Develop different transportation options for moving around Brea 
and to promote alternative transportation options, Page 26) 

Policy A-2. Provide additional bicycle and pedestrian connections to 
The Tracks at Brea.

Action A-2.a

Explore Using Existing Rights-of-Way through collaborating with local businesses and agencies to 
increase the number of access points that intersect with the Tracks at Brea.

Action A-2.b

Create New Trails to Connect to The Tracks at Brea through designating and constructing new 
roadways or pathways.

Policies and Actions in A-2 link to the following Brea Envisions Strategic Plan Initiatives:  

  Develop and expand a network of walking and biking trails. (Value – Healthy, Active and Sus-
tainable Community, Initiative 2 – Promote a walkable community, Page 14)

  Develop a network of additional trails that intersect with the Tracks at Brea to provide north-
south pedestrian and cycling trails. Design and develop a plan for additional, safe public 
pathways for pedestrians and cycling in zoning and development decisions. (Value – Balanced 
and Responsible Growth, Initiative 3 – Enhance and promote pedestrian-friendly development 
throughout our community and within the public spaces, Page 19)

  Design and develop a plan for additional, safe public pathways for pedestrians and cycling 
in zoning and development decisions. (Value – Balanced and Responsible Growth, Initiative 
3 – Enhance and promote pedestrian-friendly development throughout our community and 
within the public spaces, Page 19)

Enhanced pedestrian crossing at transit facility

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan4-6 Goals and Policies - Responding to Guiding Initiatives

Policy A-3. Expand The Tracks at Brea to connect to other parts of the 
City and surrounding areas to provide an alternative for local and 
regional travel.

Action A-3.a

Expand The Tracks at Brea to La Habra and Yorba Linda through coordinating with Union Pacific 
Railroad.

Action A-3.b

Explore North-South Trail Expansion Opportunities to install a dedicated bicycle and pedestrian 
pathway along Brea Creek to connect to the City of Fullerton and Los Angeles County.

Policies and Actions in A-3 link to the following Brea Envisions Strategic Plan Initiatives:

  Promote the Tracks at Brea as an alternative pathway through the community. (Value – 
Balanced and Responsible Growth, Initiative 3 – Enhance and promote pedestrian-friendly 
development throughout our community and within the public spaces, Page 19)

Policy A-4. Develop a coordinated system of wayfinding signs to 
direct bicyclists and pedestrians to destinations in Brea’s Core.

Action A-4.a

Expand Access to Walking and Biking Destinations Through Signage that is attractive, user-friend-
ly and human-scaled to direct bicyclists and pedestrians to The Tracks at Brea and other significant 
destinations in Brea’s Core.

Action A-4.b

Provide Useful Information on Wayfinding Signs including distance and time to promote walking 
and biking to destinations.

Policies and Actions in A-4 link to the following Brea Envisions Strategic Plan Initiatives:

  Promote neighborhood connections to encourage neighbors to know neighbors. (Value – 
Keep Brea Safe, Initiative 2 – Brea must be a community of safe neighborhoods, Page 24)

Pedestrian and bicyclist focused wayfinding and 
signage

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 4-7Goals and Policies - Responding to Guiding Initiatives

Policy A-5. Provide enhancements to transit service and seamless 
bicycle and pedestrian connections from transit to destinations.

Action A-5.a

Investigate Opportunities to Enhance Bikeways and Sidewalks through updating the City’s zoning 
code and amending the General Plan as relevant, identifying areas where bikeways and sidewalks 
can be expanded when properties turn over for new development.

Action A-5.b

Provide First-Last Mile Facilities for clear pathways of travel for pedestrians from transit stops to 
key destinations, closing any existing first and last mile gaps.

Action A-5.c

Provide Bicycle Parking and Rentals through requiring them at employment centers, commercial 
centers, recreational amenities and civic facilities.

Action A-5.d

Develop New Locally Oriented Transit by encouraging the development of a trolley or on-demand 
shuttle service that operates along consistent routes and times.

Action A-5.e

Maximize Effectiveness of Existing Transit Service including bus lines that serve the Brea Mall 
Transit Center and the Brea Senior Shuttle, through coordinating with OCTA, surrounding communi-
ties and local businesses.

Policies and Actions in A-5 link to the following Brea Envisions Strategic Plan Initiatives:

  Promote the use of alternate transportation options, such as transit and bicycling, in zoning 
and development decisions. (Value – Balanced and Responsible Growth, Initiative 2 – The 
community and City leaders will foster and develop measures to mitigate and/or enhance the 
current traffic capacity issues, Page 18)

  Continue to promote the use of the Brea Senior Shuttle service.  (Value – Alternative Transpor-
tation Options, Initiative 1 – Develop different transportation options for moving around Brea 
and to promote alternative transportation options, Page 26)

  Encourage the placement of bicycle racks and bicycle rentals at public facilities and business-
es. Explore the use of the trolley service on consistent routes at consistent times. (Value – 

Free transit available to shoppers at mall

Bikeshare infrastructure 

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan4-8 Goals and Policies - Responding to Guiding Initiatives

Alternative Transportation Options, Initiative 1 – Develop different transportation options for 
moving around Brea and to promote alternative transportation options, Page 26)

  Work with OCTA and surrounding communities to explore public transit options and enhance-
ments. (Value – Alternative Transportation Options, Initiative 2 – Develop different transpor-
tation options to move around within the larger region that also help alleviate the traffic due to 
Brea’s daytime population increase, Page 26)

Policy A-6. Pursue funding opportunities to construct new and 
enhanced transit service, sidewalks, bikeways and trails.

Action A-6.a

Investigate Grant Opportunities available through local, regional, state and federal agencies to con-
struct new – or enhance existing – pedestrian, bicycle or transit infrastructure.

Action A-6.b

Secure Dedicated Funding through committing a percentage of funding in the City’s yearly Capital 
Improvement Program or other relevant City funds to construct and maintain transit, pedestrian, 
bicycle and trail projects and programs.

Action A-6.c

Formulate Community Partnerships with local businesses or community organizations to assist in 
the funding or delivery of transportation projects and programs.

Action A-6.d

Support the Construction or Restriping of Bikeways, Sidewalks and Trails as part of regularly 
scheduled pavement resurfacing or reconstruction projects on roadways within Brea’s Core.

The Policies and Actions in A-6 link to the following Brea Envisions Strategic Plan Initiatives:

  Be proactive in soliciting transportation grants and other available funding. (Value – Balanced 
and Responsible Growth, Initiative 2 – The community and City leaders will foster and develop 
measures to mitigate and/or enhance the current traffic capacity issues, Page 18)

  Secure funding to link existing and future trails in and around Brea. (Value – Protect and 
Enhance Parkland and Natural Lands, Initiative 1 – Prioritize funding and planning opportuni-
ties to secure more open space and future development of linked trails, Page 23)

Enhance existing sidewalks and bikeway facilities

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 4-9Goals and Policies - Responding to Guiding Initiatives

Goal B. Focus on safety enhancements to the  
transportation network.

  Explore alternative transportation methods available through grants or other funding methods. 
(Value – Alternative Transportation Options, Initiative 1 – Develop different transportation 
options for moving around Brea and to promote alternative transportation options, Page 26)

Policies and Actions responding to Goal B will create an environment in the Brea Core Plan Area that 
feels safe and welcoming for people of all ages and abilities, improving safety through incorporation of:

More crosswalks and bicycle  
facilities to enable the safe 
crossing and movement of  
pedestrians and bicyclists. 

Slower vehicles and traffic en-
forcement through the installa-
tion of traffic calming features.

Roadways and pathways that are 
well lit and visible to maximize 
personal and physical safety. 

Policy B-1. Improve bicycle and pedestrian safety and convenience at 
key intersections and segments.  

Action B-1.a

Consider Crossing Enhancements at signalized intersections on all bicycle and pedestrian priority 
streets through installing high visibility crossings and curb extensions when feasible. 

Action B-1.b

Consider installing Signalized Mid-Block Crossings or rapid rectangular flashing beacons (RRFBs) 
on bicycle and pedestrian priority streets when signalized intersections are greater than a quarter 
mile apart. 

Mid-block crossing

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan4-10 Goals and Policies - Responding to Guiding Initiatives

Action B-1.c

Prioritize Crosswalk Improvements directly adjacent to schools, parks, retail centers, civic facilities 
and employment hubs. 

Action B-1.d

Consider Dedicated Pedestrian Signal Phasing to provide safe crossings reserved for pedestrians 
at high volume intersections, including the Brea Boulevard/Birch Street intersection and the Brea 
Boulevard/Lambert Road intersection during times of peak pedestrian travel.

Action B-1.e

The City should continue to install camera detection systems at its traffic signals that automat-
ically detect all road users, including pedestrians and bicycles.

Policies and Actions in B-1 link to the following Brea Envisions Strategic Plan Initiatives:

  Develop and promote safe sidewalks and bike lanes. (Value – Healthy, Active and Sustainable 
Community, Initiative 2 – Promote a walkable community, Page 14) 

  Continued development and approval of traffic patterns and capacity enhancements, such as 
signal synchronization and alternative peak business hours, while preserving a robust business 
environment. (Value – Balanced and Responsible Growth, Initiative 2 – The community and 
City leaders will foster and develop measures to mitigate and/or enhance the current traffic 
capacity issues, Page 18).

Policy B-2. Reduce speeding of vehicles through enhancements to 
roadway design and increased enforcement. 

Action B-2.a

Install Traffic Calming on designated school walking routes and drop-off zones.

Action B-2.b 

Focus Enforcement at high collision locations and locations where bicycle and pedestrian volumes 
are high.

Action B-2.c

Develop A Network of Neighborhood Greenways with traffic calming features on local streets (e.g., 
lane narrowing, medians, speed humps, and adding intersection controls such as stop signs) that 

Bicycle traffic signal

Enhanced crosswalk with in-road flashing beacons in 
school zone

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 4-11Goals and Policies - Responding to Guiding Initiatives

provide direct access to regionally significant parks and open space, such as Craig Regional Park and 
trails such as The Tracks at Brea.

Policies and Actions in B-2 link to the following Brea Envisions Strategic Plan Initiatives: 

  Increase opportunities for outdoor activities, such as hiking trails connected to the Tracks, and 
better use local resources, such as regional parks and Chino Hills State Park (Value – Enhance 
and Promote Recreational Amenities, Initiative 1 – Further develop public spaces such as 
parks, trails and facilities for recreational experiences and programs. They are an integral part 
of community life and must remain accessible to all residents, Page 22) 

Policy B-3. Provide lighting along on-street bikeways and sidewalks to 
improve visibility and safety for bicyclists and pedestrians.

Action B-3.a

Install Lighting Along Bikeways that are located directly on roadways.

Action B-3.b

Install Lighting in Roadway Underpasses to improve sight lines and visibility of pedestrians and 
bicyclists.

Action B-3.c

Consider Installation of Pedestrian Scaled Lighting on roadways with high volumes of pedestrians 
or bicyclists.

Policies and Actions in B-3 link to the following Brea Envisions Strategic Plan Initiatives: 

  Facilitate neighborhood enhancements, such as lighting, that make for a safer environment. 
(Value – Keep Brea Safe, Initiative 2 –  Brea must be a community of safe neighborhoods, Page 
24)

Policy B-4. Develop programs that encourage safe methods of travel.

Action B-4.a

Support the Development of Safety Education Classes or Programs to be provided by the City, 
local businesses or schools in order to improve safety for all road users.

Pedestrian scaled lighting

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan4-12 Goals and Policies - Responding to Guiding Initiatives

Action B-4.b

Develop a Road Safety Campaign with local agencies and community organizations to educate all 
road users on a regular basis through public outreach efforts, mailings, and internet postings.

Action B-4.c

Develop a Citywide Map and Safety Booklet that includes bus stops, local and regional bikeways, 
pathways, paved trails and unpaved hiking trails, with tips on walking and bicycling safely.

Action B-4.d

Conduct Bicycle and Pedestrian Counts concurrent with the collection of vehicle counts, either 
through developers submitting applications for incoming projects or directly through data collected 
by the City.

Action B-4.e

Conduct an Analysis of Collisions involving pedestrians, bicyclists and motorists in the Brea Core 
Plan Area at least every other year to document improvements made through installation of projects 
and to also respond to ongoing safety issues. 

Policies and Actions in B-4 link to the following Brea Envisions Strategic Plan Initiatives:

  Promote information about healthy eating and exercise.  (Value – Healthy, Active and Sustain-
able Community, Initiative 1 – Promote a healthy and active lifestyle, Page 14) 

Eco-totem bike and pedestrian counter

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 4-13Goals and Policies - Responding to Guiding Initiatives

Policies and Actions responding to Goal C will develop places and streets in the Brea Core Plan Area 
that are comfortable and pleasant through instituting creative design solutions that will include:

Landscaping and shade through 
proper placement of street trees, 

shrubs and hardscape. 

Clean and comfortable streets 
through frequent maintenance of 

sidewalks, bikeways and trails.

Pleasant and enjoyable environ-
ments that provide wayfinding to 
destinations, create environments 
that support the hosting of public 

events, and incorporate public 
art, street furniture and lighting. 

Policy C-1. Develop a comprehensive wayfinding program that is 
uniquely branded yet complimentary to existing sign programs in 
Brea’s Core.

Action C-1.a

Develop a Comprehensive Wayfinding Program consisting of identification and directional signs 
to direct pedestrians and bicyclists to key shopping, recreational, civic and educational destina-
tions, as well as to public art and other points of interest in Brea’s Core.

Action C-1.b

Create a Network of Interpretive Signs that complement identification and directional signs, as 
these signs will educate pedestrians and bicyclists of their surrounding environment and provide a 
pleasant and enriching experience while walking or biking.

Action C-1.c

Develop a Web-Based Interface for Wayfinding that complements information presented through 
the on-site wayfinding sign program.

Goal C. Institute creative design solutions for 
places and streets

Branded wayfinding in Brea Downtown

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan4-14 Goals and Policies - Responding to Guiding Initiatives

Policies and Actions in C-1 link to the following Brea Envisions Strategic Plan Initiatives:

  Promote existing public spaces and create new public spaces in which the community can 
walk and bike. (Value – Healthy, Active and Sustainable Community, Initiative 2 – Promote a 
walkable community, Page 14)

Policy C-2.  Support sustainable and attractive landscaping on 
roadways and public spaces throughout Brea’s Core.

Action C-2.a

Develop a Community-Wide Landscape Plan that will increase tree planting and stormwater treat-
ment, maintain existing street trees, and provide shade.

Action C-2.b

Support Sustainable Landscaping Treatments including drought-tolerant and low-water-use trees, 
shrubs and ground cover.

Action C-2.c

Provide Improved Amenities at Transit Stops throughout the Brea Core Plan Area, such as bus 
shelters, seating, shade-providing trees, and trash receptacles, in coordination with Orange County 
Transportation Authority (OCTA).

Policies and Actions in C-2 link to the following Brea Envisions Strategic Plan Initiatives:

  Provide incentives for drought-tolerant and low-water landscaping. (Value – Energy and Sus-
tainability, Initiative 1 – Promote the smart and sustainable use of water resources, Page 16)

Policy C-3. Conduct routine maintenance on all public rights-of-way 
and spaces to ensure pleasant and seamless travel.

Action C-3.a

Create a Dedicated Source of Funding to the Maintain Transportation Network either through an 
allocation in the Capital Improvement Program or creation of a Business Improvement District, to 
regularly maintain bikeways, sidewalks, trails, wayfinding signs, public art and public spaces in the 
Brea Core Plan Area.

Landscaping improvements

Planters, seating, and landscaping in plaza

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 4-15Goals and Policies - Responding to Guiding Initiatives

Policies and Actions in C-3 link to the following Brea Envisions Strategic Plan Initiatives:

  Properly maintain streets, parks, and other public facilities. (Value – Keep Brea Safe, Initiative 
2 – Brea must be a community of safe neighborhoods, Page 24)

  Proactively maintain streets and right-of-ways. (Value – Efficient Management of the Existing 
Road System, Initiative 1 – Maximize traffic flow and proactively maintain roads, Page 25)

Policy C-4. Utilize roadway design and engineering best practices to 
ensure safe and effective pedestrian and bicycle infrastructure.

Action C-4.a

Incorporate Designs from Manuals Recognized Statewide and Nationally including Caltrans’ 
California MUTCD, the NACTO Urban Bikeway and Urban Street Design Guides and the FHWA Sep-
arated Bike Lane Planning and Design Guide.

Action C-4.b

Coordinate with Caltrans on Design Guidance on potential improvements to Imperial Highway and 
roadways adjacent to the 57 Freeway, utilizing principles from the Main Street California Guide and 
the CA Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (CA MUTCD). Utilizing the CA MUTCD will ensure 
improvements follow standards and specifications along state-owned routes; the manual provides 
cities flexibility to implement best practices with limited liability pressures or concerns. 

Policies and Actions in C-4 link to the following Brea Envisions Strategic Plan Initiatives:

  Facilitate methods to reduce traffic through the reduction of vehicles. Ultimately, the purpose 
of the transportation system is to move as many people or goods as efficiently as possible. 
(Value – Efficient Management of the Existing Road System, Initiative 1 – Maximize traffic flow 
and proactively maintain roads, Page 25) 

Policy C-5. Promote walking and biking through supportive events, 
incentives and amenities.

Action C-5.a

Develop Regularly Scheduled Safe Routes to School Programs and Events through working with 
local schools, including Laurel Elementary School and Brea Junior High School, such as a “walk-to-
school day” or “walking/bicycling safety week”, and consider joining the California Regional Network 
of the Safe Routes Partnership.

NACTO Design Guides

Open Streets event in the City of Santa Ana

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan4-16 Goals and Policies - Responding to Guiding Initiatives

Action C-5.b

Host Walking- and Biking-Supportive Community Events with regional agencies, adjacent jurisdic-
tions, local business groups and community organizations.  Events may include open streets events, 
community festivals, sponsored walks and bike rides, and bike-to-work days.

Action C-5.c

Develop Encouragement Programs for Brea City Staff through providing resources, incentives and 
amenities to encourage City of Brea staff to commute by walking or bicycling.

Action C-5.d

Create Employer-Based Programs through working with local employers to provide amenities and 
incentives.  These can include secure bicycle parking, shower facilities, monetary incentives for 
walking/bicycling, as well as ridesharing programs and the construction of park and ride lots, so that 
people will be encouraged to walk and bike to work, including walking/bicycling trips that are “first-
last mile” connections to transit.

Action C-5.e

Support the Inclusion of Street Furniture and Public Art as part of developing bikeways, pathways 
and trail networks.

Action C-5.f

Consider installing public bicycle parking that is high-quality, iconic, and decorative to enhance 
connections between “endpoints” and maintain the City’s aesthetic character.

Policies and Actions in C-5 link to the following Brea Envisions Strategic Plan Initiatives:

  Encourage the further creation and use of Park and Ride lots. (Value – Alternative Transpor-
tation Options, Initiative 2 – Develop different transportation options to move around within 
the larger region that also help alleviate the traffic due to Brea’s daytime population increase, 
Page 26)

  Explore funding opportunities for ride sharing for local business employees. (Value – Alter-
native Transportation Options, Initiative 2 – Develop different transportation options to move 
around within the larger region that also help alleviate the traffic due to Brea’s daytime popu-
lation increase, Page 26)

Colorful street furniture and public art

Decorative bicycle parking

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 4-17Goals and Policies - Responding to Guiding Initiatives

Policy C-6. Require incoming developments to provide attractive 
public spaces and streets that incorporate facilities for all users.

Action C-6.a

Add Sustainable Transportation Infrastructure through developer agreements or mitigations, in-
cluding secure bicycle parking, reserved parking for zero emission vehicles, and installation of electric 
vehicle charging stations.

Action C-6.b

Require Streetscape Improvements for new developments to foster pedestrian-friendly environ-
ments, including wide sidewalks, pedestrian-scaled lighting, street furniture and landscaping.  This 
includes consistent siting of benches, trash cans, public art, shade trees, and the planting of low 
shrubs or ground cover to maintain sight lines and visibility. 

Action C-6.c

Require Sidewalks On Both Sides of the Street for every new development where sidewalks are not 
currently present.

Action C-6.d

Widen Sidewalks, Bikeways or Trails when new developments are adjacent to a proposed bikeway 
or trail, the developer should provide right-of-way and potentially funding to construct facilities as 
part of a condition of approval on the project.

Policies and Actions in C-6 link to the following Brea Envisions Strategic Plan Initiatives:

  Establish development standards that make all new developments pedestrian friendly and 
walkable. (Value – Healthy, Active and Sustainable Community, Initiative 2 – Promote a 
walkable community, Page 14)

  Provide incentives to encourage the use of zero emission vehicles.  (Value – Energy and Sus-
tainability, Initiative 2 – Promote the smart and sustainable use of energy, Page 16)

  Provide incentives to encourage the placement and use of electric vehicle charging stations. 
(Value – Energy and Sustainability, Initiative 2 – Promote the smart and sustainable use of 
energy, Page 16) 

  New development must adequately mitigate traffic increases due to that development. New 
development, whether residential or commercial, should not make existing traffic worse (Value 
– Efficient Management of the Existing Road System, Initiative 1 – Maximize traffic flow and 
proactively maintain roads, Page 25) Streetscape improvements

City branded bicycle parking solution

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan4-18 Goals and Policies - Responding to Guiding Initiatives

This page intentionally left blank. 

ATTACHMENT 2



CHAPTER 5
Network Recommendations – 
Outlining Projects and Programs

CHAPTER 5

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan5-2 Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

This page intentionally left blank. 

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 5-3Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

Incorporating 
Community Input  
into Project  
Recommendations
Based on community feedback received and 
background data collected on existing walking and 
biking conditions, this chapter presents a menu of 
improvement options to implement Plan initiatives 
of improving access, safety and design to develop 
a safe and complete pedestrian and bicycling 
network in the Brea Core Plan Area. Figure 5-1 
on page 5-5 represents the complete network of 
improvements from community input received. 
This chapter also presents the following topics:

  Grouping the most frequently requested 
comments from the community into a 
toolbox of improvements. The toolbox is 
organized by items that can be implement-
ed near-term and then groups items that 
will require more substantial coordination 
through medium- and long-term actions. 

  A set of implementation steps that will help 
guide improvement options from recommen-
dations to built projects.  

  A summary of potential opportunities to 
fund improvement options and a description 
of how costs are calculated, with references 
to detailed cost tables for each improvement 
option provided in the document’s Appendix.

  Detailed descriptions of improvement 
options, as vetted by the community through 
the Plan’s engagement process, in each major 
corridor within the Brea Core Plan Area. 

  General considerations for pedestrian and 
bicycle improvements that can be applied to 
the Brea Core Plan Area.

Kick-Off Workshop Input

Pop-Up Activity in Brea Downtown

Comment Cards for Open-Ended Comments

Charrette Design Workshop Group Exercise

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan5-4 Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

This page intentionally left blank. 

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 5-5Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

Figure 5-1: Overall Network 

Legend

Brea Core Plan Area

Dedicated Ped and Bike Paths

Bike Lanes

Bike Routes

City of Brea

City of Fullerton

Existing Bikeways

0.25 Miles

Bike Improvements

Pedestrian Improvements

Proposed Improvements

57

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

BIRCH ST

B
E

R
R

Y 
S

T

CENTRAL AVE

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

LAMBERT RD

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

57

Brea

Fullerton

ASSO
CIA

TED R
D

ELM ST

A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
D RD

90

R
A

N
D

O
LP

H
 A

V
E

P
O

P
LA

R
 A

V
E

S
YC

A
M

O
R

E
 A

V
E

FL
O

W
ER

 A
VE

THE TRACKS

O
A

K
 P

L

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan5-6 Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

TOOLBOX OF IMPROVEMENTS

Street Furniture:  Street furniture enhances the pedestrian environment and makes the roadway more inviting by providing 
a pedestrian amenity along paths of travel. Furniture can reflect the character of the neighborhood and make it a more 
walkable place. 

Near Term Improvements

Lighting: Improved illumination along corridors increases safety at night for active transportation users and alerts motorists 
to the presence of pedestrians and bicyclists. Lighting is especially helpful at crossings and transit stops.

Traffic Enforcement:  Traffic enforcement helps ensure that all modes of transportation are adhering to safe mobility 
behaviors, especially at newly-implemented crossings or intersections. 

Medium-Long Term Improvements

Enhanced Crosswalks: Visible and accessible crosswalks designate pedestrian pathways and improve safety for pedestri-
ans by increasing visibility for all modes of travel and slowing traffic.

Branded Signage: Signage can provide wayfinding as well as designate travel paths for active transportation users. Using 
signage with the City of Brea logo and branding that reflects the neighborhood’s character can provide a strong sense of 
place and add to level of comfort that a pedestrian or bicyclist may feel when traveling through the community.  

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 5-7Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

TOOLBOX OF IMPROVEMENTS

Medium-Long Term Improvements

Landscaping: Landscaping can improve the pedestrian environment by providing shade and a buffer from vehicle travel 
lanes. Adding green infrastructure along a roadway can make the corridor more inviting to pedestrians and bicyclists, en-
couraging the use of active transportation modes.

Enhanced Sidewalks: Sidewalks provide pedestrian access and connectivity along roadways and to public spaces. Widening 
sidewalks enhances the pedestrian environment and makes the corridor more inviting to pedestrians by slowing traffic and 
providing safety and distance from vehicle travel lanes.

Bike Lane Improvements: Bike lane buffers provide separation between bicyclists and vehicles. Each bicycle facility im-
provement recommendation is suggested based on factors such as the existing bicycle facilities, roadway width, traffic 
volumes, and any right of way constraints. 

Separated Bicycle Facility: Bicycle facilities such as a cycle track or grand boulevard provide a separated facility for bicy-
clists, providing distance from vehicle traffic with physical buffers such as bollards or landscaping. The presence of separated 
bicycle facilities can slow traffic by alerting motorists of the presence of bicyclists.

Traffic Circle: Traffic circles help to calm traffic by controlling vehicle speeds at intersections. Providing a series of neigh-
borhood traffic circles at intersections along a common pedestrian or bicycle pathway can create a neighborhood greenway 
that improves access to neighborhood amenities or destinations such as parks or other recreational centers. A central island 
with landscaping and continental crosswalks provides increased visibility of the traffic circle and enhances the intersection 
for active transportation users.

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan5-8 Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

Implementation Steps
Perform any necessary further study. When 
implementing infrastructure projects, it is 
critical to evaluate all options to determine the 
feasibility of implementation. 

  It will be important to consider vehicle speeds 
and volumes to determine if supplemental 
traffic calming measures or amenities should 
be implemented. For example, State College 
Boulevard may need additional study due to 
its curvilinear nature south of Birch Street.

  Care should also be given when implement-
ing infrastructure projects on streets that 
also serve as primary emergency vehicle 
routes. Although bikeways and emergency 
vehicle routes can be compatible, roadway 
treatments that manage speed and volume 
should be evaluated to ensure they do not 
impede emergency vehicle access. The City 
may need to develop a plan to accommodate 
emergency vehicles, such as for the road diet 
on Birch Street. Police and fire staff should 
be actively consulted throughout the project 
design effort.

  Additionally, bikeways should be kept in good 
condition, with smooth riding surfaces in 
order to enhance safety. Candidate streets 
for bikeways or pedestrian improvements 
should have good pavement conditions or be 
repaved as part of project implementation. 

Coordinate with any external agencies as 
needed. Some options will require coordina-
tion due to right-of-way. Specifically, Imperial 
Highway will require coordination with Caltrans, 
while modifications to Brea Boulevard and 
Lambert Road may require coordination with 
OCTA under the Master Plan of Arterial Highways 

(MPAH). The City may consider acquisition of 
land or designating space for easements as 
land develops. Extension of the Tracks at Brea 
will require coordination with the City of La 
Habra to ensure coordinated construction of the 
extension between the two jurisdictions. 

Produce engineering designs. These drawings 
should build upon the initial general concepts 
developed for this report. This can include site 
plans of infrastructure and landscaping, as well 
as roadway striping plans. 

Environmental review. Determine if the infra-
structure project requires environmental review 
and follow the process to conduct the review. 
Most projects involving work within the public 
street right-of-way may be able to be cleared 
using a Categorical Exemption.

Perform community engagement. Effective 
community engagement is crucial when develop-
ing policies and projects that impact a communi-
ty’s built form. Effective community engagement 
often results in policies and projects that are 
more successful in responding to local conditions 
and are less likely to experience significant oppo-
sition. The following steps can be taken for any 
projects that require community outreach:

  Develop an outreach plan

  Develop a plan for active transportation 
education

  Develop a list of stakeholders

  Communicate the project using workshops, 
design charrettes, demonstrations, etc.

  Provide advance notifications of public 
meetings, active workshops, design char-
rettes, etc.

  Develop an online survey to solicit community 

feedback as an alternative to in-person 
meeting attendance.

Submit design drawings for approval. These 
drawings should be approved by the Planning 
Department, Department of Public Works, or 
any other appropriate City department.  

Pursue project funding. Many of the improve-
ments identified in this report will need to rely on 
outside grant funding sources for implementa-
tion.  Select improvements may be able to be co-
ordinated with future city roadway maintenance 
or other projects, which could help to reduce the 
amount of outside funding necessary for imple-
mentation.

Coordinate construction needs. Coordinate 
with Public Works and Maintenance to determine 
the availability of construction materials and co-
ordinate construction once approved. 

FUNDING AND COSTS

Estimated costs are provided for each corridor, 
however note that cost estimates are based on 
typical cross-sections and represent general 
civil roadway, signing, striping, landscaping, 
and minor traffic signal improvements. The 
cost estimates do not account for corridor-spe-
cific costs associated with utility relocation, 
significant traffic signal improvements, or 
obtaining permits and easements. Site furnish-
ings and amenities are accounted for through 
a 3% increase of the project cost. A detailed 
breakdown of costs is provided in Appendix K.

Potential funding streams include local, regional, 
and state programs. The recommended funding 
sources for each of the corridor improvement 
options are tailored to the type of project(s) 
identified for the corridor, as follows:

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 5-9Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

  Projects selected for funding through the Urban 
Greening Grant Program administered by 
California Natural Resources Agency are 
bikeways and pedestrian projects that incorpo-
rate best practices in low water use landscap-
ing design, stormwater treatments, and expand 
access of safe bikeways/pedestrian pathways 
to disadvantaged communities.

Improvement Options 
by Corridor
In the following section, detailed improvement 
options are provided for each of the ten corridors 
in the Brea Core Plan Area. Each option provides 
a description of the corridor, considerations and 
opportunities, and recommendations on moving 
forward with improvement options. Some improve-
ment options are mutually exclusive and some can 
be achieved through phasing and building upon 
one another. Conceptual visualizations illustrating 
each improvement option are also provided, with 
the assumption that engineered diagrams will 
be required for each corridor prior to implemen-
tation. Cost estimates are also provided for each 
improvement option, with a detailed breakdown of 
costs provided in Appendix J.

  Projects selected for funding through the 
City’s existing CIP program are lower cost 
projects that are relatively easy to implement 
(e.g., striping improvements) 

  Projects selected for funding through developer 
fees are located in areas where properties are 
likely to turn over quickly, providing a substantial 
portion of funding (or all funds) for bicycle and 
pedestrian improvements.

  Projects selected for funding through OCTA’s 
BCIP program provide connections in local 
communities and provide flexibility in the 
types of bikeways funded.  There is not a dis-
advantaged community requirement associ-
ated with this source.

  Projects selected for funding through 
Caltrans’ HSIP program are roadways that 
are designated state highways that focus on 
safety improvements and the reduction of 
crash rates. Imperial Highway was selected for 
this funding source since it is a designated state 
highway. There is no disadvantaged community 
requirement for this funding source.

  Projects selected for funding through 
Caltrans’ ATP program are roadways or 
intersections that are regionally significant 
(e.g. Brea Boulevard/Birch Street, State 
College Boulevard, The Tracks at Brea), 
proposing separated and dedicated bikeway 
or pedestrian infrastructure that improve 
access, design and safety from the City of 
Brea to disadvantaged communities adjacent 
to the City.  

  Projects selected for funding through Califor-
nia State Parks Recreational Trails Program 
are projects that establish recreational trails 
or connect two previously disconnected 
sections of existing trails.

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan5-10 Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

Birch Street
Description

Birch Street runs west to east through the Plan 
Area with Average Daily Traffic (ADT) of 20,000 
or less. The street consists of 4 lanes with a 
median or a two-way left turn lane. The Brea Mall 
is accessible on Birch Street east of Randolph 
Avenue. 

Additional Considerations and Opportunities 
for Birch Street

The results of public outreach efforts indicate 
there is a need to improve multimodal connec-
tivity through Birch Street for better access to 
commercial assets along the corridor, partic-
ularly to Brea Downtown. The improvements 
presented for Birch Street would offer pedestri-
ans and bicyclists enhanced access to the heart 
of the City.

OPTION 1A: ROAD DIET 
WITH CYCLE TRACK – BREA 
BOULEVARD TO RANDOLPH 
AVENUE

  Pros: 

 � Buses can run and load/disembark 
passengers more efficiently

 � Provides a protected bicycle facility 

 � The cycle track provides a buffer 
between cars and pedestrians 

 � Less opportunities for vehicular 
speeding

  Trade-offs:

 � Some loss of parking

 � Loss of one vehicular travel lane in 
each direction

 � Potential for minor vehicle delay

 � Requires careful study to ensure 
safe accommodation of emergency 
vehicles.

  Total Cost Estimate: $989,300

6’ 6’9.5’10’ 10’ 10’7.5’
2’

62’

Legend

Brea Core Plan Area

Dedicated Ped and Bike Paths

Bike Lanes

Bike Routes

City of Brea

City of Fullerton

Existing Bikeways

0.25 Miles

Bike Improvements

Pedestrian Improvements

Proposed Improvements

57

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

BIRCH ST

B
E

R
R

Y 
S

T

CENTRAL AVE

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

LAMBERT RD

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

57

Brea

Fullerton

ASSO
CIA

TED R
D

ELM ST

A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
D RD

90

R
A

N
D

O
LP

H
 A

V
E

P
O

P
LA

R
 A

V
E

S
YC

A
M

O
R

E
 A

V
E

FL
O

W
ER

 A
VE

THE TRACKS

O
A

K
 P

L

Recommendation

Consider implementing a road diet with a cycle 
track or shared use path west of Randolph 
Avenue. The Federal Highway Administration 
supports road diets from 4 lanes to 3 lanes (one 
travel lane in each direction, one center turn 
lane) for roadways under 20,000 ADT. Three 
mutually exclusive improvement options are 
presented for this corridor.

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 5-11Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

7’ 15’10’ 10’10’ 10’

62’

OPTION 1B: ROAD DIET WITH 
CYCLE TRACK & SIDEWALKS 
– BREA BOULEVARD TO 
RANDOLPH AVENUE

  Pros:

 � Wider sidewalks

 � Provides a protected bicycle facility

 � The cycle track provides a buffer 
between cars and pedestrians

 � Less opportunities for vehicular 
speeding

  Trade-offs:

 � Loss of parking

 � Loss of one vehicular travel lane in 
each direction

 � Requires careful study to ensure 
safe accommodation of emergency 
vehicles.

 � Potential for minor vehicle delay

  Total Cost Estimate: $2,180,758

62’

OPTION 1C: SOUTH SIDE 
SHARED USE PATH – BREA 
BOULEVARD TO RANDOLPH 
AVENUE

  Pros:

 � No loss of vehicular travel lanes

 � Narrow lanes have the potential to 
calm traffic

 � Provides a separate multi-use facility 
for both bicycles and pedestrians

  Trade-offs:

 � Bicyclists and pedestrians will share 
pathway of travel

 � Intersections need to be reconfigured 
to incorporate a shared use path

  Total Cost Estimate: $3,720,876

FUNDING: 

  OCTA Bicycle Corridor Improvement Program

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan5-12 Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

Brea Boulevard
Description

Brea Boulevard runs north to south through the 
Plan Area as a 4-lane road north of the Tracks 
at Brea, and a 6-lane road south of the Tracks. 
The corridor has an ADT of 25,000 – 27,000 and 
is classified as a primary arterial in the Orange 
County Transportation Authority Master Plan of 
Arterial Highways (OCTA MPAH). This corridor 
links to Brea Junior High School in the northern 
part of the Plan Area at Lambert Road. 

Additional Considerations and Opportunities 
for Brea Boulevard

Based on site visit observations, the majority 
of bicyclists in Brea ride on the sidewalk even 
in areas with bicycle lanes, particularly on Brea 
Boulevard. If possible, the City should consider 
opportunities to reduce vehicle lane widths 
along the corridors to either install painted 
buffers or permanent barriers between vehicle 
traffic and existing bicycle lanes. 

Recommendation

Consider implementing a buffered bike lane or 
cycle track along this corridor, along with inter-
section improvements at the intersection of Brea 
Boulevard and Birch Street, such as modifying 
signal timings. Three improvement options are 
presented for this corridor. 

OPTION 2A: BUFFERED BIKE 
LANE – IMPERIAL HIGHWAY TO 
LAMBERT ROAD

  Pros: 

 � Improves comfort and safety for 
existing bike lanes

 � Maintains center turn lane and/or 
median

  Trade-offs:

 � No parking spaces

  Total Cost Estimate: $1,526,108

6.3’ 3.6’11’10’ 10’ 10’ 10’

68’-70’

Legend

Brea Core Plan Area

Dedicated Ped and Bike Paths

Bike Lanes

Bike Routes

City of Brea

City of Fullerton

Existing Bikeways

0.25 Miles

Bike Improvements

Pedestrian Improvements

Proposed Improvements

57

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

BIRCH ST

B
E

R
R

Y 
S

T

CENTRAL AVE

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

LAMBERT RD

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

57

Brea

Fullerton

ASSO
CIA

TED R
D

ELM ST

A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
D RD

90

R
A

N
D

O
LP

H
 A

V
E

P
O

P
LA

R
 A

V
E

S
YC

A
M

O
R

E
 A

V
E

FL
O

W
ER

 A
VE

THE TRACKS

O
A

K
 P

L

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 5-13Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

OPTION 2B: CYCLE TRACK 
– IMPERIAL HIGHWAY TO 
LAMBERT ROAD

  Pros:

 � Buses can run and load/disembark 
passengers more efficiently

 � Provides a protected bicycle facility

 � The cycle track provides a buffer 
between cars and pedestrians

  Trade-offs:

 � Removal of the landscaped median

  Total Cost Estimate: $1,651,265

OPTION 2C: BREA/BIRCH 
INTERSECTION CONCEPT – 
BREA BOULEVARD AT BIRCH 
STREET

  Pros:

 � Improved safety for all travel modes

 � Provides opportunities to connect 
activity centers on either side of Brea 
Boulevard

 � Reduces jaywalking

  Trade-offs:

 � Potential for vehicular delays

 � May reduce vehicular capacity

  Total Cost Estimate: $506,017

7’7’ 11’11’ 10’10’10’ 8’8’ 6’6’ 3’3’

100’

5’ 5’11’7.5’ 10’ 10’ 9.5’

68’-70’

FUNDING: 

  OCTA Bicycle Corridor Improvement Program 

  Caltrans Active Transportation Program 
funding

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan5-14 Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

Imperial Highway
Description

Imperial Highway is a 6-lane roadway that runs 
east to west through the Brea Core Plan Area 
with an ADT of 52,000. It is classified as a major 
arterial. Because Imperial Highway is owned and 
operated by Caltrans, treatment options to this 
corridor are limited. 

Additional Considerations and Opportunities 
for Imperial Highway

Auto-oriented corridors generally form the 
boundaries of the Brea Core Plan Area, partic-
ularly Imperial Highway. With the auto-oriented 
nature of this corridor, the pedestrian experi-
ence is severely degraded and the area is un-
derutilized. Improvements to sidewalks, street-
scape, and additional mobility options along this 
corridor will contribute to improved accessibility 
and utilization of Imperial Highway. 

Recommendation

Consider widening the sidewalk by narrowing 
the travel lanes, following the Caltrans Main 
Street Guidelines. Further coordination with 
Caltrans may provide the potential for Caltrans 
relinquishment to allow for greater flexibility of 
roadway design.  

OPTION 3A: NORTH/SOUTH 
SIDEWALK WIDENING – 
BREA BOULEVARD TO STATE 
COLLEGE BOULEVARD

  Pros: 

 � Maintains travel lanes

 � Narrows lanes to improve safety and 
reduce speeding

 � Design allows for wider sidewalk

 � Provides dedicated space for drop 
off and pick up for Laurel Elementary 
School.

  Trade-offs:

 � Requires Caltrans coordination and 
may increase implementation time

  Total Cost Estimate: $1,420,300

10’ 10’ 10’ 10’ 10’ 10’ 10’ 12’

82’

Legend

Brea Core Plan Area

Dedicated Ped and Bike Paths

Bike Lanes

Bike Routes

City of Brea

City of Fullerton

Existing Bikeways

0.25 Miles

Bike Improvements

Pedestrian Improvements

Proposed Improvements

57

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

BIRCH ST

B
E

R
R

Y 
S

T

CENTRAL AVE

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

LAMBERT RD

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

57

Brea

Fullerton

ASSO
CIA

TED R
D

ELM ST

A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
D RD

90

R
A

N
D

O
LP

H
 A

V
E

P
O

P
LA

R
 A

V
E

S
YC

A
M

O
R

E
 A

V
E

FL
O

W
ER

 A
VE

THE TRACKS

O
A

K
 P

L

FUNDING: 

  Consider obtaining Caltrans Sustainable 
Transportation Planning Grant funds to 
develop a more detailed Complete Streets 
Plan for the corridor 

  Highway Safety Improvement Program 
funding for direct implementation of corridor 
improvements

  Fees collected from developers as properties 
turn over

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 5-15Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

This page intentionally left blank. 

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan5-16 Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

State College 
Boulevard
Description

State College Boulevard runs north to south 
across the Plan Area with an ADT that ranges 
from 14,000 to 22,000. It is a 4-lane roadway 
with an existing striped bike lane north of Birch 
Street. Currently, the bike lane ends north of The 
Tracks just before Lambert Road. 

Additional Considerations and Opportunities 
for State College Boulevard

State College is a key corridor that connects 
residents in Brea to local amenities, in addition 
to commercial areas in the City of Fullerton. 
Enhancing the existing bikeway would improve 
safety for bicyclists and connect to the City of 
Fullerton’s planned bikeway along the corridor—
serving as a regional bikeway in Orange County. 

Recommendation

Implement a buffered bike lane along the length 
of the corridor or a Grand Boulevard north 
of Birch Street that can build off of the first 
alternative.  

Legend

Brea Core Plan Area

Dedicated Ped and Bike Paths

Bike Lanes

Bike Routes

City of Brea

City of Fullerton

Existing Bikeways

0.25 Miles

Bike Improvements

Pedestrian Improvements

Proposed Improvements

57

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

BIRCH ST

B
E

R
R

Y 
S

T

CENTRAL AVE

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

LAMBERT RD

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

57

Brea

Fullerton

ASSO
CIA

TED R
D

ELM ST

A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
D RD

90

R
A

N
D

O
LP

H
 A

V
E

P
O

P
LA

R
 A

V
E

S
YC

A
M

O
R

E
 A

V
E

FL
O

W
ER

 A
VE

THE TRACKS

O
A

K
 P

L

OPTION 4A: BUFFERED BIKE 
LANE – LAMBERT ROAD TO 
IMPERIAL HIGHWAY

  Pros: 

 � Maintains existing travel lanes and 
medians

 � Narrows travel lanes to reduce 
speeding

  Trade-offs:

 � Limited buffer between bicyclists and 
vehicles

 � Due to its curvilinear nature, the 
feasibility of implementing a buffered 
bike lane south of Birch Street 
warrants further study

  Total Cost Estimate: $4,277,431

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 5-17Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

OPTION 4B: GRAND 
BOULEVARD – LAMBERT ROAD 
TO BIRCH STREET

  Pros:

 � Provides a fully protected and 
separated facility for bicyclists

 � Provides opportunities for landscaping

  Trade-offs:

 � Potential to experience minor vehicle 
delay during peak mall shopping days

  Total Cost Estimate: $2,971,866

10’ 12’ 2’ 11’ 10’ 10’10’ 10’ 11’ 13’

FUNDING: 

  OCTA Bicycle Corridor Improvement Program 
funding for Option 4A 

  California Natural Resources Agency Urban 
Greening Grant Program funding for Option 
4B (assuming best practices in stormwater 
treatments and low-water plants and trees 
are incorporated into the landscape design)

  Caltrans Active Transportation Program 
funding for Options 4A and 4B

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan5-18 Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

Berry Street
Description

Berry Street runs north to south across the 
Plan Area with an ADT that ranges from 9,000 
to 12,000. The secondary corridor consists of 4 
lanes and is surrounded by industrial land uses 
until its southern terminus at Imperial Highway, 
where the area consists of residential land uses.  

Additional Considerations and Opportunities 
for Berry Street

Enhanced bikeways and sidewalk facilities along 
Berry Street would provide access to/from the 
northern residential area, The Tracks, and Birch 
Street—improvements that were deemed highly 
popular during outreach activities. 

Recommendation 

Enhance the existing bike lane and connection to 
The Tracks by implementing a buffered bike lane 
or shared use path. Three mutually exclusive al-
ternatives are presented for this corridor.  

OPTION 5A: BUFFERED BIKE 
LANE – CENTRAL AVENUE TO 
IMPERIAL HIGHWAY

  Pros: 

 � Maintains travel lanes along the 
corridor

 � Buffered bikeway provides increased 
comfort and safety for bicyclists

 � Narrows travel lanes to reduce 
speeding

  Trade-offs:

 � No opportunity to provide parking 
spaces along roadway

 � Removes center turn lane

  Total Cost Estimate: $995,953

OPTION 5B: BUFFERED BIKE 
LANE/PARKING – IMPERIAL 
HIGHWAY TO LAMBERT ROAD

  Pros:

 � Maintains parking along corridor

 � Buffered bikeway provides increased 
comfort and safety for bicyclists

 � Reduces vehicular speeding

 � Maintains center turn lane

  Trade-offs:

 � Removes one travel lane in each 
direction (little or no vehicle delay likely 
due to existing 8,000-12,000 ADT)

  Total Cost Estimate: $1,022,907

15’15’ 4’4’ 3’3’ 12’12’ 10’10’

60’

15’15’ 4’8’ 3’12’2’5’ 10’10’

60’

Legend

Brea Core Plan Area

Dedicated Ped and Bike Paths

Bike Lanes

Bike Routes

City of Brea

City of Fullerton

Existing Bikeways

0.25 Miles

Bike Improvements

Pedestrian Improvements

Proposed Improvements

57

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

BIRCH ST

B
E

R
R

Y 
S

T

CENTRAL AVE

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

LAMBERT RD

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

57

Brea

Fullerton

ASSO
CIA

TED R
D

ELM ST

A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
D RD

90

R
A

N
D

O
LP

H
 A

V
E

P
O

P
LA

R
 A

V
E

S
YC

A
M

O
R

E
 A

V
E

FL
O

W
ER

 A
VE

THE TRACKS

O
A

K
 P

L

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 5-19Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

OPTION 5C: SHARED USE 
PATH – IMPERIAL HIGHWAY TO 
LAMBERT ROAD

  Pros:

 � Provides street parking

 � Maintains center turn lane

 � Narrows vehicular travel lanes to 
discourage speeding

 � Allows for inclusion of a shared use 
path to connect and/or provide 
extension to The Tracks

  Trade-offs:

 � Requires reconstruction of the 
roadway curb

 � Reduces vehicle travel lanes in each 
direction (although delay would likely 
be minimal or nonexistent with existing 
ADT)

  Total Cost Estimate: $2,558,211

FUNDING: 

  Fees collected from developers as properties 
turn over for Options 5A and 5B

  Recreational Trails Program funding for 
Option 5C

8’ 15’8’10’ 10’ 10’

61’

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan5-20 Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

Poplar Avenue
Description 

Poplar Avenue runs north to south through the 
Plan Area with low traffic volumes and speeds. 
The corridor is surrounded by mostly residential 
uses and terminates at Imperial Highway at its 
southern end. It connects The Tracks with Craig 
Park via the local streets of Laurel Avenue and 
Elm Street. The signal at the intersection of 
Imperial Highway and Laurel Avenue facilitates 
street crossing. 

Additional Considerations and Opportunities 
for Poplar Avenue

To improve north-south access, the City may 
consider adding a bicycle boulevard with sharrows 
and traffic calming improvements along Poplar 
Avenue, as the key corridor offers access to The 
Tracks and has low vehicular speeds. 

Recommendation

Implement a neighborhood greenway with 
multiple traffic circles and traffic calming 
features along the route.

OPTION 6A: TRAFFIC CIRCLE 
TREATMENTS – POPLAR 
AVENUE / IMPERIAL HIGHWAY / 
LAUREL AVENUE / ELM STREET

  Pros: 

 � Reduces vehicular speeding in 
residential neighborhoods

 � Discourages vehicular cut-through 
traffic

 � Increases safety for all modes

  Trade-offs:

 � Proper construction and education of 
greenway amenities

  Total Cost Estimate: $1,217,965

FUNDING: 

  OCTA Bicycle Corridor Improvement Program 
funding 

Legend

Brea Core Plan Area

Dedicated Ped and Bike Paths

Bike Lanes

Bike Routes

City of Brea

City of Fullerton

Existing Bikeways

0.25 Miles

Bike Improvements

Pedestrian Improvements

Proposed Improvements

57

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

BIRCH ST

B
E

R
R

Y 
S

T

CENTRAL AVE

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

LAMBERT RD

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

57

Brea

Fullerton

ASSO
CIA

TED R
D

ELM ST

A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
D RD

90

R
A

N
D

O
LP

H
 A

V
E

P
O

P
LA

R
 A

V
E

S
YC

A
M

O
R

E
 A

V
E

FL
O

W
ER

 A
VE

THE TRACKS

O
A

K
 P

L

16’

20’
16’

20’

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 5-21Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

Lambert Road
Description

Lambert Road runs east to west along the 
northern border of the Plan Area and is classified 
as a major arterial. Brea Junior High School is 
located at the intersection of Lambert Road and 
Brea Boulevard. 

Additional Considerations and Opportunities 
for Lambert Road

Many existing sidewalks in the Brea Core Plan 
Area are not conducive to pedestrian utilization, 
particularly Lambert Road. Utilities and other 
obstructions along the sidewalk contribute to a 
degraded pedestrian environment. Providing op-
portunities for clear, unobstructed pathways will 
contribute to greater utilization by pedestrians.

Recommendation

Because the corridor is classified as a major 
arterial as part of the OCTA MPAH, feasible 
physical infrastructure improvements are 
limited. The City may consider widening the 
sidewalk along this corridor and/or enhancing 
the pedestrian crossings at the intersection of 
Lambert Road and Brea Boulevard near Brea 
Junior High School for student safety.  

OPTION 7A: SIDEWALK 
WIDENING AND ENHANCED 
CROSSING – BREA BOULEVARD 
TO STATE COLLEGE 
BOULEVARD

  Pros: 

 � Maintains travel lanes

 � Narrows lanes to improve safety and 
reduce speeding

 � Design allows for wider sidewalk

  Trade-offs:

 � Requires coordination with OCTA and 
may increase implementation time

  Total Cost Estimate: $377,357

10-15’ 82’ 9’

Legend

Brea Core Plan Area

Dedicated Ped and Bike Paths

Bike Lanes

Bike Routes

City of Brea

City of Fullerton

Existing Bikeways

0.25 Miles

Bike Improvements

Pedestrian Improvements

Proposed Improvements

57

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

BIRCH ST

B
E

R
R

Y 
S

T

CENTRAL AVE

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

LAMBERT RD

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

57

Brea

Fullerton

ASSO
CIA

TED R
D

ELM ST

A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
D RD

90

R
A

N
D

O
LP

H
 A

V
E

P
O

P
LA

R
 A

V
E

S
YC

A
M

O
R

E
 A

V
E

FL
O

W
ER

 A
VE

THE TRACKS

O
A

K
 P

L

FUNDING: 

  Fees collected from developers as properties 
turn over

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan5-22 Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

Randolph Avenue
Description

Randolph Avenue runs north to south from The 
Tracks to Imperial Highway. It runs along the 
western side of the Brea Mall and experiences 
lower volumes of vehicles than the two arterials 
it connects. (Imperial Highway and Birch Street).

Additional Considerations and Opportunities 
for Randolph Avenue

The city may consider opportunities to improve 
connectivity for pedestrians to Brea Mall, the 
Community Center, and Birch Street by install-
ing a mid-block crossing along this segment.

Recommendation

Improve pedestrian infrastructure along the 
roadway by implementing pedestrian corridor 
improvements and a mid-block crossing 
between Birch Street and Madison Way.

OPTION 8A: PEDESTRIAN 
CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENTS 
AND MID-BLOCK CROSSING 
– IMPERIAL HIGHWAY TO THE 
TRACKS

  Pros: 

 � Provides a safe crossing near the mall 
for pedestrians

 � Reduces vehicular speed

  Trade-offs:

 � Potential for vehicular delays

  Total Cost Estimate: $1,611,449

FUNDING: 

  OCTA Bicycle Corridor Improvement Program 
funding  

12’ 12’12’12’12’10’ 10’

Legend

Brea Core Plan Area

Dedicated Ped and Bike Paths

Bike Lanes

Bike Routes

City of Brea

City of Fullerton

Existing Bikeways

0.25 Miles

Bike Improvements

Pedestrian Improvements

Proposed Improvements

57

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

BIRCH ST

B
E

R
R

Y 
S

T

CENTRAL AVE

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

LAMBERT RD

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

57

Brea

Fullerton

ASSO
CIA

TED R
D

ELM ST

A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
D RD

90

R
A

N
D

O
LP

H
 A

V
E

P
O

P
LA

R
 A

V
E

S
YC

A
M

O
R

E
 A

V
E

FL
O

W
ER

 A
VE

THE TRACKS

O
A

K
 P

L

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 5-23Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

13’ 12’ 12’ 6’6’ 2’2’ 4’4’ 12’12’

Associated Road
Description

Associated Road runs north to south in the Plan 
Area from Greenbriar Lane to Imperial Highway, 
east of State Route 57. It is a 4-lane roadway with 
a landscaped median and striped bike lanes.

Additional Considerations and Opportunities 
for Associated Road

Associated Road provides access to popular 
commercial areas along Imperial Highway. 
Enhancing the existing bikeway would improve 
safety and connectivity in the eastern area of the 
Brea Core Plan Area.

Recommendation

Enhance the existing bike lanes by slightly 
narrowing travel lanes and adding a buffer  
between cars and bicyclists.

OPTION 9A: BUFFERED BIKE 
LANES – BIRCH STREET TO 
IMPERIAL HIGHWAY

  Pros: 

 � Improves comfort and safety for 
existing bike lanes

 � Provides a buffer 

 � Reduces vehicular speed

  Trade-offs:

 � Requires narrowing of outside travel 
lanes to add buffer

  Total Cost Estimate: $213,656 

FUNDING: 

  City of Brea Capital Improvement Program 
funding

Legend

Brea Core Plan Area

Dedicated Ped and Bike Paths

Bike Lanes

Bike Routes

City of Brea

City of Fullerton

Existing Bikeways

0.25 Miles

Bike Improvements

Pedestrian Improvements

Proposed Improvements

57

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

BIRCH ST

B
E

R
R

Y 
S

T

CENTRAL AVE

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

LAMBERT RD

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

57

Brea

Fullerton

ASSO
CIA

TED R
D

ELM ST

A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
D RD

90

R
A

N
D

O
LP

H
 A

V
E

P
O

P
LA

R
 A

V
E

S
YC

A
M

O
R

E
 A

V
E

FL
O

W
ER

 A
VE

THE TRACKS

O
A

K
 P

L

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan5-24 Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

The Tracks at Brea
Description

The Tracks currently provide a two-way multi-use 
path running east to west through the Brea Core 
Plan Area. The Tracks span four miles with a 
paved bikeway and separate pedestrian pathway 
on previous railroad facilities. They provide 
separated facilities for bicyclists and pedestrians 
to travel through the central part of the City.

Additional Considerations and Opportunities 
for The Tracks at Brea

  Access issues going north-south in the Brea 
Core Plan Area largely results from a discon-
tinuous street grid, with limited connections 
to The Tracks.  Since The Tracks is the City’s 
dedicated bikeway and pedestrian path, it is 
important to expand and improve connections 
to The Tracks.

  Explore opportunities to improve access to 
The Tracks from the northern side of the 
trail, including potentially connecting from 

Cypress Street, Thor Place, and Oak Place. 
While there may be easements that need to 
be dedicated in order to make these connec-
tions possible, this will greatly improve north-
south connectivity in the plan area.

  Continue expansion of The Tracks, including 
the westward expansion of The Tracks to Berry 
Road and beyond to connect with the City of 
La Habra. Consider collaborating with the City 
of Yorba Linda for eastward expansion of the 
Tracks to further enhance regional connectivi-
ty and access to Brea’s Core. 

  Currently the Brea Canyon Channel and 
the “Tracks at Brea” trail route easement 
serve as two physical barriers that separate 
existing residential, commercial, and in-
dustrial areas within the Specific Plan Area. 
These are crossable at a limited number of 
locations. At those crossings, pedestrians 
come in close proximity to speeding cars and 
the conditions are uninviting or perceived as 
unsafe for people who are walking or biking. 

  Add coordinated wayfinding signage and 
pedestrian safety improvements along key 
corridors with connections to The Tracks 
to further support mobility and awareness of 
the multi-use path.

Recommendation

Extend The Tracks to the west to Palm Street to 
align with the planned extension into La Habra.

OPTION 10A: TRAIL EXTENSION
  Pros: 

 � Provides a separated multi-use path 
for bicyclists and pedestrians 

 � Improves safety for all travel modes

  Trade-offs:
 � Requires coordinated reconstruction of 

existing tracks

Total Cost Estimate: $2,521,015 

Legend

Brea Core Plan Area

Dedicated Ped and Bike Paths

Bike Lanes

Bike Routes

City of Brea

City of Fullerton

Existing Bikeways

0.25 Miles

Bike Improvements

Pedestrian Improvements

Proposed Improvements

57

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

BIRCH ST

B
E

R
R

Y 
S

T

CENTRAL AVE

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

LAMBERT RD

B
R

EA
 B

LV
D

IMPERIAL HWY

S
TA

T
E

 C
O

LL
EG

E
 B

LV
D

57

Brea

Fullerton

ASSO
CIA

TED R
D

ELM ST

A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
D RD

90

R
A

N
D

O
LP

H
 A

V
E

P
O

P
LA

R
 A

V
E

S
YC

A
M

O
R

E
 A

V
E

FL
O

W
ER

 A
VE

THE TRACKS

O
A

K
 P

L

FUNDING: 

  Recreational Trails Program administered 
from California State Parks 

  Caltrans Active Transportation Program funding

  Urban Greening Grant Funding administered 
through the California Natural Resources 
Agency (assuming there is a substantial 
landscape component or removal of pavement 
associated with the project) 

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan 5-25Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

Opportunities to 
Consider 
Below is a list of opportunities that span the 
entire Brea Core Plan Area and are not limited to 
the corridors this chapter focuses on. The items 
are a mix of infrastructure improvements and 
policies for the City to consider as it expands its 
pedestrian and bicycle network.

Transit Services

  There may be an opportunity to collaborate 
with OCTA to offer more routes and bus stops 
closer to areas with a lack of transportation 
services in the Brea Core Plan Area.  For 
example, the Mercury Lane Industrial and 
Lambert Road Industrial areas in the Brea 
Core Plan Area lack access to public trans-
portation.  There is currently no bus service 
that operates along Imperial Highway, Berry 
Street, and Lambert Road adjacent to the key 
activity centers mentioned above.  These two 
areas are key job centers in Brea and employ 
people across the region.  Coordinating with 
OCTA may help potentially improve transit 
service and further support walking and 
bicycling in the Brea Core Plan Area, reducing 
automobile congestion and maximizing the 
movement of people with existing transpor-
tation infrastructure. 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements

  Bicycle and pedestrian focused improve-
ments would make the Brea Core Area ac-
cessible and enticing for new development. 
Development projects and major employers 
can consider providing car share, bike share, 
micro transit, and pedestrian oriented fa-

cilities. The City should consider facilitating 
discussions with developers to implement 
options - such efforts may assist with getting 
around key destinations in the Brea Core Plan 
Area. 

  Implementing existing plans will improve 
access and close existing gaps to “complete” 
the area’s bicycle network, including the instal-
lation of bicycle lanes along Lambert Avenue 
and remaining arterial roadways without 
bicycle lanes along State College Boulevard 
and Birch Street.

  The City may consider conducting bicycle 
and pedestrian counts to better understand 
where improvements are needed and addi-
tional opportunities exist.  

  The city may consider opportunities to 
increase pedestrian activity through improved 
crosswalks at signalized intersections, a co-
ordinated wayfinding network focused on 
guiding pedestrians, and widened sidewalks 
free of obstructions. Also, the City should 
consider installing mid-block crossings along 
roadways where there are long distances 
between signalized intersections.

  Pedestrian access to and between commer-
cial centers is difficult, as most of the streets 
are designed with multiple vehicular travel 
lanes and limited on-street parking. Narrow 
sidewalks, utility poles, and auto-oriented 
signage all add to the difficulty of navigat-
ing the built environment as a pedestrian. 
Where possible, design solutions that in-
corporate widening sidewalks and creating 
clear pathways of travel between commercial 
centers will improve access and safety, en-
couraging pedestrian travel between com-
mercial centers in the Brea Core Plan Area.

Trail Enhancements

  Consider expansion of north-south trail 
access along the Brea Creek Channel to 
connect the City’s northern neighborhoods 
through the Core Plan Area to Fullerton.

Carshare company stationed in reserved parking area

Multi-use path with pedestrian scaled lighting

ATTACHMENT 2



Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan5-26 Network Recommendations - Outlining Projects and Programs

This page intentionally left blank. 

ATTACHMENT 2



Agenda Item   23. 
City of Brea

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo, City Manager 

DATE: 01/21/2020

SUBJECT: December 17, 2019 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by: Victoria Popescu, Deputy City Clerk
Concurrence: Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 

Attachments
Draft Minutes 



D R A F T
BREA CITY COUNCIL

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE
BREA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

MEETING

MINUTES
December 17, 2019

 

               

CLOSED SESSION
6:00 p.m. - Executive Conference Room

Level Three

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL - COUNCIL
Mayor Marick called the Closed Session to order at 6:01 p.m., all members were present. 

Present: Marick, Simonoff, Hupp, Parker, Vargas 

1. Public Comment
None. 

 

Closed Session may convene to consider matters of purchase / sale of real property (G. C. §54956.8), pending litigation [G.C.§54956.9(d)(1)], potential litigation
[G.C. §54956.9(d)(2)(3) or (4)], liability claims (G. C. §54961) or personnel items (G.C.§54957.6). Records not available for public inspection.

 

2. Conference with Legal Counsel Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) – Existing
Litigation. Name of Case: Clark v. City of Brea et al. (Case No. 30-2019-01109202-CU-WM-CJC).

Mayor Marick adjourned the Closed Session at 6:18 p.m. 
 

STUDY SESSION
6:15 p.m. - Executive Conference Room

Level Three

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL - COUNCIL
Mayor Marick called the Study Session to order at 6:23 p.m., all members were present. 
 

3. Public Comment
None. 

 

4. Clarify Regular Meeting Topics
Councilmember Hupp requested clarification on Item 19, Consolidated Fire Command Agreement, and
expressed concerns with potentially subsidizing the City of Fullerton's operation. 

City Manager Gallardo indicated he attended a meeting with the Brea Fire Association where the item
was discussed and noted ongoing efforts in communications and interest in collaboration about the
agreement.  He also spoke about discussing this agreement with the City of Fullerton and revisiting in
six (6) months to ensure accounting for equal time among the command staff.  

December 17, 2019
1 

  



Discussion ensued related to previous discussions and analysis regarding position allocation and share
among higher positions. 

Council directed staff to initiate a review of the Consolidated Fire Command Agreement position
allocation in six (6) months.  

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS
 

5. Appointments to Traffic Committee, Investment Advisory Committee, and Art in Public Places
Committee
Councilmember Parker indicated that the one (1) applicant for the Investment Advisory Committee
withdrew her application due to a conflict of interest with her employer.  As such, the vacancy will need
to be re-advertsised.  

Discussion ensued related to the history of the number of appointments to the Investment Advisory
Committee, and the potential for reduction of positions, should there be no future interest in the vacant
position. 

The Council appointed Darlene Chandler and Richard Dooley to the Traffic Committee each for a two (2)
year term; and Kris St. Clair to the Art in Public Places Committee for a term of two (2) years. 

 

6. Brea Creek Golf Course Request for Proposals Overview 
Maintenance Services Superintendent Bowlus presented the details of the item, including background;
request for proposals component; contract agreement options; previous lease; lease payments received;
current management contract; term; incentives; projected/expected revenues; capital improvement
funding; and youth golf.  He also noted that the interim agreement ends in June 2020 and the goal is for
the course to not be subsidized. 

Councilmember Vargas spoke about the current expenses; indicated that he is not in favor of a
long-term contract; management versus lease model; and accountability for course maintenance. 

Councilmember Hupp inquired as to observed improvements since switching the course to the
management program. 

Maintenance Services Superintendent Bowlus indicated the maintenance has been consistent. 

Mayor Pro Tem Simonoff indicated that a strong youth golf operator will increase revenues.  

Councilmember Parker expressed interest in continuing to provide affordable recreational experience for
the community, and spoke in favor of the management model at a five-year agreement. 

David Sams, Municipal Golf Operations Advisor, spoke about the breakdown of the premium, trends in
the industry, surrounding City golf course operation, and contract extension terms. 

The City Council concurred to move forward with the Request for Proposals under the management
model with a five (5) year contract, and with the option for one (1) five (5) year extension at the discretion
of the City Council. 

 

REPORT
 

7. Council Member Report/Requests
Mayor Marick noted that she is honored to be the new Chair of the Waste Management Commission. 

Mayor Marick adjourned the Study Session at 6:48 p.m. 
 

GENERAL SESSION

December 17, 2019
2 

  



GENERAL SESSION
7:00 p.m. - Council Chamber

Plaza Level 

CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL - COUNCIL
Mayor Marick called the General Session to order at 7:04 p.m., all members were present. 
 

8. Pledge of Allegiance
Community Development Director Crabtree led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

9. Invocation
Leroy Sissom, Calvary Community Church, delivered the Invocation. 

 

10. Commendation - David Crabtree, Community Development Director, 30 Years of Service
Mayor Marick presented outgoing Community Development Director David Crabtree with a
commendation recognizing his 30 years of dedicated service to the City of Brea.  Mayor Marick also
presented Community Development Director Crabtree with Certificates of Recognition from the Offices
of Assemblyman Phillip Chen; Senator Ling Ling Chang; Supervisor Doug Chaffee; and Representative
Gil Cisneros.  

Heidi Gallegos, CEO, Brea Chamber of Commerce, presented a Certificate of Recognition to Community
Development Director Crabtree.

Community Development Director Crabtree thanked the City Council, Planning Commissioners, staff
and the community for their support over the years; and introduced his family in attendance. 

 

11. Report - Prior Study Session
City Manager Gallardo provided the prior Study Session report. 

 

12. Community Announcements
Councilmember Hupp announced that the Brea Fire Department is still accepting donations for its
Holiday Toy Drive. She encouraged the community to help make the holidays bright for children in need
by donating new, unwrapped toys to any Brea Fire Station by Friday, December 20. She noted that the
toys will benefit children in Brea and others served by local nonprofit organizations.

Councilmember Parker reminded the community to renew their annual City of Brea overnight parking
permits for 2020. He explained that new permits must be displayed beginning January 1, 2020 and are
now available to purchase online and in person at City Hall. 

Mayor Pro Tem Simonoff noted that in observance of the upcoming Christmas and New Year’s holidays,
the City of Brea administrative offices will be closed beginning on Tuesday, December 24 and will
reopen on Thursday, January 2, 2020. He noted that trash collection and street sweeping services will be
delayed by one day from the normal schedule beginning December 26 through the rest of the week and
that Christmas tree pick-up will occur December 30-January 10. 

Councilmember Vargas announced the Brea Fitness Center’s membership special with rates are as low
as $15.25 a month through January 31 and encouraged the community to call 714-990-7101 or visit
www.breafitness.com for more information.

 

13. Matters from the Audience
Tony Fanticola spoke about the retail lifecycle; parking structure in Downtown Brea; and spoke in
support of the hotel development in  the Downtown. 

Steve Craig spoke about parking structure 3; complimented the Council for their work and investment in
the community; and expressed support for the hotel development in the Downtown. 

Don Myers spoke in support for the hotel development in the Downtown.  

December 17, 2019
3 

  



Dan Kleinberg spoke in support for the hotel development in the Downtown.  

Moe Orr spoke in support for the hotel development in the Downtown.  

Kelly Mullarney spoke in support for the hotel development in the Downtown.  

Dara Maleki spoke in support for the hotel development in the Downtown.  

George Makridis spoke in support for the hotel development in the Downtown.  

Jay Badillo spoke about parking, land leases and demand generators in the hotel industry. 

Dwight Manley commended David Crabtree for his service to the City over the years; and spoke in
support for the hotel development in the Downtown. 

Eugene Smith spoke about the retirement system and fitness classes at the Community Center. 
 

14. Response to Public Inquiries - Mayor / City Manager
 

COUNCIL / AGENCY / AUTHORITY/ CORPORATION / COMMISSION REORGANIZATION
 

15. Presentation to Outgoing Mayor 
Mayor Pro Tem Simonoff, on behalf of the City Council, presented outgoing Mayor Marick with a
Commendation recognizing her service as Mayor the past year. Mayor Pro Tem Simonoff also
presented Mayor Marick with Certificates of Recognition from the Offices of Assemblyman Phillip Chen;
Senator Ling Ling Chang; Supervisor Doug Chaffee; and Representative Gil Cisneros.  

Heidi Gallegos, CEO, Brea Chamber of Commerce, presented a Certificate of Recognition to outgoing
Mayor Marick. 

Outgoing Mayor Marick spoke about the honor and pleasure it was to serve as Mayor; and thanked the
Council, staff, the community, and her family for their support over the past year.  

 

16. Election of Mayor/Chair and Introductions
Motion was made by Council Member Marick, seconded by Council Member Hupp to nominate Mayor
Pro Tem Simonoff to the Office of Mayor.

AYES: Council Member Vargas, Council Member Parker, Council Member Hupp, Mayor Pro Tem
Simonoff, Mayor Marick 
Passed

Mayor Simonoff thanked the Council. 
 

17. Election of Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Chair, Reseating and Introductions 
Motion was made by Council Member Marick, seconded by Mayor Simonoff to nominate Councilmember
Vargas to the Office of Mayor Pro Tem.

AYES: Council Member Marick, Mayor Simonoff, Councilmember Pro Tem Vargas
NOES: Council Member Hupp, Council Member Parker
Passed

A substitute motion was made by Council Member Parker, seconded by Council Member Hupp to
nominate Councilmember Hupp to the Office of Mayor Pro Tem.
AYES: Council Member Hupp, Council Member Parker
NOES: Council Member Marick, Mayor Simonoff, Councilmember Vargas
Failed

Mayor Pro Tem Vargas thanked the Council and introduced his family in attendance.  
 

December 17, 2019
4 

  



CONSENT CALENDAR - The City Council/Successor Agency approves all Consent Calendar matters with one
motion unless Council/Agency or Staff requests further discussion of a particular item. Items of concern regarding
Consent Calendar matters should be presented during “Matters from the Audience."

CITY COUNCIL - CONSENT
 

18. December 3, 2019 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes
The City Council approved the December 3, 2019 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes. 

  

 

19. Consolidated Fire Command Agreement 
The City Council approved the Consolidated Fire Command Agreement with the City of Fullerton, and
requested Staff return to Council in six (6) months to review details of the position allocation
methodology. 

  

 

20. Brea Legislative Platform Update for the Upcoming 2020 Legislative Session 
The City Council adopted the City of Brea Legislative Platform Update for the upcoming 2020 Legislative
Session. 

  

 

21. Upcoming City Council Topics January - June 2020 
The City Council received and filed the Upcoming City Council Topics January - June 2020. 

  

 

22. November 22 & 29 and December 6, 2019 City Check Registers
The City Council received and filed the November 22 & 29 and December 6, 2019 City Check Registers.

  

 
  Motion was made by Council Member Parker, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Vargas to approve City

Council Consent Calendar Items 18 - 22.  
 

AYES: Council Member Marick, Mayor Simonoff, Council Member Hupp, Council Member Parker,
Mayor Pro Tem Vargas 

Passed 

 

CITY/ SUCCESSOR AGENCY - CONSENT
 

23. November 29, 2019 Successor Agency Check Register 
The City Council, as the Successor Agency, received and filed the November 29, 2019 Successor
Agency Check Register.

  

 
  Motion was made by Council Member Hupp, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Vargas to approve City

/Successor Agency Consent Calendar Item 23. 
 

AYES: Council Member Marick, Mayor Simonoff, Council Member Hupp, Council Member Parker,
Mayor Pro Tem Vargas 

Passed 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE ANNOUNCEMENTS
 

24. City Manager
City Manager Gallardo thanked Community Development Director Crabtree for his dedication to the City.

 

25. City Attorney
City Attorney Boga reported out from Closed Session noting that the Council unanimously authorized his
office to file an answer to the complaint that has been filed. 

 

26. Council Requests
None. 

 

December 17, 2019
5 

  



 

COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS
Councilmember Parker thanked Community Development Director Crabtree for his service over the years. 

Councilmember Marick wished the community a Happy Holidays and Happy New Year. 

Mayor Pro Tem Vargas wished the community a Happy Hanukkah. 

Mayor Simonoff thanked Community Development Director Crabtree for his service to the Council and the
Community; and thanked the Brea business community for their sponsorship and participation with the Brea
Senior Center Christmas Party. He also wished the community Happy Holidays.  
 

ADJOURNMENT
Mayor Simonoff adjourned the General Session at 8:20 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, The foregoing minutes are hereby
approved this 21st day of January, 2020.

_________________________________     
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk

________________________________     
Marty Simonoff, Mayor

December 17, 2019
6 

  



Agenda Item   24. 
City of Brea

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo, City Manager 

DATE: 01/21/2020

SUBJECT: Opposition to the modified Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA) allocation
methodology approved by the Southern California Association of Governments
(SCAG) Regional Council and request to the California Department of Housing and
Community Development (HCD) to intervene

RECOMMENDATION
Consideration of a Resolution opposing the Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA)
allocation methodology approved by the Southern California Association of Governments
(SCAG) Regional Council and request to the California Department of Housing and Community
Development (HCD) to intervene.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
California State housing law requires that each city and county plan for existing and future
housing needs by mandating sufficient sites and zoning identified in the Housing Element of its
General Plan to accommodate its RHNA allocation. The upcoming 6th Cycle RHNA will cover the
planning period from October 2021 through October 2029. SCAG is the regional agency
responsible for the development of the RHNA allocation methodology for the six counties in
Southern California (Orange, Los Angeles, Imperial, Riverside, San Bernardino, and Ventura).
HCD is the State agency responsible for the final determination of the total regional allocation of
dwelling units and the methodology for distributing the allocation among local jurisdictions.
Allocations are segmented by income levels based on the Area Median Income (AMI) and
include very-low, low, moderate, and above moderate categories. The current 5th Cycle
(2013-2021) RHNA allocation for Brea is identified in Table 1 below.

Table 1: 5th Cycle RHNA 
Income Level Dwelling Units
Extremely Low Income (0-30% of AMI): 213
Very-Low Income (31-50% of AMI): 213
Low Income (51-80% of AMI): 305
Moderate Income (81-120% of AMI): 335
Above Moderate Income (>120% of AMI): 785

Total: 1,851 Dwelling Units



RHNA outcomes are foundational to jurisdictional housing goals and policies and must be
included within the Housing Element of a city's General Plan prior to certification by HCD. HCD
also requires each city and county to prepare and submit an annual report documenting its
progress towards achieving its RHNA numbers during the planning cycle.

In August 2019, following a local public input process, the SCAG Regional Council approved the
public release of three draft 6th cycle RHNA allocation methodology options under consideration.
Public hearings were held to allow SCAG staff to present the three options and receive public
comments, revisions, and alterations. SCAG received 248 comment letters on the three options.
Comments submitted by local jurisdictions composed 48% of the total received.

Based on public input, SCAG staff developed a single RHNA allocation methodology which was
publicly introduced at a workshop conducted on September 23, 2019. Table 2 below includes a
breakdown, by income level, of the City of Brea RHNA allocation in accordance with the SCAG
staff recommended methodology.

Table 2: Initial SCAG Staff Recommendation - Brea RHNA Allocation 
Income Level Dwelling Units
Very-Low Income (<50% of AMI): 334
Low Income (50-80% of AMI): 195
Moderate Income (80-120% of AMI): 200
Above Moderate Income (>120% of AMI) 444

Total: 1,172 Dwelling Units
AMI varies by household size. The current Orange County AMI
for a four-person household is $97,900.

On October 7, 2019, the SCAG RHNA Subcommittee, including the Orange County
representative, voted to send the staff recommended RHNA methodology to the SCAG
Community, Economic, and Human Development (CEHD) Committee. On October 21, 2019, the
CEHD Committee voted unanimously to recommend that the SCAG Regional Council submit the
methodology to HCD.

On November 7, 2019, following the lengthy vetting process by various committees, and SCAG
staff, the RHNA allocation methodology recommended by SCAG staff came before the SCAG
Regional Council. However, before a vote could be taken on the SCAG staff recommended
methodology, a substitute motion for approval of a modified methodology was introduced by the
City of Riverside representative. This modified methodology proposed to shift a significant portion
of the 6th cycle RHNA regional allocation away from developing areas such as Riverside and
San Bernardino County and toward coastal areas including predominately Orange County
jurisdictions. Despite a lack of detail regarding the associated impacts, supporting documentation
as to the merit of the proposed changes, and any opportunity for stakeholder input, the modified
methodology was approved by the SCAG Regional Council for submittal to HCD by a vote of
43-19. All Orange County SCAG representatives voted in opposition to the modified
methodology.

Table 3 below provides a breakdown by income level of the City of Brea RHNA allocation in
accordance with the substitute motion methodology approved by the SCAG Regional Council.



This allocation data was not made available to Cities until after the SCAG Regional Council vote
was conducted.

Table 3: Final SCAG Regional Council Action - Brea RHNA Allocation 
Income Level Dwelling Units
Very-Low Income (<50% of AMI): 650
Low Income (50-80% of AMI): 383
Moderate Income (80-120% of AMI): 392
Above Moderate Income (>120% of AMI) 877

Total: 2,302 Dwelling Units
AMI varies by household size. The current Orange County AMI
for a four-person household is $97,900.

The modified RHNA allocation methodology ultimately approved by the SCAG Regional Council
increases the City's housing target for the upcoming RHNA 6th cycle to 2,302 total units. This is
an increase of approximately 96% over the SCAG staff recommended methodology and a 24%
increase over the City's current RHNA 5th cycle allocation. Cities did not receive sufficient or
adequate advance notice that SCAG would entertain a substantially modified, unsupported
methodology. The modified methodology fails to account for local input and growth forecast data
and, due to the late introduction by substitute motion, was unable to be fully analyzed for
potential impacts by SCAG staff before a vote of the Regional Council.

Throughout the RHNA process, City staff has and continues to monitor and participate in RHNA
related meetings and hearings. Staff is also involved with the Orange County Council of
Governments Technical Advisory Committee (OCCOG TAC), to ensure that the raw data
submitted to SCAG for use in developing a draft methodology is accurate and consistent with
local jurisdictional input. Written comments have also been provided directly to SCAG highlighting
City concerns and recommendations regarding the development of the RHNA allocation
methodology.

The attached Resolution has been prepared for City Council consideration, opposing the
modified RHNA allocation methodology and requesting intervention by HCD to direct SCAG to
reconsider its action given the related lack of specificity, lack of supporting documentation, lack of
vetting by SCAG staff, and near-total absence of stakeholder engagement in the amended RHNA
allocation methodology.

HCD comments on the methodology approved by the SCAG Regional Council are due to SCAG
in January 2020 for consideration. SCAG is to provide resulting draft jurisdictional allocations in
early spring 2020, with the jurisdictional appeal period to follow. The final RHNA allocations,
including any alterations made as a result of the appeal, are tentatively scheduled for adoption in
October 2020. The deadline for certification of jurisdictional housing elements, which are required
to be consistent with RHNA, is October 2021 (one year from the adoption of the final RHNA
allocations).

FISCAL IMPACT/SUMMARY
None.



RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by: Jennifer Lilley, City Planner
Concurrence: Chris Emeterio, Acting Community Development Director 
 

Attachments
Resolution 
Cover Letter 



RESO NO. 2020-005
January 21, 2020

1

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-005

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BREA, 
CALIFORNIA, OPPOSING THE MODIFIED REGIONAL HOUSING 
NEEDS ASSESSMENT ALLOCATION METHODOLOGY APPROVED BY 
THE SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
REGIONAL COUNCIL AND REQUESTING CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT 
OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT INTERVENTION

WHEREAS, California State housing law requires that each city and county plan 

for existing and future housing needs in accordance with the outcome of the Regional 

Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA) process; and

WHEREAS, the Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) is 

responsible for developing a uniform methodology for the distribution of the RHNA 

allocation among member cities and counties; and

WHEREAS, a transparent and collaborative approach to regional planning, 

involving opportunity for informed stakeholder input and thoughtful deliberation, is  critical 

to achieving desirable and equitable outcomes; and

WHEREAS, the SCAG process to develop the allocation methodology for the 6th 

cycle RHNA, covering the planning period from October 2021 through October 2029, 

included opportunity for stakeholder engagement throughout, including detailed 

discussion of three draft allocation methodology options during a series of public meetings 

and hearings intended to ensure robust participation by the public and affected agencies; 

and

WHEREAS, based in part on stakeholder input, SCAG staff developed a single 

recommended RHNA allocation methodology which was introduced in September 2019 

at a public workshop, subsequently reviewed by the SCAG RHNA Subcommittee 

(including the Orange County representative) and SCAG Community, Economic, and 



RESO NO. 2020-005
January 21, 2020

2

Human Development (CEHD) Committee, and ultimately recommended for SCAG 

Regional Council consideration and submittal to the California Department of Housing 

and Community Development (HCD); and

WHEREAS, at the November 7, 2019 meeting of the SCAG Regional Council to 

consider the recommended RHNA allocation methodology, a substitute motion was made 

by City of Riverside representative introducing a modified RHNA methodology, which 

effectively would shift a significant portion of the 6th cycle RHNA regional allocation away 

from Riverside and San Bernardino County and toward coastal areas including 

predominately Orange County jurisdictions; and

WHEREAS, the modified RHNA allocation methodology was approved for 

submittal to HCD by the SCAG Regional Council on a contested vote of 43-19 (opposed 

by all Orange County SCAG representatives), despite a lack of detail regarding the 

associated impacts of the proposed methodology changes, supporting documentation as 

to the merit of the proposed changes, and any opportunity for informed stakeholder input; 

and

WHEREAS, cities did not receive sufficient or adequate advance notice that SCAG 

would entertain a substantially modified, unsupported methodology; and

WHEREAS, the modified methodology fails to adequately account for local input 

and growth forecast data and, due to the late introduction by substitute motion, was 

unable to be fully analyzed for potential impacts by SCAG staff before a vote of the 

Regional Council; and

WHEREAS, the modified methodology would increase the City's affordable 

housing target by approximately 24% as compared to the current RHNA 5th cycle and 



RESO NO. 2020-005
January 21, 2020

3

96% over that anticipated under the methodology thoroughly analyzed and recommended 

by SCAG staff; and

WHEREAS, the ramifications of this sudden and unvetted methodology shift are 

further compounded by recently passed State housing laws with which local jurisdictions 

are obligated to comply. Examples include, but are not limited to, SB 35 streamlining 

requirements and AB 101 penalties for cities which are out of compliance with housing 

element laws; and

WHEREAS, the modified RHNA allocation methodology approved by the SCAG 

Regional Council effectively sets up many Orange County jurisdictions to fail to achieve 

compliance with State housing laws.

RESOLUTION:

NOW, THEREFORE, be it found determined and resolved by the City Council of 

the City of Brea, as follows: 

1. In all respects as set forth in the Recitals of the Resolution. 

2. The City Council is a strong advocate of local control as the best means to protect 

the City of Brea, its residents and business owners, and promote the goals and priorities 

of the community. The modified RHNA allocation methodology, as well as the manner in 

which it was approved by the SCAG Regional Council, undermine the integrity of what is 

mandated to be a collaborative RHNA process, negating months of local participation 

conducted in good faith.

3. The City Council therefore publicly states its opposition to the modified RHNA 

allocation methodology approved by the SCAG Regional Council and requests 



RESO NO. 2020-005
January 21, 2020

4

intervention on the part of HCD to direct SCAG to reconsider its action given the related 

lack of specificity, lack of supporting documentation, lack of vetting by SCAG staff, and 

near total absence of stakeholder engagement.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of January, 2020.

Marty Simonoff, Mayor

ATTEST: ___
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk

I Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the foregoing 

Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Brea, held 

on the 21st day of January, 2020, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAIN: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

DATED:  

Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk



January 22, 2020

Douglas R. McCauley, Acting Director
Department of Housing and Community Development State of California
2020 West El Camino Avenue Sacramento, CA 95833

Re: Opposition to the Modified Methodology for the Regional Housing Needs Assessment 
Allocation Approved by the Southern California Association of Governments and 
Request for California Department of Housing and Community Development
Rejection of the Modified Methodology

Dear Mr. McCauley:

On behalf of the City of Brea, I am writing to express our City’s opposition to the action taken by
the Regional Council of the Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) on
November 7, 2019, to approve an alternate Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA)
allocation methodology (the “modified RHNA allocation methodology”). The City requests that 
the California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) direct SCAG to 
reject the modified RHNA allocation methodology and adopt the SCAG staff recommended 
RHNA allocation methodology.

As you know, SCAG is responsible for adopting a RHNA allocation methodology for the six 
southern California counties, including Orange County, for the upcoming 6th cycle of the 
housing element update (2021 to 2029). Pursuant to this obligation, SCAG staff recommended
an allocation methodology formulated following a comprehensive local public input process. 
On October 7, 2019, the SCAG RHNA Subcommittee voted to send the SCAG staff 
recommended RHNA allocation methodology to the SCAG Community, Economic, and Human 
Development (CEHD) Committee, and on October 21, 2019, the CEHD Committee voted
unanimously to recommend that the SCAG Regional Council submit the staff recommended
RHNA allocation methodology to HCD. The SCAG Regional Council, however, approved a
modified RHNA allocation methodology at its November 7, 2019 meeting, upon a substitute 
motion, despite the lack of detail regarding compliance with statutory objectives, associated 
impacts, supporting documentation as to the merit of the proposed changes, and any 
opportunity for meaningful and informed stakeholder input. The modified RHNA allocation 
methodology shifts housing requirements overwhelmingly to Orange County cities. 

Accordingly, on Tuesday, January 21, 2020, the Brea City Council adopted the enclosed 
Resolution for your review. The Resolution opposes the modified RHNA allocation
methodology and requests intervention by HCD to direct SCAG to reconsider its action due to



Mr. Douglas R. McCauley
January 22, 2020
Page 2

the related lack of specificity regarding statutory compliance, unevaluated impacts, lack of 
supporting documentation, lack of vetting by SCAG staff, and near total absence of stakeholder
engagement.

The City requests that HCD determine that the modified RHNA allocation methodology 
submitted by SCAG does not fairly and equitably accomplish the objectives listed in 
Government Code Section 65584(d). The City also asks HCD to take all possible steps, 
including providing comments to SCAG on the methodology selected, recommending the 
adoption of the staff recommended RHNA allocation methodology, and ensuring that the final 
RHNA allocation methodology is formulated with informed local stakeholder input and reflects 
a more reasonable, realistically attainable allocation.

Thank you for your consideration. If you have any questions, please contact Bill Gallardo, City 
Manager at (714) 990-7711.

Sincerely,

Marty Simonoff, Mayor

cc: City of Brea City Council
Bill Gallardo, City Manager
Chris Emeterio, Acting Community Development Director 

Enclosure: Brea City Council Resolution



Agenda Item   25. 
City of Brea

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo, City Manager 

DATE: 01/21/2020

SUBJECT: Adopt Resolutions Authorizing the Director of Public Works to Prepare and File
Reports Relating to Annual Maintenance Assessment in Landscape and Lighting
Maintenance Districts 1 Through 7.

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt Resolutions

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
The Landscape and Lighting Act of 1972 requires that a report be created each year detailing the
proposed improvement, maintenance costs and assessments for each Maintenance District.  The
Act further requires that the administrative body adopt resolutions ordering creation of the
reports.

The Annual Maintenance Assessment Report for each Maintenance District is scheduled to be
presented to City Council for consideration at the April 21,2020 meeting at which time a Public
Hearing date will be recommended prior to approval of the assessment for each District. 
Attached for your consideration are copies of the resolutions authorizing the Director of Public
Works to prepare the reports.

FISCAL IMPACT/SUMMARY
There will be no impact to the General Fund as this activity is funded by Maintenance District
assessments.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by:  Bill Bowlus, Public Works Superintendent
Concurrence:  Tony Olmos, Director of Public Works
 

Attachments
Reso LLMD 1 
Reso LLMD 2 
Reso LLMD 3 
Reso LLMD 4 



Reso LLMD 5 
Reso LLMD 6 
Reso LLMD 7 



RESO NO. 2020-006
January 21, 2020

1

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-006

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BREA ORDERING THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS
TO PREPARE TO FILE A REPORT RELATED TO 
MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS IN CITY OF 
BREA LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT 
DISTRICT NO. 1 AND ANY ASSESSMENTS THEREON 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021

A. RECITALS:

(i) This Council heretofore adopted a resolution forming City of Brea 

Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District No. 1.

(ii) California Streets and Highway Code Section 22622 provides that 

this Council shall adopt a resolution generally describing any proposed new 

improvements or substantial changes in existing improvements in such a district and 

ordering the Director of Public Works to prepare and file a report related to annual 

maintenance and assessments in such a district.

(iii) No new improvements or substantial changes in existing 

improvements are proposed for said Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District No. 1.

(iv) All legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have 

occurred.

B. RESOLUTION:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FOUND, DETERMINED AND RESOLVED by 

the City Council of the City of Brea as follows:

1. In all respects as set forth in the Recitals, Part A, of this resolution.



RESO NO. 2020-006
January 21, 2020

2

2. The Director of Public Works is ordered and directed to prepare an 

annual report as specified in California Streets and Highways Code Section 22622 with 

respect to City of Brea Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District No. 1 for fiscal year 

2020-2021.

3. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of January 2020.

_______________________________
Marty Simonoff, Mayor

ATTEST:______________________________
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk



RESO NO. 2020-006
January 21, 2020

3

I, Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the foregoing 

Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Council of the City of Brea, held on 

the 21st day of January 2020 by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAINED: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Dated:_____________________________

______________________________
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 



RESO NO. 2020-007
January 21, 2020

1

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-007

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BREA ORDERING THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 
TO PREPARE TO FILE A REPORT RELATED TO 
MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS IN CITY OF 
BREA LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 AND 
ANY ASSESSMENTS THEREON FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-
2021

A. RECITALS:

(i) This Council heretofore adopted a resolution forming City of Brea

Lighting Assessment District No. 2.

(ii) California Streets and Highway Code Section 22622 provides that 

this Council shall adopt a resolution generally describing any proposed new 

improvements or substantial changes in existing improvements in such a district and 

ordering the Director of Public Works to prepare and file a report related to annual 

maintenance and assessments in such a district.

(iii) No new improvements or substantial changes in existing 

improvements are proposed for said Lighting Assessment District No. 2.

(iv) All legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have 

occurred.

B. RESOLUTION:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FOUND, DETERMINED AND 

RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Brea as follows:

1. In all respects as set forth in the Recitals, Part A, of this resolution.



RESO NO. 2020-007
January 21, 2020

2

2. The Director of Public Works is ordered and directed to prepare an 

annual report as specified in California Streets and Highways Code Section 22622 with 

respect to City of Brea Lighting Assessment District No. 2 for fiscal year 2020-2021.

3. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of January 2020.

_______________________________
Marty Simonoff, Mayor

ATTEST:_________________________
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk

I, Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the foregoing 

Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Council of the City of Brea, held on 

the 21st day of January 2020 by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAINED: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Dated:_____________________________

______________________________



RESO NO. 2020-007
January 21, 2020

3

Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 



RESO NO. 2020-008
January 21, 2020

1

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-008

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BREA ORDERING THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS
TO PREPARE TO FILE A REPORT RELATED TO 
MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS IN CITY OF 
BREA LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT 
DISTRICT NO. 3 AND ANY ASSESSMENTS THEREON 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021

A. RECITALS:

(i) This Council heretofore adopted a resolution forming City of Brea 

Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District No. 3.

(ii) California Streets and Highway Code Section 22622 provides that 

this Council shall adopt a resolution generally describing any proposed new 

improvements or substantial changes in existing improvements in such a district and 

ordering the Director of Public Works to prepare and file a report related to annual 

maintenance and assessments in such a district.

(iii) No new improvements or substantial changes in existing 

improvements are proposed for said Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District No. 3.

(iv) All legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have 

occurred.

B. RESOLUTION:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FOUND, DETERMINED AND RESOLVED by 

the City Council of the City of Brea as follows:

1. In all respects as set forth in the Recitals, Part A, of this resolution.



RESO NO. 2020-008
January 21, 2020

2

2. The Director of Public Works is ordered and directed to prepare an 

annual report as specified in California Streets and Highways Code Section 22622 with 

respect to City of Brea Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District No. 3 for fiscal year 

2020-2021.

3. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of January 2020.

__________________________________
Marty Simonoff, Mayor

ATTEST:__________________________
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk



RESO NO. 2020-008
January 21, 2020

3

I, Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the foregoing 

Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Council of the City of Brea, held on 

the 21st day of January 2020 by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAINED: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Dated:_____________________________

______________________________
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 



RESO NO. 2020-009
January 21, 2020

1

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-009

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BREA ORDERING THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 
TO PREPARE TO FILE A REPORT RELATED TO 
MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS IN CITY OF 
BREA LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 4 AND 
ANY ASSESSMENTS THEREON FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-
2021

A. RECITALS:

(i) This Council heretofore adopted a resolution forming City of Brea 

Lighting Assessment District No. 4.

(ii) California Streets and Highway Code Section 22622 provides that 

this Council shall adopt a resolution generally describing any proposed new 

improvements or substantial changes in existing improvements in such a district and 

ordering the Director of Public Works to prepare and file a report related to annual 

maintenance and assessments in such a district.

(iii) No new improvements or substantial changes in existing 

improvements are proposed for said Lighting Assessment District No. 4.

(iv) All legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have 

occurred.

B. RESOLUTION:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FOUND, DETERMINED AND RESOLVED by 

the City Council of the City of Brea as follows:

1. In all respects as set forth in the Recitals, Part A, of this resolution.



RESO NO. 2020-009
January 21, 2020

2

2. The Director of Public Works is ordered and directed to prepare an 

annual report as specified in California Streets and Highways Code Section 22622 with 

respect to City of Brea Lighting Assessment District No. 4 for fiscal year 2020-2021.

3. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of January 2020.

__________________________________
Marty Simonoff, Mayor

ATTEST:______________________________
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk

I, Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the foregoing 

Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Council of the City of Brea, held on 

the 21st day of January 2020 by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAINED: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Dated:_____________________________

______________________________
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk



RESO NO. 2020-010
January 21, 2020

1

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-010

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BREA ORDERING THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 
TO PREPARE TO FILE A REPORT RELATED TO 
MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS IN CITY OF 
BREA LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT 
DISTRICT NO. 5 AND ANY ASSESSMENTS THEREON 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021

A. RECITALS:

(i) This Council heretofore adopted a resolution forming City of Brea 

Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District No. 5.

(ii) California Streets and Highway Code Section 22622 provides that 

this Council shall adopt a resolution generally describing any proposed new 

improvements or substantial changes in existing improvements in such a district and 

ordering the Director of Public Works to prepare and file a report related to annual 

maintenance and assessments in such a district.

(iii) No new improvements or substantial changes in existing 

improvements are proposed for said Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District No. 5.

(iv) All legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have 

occurred.

B. RESOLUTION:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FOUND, DETERMINED AND RESOLVED by 

the City Council of the City of Brea as follows:

1. In all respects as set forth in the Recitals, Part A, of this resolution.



RESO NO. 2020-010
January 21, 2020

2

2. The Director of Public Works is ordered and directed to prepare an 

annual report as specified in California Streets and Highways Code Section 22622 with 

respect to City of Brea Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District No. 5 for fiscal year 

2020-2021.

3. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of January 2020.

_________________________________
Marty Simonoff, Mayor

ATTEST:__________________________
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk

I, Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the foregoing 

Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Council of the City of Brea, held on 

the 21st day of January 2020 by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAINED: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Dated:_____________________________

______________________________
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 



RESO NO. 2020-011
January 21, 2020

1

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-011

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BREA ORDERING THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 
TO PREPARE TO FILE A REPORT RELATED TO 
MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS IN CITY OF 
BREA LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT 
DISTRICT NO. 6 AND ANY ASSESSMENTS THEREON 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021

A. RECITALS:

(i) This Council heretofore adopted a resolution forming City of Brea 

Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District No. 6.

(ii) California Streets and Highway Code Section 22622 provides that 

this Council shall adopt a resolution generally describing any proposed new 

improvements or substantial changes in existing improvements in such a district and 

ordering the Director of Public Works to prepare and file a report related to annual 

maintenance and assessments in such a district.

(iii) No new improvements or substantial changes in existing 

improvements are proposed for said Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District No. 6.

(iv) All legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have 

occurred.

B. RESOLUTION:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FOUND, DETERMINED AND RESOLVED by 

the City Council of the City of Brea as follows:

1. In all respects as set forth in the Recitals, Part A, of this resolution.

2. The Director of Public Works is ordered and directed to prepare an 



RESO NO. 2020-011
January 21, 2020

2

annual report as specified in California Streets and Highways Code Section 22622 with 

respect to City of Brea Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District No. 6 for fiscal year 

2020-2021.

3. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of January 2020.

_________________________________
Marty Simonoff, Mayor

ATTEST:___________________________
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk

I, Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the foregoing 

Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Council of the City of Brea, held on

the 21st day of January 2020 by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAINED: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Dated:_____________________________

______________________________
Lillian Harris=Neal, City Clerk



RESO NO. 2020-012
January 21, 2020

1

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-012

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BREA ORDERING THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 
TO PREPARE TO FILE A REPORT RELATED TO 
MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS IN CITY OF 
BREA LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT 
DISTRICT NO. 7 AND ANY ASSESSMENTS THEREON 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021

A. RECITALS:

(i) This Council heretofore adopted a resolution forming City of Brea 

Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District No. 7.

(ii) California Streets and Highway Code Section 22622 provides that 

this Council shall adopt a resolution generally describing any proposed new 

improvements or substantial changes in existing improvements in such a district and 

ordering the Director of Public Works to prepare and file a report related to annual 

maintenance and assessments in such a district.

(iii) No new improvements or substantial changes in existing 

improvements are proposed for said Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District No. 7.

(iv) All legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have 

occurred.

B. RESOLUTION:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FOUND, DETERMINED AND RESOLVED by 

the City Council of the City of Brea as follows:

1. In all respects as set forth in the Recitals, Part A, of this resolution.

2. The Director of Public Works is ordered and directed to prepare an 



RESO NO. 2020-012
January 21, 2020

2

annual report as specified in California Streets and Highways Code Section 22622 with 

respect to City of Brea Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District No. 7 for fiscal year 

2020-2021.

3. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of January 2020.

_________________________________
Marty Simonoff, Mayor

ATTEST:______________________________
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk

I, Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the foregoing 

Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Council of the City of Brea, held on 

the 21st day of January 2020 by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAINED: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Dated:_____________________________

______________________________
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk



Agenda Item   26. 
City of Brea

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo, City Manager 

DATE: 01/21/2020

SUBJECT: Agreement with Linscott Law & Greenspan for City Traffic Engineering Services

RECOMMENDATION
Approve Professional Services Agreement with Linscott, Law & Greenspan Engineers in
the amount not-to-exceed $150,000 per year for a period of three (3) years with three (3)
optional one (1) year extensions and include a one time not-to-exceed fee of $23,500 to
prepare the Cliffwood Neighborhood Traffic Calming Study; and

1.

Authorize City Manager to approve and execute extension(s).2.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
The City’s contract City Traffic Engineer is responsible for reviewing and evaluating traffic
requests; designing and implementing traffic safety enhancements and transportation
improvements; coordinating multi-jurisdictional traffic signal synchronization projects; monitoring
and overseeing the operations of the Traffic Management Center and reviewing Traffic Impact
Reports for private development.  The City Traffic Engineer works closely with the Community
Development, Police and Public Works Departments, prepares staff reports and makes
presentations to the Traffic Committee.

On June 4, 2019, the City Council approved a Professional Services Agreement with Albert
Grover and Associates (AGA) for City Traffic Engineering Services for an amount not to exceed
$150,000 per year for a period of three (3) years with three (3) optional one (1) year extensions. 

The City’s selection of AGA to provide City Traffic Engineering services was substantially based
on AGA’s offer to provide Mr. David Roseman, Principal Transportation Engineer, as the contract
Traffic Engineer for the City.  Mr. Roseman is a registered Traffic Engineer with over thirty years
of experience and he currently provides similar services to the City of Cypress.  Prior to working
for AGA, Mr. Roseman was the top transportation official and City Traffic Engineer for the City of
Long Beach for thirteen years overseeing all aspects of transportation, traffic and parking.  In that
role he regularly attended City Council, Planning Commission, neighborhood and other agency
meetings. 

Prior to his tenure at Long Beach, Mr. Roseman worked for the City of Los Angeles Department
of Transportation (LADOT) for fourteen years where he directed and supervised a staff of
engineers and planners in conducting traffic operations and the development and implementation
of major transportation improvement projects.
 
Mr. Roseman has been working at City Hall on a part-time basis over the past six months
averaging about twelve hours per week.  Mr. Roseman has become familiar with the City and its



averaging about twelve hours per week.  Mr. Roseman has become familiar with the City and its
processes and has made significant contributions in reviewing development proposals, assisting
in capital projects, conducting safety reviews, and making operational changes to the City’s
traffic signal system. Mr. Roseman has also made presentations to the Traffic Committee,
represented the City at inter-agency meetings, and worked with businesses and the public on
traffic safety issues. 
 
On October 15, 2019, the City Council approved Amendment No. 1 with AGA for the Cliffwood
Comprehensive Neighborhood Traffic Calming Study.  This amendment added an additional
$23,500 to the AGA contract to conduct meetings with the Cliffwood working group; perform
traffic investigations; and develop a comprehensive plan of traffic calming recommendations for
implementation.  For  reference, see the attached proposal from AGA dated September 18,
2019.  Mr. Roseman has begun work on this study effort, and has met with the working group
twice and is expected to have a draft list of recommendations to present to the resident working
group in February 2020.
 
Shortly after approval of Amendment No. 1, AGA’s founder, CEO, and President, Albert Grover,
suddenly passed away.  Mr. Grover’s passing has led to a change in company ownership and
management structure.  As a result of these changes, Mr. Roseman chose to end his
employment with AGA at the end of November 2019.  Mr. Roseman has since accepted an
Associate Principal position with Linscott, Law & Greenspan Engineers (LLG) in their Pasadena
office on December 1, 2019.  LLG is a transportation engineering consulting firm that provides
similar services to those provided by AGA, however, they are an employee owned firm that is
significantly larger than AGA with four offices serving the Southern California region.  LLG also
has a long history with the City of Brea having successfully performed numerous traffic studies
for the City.
 
With Mr. Roseman transitioning to LLG, staff believes that the best option for the City would be to
retain Mr. Roseman under a new contract with LLG rather than seek out a replacement traffic
engineer from AGA.  Mr. Roseman has proven very effective and resourceful during his time with
the City and he has been well received by Traffic Committee members, staff, and the public. 
Staff also believes that it's best to have Mr. Roseman complete the Cliffwood Comprehensive
Neighborhood Traffic Calming Study under LLG since it would be difficult to transition a new
traffic engineer at this stage of the study.
 
Mr. Roseman’s billing rate at AGA was $225 per hour.  Staff has successfully negotiated with
LLG to lower his billing rate to $220 per hour.  The PSA with LLG includes both the scope for
annual City Traffic Engineer Services and the Cliffwood Compressive Neighborhood Traffic
Calming Study.  Upon approval of this item, staff will begin the contractual termination process
with AGA as necessary.

COMMISSION/COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
The Finance Committee reviewed staff’s recommendation at their January 14, 2020 meeting and
recommended to proceed.
 

FISCAL IMPACT/SUMMARY
Staff proposes to have Mr. Roseman available 12 hours per week at a rate of $220 per hour for a



Staff proposes to have Mr. Roseman available 12 hours per week at a rate of $220 per hour for a
not-to-exceed annual cost of $150,000.  This annual cost is for day-to-day traffic engineering
services.  Traffic engineering services related to private development would be paid through the
Cost Center funded by private developers. 

Mr. Roseman formally left AGA in late November 2019; a temporary purchase order was created
to bridge this transition and consideration of this PSA.  Since Mr. Roseman began work on
the Cliffwood Comprehensive Neighborhood Traffic Calming Study after leaving AGA, no funds
are due to AGA for the traffic study.  

Funds for the scope of this PSA have been previously approved by the City Council and no
additional funds are requested at this time.  There is no impact to the General Fund. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by:  Michael Ho, P.E., Deputy Director of Public Works / City Engineer
Concurrence:  Tony Olmos, P.E., Director of Public Works

Attachments
Agreement 
AGA - Cliffwood Scope of Work 



































ALBERT
GROVER& 

ASSOCIATES

September 18, 2019

Mr. Michael Ho, RE

Deputy Director of Public Works/ City Engineer
City of Brea
Public Works Department —Engineering Division
1 Civic& Cultural Center

Brea, California 92821- 5732

RE: Neighborhood Traffic Calming Study

Dear Mr. Ho: 

Albert Grover & Associates, Inc. (AGA) is pleased to present to the City of Brea this letter proposal
to provide professional transportation engineering services to evaluate traffic operations and
various traffic calming conceptsfor the neighborhoods loosely bounded by Lambert Fbad on the
south, Brea Boulevard on the west, and the CA -57 freeway on the east. This proposal is based on
our understanding of residents' concerns as expressed the at the initial meeting of the Fbsident
Working Group, subsequent discussions with staff of the Engineering Division and the Police
Department, and afield visit. 

We at AGA have successfully conducted many such neighborhood traffic calming studiesfor cities
throughout Southern California. With this proposal, we commit to having this study effort led by
Mr. David Fbseman, Principal Transportation Engineer. Mr. Fbseman is a registered Traffic

Engineer in California and he has extensive experience in conducting neighborhood traffic
calming efforts, having personally worked closely with various neighborhoods in both in the City
of Los Angeles as a Senior Engineer, and in the City of Long Beach as the Traffic and
Transportation Administrator. Asthe AGA Project Manager, Mr. Fbsemanwill personally oversee
the variouswork tasks outlined here within and he will be the primary point of contact with both
the City and the Resident Working Group. He will be supported in this effort by a team of
engineers and technicians out of AGNs Fullerton office. Traffic data collection gathered asa part

of this study effort will either be completed by AGA technicians or National Data and surveying
Services (NDS). 

l:Z] LX 19 11. LVL] VLe

The Qty has been engaged in traffic calming study and implementation efforts along Qiffwood
Avenue for a number of years. Those efforts, which were led by another traffic engineering
consulting firm, resulted in data gathering effort and development of a number of traffic control

Albert Grover & Associates, I nc. 

211 Imperial Highway, Suite208, Fullerton, CA 92835
714) 992- 2990 FAX ( 714) 992- 2883 E - Mail: aga@albertgrover. com



Mr. Michael Ho, RE

September 18, 2019

Page 2

recommendations. Upon implementation of the recommended traffic controls as a six-month

pilot program, it became dear that residents had mixed feelings about the effectiveness and

appropriateness of the changes implemented. Ultimately it was decided by the City to end the
pilot program early, remove the associated traffic controls, and take a fresh look at possible
trafficcalming measuresfor not only Qiffwood Avenue, but also the larger residential community
north of Lambert Fbad and east of Brea Boulevard. In order to ensure that the City receives
adequate input and feedback on potential traffic calming measures and strategies, a Resident
Working Group (Group), comprised of residentsfrom throughout the larger neighborhood area, 
hasbeen assembled. TheAGAproject team isexpected to listen to input from the Group, conduct
appropriate traffic studiesand analyses, develop recommendations for consideration, and assist
the Group in reaching a consensus on a recommended traffic calming action plan which can be
presented to the Traffic Committee and ultimately to Qty Council for consideration and
subsequent implementation. 

PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK

In order to provide the Qty with a comprehensive review of existing traffic operations and the
development of traffic calming and safety enhancement recommendations, we at AGA have
developed a five -tasked scope of work as outlined below: 

TASK 1: Coordination Meetings and Project Management

The AGA Project Manager will be the primary contact with the Qty and be responsible for
adherence to the project schedule, as well as maintaining quality control of all project work
products. The Project Manager will do everything necessary to ensure that the project is
completed on time, within budget, and in a manner that fulfills the goals and objectives of the

Qty. The Project Manager will also coordinate and lead the discussion at up to four Pesident
Working Group meetings. It will be the role of the Project Manager to inform, educate, 
recommend, and intently listen to residents at the meetings in an attempt to bring all parties to
a general consensus on traffic calming strategies and measures that could be implemented to
reduce cut -through and commuter traffic, reduce commercial traffic on residential streets, 

improve accessto schools, reduce traffic speeds, enhance safety, and improve the quality of life
for residents. 

TASK 2: Review of Previous Studies and Documentation

Although the Project Manager is familiar with the history related to the traffic calming efforts of
the past, it is important that he review all the previous study efforts and data. In order to truly
start a fresh, it is important to have a thorough understanding from whence we have all come. It
isthrough this comprehensive deep dive into the data and documentation that is readily available
that a new course of study and analysis can come forth. It will also be important for the Project
Manager to review more recent collision records to determine if crash trends can be identified. 

A l_13 ERT
GDROVER & 

WSOCIATE.S



Mr. Michael Ho, RE

September 18, 2019

Page 3

It is through this task that the Project Manager will determine the need for further study and
data collection. 

TASK 3: Engineering Field Review

The Project Manager will conduct field reviews of key roadway segments to observe roadway
and environmental conditions, lighting, access points, traffic controls, traffic flow, motorist
behavior, pedestrian and bicycle activity, and a number of other physical characteristics that
could affect motorist behavior. It is likely that the he will conduct multiple field reviews to
observe traffic, pedestrian, and cyclist activity at different times of the day. It is typical that the
first review will take an extended period of time as various traffic controls, infrastructure

elements, and physical characteristics are appropriately reviewed and documented. The

following field reviews typically are less time consuming as they will primarily concentrate on
driver, cyclist, and pedestrian behavior at various times of the day. He will also pay special
attention to the arrival and dismissal periodsfor the schools in the area. 

During thefield review process, the Project Manager will consider varioustraffic safety measures
and strategies that could be deployed. He will also assesstheir probability for success. Such field
visits by experienced senior level staff are key to the development of recommendations and
strategies which enhance public safety and have a high probability of success in calming traffic, 
addressing commercial traffic issues, and enhancing public safety. Based on the extensive
discussion at the initial Group meeting regarding traffic conditions on State College Boulevard — 
speclfically, motorists running red lights—the Project Manager will pay special attention to that
arterial in order to determine. He will also conduct a safety assessment of the State College
Boulevard/ Cliffwood Avenue and the State College Boulevard/ Balsa Avenue intersections to

determine if modificationsto the two traffic signals and their operation could enhance safety. As
a minimum, this assessment will consider if left -turn arrows are needed and if the two signals

can be operated in such a manner to control speeds. 

TASK 4: Gathering of Traffic Data

Based on thefindingsfrom Task #2 and Task #3, a data collection plan will be developed to gather

the necessary traffic data needed for the analysis conducted in Task # 5. It is clear that traffic
volume and turning movement counts will be needed at the two signalized intersections along
State College Boulevard in order to complete the safety assessments. Other possible traffic data
which may be gathered include traffic volume counts, pedestrian counts, bicycle counts, turning
movement counts, traffic classification studies, speed surveys, and license plate studies. 

TASK 5: Development of Traffic Calming Strategies and Traffic Control Recommendations

Based on input from the Group, the field observations, and traffic data collected, the Project
Manager, in consultation with key City representatives, will develop a series of traffic calming
strategies and traffic control recommendations. Strategies could include, but not be limited to, 

A l_13 ERT
GDROVER & 

WSOCIATE.S



Mr. Michael Ho, RE

September 18, 2019

Page 4

modified trafficsignal operations, modified school zone ci rculat ion, commercial vehicle out reach, 

motorist education, and focused enforcement efforts. Traff i c cont rol measures could indude, but

not be limited to, traffic signal modifications, signage and striping changes, school zone
modifications, adjustments to speed limits, parking changes, commercial vehicle prohibitions, 
pedestrian and cyclist enhancements, and alternative traffic calming devices. It is likely that the
Project Manager will develop multiple recommendations, or improvement scenarios, for
consideration by the Group. Asthe Group provides input and feedback to the various options, it
is likely that additional technical analysis might need to be conducted to assess and confirm the
best possible set of recommendations which can be assembled into a single Traffic Calming
Action Ran for the neighborhood. 

TASK 6: Final Study Report

Once a general consensus is reached with the Qty and a super -majority of the Group with respect
to the Traffic Calming Action Ran, AGAwill complete a Final Study Fbport. The Fbport will be in
the form of a technical memorandum which will document the relevant traffic data, analyses, 

recommendations, benefits, estimated costs, and counterpoints. The memorandum will be

written in plain English and be appropriate for distribution to both members of the public and

Qty decision makers. 

TASK 7: Presentation of Final Study Report to the Traffic Committee and City Council

At the direction of the Oty, the Project Manager will be available to present the findings, 
recommendations, and proposed Traffic Calming Action Ran outlined in the Final Study Report
to both the Traffic Committee and the Oty ODuncil. Should either political body request changes
to the Final Study Peport, those changeswill be made at no additional cost. 

Additional Services

The scope of work provided above includes up to four Pesident Working Group Meetings, one
Traffic Committee Meeting, and one Oty Council Meeting. The scope of work does not include
the presentation of the findings and recommendations of the study effort at a neighborhood or
community meeting. However, should the Oty desire that the AGA project manager be available
for additional Resident Working Group meetings or a community meeting to present the study
findingsand recommendations, that can be arranged for an additional fee of $1, 000 per meeting, 
which includes not only costs related to attendance at the meeting, but all costs related to the
preparation of presentation or handout materials. 

Should you have any questions regarding this proposal, please feel free to call contact me or
Mr. Fdeseman at ( 714) 992-2990. We look forward to working with the Qty on this important
neighborhood quality of life project. 

A l_13 ERT
GDROVER & 

WSOCIATE.S



Mr. Michael Ho, RE

September 18, 2019

Page 5

Respectfully submitted, 

ALBERT ASSOCIATES

V
Mark H. Miller, RE, TE, RT.O.E

Executive Vice President

A l_13 ERT
R( 7V SR
ASSOC1AATTE.S



ALBERT
GROVER& 

WSOCIATES

PROJECT SCHEDULE

AGA is prepared to begin work on this project within two weeks of notice -to -proceed. We expect

to have the majority of the work associated with Tasks 2through 5 completed within two months
thereafter. However, it is uncertain just how long it will take for the Group to reach a general
consensus on a Traffic Calming Action Plan. It is anticipated that the consensus building effort
will take a number of meetings along with iterative efforts to conduct research and field
investigations aimed at addressing resident concerns about the plan and to answer questions. 
Once a general consensus is reached, it isanticipated that the Final Report outlined in Task 6 can

be submitted to the Oty three weeks thereafter. 

COST PROPOSAL

All feesoutlined below are lump sum, not -to -exceed fees based on the scope of work asoutlined
here within. 

Work Task Description Cost

1 Coordination Meetings& Project Management ( not -to -exceed) 6,500

2 Review of Previous Studies and Documentation (not -to -exceed) 1, 500

3 Engineering Field Review (not -to -exceed) 2,500

4 Gathering of Traffic Data (not -to -exceed) 4,000

5
Development of Traffic Calming Strategies and Traffic Control Recommendations
not -to -exceed) 

6,500

6 Final Study Fbport ( not -to -exceed) 2,500

TOTAL: 23,500

Albert Grover & Associates, I nc. 

211 Imperial Highway, Suite208, Fullerton, CA 92835
714) 992- 2990 FAX ( 714) 992- 2883 E - Mail: aga@albertgrover. com



TASK 1: Coordination Meetings & Project Management

POSTION RATE HOURS TOTAL

Principal Engineer $ 225 30 6, 750

TOTAL 30 6, 750

SAY 6, 500

TASK 2: Review of Previous Studies and Documentation

POSTION RATE HOURS TOTAL

Principal Engineer $ 225 6 1, 350

Associate Engineer $ 125 2 250

TOTAL 8 1, 600

SAY 1, 500

TASK 3: Engineering Field Review
POSTION RATE HOURS TOTAL

Principal Engineer $ 225 12 2, 700

TOTAL 12 2, 700

SAY 2, 500

TASK 4: Gathering of Traffic Data
POSTION RATE HOURS TOTAL

Data Collection* 3, 500* 

Associate Engineer $ 125 4 500

TOTAL 4 4, 000

TASK 5: Development of Traffic Calming Strategies and

Traffic Control Recommendations

POSTION RATE HOURS TOTAL

Principal Engineer $ 225 16 3, 600

Associate Engineer $ 125 24 3, 000

TOTAL 40 6, 600

SAY 6, 500

TASK 6: Final Study Report and Presentations
POSTION RATE HOURS TOTAL

Principal Engineer $ 225 8 1, 800

Associate Engineer $ 125 6 750

TOTAL 14 2, 550

SAY 2, 500

GRAND TOTAL 23, 500

May not be needed



Agenda Item   27. 
City of Brea

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo, City Manager 

DATE: 01/21/2020

SUBJECT: Construction Contract for Civic Center Security System Improvement Project No.
7954

RECOMMENDATION
Award a construction contract to PeopleSpace for $178,649.50 for the installation of glass
demountable walls and doors; and

1.

Authorize City Engineer to approve change orders up to 10% of the contract amount.2.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
At the June 18, 2019 City Council meeting, the City Council approved an agreement with
Calabrese Architect to prepare design development drawings for the Civic Center Security
System Improvement Project No. 7954 (Security Project).
 
The scope of the project includes the installation of a number of doors behind the public counters
to close off open aisles in order to prevent unauthorized public access to the “back-of-house.”  In
addition, the project would also install a glass partition wall from the 3rd floor lobby area to the
Executive Conference Room to isolate a path that will be used for after-hour access to the
Executive Conference Room for meetings, such as City Council Closed and Study Sessions. 
Finally, in an effort to free up additional space for employee workstations and to make practical
use of public counter space, the project will also add additional walls to close the Economic
Development counter, relocate Administrative Services counter staff to the current Community
Services public counter area and add a wall to close off the vacated Administrative Services
counter. 
 
In working with the architect and staff, it was determined that the most feasible and efficient way
to achieve the project scope was to utilize the "turnkey" services from PeopleSpace to install the
demountable walls and doors.  Staff recommends awarding a sole source contact for this work to
PeopleSpace for continuity and to provide seamless coordination with the pending Civic
Center 3rd Floor Furniture Remodel project since PeopleSpace is also the approved vendor for
that project.  In addition, by having the same company, the design team ensures fit and
compatibility which reduces time and eliminates errors often found when placing furniture and
new walls.  Staff will be working directly with a separate division within PeopleSpace that
specializes in demountable walls, doors and hardware that is specifically needed for the Security
Project.  
  
There are other components to the Security Project that are not part of this item.  For
informational purposes, the Director of Public Works will review bids and execute contracts for
the installation of electronic access control components and for any other incidental



the installation of electronic access control components and for any other incidental
items required for the overall Security Project.  Since each of these projects is not expected
to exceed $60,000, the Director of Public Works can execute contracts within his contract
approval authority provided under the City's Purchasing Ordinance. 

The overall Security Project is estimated to cost approximately $259,000 ($178,649.50 for walls
and doors, $60,000 for access control and $20,000 for incidentals).  Any workstation
reconfigurations at the public counters or construction of private offices are not included in these
costs

COMMISSION/COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
The Finance Committee reviewed staff’s recommendation at their January 14, 2020 meeting and
recommended to proceed.

FISCAL IMPACT/SUMMARY
There are sufficient funds in Capital Improvement Program Project No. 7954 to fund the
proposed scope of services.  The approved CIP project budget of $600,000 is funded by the
Fixed Asset Replacement Program.  There will be no General Fund impact.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by:  Michael Ho, P.E., Deputy Director of Public Works / City Engineer
Concurrence: Tony Olmos, P.E., Director of Public Works

Attachments
PeopleSpace Proposal 
Agreement 



BUDGETARY PROPOSAL FOR:

www.PeopleSpace.com

1 Civic Center Circle, 3rd Floor, Brea, CA 92821
REVISION-04  01/07/2020

Qty. Unit Price Ext. Price

Demountable Walls per the Attached Drawings. 1 $165,800.00 $165,800.00

ALTERNATIVE 1: Solid Wood Doors in Lieu of Aluminum-Glass Doors. 1 -$3,500.00 (not included)

HAWORTH ENCLOSE® SUBTOTAL: $165,800.00

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

SALES TAX - Orange County @ 7.750% $12,849.50

FREIGHT (included) $0.00

GRAND TOTAL $178,649.50

17800 Mitchell North, Irvine, CA  92614

 T :  949.724.9444 │ F: 949.724.9449

811 SW 6th Avenue, Suite 400, Portland, OR  97204

 T :  503.205.2200 │ F: 503.534.0200

444 South Flower Street, #200, Los Angeles, CA  90071

 T :  310.726.9067 │ F: 310.726.9066

705 5th Avenue S, Seattle, WA  98104

 T :  949.724.9444 │ F: 949.724.9449

Budgetary Proposal Prepared for Eric Aulls of City of Brea by:

Dave Merrill │ (949) 724-9444  │  DMerrill@PeopleSpace.com

Work Area to be Left in Broom-Clean Condition.

This Proposal is Valid for 30-Days and is Subject to PeopleSpace's Standard Terms & Conditions.

EXCLUDING THE FOLLOWING:

CITY OF BREA CITY HALL

HAWORTH ENCLOSE®

Approximately (225) Lineal Feet of Demountable Walls Including Doors at 09'-00" High to Drop

Ceiling Grid & 09'-06" High to Concrete Beams.

Trim Finish: Manufacturer's Standard Powdercoat Selection, Grade-A TBD.

Glazing: 3/8" (10mm) Tempered Standard Clear Glass.

Doors: Full-Height and Transom-Height Butt-Hinged Aluminum-Glass with Grade-1

ADA Leversets.

Delivery & Installation Shall Occur Weekdays During Normal Business Hours.

Includes Prevailing Wage Labor.

Excludes Jobsite Parking Fees.

INCLUDING THE FOLLOWING:

MANUFACTURER'S LEAD-TIME: Approximately 10-12 Weeks Upon Your P.O., Deposit, and Signed-Off Shop Drawings.

Excludes After-Hours, Weekend, or Holiday Delivery & Installation.

Excludes Union Labor.

Excludes Engineering Calculations, Wet-Stamped Drawings, Permitting, or Inspection Fees.

Excludes Stair-Carry or Window Conveyance of Materials.

Excludes Reconsignment, Double-Handling, or Storage of Materials Due to Construction

or Schedule Delays.

Excludes Glass Manufacturer's Energy Surcharge Escalation.

Excludes Construction Payment Management (CPM) Fees.

Excludes Any Tariff Surcharges Imposed After the Date of this Budgetary Proposal.

Excludes Construction Project Commissioning Costs.

Excludes Seismic Bracing Above Header to Building Structure.

Excludes Ceiling Grid Rework and Cutting of Acoustic Ceiling tiles.

Excludes Xray or Radar Scanning of Slabs.

Page 1 of 9



1/7/2020 7:42:17 AMDrawn by Dave Merrill,
c:\Users\dmerrill\Interior Office Solutions\AT-Space - Documents\Clients (Active)\A - E\Brea
City Hall 3rd Floor (Aug 2019)\_DRAWINGS - CANVAS\Brea City Hall (REV4 1-6-20).cmdrw

3rd Floor Demountable Walls
1 Civic Center Circle, 3rd Floor

Brea, CA 92821

CITY OF BREA CITY HALL

Page 2 of 9



1/7/2020 7:42:19 AMDrawn by Dave Merrill,

3rd Floor Demountable WallsCITY OF BREA CITY HALL

c:\Users\dmerrill\Interior Office Solutions\AT-Space - Documents\Clients (Active)\A - E\Brea
City Hall 3rd Floor (Aug 2019)\_DRAWINGS - CANVAS\Brea City Hall (REV4 1-6-20).cmdrw

1 Civic Center Circle, 3rd Floor
Brea, CA 92821

Page 3 of 9



c:\Users\dmerrill\Interior Office Solutions\AT-Space - Documents\Clients (Active)\A - E\Brea
City Hall 3rd Floor (Aug 2019)\_DRAWINGS - CANVAS\Brea City Hall (REV4 1-6-20).cmdrw

1/7/2020 7:42:19 AM1 Civic Center Circle, 3rd Floor
Brea, CA 92821

Drawn by Dave Merrill,

3rd Floor Demountable WallsCITY OF BREA CITY HALL

Page 4 of 9



PRINTER NODE/

TECH

STORAGE

COM S

S75
-24

-01
S75-24-01

S75-24

COM S

MGMT

COM S

14'-7"

MGMT

SEAN MATLOCK

COMMUNITY SERVICES M.R.

MGMT

LILLIAN HARRIS NEIL

CITY CLERK
19'-6"

STORAGE

VAULT

5'-4
4

2

4'-7"

2'-7
2

STAFF

"

FIN

6'-4
4
"

14'-8

FINFIN

"

FIN

4

ADAM HAWLEY

GREGG HAYDEN

HR

HR

"

RANDY HORNSBY

S75-24-01

IT

14'-9

3

5'-5"

ITIT

HR HR

PRINTER NODE

14'-8"

STORAGE

2'-6"

STORAGE

STAFF

IT

CYNTHIA RUSSEL

FAITH MADRAZO

MARIO MALDONADO

FILES/STORAGE

ITIT

ADMIN

HR

FINANCE DIR

9'-5

FINANCE

PRINTERS

COPIERS

HR

HR

HR

NIC

COMMUNITY SERVICES

4

NIC

FINANCE

9'-6

EX
T. IT S

TA
FF

2 CARRIE HERNANDEZ

PHILIP SQUIRE

FIN

3

S75-24

"

S7
5-

24
-0

1
S7

5-
24

29
"H

"

IT

"

R
N

-3
63

6

HUDDLE

IT

PRINTER NODE

COLLAB

ADMIN N/A

IT

WALL PLACEMENT TBD

S75-24-01

MGMT

29
"H

CONF

PLAN CHECKER

ENG

PW

ADMIN
PW

PW STORAGE

PERMIT TECH

PLAN

PLAN

PW

SPACE FOR FUTURE OFFICE

ADMIN

ADMIN

PLAN

PLAN

PLAN

ADMIN

ADMIN

ENG

BLDG

ADMIN

ADMIN

ROLLED PLANS

STORAGE

6' GAIL EVERTSEN

COLLABPRINTER NODE COLLAB
FILE/

TV
R

N
-3

63
6-

LJ
SN

XG
4A

RN-36
36

FILE/

4'-7

HEALTH

ADMIN

ADMIN

MGMT

5'-4"

COM S

2

MGMT

MGMT

"5'-10

TECH

FILE/

MGMT

MGMT

MGMT

INTERN

COM S COLLAB

MGMT

COLLAB

TECH

MGMT

GENREAL NOTE:  NEW WALL PLACEMENT TBD

5'-7"

FILE/

COM S

MGMT COM S

COMMUNIT

BLDG

INSPECTOR

BLDG

PRINTER NODE

ADMIN

S75
-24

TVRN-36
36

-LJ
SNXG4A

S75
-24

PRINTER NODE

BLDG

BLDG

COM S
ADMIN

4'-11

HENRY M

PW

4

PW

PW

"

ENG

PLOTTER

3'-8"

PW

PLAN

PL
A
N

 W
A
LL

PRINTER NODE

4'-9"

BLDG

HUDDLE

PLAN

PLAN

ADMIN

FIN

FIN

4

BLDG

FIN

KIT

"

DAVID CRA

ADMIN

EX
T. IT S

TA
FF

S75
-24

-01
S75-24CONF

5'

FIN

FIN

STORAGE

ACCT

5'-8"

PRINTER NODE

ACCT

ACCT

ACCT

G

H

A

D

I

B
C

K

J

L

E

F

SI
TE

 D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

 2
4'

 -1
"

SITE DIMENSION 43' -8-1/2"

3'
 -0

"

SITE DIM.
4' -9"

3' -0"

5'
 -0

"

SITE DIM.
4' -7-1/2"

SITE DIMENSION 13' -11"

4' -11"

SI
TE

 D
IM

.
4'

 -1
1"

Drawn by Dave Merrill,

3rd Floor Demountable Walls
1 Civic Center Circle, 3rd Floor

Brea, CA 92821

CITY OF BREA CITY HALL
1/7/2020 7:42:20 AM

c:\Users\dmerrill\Interior Office Solutions\AT-Space - Documents\Clients (Active)\A - E\Brea
City Hall 3rd Floor (Aug 2019)\_DRAWINGS - CANVAS\Brea City Hall (REV4 1-6-20).cmdrw

Page 5 of 9



(A) (A)

(C)

Elevation B

(B)

(A)

(B)

(A)

(B)

(A)

(B)

(A)

(B)

(A)

(B)

(A)

(C)

(B)

(A)

(B)

(A)

(B)

(A)

(B)

(A)

(B)

(A)

(C)

(B)

(A)

Elevation I

(B)

(A)

(C)

(B)

(A)

Elevation G
(B)

(A)

(C)

(B)

(A)

(B)

(A)

(B)

(A)

Elevation F

(A) (A)

(C)

Elevation A

(B)

(A)

(B)

(A)

(B)

(A)

Elevation J

(B)

(A)

(B)

(A)

(B)

(A)

(B)

(A)

(B)

(A)

(B)

(A)

(C)

Elevation E

(A)(A)(A) (A)

Elevation C

(B)

(A)

(B)

(A)

(B)

(A)

Elevation K

(A)(A) (A)(A)(A)

Elevation D

(B)

(A)

(C)

(B)

(A)

Elevation H

(B)

(A)

(B)

(A)

(C)

Elevation L

CITY OF BREA CITY HALL
1 Civic Center Circle, 3rd Floor

Brea, CA 92821
Drawn by Dave Merrill,

3rd Floor Demountable Walls

c:\Users\dmerrill\Interior Office Solutions\AT-Space - Documents\Clients (Active)\A - E\Brea
City Hall 3rd Floor (Aug 2019)\_DRAWINGS - CANVAS\Brea City Hall (REV4 1-6-20).cmdrw

1/7/2020 7:42:21 AM

Page 6 of 9



ENCLOSE PROJECT NOTES
 :  108" [2,743 mm]CEILING HEIGHT
 :  114" [2,896 mm]CEILING HEIGHT
 :  1" T-BAR AND 1/4" TEGULAR TILE CLIPCEILING TYPE
 :  CEILING HIGHSTANDING DETAIL
 :  CEILING & FLOOR LATERAL BRACING
 :  CARPETFLOOR DETAIL
 :  PITCH (TEXTURED), GRADE A - TR-0TFREVEALS
 :  PITCH (TEXTURED), GRADE A - TR-0TFGLAZING BEADS

A
B

C

CLEAR TEMPERED - 10MM, GRADE B
UNDECIDED, PLEASE VERIFY, GRADE A

CHARCOAL, GRADE A

,1G-03C
,GS-0A~

,TR-00K

CEILING HEIGHT TOLERANCES
PRODUCT WILL BE PRODUCED TO FIT CEILING HEIGHT NOTED ABOVE.
NOTE: WALL HEIGHTS AVAILABLE IN 1/8" (3.175MM) INCREMENTS, REFER TO VERTICAL ADJUSTMENT RANGES IN TABLE BELOW.
ALL VERTICAL PRODUCT DIMENSIONS REFERENCING FINISH FLOOR ARE CAPABLE OF A VARIATION OF:

RANGE DOWNWARDRANGE UPWARD
ENCLOSE PANELS: -0.75"(-19 MM) 1.75"(44 MM)
ENCLOSE DOORS: REFERENCE DOOR SCHEDULE

10
4.

4"
 [1

04
.4

"] 
SW

IN
G

 D
O

O
R

 L
EA

F 
H

EI
G

H
T 

A.
F.

F.
 

10
8.

0"
 [1

08
"] 

C
EI

LI
N

G
 H

EI
G

H
T 

A

Frame Finish'C'
Door Type 'A'

82
.8

" [
82

.8
"] 

SW
IN

G
 D

O
O

R
 L

EA
F 

H
EI

G
H

T 
A.

F.
F.

 

84
.0

" [
84

"] 
TR

AN
SO

M
 L

IN
E 

A.
F.

F 

10
8.

0"
 [1

08
"] 

C
EI

LI
N

G
 H

EI
G

H
T 

B

A

Frame Finish'C'
Door Type 'B'

82
.8

" [
82

.8
"] 

SW
IN

G
 D

O
O

R
 L

EA
F 

H
EI

G
H

T 
A.

F.
F.

 

84
.0

" [
84

"] 
TR

AN
SO

M
 L

IN
E 

A.
F.

F 

10
8.

0"
 [1

08
"] 

C
EI

LI
N

G
 H

EI
G

H
T 

B

A

Frame Finish'C'
Door Type 'C'

Panel Types - Enclose Door

TRNSM Transom
SGL Single
SFIC_H Sm Frmt IC Housing (No Core)
SCHLAGE Schlage
RHR Right Hand Reverse
PLINTH Plinth
MTLGLZ Metal Glazed
MRT Mortise
LHR Left Hand Reverse
L9080 Storeroom (L9080)
FPREPSH Factory Prep/Ship Lockset
FLRMNT Floor Mounted
ELSTRK1 Electrical, Rutherford L6505
CLS3 Sargent Closer (1431 UO)
6 6 Lever
167 Enclose ®

ABBREVIATION LEGEND

Enclose 224' -2-3/8"

LINEAL FOOTAGE LEGEND

DOOR SCHEDULE
FRAME DOOR LEAF HARDWARE

IN
D

 T
AG

TY
PE

H
AN

D
ED

N
ES

S

Q
TY

W
ID

TH

C
EI

LI
N

G
 H

EI
G

H
T

D
ET

AI
L 

R
EF

ER
EN

C
E

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 R

EF
ER

EN
C

E

C
O

N
FI

G
U

R
AT

IO
N

C
O

LO
R

R
AN

G
E 

N
O

TE

R
AN

G
E 

D
O

W
N

R
AN

G
E 

U
P

TR
AN

SO
M

TR
AN

SO
M

 H
EI

G
H

T 
A.

F.
F.

TY
PE

LO
C

KS
ET

 P
R

EP

PU
LL

 P
R

EP

SU
R

F 
C

O
LO

R

PL
IN

TH

BO
TT

O
M

 R
AI

L 
H

EI
G

H
T

H
AR

D
W

AR
E 

SE
T

SH
IP

LO
C

KS
ET

 M
AN

U
FA

C
TU

R
ER

LO
C

KS
ET

 T
YP

E

AC
TI

VE
 F

U
N

C
TI

O
N

H
AN

D
LE

 S
TY

LE

LO
C

KS
ET

 F
IN

IS
H

IN
AC

TI
VE

 F
U

N
C

TI
O

N

LO
C

KS
ET

 H
EI

G
H

T

LO
C

KS
ET

 C
O

R
E

JA
M

B 
ST

R
IK

E

ST
O

P

C
LO

SE
R

PU
LL

 M
AN

U
FA

C
TU

R
ER

PU
LL

 T
YP

E

PU
LL

 F
IN

IS
H

PU
LL

 H
EI

G
H

T

BY
PA

SS
 S

EA
L

SO
FT

 C
LO

SE

REMARKS

A ENC BUTT HINGE RHR 2 3' -4" 9' -0" - - SGL C - -0' -0-3/4" 0' -1-3/4" - - MTLGLZ (1) FACTORY - C PLINTH 0' -10" 1 YES SCHLAGE MRT L9080 6 U2_626 - 3' -5-5/8" SFIC_H ELSTRK1 FLRMNT CLS3 - - - - - - -

G ENC BUTT HINGE LHR 3 3' -4" 9' -0" - - SGL C - -0' -0-3/4" 0' -1-3/4" TRNSM 7' -0" MTLGLZ (1) FACTORY - C PLINTH 0' -10" 1 YES SCHLAGE MRT L9080 6 U2_626 - 3' -5-5/8" SFIC_H ELSTRK1 FLRMNT CLS3 - - - - - - -

H ENC BUTT HINGE RHR 5 3' -4" 9' -0" - - SGL C - -0' -0-3/4" 0' -1-3/4" TRNSM 7' -0" MTLGLZ (1) FACTORY - C PLINTH 0' -10" 1 YES SCHLAGE MRT L9080 6 U2_626 - 3' -5-5/8" SFIC_H ELSTRK1 FLRMNT CLS3 - - - - - - -

ENCLOSE PARTITION LEGEND

10
8.

0"
 [1

08
"] 

C
EI

LI
N

G
 H

EI
G

H
T 

A

Frame Finish'C'
Panel Type 'D'

84
.0

" [
84

"] 
FR

AM
E 

H
EI

G
H

T 
A.

F.
F.

 

10
8.

0"
 [1

08
"] 

C
EI

LI
N

G
 H

EI
G

H
T 

B

A

Frame Finish'C'
Panel Type 'E'

84
.0

" [
84

"] 
FR

AM
E 

H
EI

G
H

T 
A.

F.
F.

 

11
4.

0"
 [1

14
"] 

C
EI

LI
N

G
 H

EI
G

H
T 

B

A

Frame Finish'C'
Panel Type 'F'

Panel Types - Enclose

(Enclose)

Glass

Trim / Powdercoat

FINISH SUMMARY

SINGLE SWING GLAZED DOOR

GLASS WALL PANEL (RECTILINEAR)

GLASS WALL PANEL W/ TRANSOM (RECTILINEAR)

T-XXX
42.00

EN-XX-XXX
SIDE A

SIDE B

PANEL TYPE ID

TRUE PANEL SIZE (IMPERIAL)

PRODUCT TYPE/ZONE/PANEL ID

NOTE: ALL EXISTING PANELS ARE INDICATED WITH AN

"(E)" AT THE END OF THE LABEL LOCATION NUMBER

i.e. EN-A-94 (E) \ EXISTING

i.e. EN-AD-1 \ NEW PRODUCT

 "OS" ON FRAMELESS ENCLOSE INDICATES OVERSIZED HORIZONTALS

1 Civic Center Circle, 3rd Floor
Brea, CA 92821

3rd Floor Demountable WallsCITY OF BREA CITY HALL

c:\Users\dmerrill\Interior Office Solutions\AT-Space - Documents\Clients (Active)\A - E\Brea
City Hall 3rd Floor (Aug 2019)\_DRAWINGS - CANVAS\Brea City Hall (REV4 1-6-20).cmdrw

Drawn by Dave Merrill, 1/7/2020 7:42:21 AM

Page 7 of 9



Office spaces are getting smaller, yet are expected to do more. Reconfiguration for 

today’s workstyles and the anticipation of change is placing a strain on organizations 

with permanent interior construction. Moveable walls are a smart, responsive alternative, 

providing a sense of presence, permanence, and acoustical privacy, while ensuring your 

endless ability to adapt. 

Enclose®

Walls

Page 8 of 9



More Flexibility, Less Effort

With the look, feel, and performance of fixed construction, Enclose 

moveable walls offer space-saving, easily adaptable options to 

create more workspaces in a floorplate, without sacrificing comfort, 

personal storage, or privacy. Its non-progressive design lets you 

remove and switch any single panel or door without upsetting the 

rest. And Enclose can be completely reconfigured with ease, in up  

to one-third the time of many competitors. 

Features

With Enclose moveable walls, the design possibilities are truly 

unlimited. Floor to ceiling panels achieve a sense of permanence  

and privacy, while ensuring your endless ability to adapt.

Efficient and agile – Easily installs, adapts, and reinstalls, without 

disruption, dust, or excessive downtime.

Damage-free installation – Touches the building lightly with 

mechanical fasteners only at the slab.

Seamless integration – Designed to work with Enclose  

Frameless Glass walls and doors, and seamlessly transition to 

conventional construction.

Acoustical privacy of fixed walls – Provides the acoustical 

performance needed to meet the speech privacy and confidentiality 

requirements of today’s offices, in a moveable wall system.

Colors, Materials, Finishes

Choose Enclose moveable walls in metal, laminate, wall coverings, 

or wood with finishes to match your casegoods. Or, opt for clear, 

patterned, or custom glass. Monolithic and segmented tiles  

are available in framed and frameless designs. Multiple door 

options—including full-height, double-glazed, frameless glass 

doors—complete the aesthetic.

Certifications

• GREENGUARD® certified

• BIFMA® LEVEL® 1 certified

To learn more, visit haworth.com.

Enclose | Product Sheet

Haworth is a registered trademark of Haworth, Inc.
©Haworth, Inc. 2018 1.18 
haworth.com | 800.344.2600

Walls

Page 9 of 9

























Agenda Item   28. 
City of Brea

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo, City Manager 

DATE: 01/21/2020

SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreements for Annual As-Needed Construction Materials &
Soils Testing Services for Various Capital Improvement Projects 

RECOMMENDATION
Approve Professional Service Agreements between City of Brea and Koury Engineering,
United-Heider, Leighton and Harrington for As-Needed Construction Materials and Soils
Testing Services in the annual amount not-to-exceed $50,000 per year per for a term of
one (1) year with three optional one (1) year extensions; and

1.

Authorize the City Manager to approve any optional contract extensions.2.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
The City of Brea has a seven year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) that includes
rehabilitation of arterial highways; residential streets and alley ways; replacement of undersized
and deteriorated sewer and water lines; installation of traffic enhancements; and rehabilitation of
City-owned facilities.  The CIP also includes the largest Public Works project ever undertaken by
the City, which is the State Route 57/Lambert Interchange Project.  For the next four fiscal years,
the average annual CIP budget will be approximately $16 million.
 
As mentioned at the April 16, 2019 City Council Study Session, the Public Works Engineering
Division uses as-needed professional services contracts to efficiently and effectively deliver CIP
projects.  Within the next four years, staff estimates that approximately $200,000 per year of
construction materials and soil testing services will be needed in order to deliver the projects
currently in the approved CIP, which is approximately 1.25% of the average annual CIP budget.
 
Since the existing Professional Service Agreements (PSA’s) that are with a number of
engineering firms to provide Construction Materials and Soils Testing Services, expired in July 1,
2015, staff issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for these services.  The intent of the RFP was
to select four firms that can provide these services on various CIP projects over the next four
years.  The City administers several design and construction projects simultaneously, thus, it
would be prudent to maintain multiple on-call contract vendors that would be qualified and
available to provide these services. 

On September 4, 2019 proposals were received from the following six (6) firms: 

MTGL1.
Koury Engineering2.
United-Heider3.
Leighton4.



Harrington5.
American Geotech 6.

The proposals were reviewed and evaluated based on the firm's relevant experience,
qualifications of proposed project team members, scope of services provided, experience in
federally funded projects and cost effectiveness.
 
Based on the above criteria, Harrington Geotechnical Engineering, Inc., Koury Engineering &
Testing, Inc., Leighton Consulting, Inc. and United-Heider Inspection Group were selected as the
top four firms.  All four firms have extensive experience with the requested services working for
state and local agencies.  They have successfully completed their projects on schedule and
within budget.
 
Staff is recommending that the City Council approve Professional Service Agreements with these
four firms in the amount not-to-exceed $50,000 per firm, per year.  The four agreements
combined represent the possibility to expend a total of $200,000 dollars per year.  Each
agreement includes a provision that the City has the option to extend the agreement under the
same terms and conditions for up to three (3) additional one (1) year terms for a total of four (4)
years.  If all of the possible extensions are approved over the next three years, the total possible
fee for all four agreements combined would be $800,000.  No rate increases shall occur without
City Council approval.

COMMISSION/COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
The Finance Committee reviewed staff’s recommendation at their January 14, 2020 meeting and
recommended to proceed.

FISCAL IMPACT/SUMMARY
All costs for the Construction Materials and Soils Testing Services phase of projects are included
in the approved budgets for each project in the CIP.  No rate increases shall be authorized
without City Council approval.
  

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by:  Warren Coleman, Senior Management Analyst 
Concurrence:  Michael Ho, P.E., Deputy Director of Public Works / City Engineer
                       Tony Olmos, P.E., Director of Public Works 
 

Attachments
Agreement - Harrington 
Agreement - Koury 
Agreement - Leighton 
Agreement - United 































 

 
 
 
 
 

SECTION IV 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

 
 



- 1 of 13 - 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
 This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is dated January 21, 2020 for 

reference purposes and is executed by the City of Brea, a California municipal corporation 

(“City”) and Koury Engineering and Testing, Inc. (“Consultant”). 

R E C I T A L S 

 A. City has issued a Request for Proposal pertaining to the performance of the 

following professional services:  As-Needed Engineering Design Service for various capital 

improvement projects on an “as-needed” basis.  A full, true and correct copy of such 

solicitation is attached as Exhibit A. 

 B. Consultant has submitted a proposal for the performance of such services.  A 

full, true and correct copy of such proposal is attached as Exhibit B. 

 C. The parties have executed this Agreement to provide for Consultant’s 

performance of such services on City’s behalf. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:  

 1. Definitions:  The following definitions shall apply to the following terms, 

except where the context of this Agreement otherwise requires: 

  (a)  Tasks:  Professional services as described in Exhibit A including (i) 

preparation of plans, maps, reports, and documents (collectively, “documents”); and (ii) 

presentation, both oral and in writing, of such documents to City as required. 

  (b) Services:  Such professional services as are necessary to be performed by 

Consultant in order to complete the assigned Tasks. Consultant will provide services on an 

“as-needed” (on-call) basis for projects to be determined during the term of this Agreement.  



- 2 of 13 - 
 

  (c) Completion of Tasks:  The date of completion of all assigned Tasks, 

including any and all procedures, documents, meetings and oral presentations regarding the 

completion of Tasks as set forth in Exhibits A. 

 2. Term:   

  (a) Base Term:  This Agreement is effective as of January 21, 2020 and shall 

remain in full force and effect until January 21, 2021 unless earlier extended pursuant to 

paragraph (b) or (c) of this Section, or unless terminated pursuant to Section 8 below. 

  (b) Extension Options:  City shall have three options by which it may extend 

the term of this Agreement by one year at a time in its sole discretion.  The extension options 

may be exercised sequentially or concurrently.  To exercise an extension option, City shall 

give written notice to Consultant at least 30 days prior to the then-scheduled expiration date. 

  (c) Unfinished Tasks:  If one or more Tasks will remain unfinished at the 

expiration of this Agreement, then, at City’s sole discretion, the term of this Agreement may 

be extended to allow Consultant to complete such Task(s).  

 3. Consultant Responsibilities: 

  (a) Consultant shall undertake and complete the assigned Tasks in accordance 

with Exhibit A and applicable laws, all to the reasonable satisfaction of City. 

  (b) Consultant shall supply copies of all documents including all supplemental 

technical documents, in accordance with Exhibit A.  City may thereafter review and forward 

to Consultant comments regarding such documents and Consultant shall thereafter make 

such revisions to such documents as are deemed necessary.  City shall receive revised 

documents in such form and in the quantities determined necessary by City. 



- 3 of 13 - 
 

  (c) Consultant shall, at its sole cost and expense, secure and hire such other 

persons as may, in the opinion of Consultant, be necessary to comply with the terms of this 

Agreement.  In the event any such other persons are retained by Consultant, Consultant 

warrants that such persons shall be fully qualified to perform the services.  Consultant 

further agrees that no subcontractor shall be retained by Consultant except as may otherwise 

be set forth in Exhibit B and upon the prior written approval of City. 

 4. Compensation: 

  (a) City shall pay Consultant pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit B for 

services performed pursuant to this Agreement. Such sum(s) shall cover the costs of all staff 

time and all other direct and indirect costs or fees, including the work of employees and 

subcontractors to Consultant, except as may otherwise be set forth in Exhibit B.  

  (b) Payments to Consultant shall be made by City in accordance with the 

invoices submitted by Consultant, on a monthly basis, and such invoices shall be paid within 

a reasonable time after receipt by City.  All charges shall be in accordance with Consultant’s 

proposal either with respect to hourly rates, time and materials, or lump sum amounts for 

individual tasks, as approved, in writing, by City.  

  (c) Consultant agrees that, in no event, shall City be required to pay to 

Consultant any sum in excess of 95% of the maximum payable hereunder prior to receipt by 

City of all final documents.  Final payment shall be made not later than 60 days after 

presentation of final documents and acceptance by City. 

  (d) Additional services:  Payments for additional services, requested in writing 

by City and not included in Consultant’s proposal, shall be paid on a reimbursement basis in 

accordance with the fee schedule set forth in Exhibit B.  Charges for additional services shall 



- 4 of 13 - 
 

be invoiced on a monthly basis and shall be paid by City within a reasonable time after 

invoices are received by City. 

(e) Rate Changes: The fee schedule in Exhibit B shall not be revised during the term 

of the Contract (including any extension periods) without prior approval by CITY’s City 

Council.  

 5. Annual Compensation Limit:   

  (a) Base Term Limit:  In no event shall Consultant, or any person claiming by 

or through Consultant, be paid an aggregate amount in excess of three hundred thousand 

dollars ($50,000) during a single year of the term of this Agreement. 

  (b) Developer-Reimbursed Cost Exclusion:  Developer-reimbursed costs 

associated with Tasks performed for private development projects are not subject to the 

annual compensation limit and shall not be considered in any calculation of unspent 

allocation. 

 6. City Responsibilities:  City shall provide to Consultant: 

  (a) Information and assistance as set forth in Exhibit A. 

  (b) Photographically reproducible copies of maps and other information, if 

available, which Consultant considers necessary in order to complete the Tasks. 

  (c) Such information as is generally available from City files applicable to the 

Tasks. 

  (d) Assistance, if necessary, in obtaining information from other governmental 

agencies and/or private parties.  However, it shall be Consultant’s responsibility to make all 

initial contact with respect to the gathering of such information. 



- 5 of 13 - 
 

 7. Ownership of Documents:  All documents, data, studies, surveys, drawings, 

maps, models, photographs and reports prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement 

shall be considered the property of City and, upon payment for services performed by 

Consultant, such documents and other identified materials shall be delivered to City by 

Consultant.  Consultant may, however, make and retain copies of such documents and 

materials as Consultant may desire. 

 8. Termination:  If Consultant breaches this Agreement and fails to cure such 

breach within seven days of written notice, then City may immediately terminate this 

Agreement for cause.  City may terminate this Agreement for convenience upon 15 days prior 

written notice to Consultant.  Consultant shall not be compensated for any work performed 

after City’s issuance of a Notice of Termination. Consultant shall provide to City any and all 

documents, whether in draft or final form, prepared by Consultant as of the date of 

termination. Consultant may not terminate this Agreement except for cause.  

9. Notices and Designated Representatives:  Any notices, invoices, or other 

documents related to this Agreement shall be deemed received on:  (a) the day of delivery, if 

delivered by hand during the receiving party’s regular business hours or by e-mail or 

facsimile before or during the receiving party’s regular business hours; (b) the business day 

after delivery, if delivered by e-mail or facsimile after the receiving party’s regular business 

hours; or (c) on the second business day following deposit in the United States mail, postage 

prepaid, to the addresses listed below, or to such other addresses as the parties may, from 

time to time, designate in writing.  The below named individuals, furthermore, shall be those 

persons primarily responsible for the performance by the parties under this Agreement: 

 



- 6 of 13 - 
 

CITY REPRESENTATIVE    CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE 

Michael S. Ho, PE     Damian Becerra 
Deputy Director of Public Works/City Engineer Koury Engineering and Testing, Inc.  
1 Civic Center Circle     14280 Euclid Ave. 
Brea, CA 92821     Chino, CA 91710 
michaelh@cityofbrea.net    DamianB@kouryengineering.com 
        
 10. Insurance:  Consultant shall not commence work under this Agreement until 

it has obtained all insurance required hereunder in a company or companies acceptable to 

City, nor shall Consultant allow any subcontractor to commence work on its subcontract 

until all insurance required of the subcontractor has been obtained.  Consultant shall take 

out and maintain at all times during the term of this Agreement the following policies of 

insurance: 

  (a) Compensation insurance:  Before beginning work, Consultant shall furnish 

to City a certificate of insurance as proof that it has taken out full compensation insurance 

for all persons whom Consultant may employ directly or through subcontractors in carrying 

out the services, in accordance with the laws of the State of California.  Further, such policy 

of insurance shall provide that the insurer waives all rights of subrogation against City and 

its elected officials, officers, employees and agents. 

 In accordance with the provisions of Labor Code Section 3700, every contractor shall 

secure the payment of compensation to its employees.  Consultant, by executing this 

Agreement, certifies as follows: 

“I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the labor Code which require 
every employer to be insured against liability for workers’ compensation or 
to undertake self insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, 
and I will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance 
of work of this contract.” 

 

mailto:michaelh@cityofbrea.net


- 7 of 13 - 
 

  (b) For all operations of Consultant or any subcontractor in performing the 

work provided for herein, insurance with the following minimum limits and coverage: 

   (1) Commercial General Liability (occurrence) - for bodily injury, death 

and property damage for products/completed operations and any and all other activities 

undertaken by the Consultant in the performance of this Agreement - - or - -: 

   (2) (Alternative to Commercial General Liability) - Comprehensive, 

broad form General Public Liability (occurrence) - for bodily injury, death and property 

damage arising out of any activities undertaken by Consultant in the performance of this 

Agreement. 

   (3) Comprehensive Automobile Liability (occurrence) - for bodily 

injury, death and property damage insuring against all liability arising out of the use of any 

vehicle. 

   (4) Professional Errors and Omissions Liability - insuring against all 

liability arising out of professional errors and/or omissions, providing protection of at least 

two million dollars and zero cents ($2,000,000.00) for errors and/or omissions 

(“malpractice”) of Consultant in the performance of this Agreement .  Such policy may be 

subject to a deductible or retention in an amount acceptable to City and shall further be 

subject to the provisions of subsections (2) and (6) of paragraph (c) of this Section.  If a 

“claims made” policy is provided, such policy shall be maintained in effect from the date of 

performance of services on City’s behalf until three years after the date the services are 

accepted as completed.  Coverage for the post-completion period may be provided by 

renewal or replacement of the policy for each of the three years or by a three-year extended 

reporting period endorsement which reinstates all limits for the extended reported period.  



- 8 of 13 - 
 

If any such policy and/or policies have a retroactive date, that date shall be no later than the 

date of first performance of services on behalf of City.  Renewal or replacement policies shall 

not allow for any advancement of such retroactive date.  Each such policy or policies shall 

include a standard “notice of circumstances” provision. 

   (5) Other required insurance, endorsements or exclusions as required 

by Exhibit A. 

   (6) The policies of insurance required in this Section shall have no less 

than the following limits of coverage: 

 (i) $2,000,000 (Two Million Dollars) for bodily injury or 

death; 

 (ii) $2,000,000 (Two Million Dollars) for property damage; 

 (iii) The total of the limits specified in subsections (i) and (ii), 

above, where a combined single limit is provided. 

   (c) The policies of insurance required in subsections (1), (2) and (3) above 

shall: 

   (1) Be subject to no deductible amount unless otherwise provided, or 

approved in writing by City; 

   (2) Be issued by an insurance company approved in writing by City, 

which is admitted and licensed to do business in the State of California and which is rated A 

VII or better according to the most recent A.M. Best Co. Rating Guide; 

   (3) Name as additional insureds City, its elected officials, officers, 

employees, attorneys and agents, and any other parties, including subcontractors, specified 

by City to be included; 



- 9 of 13 - 
 

   (4) Specify that it acts as primary insurance and that no insurance held 

or owned by the designated additional insureds shall be called upon to cover a loss under 

said policy; 

   (5) Specify that it applies separately to each insured against whom 

claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability; 

   (6) Contain a clause substantially in the following words: 

“It is hereby understood and agreed that this policy may not be canceled nor 
the amount of coverage thereof reduced until thirty (30) days after receipt by 
the City of Brea of written notice of such cancellation or reduction of coverage 
as evidenced by receipt of a registered letter.” 
 

   (7) Specify that any failure to comply with reporting or other 

provisions of the required policy, including breaches of warranty, shall not affect the 

coverage required to be provided; 

   (8) Specify that the insurer waives all rights of subrogation against any 

of the named additional insureds; and 

   (9) Specify that any and all costs of adjusting and/or defending any 

claim against any insured, including court costs and attorneys’ fees, shall be paid in addition 

to and shall not deplete any policy limits. 

   (10) Otherwise be in form satisfactory to City. 

  (d) Prior to commencing performance under this Agreement, Consultant shall 

furnish City with original endorsements, or copies of each required policy, effecting and 

evidencing the insurance coverage required by this Agreement.  The endorsements shall be 

signed by a person authorized by the insurer(s) to bind coverage on its behalf.  All 

endorsements or policies shall be received and approved by City before Consultant 

commences performance.  If performance of this Agreement shall extend beyond one year, 



- 10 of 13 - 
 

then Consultant shall provide City with the required policies or endorsements evidencing 

renewal of the required policies of insurance prior to the expiration of any required policies 

of insurance. 

 11. Indemnification: Other than in the performance of professional services and 

to the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold City, its 

employees, agents and officials harmless from and against their tort liability, (including 

liability for claims, suits, actions, expenses or costs of any kind, whether actual, alleged or 

threatened, actual attorney's fees incurred by City, court costs, interest or defense costs 

including expert witness fees), where the same arise out of, in whole or in part, the 

performance of the Agreement by Consultant (or any individual or entity that Consultant 

shall bear the legal liability thereof) and which result in bodily injury or property damage to 

any individual or entity, including the employees or officials of Consultant.  

In addition to the foregoing, Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless 

City and its officials and employees from and against any and all losses, liabilities, damages, 

costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees and costs to the extent the same are 

caused by the professional negligence of Consultant (or any entity or individual that 

Consultant shall bear the legal liability thereof) in the performance of professional services 

pursuant to this Agreement. 

 12. Assignment:  No assignment of this Agreement or of any part or obligation of 

performance hereunder shall be made, either in whole or in part, by Consultant without the 

prior written consent of City. 

 13. Damages:  In the event that Consultant fails to submit to City the completed 

project, together with all documents and supplemental material required hereunder, in 



- 11 of 13 - 
 

public hearing form to the reasonable satisfaction of City, within the time set forth herein, or 

as may be extended by written consent of the parties, Consultant shall pay to City, as 

liquidated damages and not as a penalty, the sum of  N/A dollars ($000.00) per day for 

each day Consultant is in default unless the default is caused by City or by acts of God, acts of 

the public enemy, fire, floods, epidemics, or quarantine restrictions.  Consultant 

acknowledges that such sum represents a reasonable endeavor by the parties to estimate a 

fair compensation for the foreseeable losses that might result from such a default in 

performance by Consultant. 

 14. Independent Contractor:  The parties agree that Consultant and its employers, 

officers and agents are independent contractors under this Agreement and shall not be 

construed for any purpose to be employees of City. 

 15. Governing Law:  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of California. 

 16. Attorneys’ Fees:  In the event any legal proceeding is instituted to enforce any 

term or provision of the Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover 

attorneys’ fees and costs from the opposing party in an amount determined by the court to 

be reasonable. 

 17. Exhibits.  The attached Exhibits A and B are incorporated into this Agreement 

by reference. In the event of any material discrepancy between the express provisions of this 

Agreement and the provisions of an Exhibit, the provisions of this Agreement shall prevail. 

 18. Entire Agreement:  This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements, 

either oral or in writing, between the parties with respect to the subject matter herein.  Each 

party to this Agreement acknowledges that no representation by any party which is not 



- 12 of 13 - 
 

embodied herein nor any other agreement, statement, or promise not contained in this 

Agreement shall be valid and binding.  Any modification of this Agreement shall be effective 

only if it is in writing signed by both parties. 

 

 

 

 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

  





PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Professional Services Agreement ("Agreement") is dated January 21, 2020 for 

reference purposes and is executed by the City of Brea, a California municipal corporation 

("City") and Leighton Consulti.ng. Inc. ("Consultant"). 

RECITALS 

A City has issued a Request for Proposal pertaining to the performance of the 

following professional services: As-Needed Engineering Design Service for various capital 

improvement projects on an "as-needed" basis. A full, true and correct copy of such 

solicitation is attached as Exhibit A. 

B. Consultant has submitted a proposal for the performance of such services. A 

full, true and correct copy of such proposal is attached as Exhibit B. 

C. The parties have executed this Agreement to provide for Consultant's 

performance of such services on City's behalf. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Definitions: The following definitions shall apply to the following terms, 

except where the context of this Agreement otherwise requires: 

(a) Tasks: Professional services as described in Exhibit A including (i) 

preparation of plans, maps, reports, and documents (collectively, "documents"); and (ii) 

presentation, both oral and in writing, of such documents to City as required. 

(b) Services: Such professional services as are necessary to be performed by 

Consultant in order to complete the assigned Tasks. Consultant will provide services on an 

"as-needed" ( on-call) basis for projects to be determined during the term of this Agreement. 

-1 of13 · 



(c) Completion of Tasks: The date of completion of all assigned Tasks, 

including any and all procedures, documents, meetings and oral presentations regarding the 

completion of Tasks as set forth in Exhibits A 

2. Torm: 

(a) Base Term: This Agreement is effective as of lanuary 21, 2020 and shall 

remain in full force and effect until lanuary 21, 2021 unless earlier extended pursuant to 

paragraph (b) or ( c) of this Section, or unless terminated pursuant to Section 8 below. 

(b) Extension Options: City shall have three options by which it may extend 

the term of this Agreement by one year at a time in its sole discretion. The extension options 

may be exercised sequentially or concurrently. To exercise an extension option, City shall 

give written notice to Consultant at least 30 days prior to the then-scheduled expiration date. 

(c) Unfinished Tasks: If one or more Tasks will remain unfinished at the 

expiration of this Agreement, then, at City's sole discretion, the term of this Agreement may 

be extended to allow Consultant to complete such Task(s). 

3. Consultant Responsibilities: 

(a) Consultant shall undertake and complete the assigned Tasks in accordance 

with Exhibit A and applicable laws, all to the reasonable satisfaction of City. 

(b) Consultant shall supply copies of all documents including all supplemental 

technical documents, in accordance with Exhibit A. City may thereafter review and forward 

to Consultant comments regarding such documents and Consultant shall thereafter make 

such revisions to such documents as are deemed necessary. City shall receive revised 

documents in such form and in the quantities determined necessary by City. 

- 2 of 13 -



(c) Consultant shall, at its sole cost and expense, secure and hire such other 

persons as may, in the opinion of Consultant, be necessary to comply with the terms of this 

Agreement. In the event any such other persons are retained by Consultant, Consultant 

warrants that such persons shall be fully qualified to perform the services. Consultant 

further agrees that no subcontractor shall be retained by Consultant except as may otherwise 

be set forth in Exhibit B and upon the prior written approval of City. 

4. Compensation: 

(a) City shall pay Consultant pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit B for 

services performed pursuant to this Agreement. Such sum(s) shall cover the costs of all staff 

time and all other direct and indirect costs or fees, including the work of employees and 

subcontractors to Consultant, except as may otherwise be set forth in Exhibit B. 

(b) Payments to Consultant shall be made by City in accordance with the 

invoices submitted by Consultant, on a monthly basis, and such invoices shall be paid within 

a reasonable time after receipt by City. All charges shall be in accordance with Consultant's 

proposal either with respect to hourly rates, time and materials, or lump sum amounts for 

individual tasks, as approved, in writing, by City. 

(c) Consultant agrees that, in no event, shall City be required to pay to 

Consultant any sum in excess of 95% of the maximum payable hereunder prior to receipt by 

City of all final documents. Final payment shall be made not later than 60 days after 

presentation of final documents and acceptance by City. 

(d) Additional services: Payments for additional services, requested in writing 

by City and not included in Consultant's proposal, shall be paid on a reimbursement basis in 

accordance with the fee schedule set forth in Exhibit B. Charges for additional services shall 

- 3 of 13 -



be invoiced on a monthly basis and shall be paid by City within a reasonable time after 

invoices are received by City. 

( e) Rate Changes: The fee schedule in Exhibit B shall not be revised during the term 

of the Contract (including any extension periods) without prior approval by CITY's City 

Council. 

5. Annual Compensation Limit: 

(a) Base Term Limit: In no event shall Consultant, or any person claiming by 

or through Consultant, be paid an aggregate amount in excess of three hundred thousand 

dollars ($50,000) during a single year of the term of this Agreement. 

(b) Developer-Reimbursed Cost Exclusion: Developer-reimbursed costs 

associated with Tasks performed for private development projects are not subject to the 

annual compensation limit and shall not be considered in any calculation of unspent 

allocation. 

6. City Responsibilities: City shall provide to Consultant: 

(a) Information and assistance as set forth in Exhibit A 

(b) Photographically reproducible copies of maps and other information, if 

available, which Consultant considers necessary in order to complete the Tasks. 

(c) Such information as is generally available from City files applicable to the 

Tasks. 

( d) Assistance, if necessary, in obtaining information from other governmental 

agencies and/or private parties. However, it shall be Consultant's responsibility to make all 

initial contact with respect to the gathering of such information. 

• 4 of13 • 



7. Ownership of Documents: AH documents, data, studies, surveys, drawings, 

maps, models, photographs and reports prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement 

shall be considered the property of City and, upon payment for services performed by 

Consultant, such documents and other identified materials shall be delivered to City by 

Consultant. Consultant may, however, make and retain copies of such documents and 

materials as Consultant may desire. 

8. Termination: If Consultant breaches this Agreement and fails to cure such 

breach within seven days of written notice, then City may immediately terminate this 

Agreement for cause. City may terminate this Agreement for convenience upon 15 days prior 

written notice to Consultant. Consultant shall not be compensated for any work performed 

after City's issuance of a Notice of Termination. Consultant shall provide to City any and all 

documents, whether in draft or final form, prepared by Consultant as of the date of 

termination. Consultant may not terminate this Agreement except for cause. 

9. Notices and Designated Representatives: Any notices, invoices, or other 

documents related to this Agreement shall be deemed received on: (a) the day of delivery, if 

delivered by hand during the receiving party's regular business hours or by e-mail or 

facsimile before or during the receiving party's regular business hours; (b) the business day 

after delivery, if delivered by e-mail or facsimile after the receiving party's regular business 

hours; or (c) on the second business day following deposit in the United States mail, postage 

prepaid, to the addresses listed below, or to such other addresses as the parties may, from 

time to time, designate in writing. The below named individuals, furthermore, shall be those 

persons primarily responsible for the performance by the parties under this Agreement: 

- 5 of13 -



CITY REPRESENTATIVE 

Michael S. Ho, PE 
Deputy Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
1 Civic Center Circle 
Brea, CA 92821 
michaelh@cityofbrea.net 

CONSUL TANT REPRESENTATIVE 

Vincent Ip, PE, GE 
Leighton Consulting, Inc. 
17784 Cowan 
Irvine, CA 92614 
vip@leightongroup.com 

10. Insurance: Consultant shall not commence work under this Agreement until 

it has obtained all insurance required hereunder in a company or companies acceptable to 

City, nor shall Consultant allow any subcontractor to commence work on its subcontract 

until all insurance required of the subcontractor has been obtained. Consultant shall take 

out and maintain at all times during the term of this Agreement the following policies of 

insurance: 

(a) Compensation insurance: Before beginning work, Consultant shall furnish 

to City a certificate of insurance as proof that it has taken out full compensation insurance 

for all persons whom Consultant may employ directly or through subcontractors in carrying 

out the services, in accordance with the laws of the State of California. Further, such policy 

of insurance shall provide that the insurer waives all rights of subrogation against City and 

its elected officials, officers, employees and agents. 

In accordance with the provisions of Labor Code Section 3700, every contractor shall 

secure the payment of compensation to its employees. Consultant, by executing this 

Agreement, certifies as follows: 

"I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the labor Code which require 
every employer to be insured against liability for workers' compensation or 
to undertake self insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, 
and I will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance 
of work of this contract." 

- 6 of 13 -



(b) For all operations of Consultant or any subcontractor in performing the 

work provided for herein, insurance with the following minimum limits and coverage: 

(1) Commercial General Liability (occurrence) - for bodily injury, death 

and property damage for products/completed operations and any and all other activities 

undertaken by the Consultant in the performance of this Agreement - - or - -: 

(2) (Alternative to Commercial General Liability) - Comprehensive, 

broad form General Public Liability (occurrence) - for bodily injury, death and property 

damage arising out of any activities undertaken by Consultant in the performance of this 

Agreement. 

(3) Comprehensive Automobile Liability (occurrence) - for bodily 

injury, death and property damage insuring against all liability arising out of the use of any 

vehicle. 

( 4) Professional Errors and Omissions Liability - insuring against all 

liability arising out of professional errors and/or omissions, providing protection of at least 

two million dollars and zero cents ($2,000,000.00) for errors and/or omissions 

("malpractice") of Consultant in the performance of this Agreement . Such policy may be 

subject to a deductible or retention in an amount acceptable to City and shall further be 

subject to the provisions of subsections (2) and (6) of paragraph (c) of this Section. If a 

"claims made" policy is provided, such policy shall be maintained in effect from the date of 

performance of services on City's behalf until three years after the date the services are 

accepted as completed. Coverage for the post-completion period may be provided by 

renewal or replacement of the policy for each of the three years or by a three-year extended 

reporting period endorsement which reinstates all limits for the extended reported period. 

· 7 of 13 -



If any such policy and/or policies have a retroactive date, that date shall be no later than the 

date of first performance of services on behalf of City. Renewal or replacement policies shall 

not allow for any advancement of such retroactive date. Each such policy or policies shall 

include a standard "notice of circumstances" provision. 

(5) Other required insurance, endorsements or exclusions as required 

by Exhibit A. 

(6) The policies of insurance required in this Section shall have no less 

than the following limits of coverage: 

(i) $2,000,000 (Two Million Dollars) for bodily injury or 

death; 

(ii) $2,000,000 (Two Million Dollars) for property damage; 

(iii) The total of the limits specified in subsections (i) and (ii), 

above, where a combined single limit is provided. 

(c) The policies of insurance required in subsections (1), (2) and (3) above 

shall: 

(1) Be subject to no deductible amount unless otherwise provided, or 

approved in writing by City; 

(2) Be issued by an insurance company approved in writing by City, 

which is admitted and licensed to do business in the State of California and which is rated A 

VII or better according to the most recent A.M. Best Co. Rating Guide; 

(3) Name as additional insureds City, its elected officials, officers, 

employees, attorneys and agents, and any other parties, including subcontractors, specified 

by City to be included; 

· 8 of 13 · 



( 4) Specify that it acts as primary insurance and that no insurance held 

or owned by the designated additional insureds shall be called upon to cover a loss under 

said policy; 

(5) Specify that it applies separately to each insured against whom 

claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability; 

(6) Contain a clause substantially in the following words: 

"It is hereby understood and agreed that this policy may not be canceled nor 
the amount of coverage thereof reduced until thirty (30) days after receipt by 
the City of Brea of written notice of such cancellation or reduction of coverage 
as evidenced by receipt of a registered letter." 

(7) Specify that any failure to comply with reporting or other 

provisions of the required policy, including breaches of warranty, shall not affect the 

coverage required to be provided; 

(8) Specify that the insurer waives all rights of subrogation against any 

of the named additional insureds; and 

(9) Specify that any and all costs of adjusting and/or defending any 

claim against any insured, including court costs and attorneys' fees, shall be paid in addition 

to and shall not deplete any policy limits. 

(10) Otherwise be in form satisfactory to City. 

(d) Prior to commencing performance under this Agreement, Consultant shall 

furnish City with original endorsements, or copies of each required policy, effecting and 

evidencing the insurance coverage required by this Agreement. The endorsements shall be 

signed by a person authorized by the insurer(s) to bind coverage on its behalf. All 

endorsements or policies shall be received and approved by City before Consultant 

commences performance. If performance of this Agreement shall extend beyond one year, 

• 9 of13 -



then Consultant shall provide City with the required policies or endorsements evidencing 

renewal of the required policies of insurance prior to the expiration of any required policies 

of insurance. 

11. Indemnification: Other than in the performance of professional services and 

to the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold City, its 

employees, agents and officials harmless from and against their tort liability, (including 

liability for claims, suits, actions, expenses or costs of any kind, whether actual, alleged or 

threatened, actual attorney's fees incurred by City, court costs, interest or defense costs 

including expert witness fees), where the same arise out of, in whole or in part, the 

performance of the Agreement by Consultant ( or any individual or entity that Consultant 

shall bear the legal liability thereof) and which result in bodily injury or property damage to 

any individual or entity, including the employees or officials of Consultant. 

In addition to the foregoing, Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless 

City and its officials and employees from and against any and all losses, liabilities, damages, 

costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees and costs to the extent the same are 

caused by the professional negligence of Consultant ( or any entity or individual that 

Consultant shall bear the legal liability thereof) in the performance of professional services 

pursuant to this Agreement. 

12. .Assignment: No assignment of this Agreement or of any part or obligation of 

performance hereunder shall be made, either in whole or in part, by Consultant without the 

prior written consent of City. 

13. Damages: In the event that Consultant fails to submit to City the completed 

project, together with all documents and supplemental material required hereunder, in 

- 10 of 13 -



public hearing form to the reasonable satisfaction of City, within the time set forth herein, or 

as may be extended by written consent of the parties, Consultant shall pay to City, as 

liquidated damages and not as a penalty, the sum of N /A dollars ($000.00) per day for 

each day Consultant is in default unless the default is caused by City or by acts of God, acts of 

the public enemy, fire, floods, epidemics, or quarantine restrictions. Consultant 

acknowledges that such sum represents a reasonable endeavor by the parties to estimate a 

fair compensation for the foreseeable losses that might result from such a default in 

performance by Consultant. 

14. Independent Contractor: The parties agree that Consultant and its employers, 

officers and agents are independent contractors under this Agreement and shall not be 

construed for any purpose to be employees of City. 

15. Governing Law: This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of California. 

16. Attorneys' Fees: In the event any legal proceeding is instituted to enforce any 

term or provision of the Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover 

attorneys' fees and costs from the opposing party in an amount determined by the court to 

be reasonable. 

17. Exhibits. The attached Exhibits A and 8 are incorporated into this Agreement 

by reference. In the event of any material discrepancy between the express provisions of this 

Agreement and the provisions of an Exhibit, the provisions of this Agreement shall prevail. 

18. Entire Agreement: This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements, 

either oral or in writing, between the parties with respect to the subject matter herein. Each 

party to this Agreement acknowledges that no representation by any party which is not 

-11 of 13 · 



embodied herein nor any other agreement, statement, or promise not contained in this 

Agreement shall be valid and binding. Any modification of this Agreement shall be effective 

only if it is in writing signed by both parties. 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

-12of13-



TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT, the parties have caused their authorized 

representatives to sign below. 

Leighton Consulting, Inc. 

Signatu e 

Kris ·t -lJJ~ 
Printed Name Printed Name 

OChairperson D President~ ce President a Secretary OAsst. Secretary 
D O,ief Finance Officer DAsst. Treasurer 

[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 313, both signature lines must be 
executed unless the signatory holds at least one of the offices designated on each line.J 

l use this signature block if Consultant is a limited liability company] 

Manager Manager 

Printed Name Printed Name 

[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 17703.01( d), both signature lines must be 
executed unless the articles of incorporation state that the firm is managed by only one 
manager.] 

City of Brea 

Mayor 

-13of13· 



































Agenda Item   29. 
City of Brea

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo, City Manager 

DATE: 01/21/2020

SUBJECT: Patrol Rifle Replacement

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the agreement with ProForce Law Enforcement to provide sixty semi-automatic patrol
rifles in the amount of $62,197.07.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
Since 2005, the Police Department has utilized rifles in the course of their law enforcement
duties. Those rifles have been in service for more than 14 years and have reached the end of
their service life. A patrol rifle consists of a rifle, sling, light, suppressor, backup iron sights, and
an electronic red dot sight/optic. Electronic red dot sight/optics allow quick target acquisition and
improved accuracy, all while allowing officers a wider field of vision. Suppressors, by design,
reduce the audible signature of high velocity rounds, reducing the likelihood of permanent
hearing damage to the officers. In addition to the sound signature reduction, they also reduce
muzzle blast and side blast gases, which can be harmful to officers/civilians in proximity to a
weapon being fired.

City Council approved a two-phase decision package at their June 19, 2018 City Council meeting
to fund the replacement of these rifles. Phase One of the Decision Package (FY 2018-19 -
$84,200.00) authorized the purchase of various accessories, including electronic sights, lights,
suppressors, and racks. The Police Department purchased most of those accessories last fiscal
year. The Police Department carried over a small amount of the original funding to facilitate
purchasing the remaining accessories this fiscal year. Phase Two of the Decision Package (FY
2019-20 - $97,950.00) authorized the purchase of 60 new rifles.

Over two years ago, the Police Department tested several rifles from different manufacturers.
Initially, the Police Department determined that the Sig Sauer MCX rifle best suited the needs of
the department. However, since the time of testing and evaluation, another Orange County law
enforcement agency purchased and deployed the Sig Sauer MCX Rifle. That agency discovered
functional problems with the rifle. This, coupled with publicly documented factory recalls and
redesigns of the proprietary operating system of the rifle, caused the Police Department to
re-evaluate the selection of that rifle. Additional testing and evaluation yielded a superior
alternative, the Daniel Defense DDM4 V7S rifle. In addition to meeting the Police Department’s
needs, a version of this rifle system is also currently in use by partner agencies on the North
County SWAT Team, including La Habra Police Department and Fullerton Police Department.
Additionally, the Santa Ana Police Department and Chino Police Department recently adopted
this rifle for their patrol duty use. None of these partner agencies have reported issues with the
functionality of the rifle.



functionality of the rifle.

The Daniel Defense DDM4-V7S rifles are manufactured in the United States and are sold
commercially as semi-automatic modern sporting rifles that were explicitly designed and
marketed for the civilian and law enforcement markets. They are not available to, nor in service
with, any branch of the US Military. This style of rifle is the dominant rifle in service with law
enforcement agencies across the country, and is in use among southern California agencies.
Therefore, the rifle platform, parts, and magazines are compatible with local partner agencies,
thus offer inter-agency compatibility in the case of a large-scale, multi-jurisdictional incident.

To facilitate the purchase of the rifles, the Police Department developed specifications and the
City’s Purchasing Division solicited competitive offers from qualified vendors. A notable condition
specified in the RFB was the trade-in of the Police Department’s current rifles. Because of the
legal requirements for sale (or trade-in) of used firearms, these weapons cannot be sold through
traditional auction sales. For this reason, these items were listed as trade-ins so that the vendor
handling the sale of the new rifles was also the vendor handling the trade-in of the existing rifles.
The RFB included the purchase of 60 new rifles and credit for the trade-in of existing rifles.

Four vendors submitted offers by the October 22, 2019 deadline. All of the bid amounts included
the trade-ins. Each of the bidders were required to provide copies of their Federal Firearms
License, an authorization letter from the manufacturer that they were authorized to sell the
firearms to the Brea Police Department, and to comply with the specifications, terms, and
conditions of the RFB.

Bidder Bid Amount
Proforce Law Enforcement $62,197.07
Adamson Police Products $68,523.75
Clyde Armory, Inc. $71,988.28
LC Action Police Supply $78,173.79

COMMISSION/COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
The Finance Committee reviewed staff’s recommendation at their January 14, 2020 meeting and
recommended to proceed. 



FISCAL IMPACT/SUMMARY
The approved Fiscal Year 2019-20 Budget has sufficient funding available in the General Fund
(110) for this purchase.

Several factors, including the lower cost of the Daniels Defense rifle compared to the Sig Sauer
MCX rifle and a higher than expected trade-in offer for the Police Department’s existing rifles
yielded a significantly lower final bid amount resulting in a net savings of $35,752.93 from the
budgeted amount.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by: Adam Hawley, Captain
Concurrence: John Burks, Chief 

Attachments
Proforce Quote 













Agenda Item   30. 
City of Brea

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo, City Manager 

DATE: 01/21/2020

SUBJECT: A RESOLUTION, 1) AMENDING THE CITY’S CLASSIFICATION PLAN BY ADDING
TWO NEW JOB DESCRIPTIONS OF GOLF COURSE SPECIALIST, AND
RECYCLING COORDINATOR; 2) AMENDING THE PART-TIME EMPLOYMENT
AND BENEFITS POLICY BY ADDING SALARIES FOR THE TWO NEW
POSITIONS; AND; 3); AMENDING THE POSITION ALLOCATION LIST TO
REFLECT THESE CHANGES IN THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT ALONG
WITH THE ADDITION OF TWO TIME-LIMITED FULL-TIME POSITIONS IN THE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT. 

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the Resolution: 1) adopting two new part-time job descriptions of Golf Course Specialist,
and Recycling Coordinator; 2) amending the Part Time Employment and Benefits Policy to
include salaries for the two new positions; and 3) amending the Position Allocation List to include
these positions in the Public Works Department, while also adding two time-limited full time
positions in the Community Development Department. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
At the November 19, 2019, City Council meeting the City Council approved, among other things,
budget adjustments to allow for modifications in staffing to reflect changes in the Public Works
Department and the Community Development Department.  Specifically, the City Council
authorized funding in the Public Works Department for the addition of a part-time Golf Course
Specialist in the Parks and Trees Division, and a part-time Recycling Coordinator in the Street
Division.  The Golf Course Specialist will monitor the City’s contracted golf course operators by
providing oversight and inspections of their work to ensure the City’s quality standards are met. 
The Recycling Coordinator will be overseeing the Organics Recycling Program and coordinating
efforts related to State recycling mandates. 
 
At the same time, the City Council approved funding for a full-time Senior Planner position and a
full-time Assistant Planner position, both for a time period not to exceed twenty four months.  
These positions are needed to address upcoming development related issues including Mercury
Residential, the Brea Mall expansion, Brea Plaza, and the Downtown Hotel, plus future proposals
such as the Downtown Theatre Buildings, the former Improv, Mercury Village, and a potential
expansion of Macy’s. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT/SUMMARY



There is no fiscal impact associated with approving the resolution since the necessary funding
was approved by the City Council at the time of the budget adjustments considered on
November 19, 2019. 
 
Based on the November 19, 2019, City Council adoption of budget adjustments authorizing two
part-time and two twenty four month time-limited full-time positions, it is recommended the City
Council approve the resolution: 1) adopting two new job descriptions of Golf Course Specialist,
and Recycling Coordinator; 2) amending the Part Time Employment and Benefits Policy to
include salaries for the two new positions; and 3) amending the Position Allocation List to include
these positions in the Public Works Department, while also adding two time-limited full-time
positions in the Community Development Department.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by: Doug Stevenson, Sr. Human Resources Analyst
Concurrence: Mario E. Maldonado, Human Resources Manager
 

Attachments
Resolution 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Exhibit C 



RESO NO. 2020-013
January 21, 2020

1

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-013

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BREA 1) AMENDING THE 
EXISTING CLASSIFICATION PLAN, AS ADOPTED FOR CITY EMPLOYEES, TO INCLUDE 
THE CLASSIFICATION SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE POSITIONS OF GOLF COURSE 
SPECIALIST, AND RECYCLING COORDINATOR; 2) ESTABLISHING SALARIES FOR 
THESE CLASSIFICATIONS WITHIN THE PART TIME EMPLOYMENT AND BENEFITS 
POLICY; AND 3) AMENDING THE POSITION ALLOCATION LIST TO ADD THESE
CLASSIFICATIONS ON A PART-TIME BASIS TO THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT, 
AND FURTHER AMENDING THE POSITION ALLOCATION LIST TO ADD TWO TIME-
LIMITED FULL-TIME POSITIONS OF SENIOR PLANNER AND ASSISTANT PLANNER TO 
THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT.

A. Recitals.

(i) Section 2.08 of the Brea Municipal Code provides that the City Council shall prepare, 

revise and maintain a position classification plan covering all positions within the 

classified services, including employment standards and qualifications for each 

classification.

(ii) The Brea Municipal Code provides that the City Council shall approve a plan of 

compensation directly correlated to the position classification plan and a rate or range 

of pay for each classification.

(iii) It is necessary, from time to time, to review and adjust the classification and 

compensation plan to reflect the changing organizational responsibilities of the City and 

to insure the efficient economical operation of the various City departments.

(iv) In order to most effectively implement and monitor the position classification plan, it is 

necessary, from time to time, to amend the Position Allocation List which specifies the 

actual number and distribution of authorized positions within the City.

B. Resolution.

NOW THEREFORE, it is found, determined and resolved by the City Council of the City of 

Brea to:



RESO NO. 2020-013
January 21, 2020

2

(i) Amend the City’s existing position classification plan to include the classification 

specifications for Golf Course Specialist, as attached hereto as Exhibit A and 

incorporated herein by reference.

(ii) Amend the City’s existing position classification plan to include the classification 

specifications for Recycling Coordinator, as attached hereto as Exhibit B and 

incorporated herein by reference.

(iii) Amend the City’s existing Part Time Employment and Benefits Policy by adding the job 

titles and salary ranges for Golf Course Specialist, and Recycling Coordinator with both 

positions having a salary range of $30.09 per hour up to $34.90 per hour, as attached 

hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated herein by reference.

(iv) Amend the Position Allocation List for FY 2019/2020 to add one 20 hours per week 

Golf Course Specialist to the Parks and Trees Division of the Public Works 

Department, and one 20 hours per week Recycling Coordinator to the Streets Division 

of the Public Works Department, and one full-time 24 month funded Senior Planner, 

and one full-time 24 month funded Assistant Planer to the Planning Review Division of 

the Community Development Department.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of January 2020.

_________________________________
Marty Simonoff, Mayor

ATTEST:______________________________
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk



RESO NO. 2020-013
January 21, 2020

3

I, Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the foregoing 

Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Council of the City of Brea, held on the 

21st day of January 2020 by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAINED: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Dated:_____________________________

______________________________
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 



1

CITY OF BREA

GOLF COURSE SPECIALIST

DEFINITION

Acts as the City’s liaison with contracted professional golf course operators to 
coordinate, oversee, monitor, and inspect the maintenance work performed by the 
contractors on City of Brea golf courses; ensuring compliance with agreed upon 
provisions; interacting with course operators and the public to ensure facilities and 
landscaped areas are maintained to the highest standards; coordinate requests for 
services to be performed on the courses; assist with the administration of golf course
maintenance budgets; and perform related duties as assigned.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS

This is an advanced journey level position in the Parks, Landscape and Trees Division 
of the Public Works Department and is primarily responsible for the more technically 
complex tasks of overseeing, site inspections, and golf course operations.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives general supervision from the Public Works Superintendent, and/or Public 
Works Supervisor.

EXAMPLES OF ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS – Duties may include, but are not 
limited to, the following:  (These functions may not be present in all positions in this 
classification.  When a position is to be filled, the essential functions will be noted in the
announcement of position availability.  Management reserves the right to add, modify, 
change or rescind work assignments as needed.)

Reviews day to day maintenance work performed by contracted golf course operators 
in the fields of facility maintenance, landscape maintenance, mowing, tree trimming, the 
installation, repair, and maintenance of irrigation systems, and all aspects of golf course 
maintenance. 

Inspects work performed to ensure maintenance plans and specifications are adhered 
to and that the provisions of contracts are completed as required.  

Coordinates with course operations for the correction of deficiencies in work product 
noticed either at time of inspection or at a later date.  

Receives input from customers or staff for maintenance, repair, or service level 
improvements, and determines proper courses of action coordinating responses with 
appropriate contract providers or others, if appropriate.   

Evaluates contractor performance in relation to compliance with contract provisions, 
responsiveness, and quality of work.



CITY OF BREA
Golf Course Specialist (continued)

2

Identifies opportunities for improving quality of services or levels of maintenance and 
works with the course operators to implement. 

Assists with preparation of capital improvement projects for the courses.

Prepares reports, maintains work records and documentation utilizing an office 
computer and filing system.

QUALIFICATIONS

Knowledge of:

Principles and practices of modern golf course maintenance management.

Landscape installation, repair, and maintenance procedures.

Safe techniques utilized in fertilization and proper use of pesticides and other 
chemicals.  

Plants and types of turfs commonly used in southern California golf courses. 

Irrigation systems operations and maintenance and water conservation 
techniques.

Pumps, regulators, time clocks, valves, meters and other apparatus used in 
landscape maintenance.

Methods, techniques, and products utilized in facility maintenance.

Purposes and uses of a variety of tools, materials, and other equipment used in 
landscape, golf course and facility maintenance.

Report writing and record keeping methods.   

Principles and practices of modern golf course maintenance budgeting.  

Ability to:

Perform inspections of landscape and irrigation installation, repairs, and 
maintenance conducted by contractors.

Read and interpret plans, specifications, and contracts.   

Interpret and explain City contracts, plans, specifications, policies and 
procedures.   



CITY OF BREA
Golf Course Specialist (continued)

3

Understand and carry out written and oral instructions.

Use sound judgment while making decisions that substantially satisfy the intent 
of plans and contracts while accommodating unanticipated circumstances that 
may arise in the field.  

Interact effectively and courteously, and at times persuasively while maintaining 
effective working relationships with contractors and the public.

Estimate project labor and materials costs.  

Perform basic word processing and other computer programs.  

Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.  

Experience and Education

To qualify for this classification, an individual must possess any combination of 
experience and education that would likely produce the required knowledge and 
abilities, and enable the individual to successfully perform the essential functions 
of the position.  A typical combination is:

Experience:

Three years serving in a responsible capacity overseeing golf course 
maintenance and facility maintenance.  

Education:

Completion of high school or its equivalent.  Specialized training, classes, 
and/or experience in golf course maintenance and facility maintenance is 
desirable.

License and Certificates

Possession of a valid Driver’s License issued from the California Department of 
Motor Vehicles.  

PHYSICAL TASKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS include, but are not limited 
to, the following:

Ability to:

Read and understand technical materials, drawings, plans, specifications, 
reports, contracts, correspondence, memorandum, and other records.



CITY OF BREA
Golf Course Specialist (continued)

4

Read and write reports, logs and other records.

Hear and speak to City staff, the general public, other agencies, and contractors 
on the telephone and in person.

Frequently stand for extended periods; frequently reach, lean, twist, turn, grasp, lift 
and carry, push, pull, bend, kneel, and sit.

Walk and climb to different areas to make field inspections.

Lift and carry objects weighing up to 30 pounds.  

Access a variety of locations including trees, ditches, slopes, sand traps and 
other difficult to reach areas in order to perform a range of tasks, and inspect 
and confirm that contractors have performed required work.

Operate a motor vehicle for traveling to various work sites to perform inspections 
and other duties.  

Input data into a computer, calculator, and other electronic devices. 

Operate a computer keyboard, mouse, and other office equipment.

Exposure to:

Direct sunlight, heat, humidity, rain, wind, and cold while working outdoors.

Noisy equipment such as lawn mowers, chain saws, automotive and diesel 
engines, and various hand-held power tools.

Vehicle or machinery exhaust fumes, dust, engine grease, oils, herbicides, and 
pesticides.

Computer glare and vibrations and pitch of common office equipment.



1

CITY OF BREA

RECYCLING COORDINATOR

DEFINITION

Under general direction, this position has responsibility for planning, organization, and 
implementation of City recycling and/or waste management related programs. 
Oversees public outreach programs, regulatory compliance, day-to-day management 
and implementation of specific projects, coordination with outside agencies and 
organizations, and data management and reporting. Supports the Administration 
Division including providing support for the City’s commercial and residential recycling 
programs, works closely with residents and commercial businesses to help evaluate 
compliance requirements pursuant to local, state and federal recycling requirements, 
and performs other related duties, as assigned.  

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS

This is an entry level single class position focused on environmental programs in the 
Administration Division of the Public Works Department.  Assignments are generally of 
moderate difficulty in scale and complexity.  Although the employee may work 
independently in completing daily tasks, technical and policy direction is provided, 
especially while the incumbent grows into the position.  

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED

Receives general supervision from the Public Works Senior Management Analyst.

EXAMPLES OF ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS – Duties may include, but are not 
limited to, the following:  (These functions may not be present in all positions in this 
classification.  When a position is to be filled, the essential functions will be noted in the 
announcement of position availability.  Management reserves the right to add, modify, 
change or rescind work assignments as needed.)

Plans, implements, oversees, and coordinates City recycling and/or waste management 
related outreach programs, schedules and conducts meetings, and any necessary 
follow-up with residents or commercial businesses. 

Directs outreach, education and training to food service establishments and local food 
pantries, organizations, and schools, and makes public presentations to professional, 
commercial businesses, community and neighborhood organizations. 

Establishes and implements food rescue organics diversion programs, develops
marketing strategies to increase participation, and submits required reporting to Orange 
County Waste & Recycling and California’s Department of Resources Recycling and 
Recovery to ensure compliance. 



CITY OF BREA
Recycling Coordinator 

2

Coordinates community awareness programs through education and promotion of 
program services, develops and maintains information, outreach and educational 
materials including brochures, information packets, flyers, guides and other documents. 

Tracks and maintains a variety of data and records, and prepares periodic reports,
maintains work records and documentation utilizing an office computer and filing 
system.

Provides periodic review and program evaluation to ensure conformity with program 
guidelines, and prepares reports, correspondence, and memos. 

Maintains records and prepares required reports for local agencies, acts as liaison with 
State and local contractors. 

Develops and monitors project and program schedules and budgets. 

QUALIFICATIONS

Knowledge of:

Operations and methods necessary to create successful recycling programs. 

State of California laws and regulations regarding recycling requirements.  

Presentation and public speaking techniques.  

Effective communications and marketing techniques and strategies designed to 
promote community participation in environmental programs.  

Report writing and record keeping methods.   

Correct English usage, spelling, punctuation, and grammar.  

Ability to:

Develop and create brochures, flyers, social media advertisements, and other 
educational marketing, public relations and communications programs using a 
variety of computer programs.

Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.  

Successfully make presentations while providing information in a clear, concise, 
and informative manner at public meetings, or forums that may include public 
and private organizations, City staff, and businesses.  



CITY OF BREA
Recycling Coordinator 

3

Establish, maintain, and foster positive and harmonious working relationships with 
those contacted in the course of work.

Work independently and effectively, and plan, coordinate, organize, and prioritize 
projects in order to meet a variety of deadlines. 

Understand and carry out written and oral instructions.

Perform word processing and utilize other computer programs common to an 
office environment.  

Work on variable shifts, or other irregular hours as assigned. 

Experience and Education

To qualify for this classification, an individual must possess any combination of 
experience and education that would likely produce the required knowledge and 
abilities, and enable the individual to successfully perform the essential functions 
of the position.  A typical combination is:

Experience:

One year of administrative experience working in an environmental 
conservation and protection capacity.  

Education:

Associates of art degree or its equivalent with classes in environmental 
sciences or a similar field of study.  A bachelors’ degree is desirable.

Additional work experience may be substituted for education, at City’s discretion. 

License and Certificates

Possession of a valid Driver’s License issued from the California Department of 
Motor Vehicles.  



CITY OF BREA
Recycling Coordinator 

4

PHYSICAL TASKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS include, but are not limited 
to, the following:

Ability to:

Read and write reports, logs and other records.

Hear and speak to City staff, the general public, other agencies, and contractors 
on the telephone and in person.

Frequently stand for extended periods; frequently reach, lean, twist, turn, grasp, lift 
and carry, push, pull, bend, kneel, and sit.

Operate a motor vehicle for traveling to various work sites to perform inspections 
and other duties.  

Input data into a computer, calculator, and other electronic devices. 

Operate a computer keyboard, mouse, and other office equipment.

Exposure to:

Direct sunlight, heat, humidity, rain, wind, and cold while working outdoors and 
visiting various locations and businesses.

Computer glare and vibrations and pitch of computers and other common office 
equipment.



PART-TIME SALARY RANGES

Effective January 21, 2020

Resolution No. 
Updated January 21, 2020

Hourly Pay Rate

Classification 1 2 3 4 5 6 7
*Administrative Intern 13.00 13.33 13.46 14.00 14.35 14.71 15.08

Community Services 
Coordinator 15.38 15.78 16.18 16.57 16.99 17.42 17.84

Community Services 
Leader

13.65 13.99 14.34 14.70 15.07 15.44 15.83

Community Services 
Shuttle Driver

18.51 18.97 19.45 19.93 20.44 20.93 21.47

*Community Services 
Worker

13.00 13.33 13.46 14.00 14.35 14.71 15.08

Facilities Worker 13.57 13.92 14.26 14.60 15.00 15.36 15.73

Golf Course Specialist 30.09 30.84 31.61 32.41 33.22 34.05 34.90

*Lifeguard
13.00 13.33 13.46 14.00 14.35 14.71 15.08

Lifeguard/Instructor
13.65 13.99 14.34 14.70 15.07 15.44 15.83

*Mail Room Stores 
Clerk 13.00 13.33 13.46 14.00 14.35 14.71 15.08

*Police Cadet 13.00 13.33 13.46 14.00 14.35 14.71 15.08

Police Reserve Officer 21.73 22.29 22.85 23.42 24.00 24.60 25.22

Recycling Coordinator 30.09 30.84 31.61 32.41 33.22 34.05 34.90

*Reserve Police Officer 
Trainee

13.00

Senior Community 
Services Leader

14.33 14.69 15.06 15.43 15.82 16.22 16.62

Senior 
Lifeguard/Instructor

15.50 15.90 16.28 16.69 17.10 17.54 17.96

*Specialist/Inspector 13.00 – 100.00

*Technical Intern 13.00 13.33 13.46 14.00 14.35 14.71 15.08

* Denotes classification tied to state minimum wage



Agenda Item   31. 
City of Brea 

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

FROM: Bill Gallardo, City Manager 

DATE: 01/21/2020

SUBJECT: December Outgoing Payment Log and December 13, 20 & 27, 2019 and January
3, 10 & 17, 2020 City Check Registers - Receive and file. 

Attachments
December Outgoing Payment Log 
12-13-19 City Check Register 
12-20-19 City Check Register 
12-27-19 City Check Register 
01-03-20 City Check Register 
01-10-20 City Check Register 
01-17-20 City Check Register 



Effective Date Vendor Description Amount

General Account Electronic payments

12/2/2019 CA SDU Child support payments 90.38                               

12/2/2019 Elavon Credit card processing fees 746.84                            

12/3/2019 Citizens Business Bank Credit card processing fees 2,005.07                         

12/3/2019 BANC OF AMERICA Solar Lease Debt Payment 153,297.61                     

12/5/2019 CALPERS Member retirement 313,945.40                     

12/5/2019 CALPERS Medical payment 387,058.18                     

12/6/2019 IRS Payroll Federal taxes 176,016.88                     

12/6/2019 EDD Payroll State taxes 61,036.54                       

12/6/2019 Brea Payroll Brea staff payroll 815,384.09                     

12/6/2019 Brea Payroll Employee deductions 27,535.43                       

12/9/2019 CA SDU Child support payments 737.20                            

12/11/2019 Brea Payroll Employee deductions 804.17                            

12/12/2019 American Express Credit card processing fees 37.18                               

12/12/2019 Brea Payroll Brea staff payroll 57,330.75                       

12/12/2019 Brea Payroll Employee deductions 107,448.75                     

12/20/2019 CALPERS Member retirement 214,522.65                     

12/20/2019 Paymentus Monthly service fee  5,409.00                         

12/20/2019 Brea Payroll Brea staff payroll 873,111.70                     

12/20/2019 Brea Payroll Employee deductions 148,609.91                     

12/20/2019 EDD Payroll State taxes 56,155.15                       

12/20/2019 IRS Payroll Federal taxes 174,520.89                     

12/20/2019 CA SDU Child support payments 735.22                            

12/20/2019 BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON 2014 Water Bond Payment 405,350.09                     

12/20/2019 BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON 2019 Water Bond Payment 348,305.04                     

12/23/2019 Citizens Business Bank Monthly banking service fee 1,964.64                         

12/23/2019 IRS Payroll Federal taxes 75.76                               

12/23/2019 Union Bank Laif Contribution 118,000.00                     

12/24/2019 CALPERS Member retirement 216,709.25                     

12/24/2019 CA Dept of Tax Sales tax 570.15                            

12/30/2019 ILJAOC Payroll ILJAOC staff salary & payroll taxes 13,206.24                       

4,680,720.16                 

Imprest Accounts

Various Workers Compensation Claims 56,151.24                       

Various General Liability Claims 44,991.68                       

Subtotal 101,142.92                     

4,781,863.08$               

City of Brea

Outgoing Payment Log

December 2019



City Check Register for:  Dec 13, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

182586  7 STAR FOODS                       12/13/2019 29246   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $653.27

7 STAR FOODS                              Total Check Amount: $653.27

182587  ROBERT & MONIQUE ALLARD            12/13/2019 29293   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $74.50

ROBERT & MONIQUE ALLARD                   Total Check Amount: $74.50

182588  THOMAS ALLEN                       12/13/2019 29304   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $285.00

THOMAS ALLEN                              Total Check Amount: $285.00

182589  ALPHA OMEGA SOLUTIONS              12/13/2019 29251   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $1,248.00

ALPHA OMEGA SOLUTIONS                     Total Check Amount: $1,248.00

182590  GERALD ASMONDY                     12/13/2019 29294   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $398.00

GERALD ASMONDY                            Total Check Amount: $398.00

182591  BANC OF CALIFORNIA                 12/13/2019 25793   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $222.50

BANC OF CALIFORNIA                        Total Check Amount: $222.50

182592  BARTEL ASSOCIATES, LLC             12/13/2019 18970   110141431       GASB75 DISCLOSURE RPT    $2,105.00

BARTEL ASSOCIATES, LLC                    Total Check Amount: $2,105.00

182593  BYRON & JANET BEAN                 12/13/2019 29278   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $164.00

BYRON & JANET BEAN                        Total Check Amount: $164.00

182594  LYNNE BEEHLER                      12/13/2019 29286   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $47.00

LYNNE BEEHLER                             Total Check Amount: $47.00

182595  BILL WARSHAW PHOTOGRAPHY           12/13/2019 16076   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $38.24

BILL WARSHAW PHOTOGRAPHY                  Total Check Amount: $38.24

182596  HONEY BIRDETTE                     12/13/2019 29263   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $585.98

HONEY BIRDETTE                            Total Check Amount: $585.98

182597  BISHOP COMPANY                     12/13/2019 3303    110515141       TOOLS/CHAIN SAW          $242.65

BISHOP COMPANY                            Total Check Amount: $242.65

182598  DANIEL AND/OR KIM BOSSE            12/13/2019 23491   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $355.25

DANIEL AND/OR KIM BOSSE                   Total Check Amount: $355.25

182599  CHARITY BREWER                     12/13/2019 29306   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $263.00

CHARITY BREWER                            Total Check Amount: $263.00

182600  ELWOOD BROWN                       12/13/2019 29303   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $297.00

ELWOOD BROWN                              Total Check Amount: $297.00

182601  QUENTIN & LORA BROWN               12/13/2019 29258   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $98.00

QUENTIN & LORA BROWN                      Total Check Amount: $98.00

182602  BURKE APOLLO LLC                   12/13/2019 29256   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $646.75

BURKE APOLLO LLC                          Total Check Amount: $646.75

182603  CAROLYN BURKE                      12/13/2019 29242   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $148.00

CAROLYN BURKE                             Total Check Amount: $148.00

182605  BUSINESS CARD                      12/13/2019 18749   110141431       BSCARD HR 112319         $1,018.58

12/13/2019 18749   110141481       BSCARD HR 112319         $738.52

12/13/2019 18749   110212111       BSCARD PD 112319         $299.89

Dec 12, 2019 1 of 20 12:26:01 PM



City Check Register for:  Dec 13, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

182605  BUSINESS CARD                      12/13/2019 18749   110212131       BSCARD PD 112319         $4,185.84

12/13/2019 18749   110222223       BSCARD FIRE 112319       $58.52

12/13/2019 18749   110222231       BSCARD FIRE 112319       $866.41

12/13/2019 18749   110404211       BSCARD CS II 112319      $429.35

12/13/2019 18749   110404217       BSCARD CS 112319         $240.43

12/13/2019 18749   110404311       BSCARD CS II 112319      $251.50

12/13/2019 18749   110404421       BSCARD CS 112319         $35.58

12/13/2019 18749   110404421       BSCARD CS II 112319      $1,649.10

12/13/2019 18749   110404425       BSCARD CS 112319         $378.75

12/13/2019 18749   420515131       BSCARD WATER 112139      $283.57

12/13/2019 18749   950000000       ILJAOC BSCARD JM 1119    $14.99

12/13/2019 18749   950000000       ILJAOC VSCARD MJ 1119    $519.12

BUSINESS CARD                             Total Check Amount: $10,970.15

182606  CALIF FORENSIC PHLEBOTOMY INC.     12/13/2019 4488    110212131       BLOOD DRAWS NOV2019      $642.00

12/13/2019 4488    110212131       BLOOD TESTS SEPT 2019    $642.00

CALIF FORENSIC PHLEBOTOMY INC.            Total Check Amount: $1,284.00

182607  CALIFORNIA NEWSPAPER 
PARTNERSHIP   

12/13/2019 26287   110000000       AD:BREA SCOPING MTG      $149.60

CALIFORNIA NEWSPAPER PARTNERSHIP          Total Check Amount: $149.60

182608  DEBORAH CANTWELL                   12/13/2019 19957   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $76.90

DEBORAH CANTWELL                          Total Check Amount: $76.90

182609  CARNEY MEHR                        12/13/2019 28329   950000000       ILJAOC LGL SVCS OCT19    $2,812.20

CARNEY MEHR                               Total Check Amount: $2,812.20

182610  DAVID AND/OR RACHELLE CASARES      12/13/2019 26107   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $168.00

DAVID AND/OR RACHELLE CASARES             Total Check Amount: $168.00

182611  DANIEL CHANG                       12/13/2019 28078   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $335.00

DANIEL CHANG                              Total Check Amount: $335.00

182612  VALERIE CHANG-RUSSONIELLO          12/13/2019 29299   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $299.00

VALERIE CHANG-RUSSONIELLO                 Total Check Amount: $299.00

182613  KIRK & SYLVIA CHASE                12/13/2019 29265   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $149.00

KIRK & SYLVIA CHASE                       Total Check Amount: $149.00

182614  MICHAEL CHOI                       12/13/2019 29277   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $55.50

MICHAEL CHOI                              Total Check Amount: $55.50

182615  CHOPSTOP                           12/13/2019 29255   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $58.25

CHOPSTOP                                  Total Check Amount: $58.25

182616  KATY CHOU                          12/13/2019 29248   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $51.00

KATY CHOU                                 Total Check Amount: $51.00

182617  CHRIST LUTHERAN CHURCH             12/13/2019 15163   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $311.50

CHRIST LUTHERAN CHURCH                    Total Check Amount: $311.50

Dec 12, 2019 2 of 20 12:26:01 PM



City Check Register for:  Dec 13, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

182618  JASON CHRISTOPHER                  12/13/2019 29269   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $422.25

JASON CHRISTOPHER                         Total Check Amount: $422.25

182619  CINTAS                             12/13/2019 24347   110404542       THTR FIRSTAID RESTOCK    $73.64

CINTAS                                    Total Check Amount: $73.64

182620  CLA-VAL CO.                        12/13/2019 15266   420515131       PUMP CONTROL REPAIR      $2,297.87

CLA-VAL CO.                               Total Check Amount: $2,297.87

182621  DIANE CLAYBAUGH                    12/13/2019 28747   110             BCC ACCT BAL REFUND      $120.75

DIANE CLAYBAUGH                           Total Check Amount: $120.75

182622  TOM CORNWELL                       12/13/2019 29264   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $47.00

TOM CORNWELL                              Total Check Amount: $47.00

182623  DAVID CORTEZ                       12/13/2019 29271   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $98.00

DAVID CORTEZ                              Total Check Amount: $98.00

182624  COUNTY OF ORANGE                   12/13/2019 4799    110212131       ANIMAL CARE JUL-SEP19    $38,932.78

12/13/2019 4799    110212131       TO CORRECT CHK#182392    ($38,392.78)

COUNTY OF ORANGE                          Total Check Amount: $540.00

182625  CR BREA LLC                        12/13/2019 29268   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $347.00

CR BREA LLC                               Total Check Amount: $347.00

182626  CREATE A PARTY RENTALS             12/13/2019 7113    110404421       TREE LIGHTING CHAIRS     $390.00

CREATE A PARTY RENTALS                    Total Check Amount: $390.00

182627  CHRISTOPHER & ANITA CRUZ           12/13/2019 18102   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $47.00

CHRISTOPHER & ANITA CRUZ                  Total Check Amount: $47.00

182628  CS PROPERTY MANAGEMENT             12/13/2019 29123   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $1,323.43

CS PROPERTY MANAGEMENT                    Total Check Amount: $1,323.43

182629  CUONG DIEP                         12/13/2019 29279   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $299.00

CUONG DIEP                                Total Check Amount: $299.00

182630  DAVID EDMONDSON                    12/13/2019 29332   420000000       WATER REFUND             $363.24

DAVID EDMONDSON                           Total Check Amount: $363.24

182631  ALTER DOMUS                        12/13/2019 29274   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $148.50

ALTER DOMUS                               Total Check Amount: $148.50

182632  DANIEL DRAKE                       12/13/2019 22290   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $156.75

DANIEL DRAKE                              Total Check Amount: $156.75

182633  DSA SAN DIEGO REGIONAL OFFICE      12/13/2019 26537   510707929       LDM PLAN/FIELD REVIEW    $5,808.36

DSA SAN DIEGO REGIONAL OFFICE             Total Check Amount: $5,808.36

182634  SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON         12/13/2019 3343    110515121       ELECTRICITY              $13,664.11

12/13/2019 3343    110515125       ELECTRICITY              $4,068.84

12/13/2019 3343    110515141       ELECTRICITY              $3,078.65

12/13/2019 3343    110515143       ELECTRICITY              $715.57

12/13/2019 3343    110515144       ELECTRICITY              $2,488.50

12/13/2019 3343    341515112       ELECTRICITY              $89.88

Dec 12, 2019 3 of 20 12:26:01 PM



City Check Register for:  Dec 13, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

182634  SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON         12/13/2019 3343    343515112       ELECTRICITY              $214.14

12/13/2019 3343    345515112       ELECTRICITY              $44.06

12/13/2019 3343    346515112       ELECTRICITY              $121.34

12/13/2019 3343    360515145       ELECTRICITY              $1,138.44

12/13/2019 3343    420515131       ELECTRICITY              $37,029.68

12/13/2019 3343    430515123       ELECTRICITY              $610.90

12/13/2019 3343    490515151       ELECTRICITY              $1,061.80

12/13/2019 3343    880515113       ELECTRICITY              $11.06

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON                Total Check Amount: $64,336.97

182635  GEOFFREY ENGEL                     12/13/2019 29259   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $249.50

GEOFFREY ENGEL                            Total Check Amount: $249.50

182636  FACILITY PROCESS SOLUTIONS         12/13/2019 28887   430515123       NOV19 ROUNDS/REPORTIN    $2,091.00

FACILITY PROCESS SOLUTIONS                Total Check Amount: $2,091.00

182637  ENRIQUE AND/OR STEPHANIE FARIAS    12/13/2019 18264   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $95.00

ENRIQUE AND/OR STEPHANIE FARIAS           Total Check Amount: $95.00

182638  MARC FERRELL                       12/13/2019 22630   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $160.70

MARC FERRELL                              Total Check Amount: $160.70

182639  FIRST LIGHT TECHNOLOGIES LTD       12/13/2019 29065   341515112       2 BOLLARD LIGHTS         $1,951.00

FIRST LIGHT TECHNOLOGIES LTD              Total Check Amount: $1,951.00

182640  SCOTT & GRACE FISHMAN              12/13/2019 22794   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $98.62

SCOTT & GRACE FISHMAN                     Total Check Amount: $98.62

182641  FRANCHISE TAX BOARD                12/13/2019 13287   110             JK2309228/CD917666897    $159.23

FRANCHISE TAX BOARD                       Total Check Amount: $159.23

182642  FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS            12/13/2019 26183   420515131       5621821220 1128-1227     $198.02

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS                   Total Check Amount: $198.02

182643  GALVEZ QUALITY AUTO GLASS          12/13/2019 27010   480             WINDSHIELD               ($20.54)

12/13/2019 27010   480515161       WINDSHIELD               $285.54

GALVEZ QUALITY AUTO GLASS                 Total Check Amount: $265.00

182644  KATHLEEN GASTON                    12/13/2019 29324   110000000       CITATION REFUND          $281.00

KATHLEEN GASTON                           Total Check Amount: $281.00

182645  BARRY GHRIST                       12/13/2019 20897   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $116.92

BARRY GHRIST                              Total Check Amount: $116.92

182646  JIM GLENN                          12/13/2019 29196   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $69.38

JIM GLENN                                 Total Check Amount: $69.38

182647  GOLDEN BELL PRODUCTS, INC.         12/13/2019 1411    430515123       SEWER ROACH CONTROL      $4,687.00

GOLDEN BELL PRODUCTS, INC.                Total Check Amount: $4,687.00

182648  ANGEL GONZALEZ                     12/13/2019 29331   420000000       WATER REFUND             $33.85

ANGEL GONZALEZ                            Total Check Amount: $33.85

182649  EIICHIRO AND/OR MARIKO HAMABATA    12/13/2019 28401   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $70.90

Dec 12, 2019 4 of 20 12:26:01 PM



City Check Register for:  Dec 13, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

EIICHIRO AND/OR MARIKO HAMABATA           Total Check Amount: $70.90

182650  LYNDA HAMILTON                     12/13/2019 29334   420000000       WATER REFUND             $65.93

LYNDA HAMILTON                            Total Check Amount: $65.93

182651  HANNA, BROPHY, MACLEAN, MCALEER 
& J

12/13/2019 25979   470141483       PROF SVCS 8/21-9/19      $140.00

HANNA, BROPHY, MACLEAN, MCALEER & J       Total Check Amount: $140.00

182652  GREGORY HERR                       12/13/2019 29296   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $134.00

GREGORY HERR                              Total Check Amount: $134.00

182653  HF&H CONSULTANTS, LLC              12/13/2019 27542   440515122       PROF SVCS OCT 2019       $238.50

HF&H CONSULTANTS, LLC                     Total Check Amount: $238.50

182654  BILL HITE                          12/13/2019 29320   110             CLASS REFUND             $25.00

BILL HITE                                 Total Check Amount: $25.00

182655  GARY HSZIEH                        12/13/2019 25684   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $285.00

GARY HSZIEH                               Total Check Amount: $285.00

182656  JASPER & SEAN HUANG                12/13/2019 29272   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $494.00

JASPER & SEAN HUANG                       Total Check Amount: $494.00

182657  IPERMIT E RATERS                   12/13/2019 29288   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $600.00

IPERMIT E RATERS                          Total Check Amount: $600.00

182658  DANI ISAACSON                      12/13/2019 29290   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $147.00

DANI ISAACSON                             Total Check Amount: $147.00

182659  PHILIP ISENHOUER                   12/13/2019 29262   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $144.75

PHILIP ISENHOUER                          Total Check Amount: $144.75

182660  SATISH IYER                        12/13/2019 29280   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $197.00

SATISH IYER                               Total Check Amount: $197.00

182661  JOHN GIBSON & JASON MILLER         12/13/2019 29241   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $335.50

JOHN GIBSON & JASON MILLER                Total Check Amount: $335.50

182662  GOURI KAR                          12/13/2019 29244   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $249.90

GOURI KAR                                 Total Check Amount: $249.90

182663  KAVO KERR                          12/13/2019 28644   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $524.50

KAVO KERR                                 Total Check Amount: $524.50

182664  ELIASON KESSLER                    12/13/2019 29276   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $198.00

ELIASON KESSLER                           Total Check Amount: $198.00

182665  KILROY REALTY                      12/13/2019 18429   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $70.20

KILROY REALTY                             Total Check Amount: $70.20

182666  EDWIN KRISNADI                     12/13/2019 29267   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $543.00

EDWIN KRISNADI                            Total Check Amount: $543.00

182667  ROBERT LA CERTE                    12/13/2019 29298   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $361.00

ROBERT LA CERTE                           Total Check Amount: $361.00

182668  NHON LAM                           12/13/2019 29300   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $97.00

NHON LAM                                  Total Check Amount: $97.00

Dec 12, 2019 5 of 20 12:26:01 PM



City Check Register for:  Dec 13, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

182669  STEVE AND/OR CANDY LEE             12/13/2019 24603   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $148.00

STEVE AND/OR CANDY LEE                    Total Check Amount: $148.00

182670  YEASON LEE AND/OR STELLA YOON      12/13/2019 29175   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $51.35

YEASON LEE AND/OR STELLA YOON             Total Check Amount: $51.35

182671  JAYA LESLIE                        12/13/2019 29257   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $42.00

JAYA LESLIE                               Total Check Amount: $42.00

182672  LEWIS CARL CO                      12/13/2019 29177   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $1,649.90

LEWIS CARL CO                             Total Check Amount: $1,649.90

182673  LIFE-ASSIST, INC.                  12/13/2019 10530   174222222       PM SUPPLIES FIRESTN#2    $285.75

12/13/2019 10530   174222222       PM SUPPLIES FS #1        $119.06

12/13/2019 10530   174222222       PM SUPPLIES FS #2        $246.40

12/13/2019 10530   174222222       PM SUPPLIES FS #3        $1,355.65

LIFE-ASSIST, INC.                         Total Check Amount: $2,006.86

182674  IGOR & ISABELLE LIFSCHITZ          12/13/2019 29285   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $33.00

IGOR & ISABELLE LIFSCHITZ                 Total Check Amount: $33.00

182675  BRIAN LIM                          12/13/2019 27712   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $18.45

BRIAN LIM                                 Total Check Amount: $18.45

182676  ZHEN JIANG LIU                     12/13/2019 24715   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $46.00

ZHEN JIANG LIU                            Total Check Amount: $46.00

182677  DARIAN LOCKETT                     12/13/2019 26232   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $152.70

DARIAN LOCKETT                            Total Check Amount: $152.70

182678  STEVEN LOCKSHAW                    12/13/2019 19728   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $260.70

STEVEN LOCKSHAW                           Total Check Amount: $260.70

182679  NICOLE LUGO                        12/13/2019 29250   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $32.50

NICOLE LUGO                               Total Check Amount: $32.50

182680  MAGELLAN CORP                      12/13/2019 13153   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $204.08

MAGELLAN CORP                             Total Check Amount: $204.08

182681  PATRICK RICHARD MANNION            12/13/2019 29152   110404542       POSTERS FOR DROOD        $107.75

PATRICK RICHARD MANNION                   Total Check Amount: $107.75

182682  MATTRESS FIRM                      12/13/2019 29247   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $716.85

MATTRESS FIRM                             Total Check Amount: $716.85

182683  MATTHEW MCCLURE                    12/13/2019 29240   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $29.92

MATTHEW MCCLURE                           Total Check Amount: $29.92

182684  EILEEN MCCULLOUGH                  12/13/2019 25187   110404541       WORKSHOP-CITYSCAPES      $1,068.75

EILEEN MCCULLOUGH                         Total Check Amount: $1,068.75

182685  MARY MCWADE                        12/13/2019 29260   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $297.00

MARY MCWADE                               Total Check Amount: $297.00

182686  MEDPOST URGENT CARE - BREA         12/13/2019 27547   110141481       HR MED SVCS 10/8/19      $30.00

12/13/2019 27547   110141481       HR MED SVCS OCT 2019     $300.00

Dec 12, 2019 6 of 20 12:26:01 PM



City Check Register for:  Dec 13, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

MEDPOST URGENT CARE - BREA                Total Check Amount: $330.00

182687  RANDY MOODY                        12/13/2019 21335   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $294.42

RANDY MOODY                               Total Check Amount: $294.42

182688  LARRY & KAREN MOORE                12/13/2019 29243   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $523.40

LARRY & KAREN MOORE                       Total Check Amount: $523.40

182689  LATONI MOORE                       12/13/2019 29335   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $60.04

LATONI MOORE                              Total Check Amount: $60.04

182690  ADAM C MORALES                     12/13/2019 29181   110000000       CITATION REFUND          $21.00

ADAM C MORALES                            Total Check Amount: $21.00

182691  LARRY MORALES                      12/13/2019 29321   110000000       1911-0380 REPORT REF     $3.00

LARRY MORALES                             Total Check Amount: $3.00

182692  DEBBIE MORGENSEN                   12/13/2019 29273   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $76.00

DEBBIE MORGENSEN                          Total Check Amount: $76.00

182693  GARY & SHERRIE MORIMOTO            12/13/2019 29282   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $97.00

GARY & SHERRIE MORIMOTO                   Total Check Amount: $97.00

182694  MR. TRAN                           12/13/2019 29245   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $317.90

MR. TRAN                                  Total Check Amount: $317.90

182695  NATIONAL PEN CO. LLC               12/13/2019 25520   110222211       FIRE DEPT GIVEAWAYS      $260.65

NATIONAL PEN CO. LLC                      Total Check Amount: $260.65

182696  MARIA NAVA                         12/13/2019 29326   110000000       1910-2339 REPORT REF     $3.00

MARIA NAVA                                Total Check Amount: $3.00

182697  PATRICIA (PATTY) NORDQUIST         12/13/2019 27620   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $297.00

PATRICIA (PATTY) NORDQUIST                Total Check Amount: $297.00

182698  NUVIS LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE       12/13/2019 28071   360515147       DESIGN/MEETINGS OCT19    $500.00

NUVIS LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE              Total Check Amount: $500.00

182699  OFFICE DEPOT, INC                  12/13/2019 4743    110212121       OFFICE SUPPLIES          $310.43

12/13/2019 4743    110404311       OFFICE SUPPLIES          $90.73

OFFICE DEPOT, INC                         Total Check Amount: $401.16

182700  MARK ORR                           12/13/2019 29281   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $98.00

MARK ORR                                  Total Check Amount: $98.00

182701  PACIFIC LIGHTING & STANDARDS CO.   12/13/2019 20717   343515112       LIGHT FIXTURES           $1,803.95

PACIFIC LIGHTING & STANDARDS CO.          Total Check Amount: $1,803.95

182702  WILLIAM PAQUETTE                   12/13/2019 23628   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $98.00

WILLIAM PAQUETTE                          Total Check Amount: $98.00

182703  ANDREW PERSAD                      12/13/2019 29289   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $330.00

ANDREW PERSAD                             Total Check Amount: $330.00

182704  PLUMBING WHOLESALE OUTLET, INC.    12/13/2019 18392   110515125       DT RR REPAIRS            $44.17

12/13/2019 18392   110515141       DRAIN CLEANERS/RRSEAL    $47.66

12/13/2019 18392   110515141       JANITORIAL SUPPLIES      $352.49

Dec 12, 2019 7 of 20 12:26:01 PM



City Check Register for:  Dec 13, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

182704  PLUMBING WHOLESALE OUTLET, INC.    12/13/2019 18392   346515112       PUMP PARTS               $42.51

12/13/2019 18392   490515151       CONF CTR FAUCET RPR      $13.06

12/13/2019 18392   490515151       PLUMBING PROJ:BCC RR     $73.46

PLUMBING WHOLESALE OUTLET, INC.           Total Check Amount: $573.35

182705  PREFERRED CONSTRUCTION 
SPECIALTIES 

12/13/2019 21603   490515151       RR PARTITIONS            $1,817.00

PREFERRED CONSTRUCTION SPECIALTIES        Total Check Amount: $1,817.00

182706  PROMISING SOLUTIONS, INC.          12/13/2019 29319   475141471       EMERG BLOCK:MS EXCH      $1,850.00

PROMISING SOLUTIONS, INC.                 Total Check Amount: $1,850.00

182707  PUENTE HILLS FORD                  12/13/2019 25742   480515161       MOULDING                 $103.38

PUENTE HILLS FORD                         Total Check Amount: $103.38

182708  PURDY PLUMBING AND SUPPLIES        12/13/2019 29110   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $991.48

PURDY PLUMBING AND SUPPLIES               Total Check Amount: $991.48

182709  ELIZABETH RAMOS                    12/13/2019 29266   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $98.00

ELIZABETH RAMOS                           Total Check Amount: $98.00

182710  RENNE SLOAN HOTLZMAN SAKAI, LLP    12/13/2019 27580   110141481       PROF SVCS SEPT 2019      $393.40

RENNE SLOAN HOTLZMAN SAKAI, LLP           Total Check Amount: $393.40

182711  NICHOLAS LEE RIVERA                12/13/2019 29327   110404542       MYSTERY OF E. DROOD      $100.00

NICHOLAS LEE RIVERA                       Total Check Amount: $100.00

182712  HYUNG RAE RO                       12/13/2019 24327   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $26.00

HYUNG RAE RO                              Total Check Amount: $26.00

182713  JOSEPH AND/OR JOE ROBERTSON        12/13/2019 26485   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $206.20

JOSEPH AND/OR JOE ROBERTSON               Total Check Amount: $206.20

182714  ROBERTSON'S                        12/13/2019 3464    420515131       SLURRY                   $1,807.51

ROBERTSON'S                               Total Check Amount: $1,807.51

182715  BRADLEY AND/OR CAROL RODRIGUEZ     12/13/2019 20330   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $263.00

BRADLEY AND/OR CAROL RODRIGUEZ            Total Check Amount: $263.00

182716  RICK RODRIGUEZ                     12/13/2019 26248   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $98.80

RICK RODRIGUEZ                            Total Check Amount: $98.80

182717  CANDICE E ROMAN                    12/13/2019 29180   110000000       CITATION REFUND          $281.00

CANDICE E ROMAN                           Total Check Amount: $281.00

182718  ANAMARIE ROMO                      12/13/2019 29284   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $47.00

ANAMARIE ROMO                             Total Check Amount: $47.00

182719  C.F. ROTHENBECK SR.                12/13/2019 20145   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $174.80

C.F. ROTHENBECK SR.                       Total Check Amount: $174.80

182720  TED RUNDLE                         12/13/2019 28963   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $131.00

TED RUNDLE                                Total Check Amount: $131.00

182721  SALLY'S BEAUTY SUPPLY              12/13/2019 29197   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $215.69

SALLY'S BEAUTY SUPPLY                     Total Check Amount: $215.69

182722  SAN BERNARDINO CTY SHERIFF'S 12/13/2019 16979   110212111       TFC COLLISION INV-INT    $206.00

Dec 12, 2019 8 of 20 12:26:01 PM



City Check Register for:  Dec 13, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

DEPT  

SAN BERNARDINO CTY SHERIFF'S DEPT         Total Check Amount: $206.00

182723  SAN BERNARDINO CTY SHERIFF'S 
DEPT  

12/13/2019 16979   110212111       TFC COLLISION INV-ADV    $421.00

SAN BERNARDINO CTY SHERIFF'S DEPT         Total Check Amount: $421.00

182724  SANTOUKA                           12/13/2019 29253   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $67.00

SANTOUKA                                  Total Check Amount: $67.00

182725  RAMEN SANTOUKA                     12/13/2019 29302   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $239.00

RAMEN SANTOUKA                            Total Check Amount: $239.00

182726  MOHAMMAD SAQUIB                    12/13/2019 29295   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $169.00

MOHAMMAD SAQUIB                           Total Check Amount: $169.00

182727  STEVEN SCHULZ                      12/13/2019 29301   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $173.50

STEVEN SCHULZ                             Total Check Amount: $173.50

182728  SENTINEL DEFENSE                   12/13/2019 29337   110212111       TACT RIFLE INSTR CRSE    $550.00

SENTINEL DEFENSE                          Total Check Amount: $550.00

182729  SETSUKO MORI & HIROSHI OGINO       12/13/2019 29270   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $447.00

SETSUKO MORI & HIROSHI OGINO              Total Check Amount: $447.00

182730  SEVEN7H SENSE                      12/13/2019 29261   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $426.75

SEVEN7H SENSE                             Total Check Amount: $426.75

182731  CHANG YUN SHIN                     12/13/2019 29323   110000000       1911-0904 REPORT REF     $3.00

CHANG YUN SHIN                            Total Check Amount: $3.00

182732  SIMON PROPERTY GROUP               12/13/2019 23062   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $380.75

SIMON PROPERTY GROUP                      Total Check Amount: $380.75

182733  ABDUL SITABKHAN                    12/13/2019 29287   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $263.00

ABDUL SITABKHAN                           Total Check Amount: $263.00

182734  SPRINT                             12/13/2019 29252   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $194.75

SPRINT                                    Total Check Amount: $194.75

182735  SPRINT                             12/13/2019 20480   110212121       19/20 GPS:7142350245     $100.00

SPRINT                                    Total Check Amount: $100.00

182736  CRAIG & ELIZABETH STARK            12/13/2019 29283   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $149.00

CRAIG & ELIZABETH STARK                   Total Check Amount: $149.00

182737  MICHAEL STODDARD                   12/13/2019 29291   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $163.00

MICHAEL STODDARD                          Total Check Amount: $163.00

182738  CAROLE STONE                       12/13/2019 29333   420000000       WATER REFUND             $55.56

CAROLE STONE                              Total Check Amount: $55.56

182739  REGGIE STRAUGHTER                  12/13/2019 29297   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $285.50

REGGIE STRAUGHTER                         Total Check Amount: $285.50

182740  DICK AND/OR KATHY STROBEL          12/13/2019 25845   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $138.76

DICK AND/OR KATHY STROBEL                 Total Check Amount: $138.76

182741  MARK AND/OR ANDREA STROM           12/13/2019 17527   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $371.50

Dec 12, 2019 9 of 20 12:26:01 PM



City Check Register for:  Dec 13, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

MARK AND/OR ANDREA STROM                  Total Check Amount: $371.50

182742  MICHAEL R. TANG                    12/13/2019 28198   110404541       WATERCOLOR 
DEMONSTRAT    

$749.25

MICHAEL R. TANG                           Total Check Amount: $749.25

182743  TRIGON COMPONENTS                  12/13/2019 29330   420000000       WATER REFUND             $31.98

TRIGON COMPONENTS                         Total Check Amount: $31.98

182744  TURNOUT MAINTENANCE COMPANY, 
LLC   

12/13/2019 19898   110222221       BRUSH COATS              $118.95

12/13/2019 19898   110222221       CLOTHING REPAIR          $70.00

12/13/2019 19898   110222231       BRUSH COATS              $97.00

TURNOUT MAINTENANCE COMPANY, LLC          Total Check Amount: $285.95

182745  U.S. POSTAL SERVICE                12/13/2019 3284    110111151       BREA LINE:SPRING 2020    $3,108.59

U.S. POSTAL SERVICE                       Total Check Amount: $3,108.59

182746  ALEJANDRO & LUISA ULLOA            12/13/2019 29275   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $205.00

ALEJANDRO & LUISA ULLOA                   Total Check Amount: $205.00

182747  URIMAN INC                         12/13/2019 24449   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $606.00

URIMAN INC                                Total Check Amount: $606.00

182748  SERGIO AND/OR DEBBIE VALLES        12/13/2019 25828   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $37.32

SERGIO AND/OR DEBBIE VALLES               Total Check Amount: $37.32

182749  VELOCITYEHS                        12/13/2019 29307   110515141       19/20 MSDS ONLINE        $329.90

12/13/2019 29307   110515144       19/20 MSDS ONLINE        $329.90

12/13/2019 29307   420515131       19/20 MSDS ONLINE        $659.80

12/13/2019 29307   430515123       19/20 MSDS ONLINE        $659.80

12/13/2019 29307   480515161       19/20 MSDS ONLINE        $659.80

12/13/2019 29307   490515151       19/20 MSDS ONLINE        $659.80

VELOCITYEHS                               Total Check Amount: $3,299.00

182750  DONALD WEBER                       12/13/2019 20118   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $285.00

DONALD WEBER                              Total Check Amount: $285.00

182751  WESTRUX INTERNATIONAL              12/13/2019 25302   480515161       FILTER ACCESS KIT        $95.19

WESTRUX INTERNATIONAL                     Total Check Amount: $95.19

182752  WHEELS LT LSR                      12/13/2019 29182   110000000       CITATION REFUND          $281.00

WHEELS LT LSR                             Total Check Amount: $281.00

182753  MELISSA WILLIAMS                   12/13/2019 29249   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $254.00

MELISSA WILLIAMS                          Total Check Amount: $254.00

182754  YING YANG                          12/13/2019 29174   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $627.01

YING YANG                                 Total Check Amount: $627.01

182755  JASON YEE                          12/13/2019 29292   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $272.00

JASON YEE                                 Total Check Amount: $272.00

182756  XUEFEI ZHOU                        12/13/2019 29305   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $348.00

XUEFEI ZHOU                               Total Check Amount: $348.00

Dec 12, 2019 10 of 20 12:26:01 PM



City Check Register for:  Dec 13, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

Check Subtotal $153,636.70

V39871  ADAMSON POLICE PRODUCTS            12/13/2019 4023    110212131       BAGS FOR PRISON BELON    $267.44

ADAMSON POLICE PRODUCTS                   Total Check Amount: $267.44

V39872  ADLERHORST INT'L INC               12/13/2019 2223    110212111       AGITATOR SEMINAR #239    $300.00

12/13/2019 2223    110212131       ON-SITE TRNG:JARVIS      $192.50

ADLERHORST INT'L INC                      Total Check Amount: $492.50

V39873  ADMINISTRATIVE & PROF              12/13/2019 3344    110             DED:4010 APEA MEMBR      $564.00

ADMINISTRATIVE & PROF                     Total Check Amount: $564.00

V39874  THE ADVANTAGE GROUP                12/13/2019 24539   110             DED:808B FSA DEPCAR      $2,967.32

12/13/2019 24539   110             DED:808C FSA UR MED      $5,178.13

THE ADVANTAGE GROUP                       Total Check Amount: $8,145.45

V39875  ALBERT GROVER & ASSOCIATES         12/13/2019 23588   110000000       TRAFFIC ENG OCT 19       $1,350.00

12/13/2019 23588   110515171       CONSULTANT TO PROVIDE 
PRO

$9,591.75

12/13/2019 23588   510515171       CONSULTANT TO PROVIDE 
PRO

$1,433.25

12/13/2019 23588   510707219       TRAFFIC ENG OCT 19       $450.00

12/13/2019 23588   510707709       TRAFFIC ENG OCT 19       $1,310.00

ALBERT GROVER & ASSOCIATES                Total Check Amount: $14,135.00

V39876  JUDY ALLEN                         12/13/2019 20447   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $300.00

JUDY ALLEN                                Total Check Amount: $300.00

V39877  ALTA LANGUAGE SERVICES, INC        12/13/2019 25953   110141481       LISTEN/SPEAK TEST (4)    $220.00

ALTA LANGUAGE SERVICES, INC               Total Check Amount: $220.00

V39878  BAB STEERING HYDRAULICS INC.       12/13/2019 18365   480515161       CYLINDER                 $357.47

BAB STEERING HYDRAULICS INC.              Total Check Amount: $357.47

V39879  CORRINE BARRIOS GAMINO             12/13/2019 28084   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $60.00

CORRINE BARRIOS GAMINO                    Total Check Amount: $60.00

V39880  BEST LAWN MOWER SERVICE            12/13/2019 16230   480515161       ECHO BCKPCK BLOWER       $432.99

12/13/2019 16230   480515161       LAWN EQUIP REPAIR        $361.32

BEST LAWN MOWER SERVICE                   Total Check Amount: $794.31

V39881  CHRISTINE BOATNER                  12/13/2019 18460   110404215       BECKMAN FITNESS OCT19    $130.00

12/13/2019 18460   110404215       CLASS INSTR BCC OCT19    $350.00

12/13/2019 18460   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $643.00

CHRISTINE BOATNER                         Total Check Amount: $1,123.00

V39882  BOTACH TACTICAL                    12/13/2019 5214    110212131       BATTERIES                $603.18

BOTACH TACTICAL                           Total Check Amount: $603.18

V39883  BPSEA MEMORIAL FOUNDATION          12/13/2019 14990   110             DED:4050 MEMORIAL        $214.50

BPSEA MEMORIAL FOUNDATION                 Total Check Amount: $214.50

V39884  BREA CITY EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION    12/13/2019 3236    110             DED:4005 BCEA MEMBR      $560.00

Dec 12, 2019 11 of 20 12:26:01 PM



City Check Register for:  Dec 13, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

BREA CITY EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION           Total Check Amount: $560.00

V39885  BREA ELECTRIC COMPANY              12/13/2019 27530   341515112       LIGHT REPAIR             $142.50

12/13/2019 27530   342515112       LIGHT REPAIR             $237.41

12/13/2019 27530   343515112       LIGHT REPAIR             $142.50

BREA ELECTRIC COMPANY                     Total Check Amount: $522.41

V39886  BREA FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION      12/13/2019 3237    110             DED:4016 ASSOC MEMB      $3,156.75

BREA FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION             Total Check Amount: $3,156.75

V39887  BREA POLICE ASSOCIATION            12/13/2019 3769    110             DED:4030 BPA REG         $3,300.00

BREA POLICE ASSOCIATION                   Total Check Amount: $3,300.00

V39888  BREA POLICE ATHLETIC LEAGUE        12/13/2019 1068    110             DED:5010 B.P.A.L.        $130.00

BREA POLICE ATHLETIC LEAGUE               Total Check Amount: $130.00

V39889  BREA POLICE MANAGEMENT 
ASSOCIATION 

12/13/2019 21189   110             DED:4019 LDF MEMBRS      $13.00

12/13/2019 21189   110             DED:4020 PMA MEMBRS      $195.00

BREA POLICE MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION        Total Check Amount: $208.00

V39890  OMAR BRIOSO                        12/13/2019 15737   110212111       TACT RIFLE INSTR CRSE    $24.00

OMAR BRIOSO                               Total Check Amount: $24.00

V39891  RENEE BROWNE                       12/13/2019 29102   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $50.00

RENEE BROWNE                              Total Check Amount: $50.00

V39892  BRUCE CAMPBELL SAND AND GRAVEL     12/13/2019 21898   110515144       SEED TOP DRESSING        $1,131.38

BRUCE CAMPBELL SAND AND GRAVEL            Total Check Amount: $1,131.38

V39893  C. WELLS PIPELINE MATERIALS INC    12/13/2019 13055   420515131       PLUMBING SUPPLIES        $3,979.41

C. WELLS PIPELINE MATERIALS INC           Total Check Amount: $3,979.41

V39894  CANNINGS ACE HARDWARE              12/13/2019 15828   110515141       TOOL/BOLTS               $17.26

12/13/2019 15828   110515141       TRASH CAN/SAW BLADES     $111.44

12/13/2019 15828   480515161       SHOP SUPPLIES            $83.31

CANNINGS ACE HARDWARE                     Total Check Amount: $212.01

V39895  CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.     12/13/2019 20648   110141441       0010549207006 OCT-DEC    $303.87

CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.            Total Check Amount: $303.87

V39896  ARLINDA CANTU                      12/13/2019 26312   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $1,974.14

ARLINDA CANTU                             Total Check Amount: $1,974.14

V39897  SARAH CARBAJAL                     12/13/2019 28362   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $182.00

SARAH CARBAJAL                            Total Check Amount: $182.00

V39898  ANDREW CATOR                       12/13/2019 6646    460141474       NOV 2019 MILEAGE         $162.40

ANDREW CATOR                              Total Check Amount: $162.40

V39899  MARIANITA CAUSEY                   12/13/2019 15943   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $27.00

MARIANITA CAUSEY                          Total Check Amount: $27.00

V39900  GRACE CHAN                         12/13/2019 29172   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $25.00

GRACE CHAN                                Total Check Amount: $25.00

V39901  CORE & MAIN LP                     12/13/2019 27049   420515131       DIFFUSER                 $1,023.63

Dec 12, 2019 12 of 20 12:26:01 PM



City Check Register for:  Dec 13, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

V39901  CORE & MAIN LP                     12/13/2019 27049   420515131       METERS                   $25,127.06

CORE & MAIN LP                            Total Check Amount: $26,150.69

V39902  JOEL DACANAY                       12/13/2019 28068   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $145.00

JOEL DACANAY                              Total Check Amount: $145.00

V39903  MICHAEL DURALDE                    12/13/2019 25228   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $2,635.80

MICHAEL DURALDE                           Total Check Amount: $2,635.80

V39904  MYRA DUVALL                        12/13/2019 18083   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $225.00

MYRA DUVALL                               Total Check Amount: $225.00

V39905  EAN SERVICES, LLC                  12/13/2019 26450   110222221       CAR RENTAL #7JHVTR       $651.45

12/13/2019 26450   110222221       CAR RENTAL #7JHWV5       $532.60

EAN SERVICES, LLC                         Total Check Amount: $1,184.05

V39906  ECONOLITE SYSTEMS, INC.            12/13/2019 27147   110515121       27783 NON-PO             ($3,678.42)

12/13/2019 27147   110515121       27892 NON-PO             ($433.70)

12/13/2019 27147   110515121       28100 NON-PO             ($243.10)

12/13/2019 27147   110515121       28118 NON-PO             ($3,859.04)

12/13/2019 27147   110515121       28319 NON-PO             ($1,503.88)

12/13/2019 27147   110515121       28630 NON-PO             ($602.60)

12/13/2019 27147   110515121       28932 NON-PO             ($3,672.27)

12/13/2019 27147   110515121       E/O SIGNAL MNT OCT19     $6,115.77

12/13/2019 27147   110515121       FIBER OPTIC RPR 6/26     $602.60

12/13/2019 27147   110515121       FIBER RPRS:DTPS3 4/29    $243.10

12/13/2019 27147   110515121       INSTALL:PD RAT LIGHTS    $3,672.27

12/13/2019 27147   110515121       LAMBERT/BERRY JUL19      $1,503.88

12/13/2019 27147   110515121       MO. SIGNAL MNT OCT19     $3,025.56

12/13/2019 27147   110515121       QUAD CARD REPAIR         $433.70

12/13/2019 27147   110515121       SIGNAL LOOPS REPAIR      $3,678.42

12/13/2019 27147   110515121       TA SGNL POLE KNOCKDWN    $3,859.04

ECONOLITE SYSTEMS, INC.                   Total Check Amount: $9,141.33

V39907  EQUIPMENT DIRECT INC               12/13/2019 4522    110515121       LT TRK LANYARD/HRDHAT    $163.14

12/13/2019 4522    110515121       SAFETY VEST/GLOVES       $81.11

12/13/2019 4522    110515144       SAFETY SUPPLIES          $110.12

EQUIPMENT DIRECT INC                      Total Check Amount: $354.37

V39908  EWING IRRIGATION PRODUCTS, INC.    12/13/2019 5807    110515141       IRRIGATION PARTS         $195.27

12/13/2019 5807    110515141       TOOLS                    $102.59

12/13/2019 5807    360515145       IRRIGATION PARTS         $262.78

EWING IRRIGATION PRODUCTS, INC.           Total Check Amount: $560.64

V39909  FACTORY MOTOR PARTS COMPANY        12/13/2019 3504    480515161       BATTERIES                $954.93

12/13/2019 3504    480515161       FUEL PUMP                $410.75

Dec 12, 2019 13 of 20 12:26:01 PM



City Check Register for:  Dec 13, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

V39909  FACTORY MOTOR PARTS COMPANY        12/13/2019 3504    480515161       GASKET                   $7.24

FACTORY MOTOR PARTS COMPANY               Total Check Amount: $1,372.92

V39910  FILARSKY & WATT LLP                12/13/2019 2043    110141481       PROF SVCS NOV 2019       $310.00

FILARSKY & WATT LLP                       Total Check Amount: $310.00

V39911  FIREFIGHTERS SAFETY CENTER         12/13/2019 18485   110222221       UNIFORMS                 $255.67

FIREFIGHTERS SAFETY CENTER                Total Check Amount: $255.67

V39912  FLEMING ENVIRONMENTAL, INC.        12/13/2019 18487   480515161       CCC/FS3 SB989 TESTING    $1,900.00

FLEMING ENVIRONMENTAL, INC.               Total Check Amount: $1,900.00

V39913  FUSCOE ENGINEERING, INC.           12/13/2019 18052   110000000       ALVERO WQMP              $429.00

12/13/2019 18052   110000000       BREA PLUMBING WQMP       $429.00

12/13/2019 18052   110000000       CALVARY WQMD PLAN CHK    $495.00

12/13/2019 18052   410515132       NPDES SERVICES           $5,478.25

FUSCOE ENGINEERING, INC.                  Total Check Amount: $6,831.25

V39914  GALE SUPPLY COMPANY                12/13/2019 21090   110515141       JANITORIAL SUPPLIES      $322.84

12/13/2019 21090   110515144       JANITORIAL SUPPLIES      $133.89

12/13/2019 21090   110515148       JANITORIAL SUPPLIES      $133.89

12/13/2019 21090   360515145       JANITORIAL SUPPLIES      $133.89

GALE SUPPLY COMPANY                       Total Check Amount: $724.51

V39915  GALLS/QUARTERMASTER                12/13/2019 16493   110212111       BELT/PAGER GLOVE CASE    $58.34

12/13/2019 16493   110212111       FOLDING KNIFE/BELT       $48.46

GALLS/QUARTERMASTER                       Total Check Amount: $106.80

V39916  GEORGE HILLS COMPANY               12/13/2019 27340   470141483       ANNUAL MED/CMS REPORT    $250.00

GEORGE HILLS COMPANY                      Total Check Amount: $250.00

V39917  MELISSA GIFFORD                    12/13/2019 10645   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $225.00

MELISSA GIFFORD                           Total Check Amount: $225.00

V39918  DON GOLDEN                         12/13/2019 10729   110000000       INSP SVCS 11/21-12/4     $7,050.00

12/13/2019 10729   110323242       INSP SVCS 11/21-12/4     $37.50

12/13/2019 10729   510707941       INSP SVCS 11/21-12/4     $75.00

DON GOLDEN                                Total Check Amount: $7,162.50

V39919  MARITZA GONZALEZ                   12/13/2019 28459   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $178.00

MARITZA GONZALEZ                          Total Check Amount: $178.00

V39920  GRAFIX SYSTEMS                     12/13/2019 28716   172222223       GRAPHICS:LADDER 1        $4,957.13

12/13/2019 28716   172222223       GRAPHICS:LADDER 2        $4,746.82

GRAFIX SYSTEMS                            Total Check Amount: $9,703.95

V39921  GRAINGER                           12/13/2019 13634   110222211       BATTERIES                $116.95

12/13/2019 13634   480515161       WALL-MOUNT HOSE REEL     $87.81

GRAINGER                                  Total Check Amount: $204.76

V39922  MONA HERNANDEZ                     12/13/2019 23114   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $864.40

MONA HERNANDEZ                            Total Check Amount: $864.40

Dec 12, 2019 14 of 20 12:26:01 PM



City Check Register for:  Dec 13, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

V39923  JENNA HERRERA                      12/13/2019 10886   110212111       TRAINING MILEAGE         $29.93

JENNA HERRERA                             Total Check Amount: $29.93

V39924  HITECH SOFTWARE INC                12/13/2019 19937   110515125       CARCOUNT SYST MNT DEC    $1,345.00

12/13/2019 19937   110515125       CARCOUNT SYST MNT NOV    $1,345.00

HITECH SOFTWARE INC                       Total Check Amount: $2,690.00

V39925  IMPERIAL SPRINKLER SUPPLY          12/13/2019 24260   110515141       TOOLS                    $99.91

12/13/2019 24260   110515143       IRRIGATION PARTS         $155.02

12/13/2019 24260   110515144       IRRIGATION PARTS         $713.14

12/13/2019 24260   360515145       IRRIGATION PARTS         $432.01

IMPERIAL SPRINKLER SUPPLY                 Total Check Amount: $1,400.08

V39926  PAMELA JOHNSTON                    12/13/2019 28025   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $225.00

PAMELA JOHNSTON                           Total Check Amount: $225.00

V39927  K PRO STONE CARE                   12/13/2019 20535   490515151       VET SITE MNT+STONES      $1,250.00

K PRO STONE CARE                          Total Check Amount: $1,250.00

V39928  KAREN KIESS                        12/13/2019 21414   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $200.00

KAREN KIESS                               Total Check Amount: $200.00

V39929  TRAVIS KNABE                       12/13/2019 25137   174222222       TRAINING EXPENSES        $63.30

TRAVIS KNABE                              Total Check Amount: $63.30

V39930  KWIK KLEEN                         12/13/2019 23771   480515161       PARTS WASHER SERVICE     $150.00

KWIK KLEEN                                Total Check Amount: $150.00

V39931  DOLLY LAI                          12/13/2019 18084   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $150.00

DOLLY LAI                                 Total Check Amount: $150.00

V39932  RENEE F. LAVACOT                   12/13/2019 6754    110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $340.00

RENEE F. LAVACOT                          Total Check Amount: $340.00

V39933  LEHR                               12/13/2019 26035   480515161       POLICE RETRACTOR         $245.77

LEHR                                      Total Check Amount: $245.77

V39934  PRISCILLA J. LEON                  12/13/2019 29029   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $75.00

PRISCILLA J. LEON                         Total Check Amount: $75.00

V39935  BERRY LIANG                        12/13/2019 25640   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $1,294.70

BERRY LIANG                               Total Check Amount: $1,294.70

V39936  JUAN LINARES                       12/13/2019 19365   110323241       TRAINING EXPENSES        $32.00

JUAN LINARES                              Total Check Amount: $32.00

V39937  LINEGEAR                           12/13/2019 23894   110222231       BRUSH PANTS              $572.65

LINEGEAR                                  Total Check Amount: $572.65

V39938  LONG BEACH BMW                     12/13/2019 18120   480515161       INSTALL LED LIGHTS       $657.77

LONG BEACH BMW                            Total Check Amount: $657.77

V39939  LOS ANGELES TRUCK CENTERS, LLC     12/13/2019 7300    480             VACTOR REPAIR PARTS      ($177.97)

12/13/2019 7300    480515161       VACTOR ENGINE REPAIR     $910.07

12/13/2019 7300    480515161       VACTOR REPAIR PARTS      $5,167.97

Dec 12, 2019 15 of 20 12:26:01 PM



City Check Register for:  Dec 13, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

LOS ANGELES TRUCK CENTERS, LLC            Total Check Amount: $5,900.07

V39940  TANYA LOSCUTOFF                    12/13/2019 22092   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $1,699.76

TANYA LOSCUTOFF                           Total Check Amount: $1,699.76

V39941  KRIS MARUMOTO                      12/13/2019 17803   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $275.00

KRIS MARUMOTO                             Total Check Amount: $275.00

V39942  ANDREA MCGRANAHAN                  12/13/2019 26046   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $1,125.20

ANDREA MCGRANAHAN                         Total Check Amount: $1,125.20

V39943  JENNIFER MONZON-SCROFINI           12/13/2019 20158   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $52.00

JENNIFER MONZON-SCROFINI                  Total Check Amount: $52.00

V39944  DANIEL MOON                        12/13/2019 8341    110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $165.35

DANIEL MOON                               Total Check Amount: $165.35

V39945  NATASHA MOORE                      12/13/2019 10711   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $50.00

NATASHA MOORE                             Total Check Amount: $50.00

V39946  MUELLER COMPANY                    12/13/2019 18067   420             TAX ON METER REGSTERS    ($30.32)

12/13/2019 18067   420515131       METER REGISTERS          $421.52

MUELLER COMPANY                           Total Check Amount: $391.20

V39947  MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT           12/13/2019 3784    420515131       WATER DELIVERY OCT19     $14,223.32

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                  Total Check Amount: $14,223.32

V39948  ADRIANA MUÑOZ                      12/13/2019 27997   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $25.00

ADRIANA MUÑOZ                             Total Check Amount: $25.00

V39949  MYERS AND SONS                     12/13/2019 21624   110515121       DRIVE CAP TOOL           $346.07

12/13/2019 21624   510707702       FIRE STATION #2 SIGNS    $95.74

MYERS AND SONS                            Total Check Amount: $441.81

V39950  ONWARD ENGINEERING                 12/13/2019 22106   110000000       INSP SVCS OCT 2019       $13,925.00

12/13/2019 22106   110515171       INSP SVCS OCT 2019       $11,372.50

ONWARD ENGINEERING                        Total Check Amount: $25,297.50

V39951  ORANGE COAST PETROLEUM EQPT 
INC.   

12/13/2019 28719   480515161       FUEL ISLAND DISPENSER    $544.14

ORANGE COAST PETROLEUM EQPT INC.          Total Check Amount: $544.14

V39952  ORANGE COUNTY UNITED WAY           12/13/2019 3451    110             DED:5005 UNITED WAY      $11.93

ORANGE COUNTY UNITED WAY                  Total Check Amount: $11.93

V39953  OZUNA ELECTRIC CO.INC.             12/13/2019 18504   110515121       CENTRAL AVE ST LT RPR    $1,800.00

OZUNA ELECTRIC CO.INC.                    Total Check Amount: $1,800.00

V39954  PARACLETE FIRE AND SAFETY, INC.    12/13/2019 17760   110212131       FIRE EXT SERVCE 11/19    $448.46

PARACLETE FIRE AND SAFETY, INC.           Total Check Amount: $448.46

V39955  PARKHOUSE TIRE, INC.               12/13/2019 22120   480515161       MOUNT FORKLIFT TIRES     $382.33

PARKHOUSE TIRE, INC.                      Total Check Amount: $382.33

V39956  PARSONS TRANSPORTATION GROUP       12/13/2019 25626   510707251       57/LAMBERT INT OCT19     $11,741.43

12/13/2019 25626   510707251       57/LAMBERT INT SEPT19    $14,727.90

PARSONS TRANSPORTATION GROUP              Total Check Amount: $26,469.33

Dec 12, 2019 16 of 20 12:26:01 PM



City Check Register for:  Dec 13, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

V39957  PIERRE PASA                        12/13/2019 11096   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $217.00

PIERRE PASA                               Total Check Amount: $217.00

V39958  HERMAN PERDOMO JR,                 12/13/2019 20265   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $125.00

HERMAN PERDOMO JR,                        Total Check Amount: $125.00

V39959  IRACEMA PERDOMO                    12/13/2019 14135   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $325.00

IRACEMA PERDOMO                           Total Check Amount: $325.00

V39960  BRIANA PERLSON                     12/13/2019 28024   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $23.00

BRIANA PERLSON                            Total Check Amount: $23.00

V39961  PETROLEUM MARKETING EQUIPMENT      12/13/2019 9282    480515161       CORE CREDIT              ($27.19)

12/13/2019 9282    480515161       FUEL DISPENSER HOSE      $364.99

PETROLEUM MARKETING EQUIPMENT             Total Check Amount: $337.80

V39962  PLACEWORKS, INC.                   12/13/2019 26720   110000000       BREA 265 EIR OCT 2019    $20,837.88

12/13/2019 26720   110000000       BREA MALL CEQA OCT19     $14,369.84

PLACEWORKS, INC.                          Total Check Amount: $35,207.72

V39963  PLUMBERS DEPOT INC.                12/13/2019 14542   430515123       CCTV CAMERA REPAIR       $469.21

12/13/2019 14542   430515123       SEWER DEBRIS CATCHER     $231.66

12/13/2019 14542   480515161       22001 VACTORFLOAT RPR    $970.96

PLUMBERS DEPOT INC.                       Total Check Amount: $1,671.83

V39964  QUALITY PLACEMENT AUTHORITY, LLC   12/13/2019 27027   110404521       TEMP STAFF 10/28-11/3    $451.80

12/13/2019 27027   110404521       TEMP STAFF 11/25-12/1    $451.80

12/13/2019 27027   110404521       TEMP STAFF 11/4-11/10    $768.06

12/13/2019 27027   110404521       TEMPSTAFF 10/14-10/20    $768.06

12/13/2019 27027   110404521       TEMPSTAFF 11/11-11/17    $768.06

12/13/2019 27027   110404521       TEMPSTAFF 11/18-11/24    $768.06

QUALITY PLACEMENT AUTHORITY, LLC          Total Check Amount: $3,975.84

V39965  QUINN COMPANY                      12/13/2019 12380   480515161       GENERATOR REPAIR         $1,755.60

QUINN COMPANY                             Total Check Amount: $1,755.60

V39966  KAYLA RABJOHNS                     12/13/2019 28472   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $92.00

KAYLA RABJOHNS                            Total Check Amount: $92.00

V39967  RAY-LITE INDUSTRIES, INC.          12/13/2019 19800   490515151       LED LIGHTING             $1,704.86

RAY-LITE INDUSTRIES, INC.                 Total Check Amount: $1,704.86

V39968  REHABWEST, INC.                    12/13/2019 22325   110141481       CASE #WA59956-1          $477.36

REHABWEST, INC.                           Total Check Amount: $477.36

V39969  RICHARDS, WATSON & GERSHON         12/13/2019 8978    110000000       0116 REIMB WORK OCT19    $21,164.00

RICHARDS, WATSON & GERSHON                Total Check Amount: $21,164.00

V39970  RPW SERVICES, INC.                 12/13/2019 3791    360515147       SPRAY FOR FLEAS/TICKS    $180.00

RPW SERVICES, INC.                        Total Check Amount: $180.00

V39971  RUSSELL SIGLER INC.                12/13/2019 21638   490515151       HVAC PARTS               $179.38

12/13/2019 21638   490515151       HVAC T-STAT              $33.91

Dec 12, 2019 17 of 20 12:26:01 PM



City Check Register for:  Dec 13, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

V39971  RUSSELL SIGLER INC.                12/13/2019 21638   490515152       REPL HVAC UNIT @ FS2     $3,905.13

RUSSELL SIGLER INC.                       Total Check Amount: $4,118.42

V39972  JOSHUA SAZDANOFF                   12/13/2019 21272   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $162.80

JOSHUA SAZDANOFF                          Total Check Amount: $162.80

V39973  BILL SCHAEFER                      12/13/2019 3643    174222222       TRAINING EXPENSES        $15.12

BILL SCHAEFER                             Total Check Amount: $15.12

V39974  LAURENE SCHULZE                    12/13/2019 18034   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $23.00

LAURENE SCHULZE                           Total Check Amount: $23.00

V39975  ISMAEL O SILVA                     12/13/2019 24370   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $240.00

ISMAEL O SILVA                            Total Check Amount: $240.00

V39976  SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY, LLC      12/13/2019 25942   110515141       IRRIGATION PARTS         $757.58

SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY, LLC             Total Check Amount: $757.58

V39977  SOUTH COAST EMERGENCY VEHICLE 
SVC  

12/13/2019 18619   480515161       PRIMER VALVE ACTUATOR    $125.54

SOUTH COAST EMERGENCY VEHICLE SVC         Total Check Amount: $125.54

V39978  SOUTHWEST MATERIAL HANDLING, 
INC.  

12/13/2019 21032   480515161       FORKLIFT KEYS            $85.51

SOUTHWEST MATERIAL HANDLING, INC.         Total Check Amount: $85.51

V39979  SPECTRUM GAS PRODUCTS, INC.        12/13/2019 16060   174222222       OXYGEN                   $62.50

SPECTRUM GAS PRODUCTS, INC.               Total Check Amount: $62.50

V39980  STEAMX LLC                         12/13/2019 24072   480515161       HOSE ASSY/NOZZL TRGGR    $450.59

12/13/2019 24072   480515161       PRESSURE SWITCH SVC      $688.04

STEAMX LLC                                Total Check Amount: $1,138.63

V39981  STOTZ EQUIPMENT                    12/13/2019 24388   110515141       AERATOR PARTS            $134.13

12/13/2019 24388   110515144       AERATOR PARTS            $134.13

12/13/2019 24388   360515145       AERATOR PARTS            $134.12

12/13/2019 24388   480515161       DIGGER BLADES            $471.43

12/13/2019 24388   480515161       JD GATOE STOP LIGHT      $113.99

STOTZ EQUIPMENT                           Total Check Amount: $987.80

V39982  STOVER SEED COMPANY                12/13/2019 15803   110515144       GRASS SEED               $3,340.25

STOVER SEED COMPANY                       Total Check Amount: $3,340.25

V39983  SULLY-MILLER CONTRACTING CO.       12/13/2019 18176   510707317       PROJ MGMT OCT 2019       $184,868.86

12/13/2019 18176   510707461       PROJ MGMT OCT 2019       $404,160.75

SULLY-MILLER CONTRACTING CO.              Total Check Amount: $589,029.61

V39984  SUPERIOR ALARM SYSTEMS             12/13/2019 11074   110404211       PROGRAMMING CHANGES      $79.00

SUPERIOR ALARM SYSTEMS                    Total Check Amount: $79.00

V39985  THOMSON REUTERS - WEST             12/13/2019 22020   110212121       INFO CHARGES OCT 2019    $379.46

THOMSON REUTERS - WEST                    Total Check Amount: $379.46

V39986  TIFCO INDUSTRIES                   12/13/2019 8995    480515161       TOOL SUPPLIES            $270.89

TIFCO INDUSTRIES                          Total Check Amount: $270.89

Dec 12, 2019 18 of 20 12:26:01 PM



City Check Register for:  Dec 13, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

V39987  AJA TOKUGAWA                       12/13/2019 22121   110212111       TRAINING MILEAGE         $4.87

AJA TOKUGAWA                              Total Check Amount: $4.87

V39988  TROPICAL PLAZA NURSERY, INC        12/13/2019 2062    110515143       PLANT SHRUBS             $870.00

12/13/2019 2062    110515143       PLANTS SHRUBS            $2,520.00

12/13/2019 2062    110515143       REMOVE SHRUBS            $650.00

12/13/2019 2062    110515143       TREE REMOVAL             $300.00

12/13/2019 2062    110515148       PLANTS SHRUBS            $561.00

12/13/2019 2062    341515112       INSTALL CONTROLLER       $180.00

12/13/2019 2062    341515112       IRRIGATION REPAIRS       $243.00

12/13/2019 2062    343515112       IRRIGATION REPAIRS       $178.00

12/13/2019 2062    345515112       IRRIGATION REPAIRS       $171.24

12/13/2019 2062    346515112       IRRIGATION REPAIRS       $258.73

12/13/2019 2062    347515112       IRRIGATION REPAIRS       $233.37

12/13/2019 2062    360515146       REMOVE SHRUBS            $200.00

TROPICAL PLAZA NURSERY, INC               Total Check Amount: $6,365.34

V39989  LETICIA TRUJILLO                   12/13/2019 22054   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $72.00

LETICIA TRUJILLO                          Total Check Amount: $72.00

V39990  TURBO DATA SYSTEMS, INC.           12/13/2019 1472    110212132       HH LSE TPM NOV 2019      $193.95

TURBO DATA SYSTEMS, INC.                  Total Check Amount: $193.95

V39991  EDEN TURNER                        12/13/2019 21951   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $150.00

EDEN TURNER                               Total Check Amount: $150.00

V39992  UNICORN METALS                     12/13/2019 17181   480515161       SHEET METAL              $52.77

UNICORN METALS                            Total Check Amount: $52.77

V39993  UNITED ROTARY BRUSH 
CORPORATION    

12/13/2019 16649   480515161       SWEEPER BROOM            $123.74

UNITED ROTARY BRUSH CORPORATION           Total Check Amount: $123.74

V39994  VALVERDE CONSTRUCTION, INC.        12/13/2019 14201   430515123       SEWER MANHOLE REPAIR     $5,880.00

VALVERDE CONSTRUCTION, INC.               Total Check Amount: $5,880.00

V39995  JUANA VENTURA                      12/13/2019 17752   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $281.00

JUANA VENTURA                             Total Check Amount: $281.00

V39996  VIRTUAL PROJECT MANAGER            12/13/2019 23508   510707257       MISC CIP SERVICE         $100.00

12/13/2019 23508   510707315       MISC CIP SERVICE         $50.00

12/13/2019 23508   510707316       MISC CIP SERVICE         $50.00

12/13/2019 23508   510707317       MISC CIP SERVICE         $50.00

12/13/2019 23508   510707461       MISC CIP SERVICE         $50.00

12/13/2019 23508   510707922       MISC CIP SERVICE         $50.00

12/13/2019 23508   510707941       MISC CIP SERVICE         $75.00

12/13/2019 23508   510707944       MISC CIP SERVICE         $75.00

VIRTUAL PROJECT MANAGER                   Total Check Amount: $500.00

Dec 12, 2019 19 of 20 12:26:01 PM



City Check Register for:  Dec 13, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

V39997  WALTERS WHOLESALE ELECTRIC         12/13/2019 1667    341515112       LIGHT BALLAST            $52.65

WALTERS WHOLESALE ELECTRIC                Total Check Amount: $52.65

V39998  LINDA WATSON                       12/13/2019 11871   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $150.00

LINDA WATSON                              Total Check Amount: $150.00

V39999  KAREN WELCH                        12/13/2019 27434   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $150.00

KAREN WELCH                               Total Check Amount: $150.00

V40000  WEST COAST SAND & GRAVEL, INC.     12/13/2019 11519   420515131       SAND                     $420.21

WEST COAST SAND & GRAVEL, INC.            Total Check Amount: $420.21

V40001  WESTERN GOLF PROPERTIES, LLC       12/13/2019 29071   110515149       NOV19-COST OF GOODS      $2,348.00

WESTERN GOLF PROPERTIES, LLC              Total Check Amount: $2,348.00

V40002  WEST-LITE SUPPLY CO., INC.         12/13/2019 5192    490515151       LED 4FT LIGHT-FIRE       $1,093.66

WEST-LITE SUPPLY CO., INC.                Total Check Amount: $1,093.66

V40003  WILLDAN ENGINEERING                12/13/2019 12445   110000000       PLAN CHECK 09/27/19      $2,384.00

WILLDAN ENGINEERING                       Total Check Amount: $2,384.00

V40004  WILLDAN FINANCIAL SERVICES         12/13/2019 23058   542141411       PROF SVCS OCT 2019       $1,525.00

12/13/2019 23058   543141411       PROF SVCS OCT 2019       $1,525.00

WILLDAN FINANCIAL SERVICES                Total Check Amount: $3,050.00

V40005  SARA WOODWARD                      12/13/2019 26083   110212122       NOV 2019 MILEAGE         $76.10

SARA WOODWARD                             Total Check Amount: $76.10

V40006  ELEANOR YBARRA                     12/13/2019 27904   110404215       CLASS INSTR NOV 2019     $300.00

ELEANOR YBARRA                            Total Check Amount: $300.00

V40007  ZERO WASTE USA INC/MUTT MITT       12/13/2019 22125   343515112       DOG WASTE BAGS           $520.33

12/13/2019 22125   510707950       DOG WASTE STATIONS       $3,341.15

ZERO WASTE USA INC/MUTT MITT              Total Check Amount: $3,861.48

Voucher Subtotal $897,973.35

TOTAL $1,051,610.05

Dec 12, 2019 20 of 20 12:26:01 PM



City Check Register for:  Dec 20, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

182757  AAA ELECTRIC MOTOR SALES, INC.     12/20/2019 3615    490515151       ELECTRIC MOTOR REPAIR    $50.27

AAA ELECTRIC MOTOR SALES, INC.            Total Check Amount: $50.27

182758  THE ALLEY CATS MUSIC, INC          12/20/2019 12680   110             ALLEYCATS XMAS 2019 1    $12,532.80

THE ALLEY CATS MUSIC, INC                 Total Check Amount: $12,532.80

182759  ARAMEXX CONSTRUCTION               12/20/2019 27985   510707922       AROVISTA SLOPE FINAL     $997.50

ARAMEXX CONSTRUCTION                      Total Check Amount: $997.50

182760  ARTISTRYFOTO                       12/20/2019 26409   110404421       TREE LIGHTING PHOTOS     $210.11

ARTISTRYFOTO                              Total Check Amount: $210.11

182761  AT&T                               12/20/2019 22050   475141471       5850471500 11/11/19      $3,744.89

AT&T                                      Total Check Amount: $3,744.89

182762  BC TRAFFIC SPECIALIST              12/20/2019 17405   410515124       GRAVEL BAGS              $1,742.42

BC TRAFFIC SPECIALIST                     Total Check Amount: $1,742.42

182763  BEARD ELECTRIC, INC.               12/20/2019 19986   110515125       EV CHARGE REPLACEMENT    $1,316.00

BEARD ELECTRIC, INC.                      Total Check Amount: $1,316.00

182764  BOB MURRAY & ASSOCIATES            12/20/2019 29103   110111143       CONSULTANT:DIR SEARCH    $6,590.03

BOB MURRAY & ASSOCIATES                   Total Check Amount: $6,590.03

182765  JORGE BUENROSTRO                   12/20/2019 29359   110             DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $1.91

12/20/2019 29359   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $440.90

JORGE BUENROSTRO                          Total Check Amount: $442.81

182766  DAN BURGESS                        12/20/2019 28913   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $379.00

DAN BURGESS                               Total Check Amount: $379.00

182767  CALIFORNIA NEWSPAPER 
PARTNERSHIP   

12/20/2019 26287   110323241       LEGAL NOTICES OCT19      $900.00

12/20/2019 26287   110404421       AD:VETS DAY CEREMONY     $149.60

12/20/2019 26287   110515111       LEGAL NOTICES OCT19      $219.00

CALIFORNIA NEWSPAPER PARTNERSHIP          Total Check Amount: $1,268.60

182768  CENTRAL POWDER COATING INC.        12/20/2019 8508    110515125       DT BENCH & TRASH CAN     $323.25

CENTRAL POWDER COATING INC.               Total Check Amount: $323.25

182769  CHARLES TAN & ASSOCIATES, INC.     12/20/2019 26706   110000000       PLAN REVIEW THRU 12/4    $2,300.00

12/20/2019 26706   110000000       PROF SVCS THRU 10/28     $4,300.00

12/20/2019 26706   110000000       PROF SVCS THRU 12/4      $1,100.00

CHARLES TAN & ASSOCIATES, INC.            Total Check Amount: $7,700.00

182770  MARIA CHORNG                       12/20/2019 19837   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $219.47

MARIA CHORNG                              Total Check Amount: $219.47

182771  CINTAS                             12/20/2019 24347   110404211       BCC FIRST AID            $187.97

CINTAS                                    Total Check Amount: $187.97

182772  GEORGES & KRISTIE CLARK            12/20/2019 23469   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $79.51

GEORGES & KRISTIE CLARK                   Total Check Amount: $79.51

182773  COUNTY OF ORANGE                   12/20/2019 4799    110212122       FINGERPRINT ID AUG19     $2,120.00

COUNTY OF ORANGE                          Total Check Amount: $2,120.00

Dec 18, 2019 1 of 12 11:28:35 AM



City Check Register for:  Dec 20, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

182774  COUNTY OF ORANGE                   12/20/2019 4799    110212122       FINGERPRINT ID DEC19     $2,120.00

COUNTY OF ORANGE                          Total Check Amount: $2,120.00

182775  DELTA T HVAC, INC.                 12/20/2019 28265   490515151       BCC HVAC REPAIR          $440.00

12/20/2019 28265   490515151       INSTALL CCC ABBVFD DR    $440.00

12/20/2019 28265   510707942       VAV REPL:PD CH OFFICE    $3,200.00

DELTA T HVAC, INC.                        Total Check Amount: $4,080.00

182776  DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION       12/20/2019 13722   510707251       HWY CONST/MNT OCT19      $120,411.95

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION              Total Check Amount: $120,411.95

182777  DISPENSING TECHNOLOGY 
CORPORATION  

12/20/2019 28449   110515121       ASPHALT BAG MIX          $2,795.21

DISPENSING TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION         Total Check Amount: $2,795.21

182778  SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON         12/20/2019 3343    110515121       ELECTRICITY DEC 19       $1,900.27

12/20/2019 3343    110515125       ELECTRICITY DEC 19       $11.58

12/20/2019 3343    110515143       ELECTRICITY DEC 19       $11.58

12/20/2019 3343    490515151       ELECTRICITY DEC 19       $28,903.69

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON                Total Check Amount: $30,827.12

182779  EMERGENCY POWER CONTROLS           12/20/2019 12002   110515125       BLADE SIGN ELECTRICAL    $3,565.00

EMERGENCY POWER CONTROLS                  Total Check Amount: $3,565.00

182780  FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS            12/20/2019 26183   420515131       5621821023 11/7-12/6     $62.36

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS                   Total Check Amount: $62.36

182781  THE GAS COMPANY                    12/20/2019 3749    420515131       GAS 11/8 - 12/11/19      $14.79

12/20/2019 3749    490515151       GAS 11/8 - 12/11/19      $711.35

THE GAS COMPANY                           Total Check Amount: $726.14

182782  HARRINGTON GEOTECHNICAL ENG.INC.   12/20/2019 15251   510707315       BCKFLLTEST/WTRLN/INSP    $837.80

12/20/2019 15251   510707316       BCKFLLTEST/WTRLN/INSP    $837.80

12/20/2019 15251   510707317       BCKFLLTEST/WTRLN/INSP    $2,154.33

12/20/2019 15251   510707461       BCKFLLTEST/WTRLN/INSP    $8,138.57

HARRINGTON GEOTECHNICAL ENG.INC.          Total Check Amount: $11,968.50

182783  HOIST SERVICE INC                  12/20/2019 8518    480515161       SHOP HOIST REMOVAL       $4,400.00

HOIST SERVICE INC                         Total Check Amount: $4,400.00

182784  HUNTINGTON T BLOCK INS AGENCY      12/20/2019 5642    110404541       2020 FINE ART INSRNCE    $750.00

HUNTINGTON T BLOCK INS AGENCY             Total Check Amount: $750.00

182785  IN TIME SERVICES INC.              12/20/2019 20876   950000000       ILJAOC ISE JAN-MAR20     $74,711.25

12/20/2019 20876   950000000       ILJAOC ISE OCT-DEC19     $74,711.25

12/20/2019 20876   950000000       ILJAOC ISE TEXT NOV19    $2,819.68

12/20/2019 20876   950000000       ILJAOC ISE TEXT OCT19    $3,367.36

IN TIME SERVICES INC.                     Total Check Amount: $155,609.54

182786  INTEGRITY CEILINGS, INC.           12/20/2019 23606   490515151       COMM RMS A/B CEILING     $11,184.50

INTEGRITY CEILINGS, INC.                  Total Check Amount: $11,184.50

Dec 18, 2019 2 of 12 11:28:35 AM



City Check Register for:  Dec 20, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

182787  LAW OFFICES OF JONES & MAYER       12/20/2019 12144   110323241       PROF LEGAL SVCS OCT19    $1,674.76

LAW OFFICES OF JONES & MAYER              Total Check Amount: $1,674.76

182788  PLUMBING WHOLESALE OUTLET, INC.    12/20/2019 18392   490515151       FS4 PLUMBING PARTS       $129.68

PLUMBING WHOLESALE OUTLET, INC.           Total Check Amount: $129.68

182789  PREMIUM RV INC.                    12/20/2019 11981   480515161       ISOLATOR                 $93.08

PREMIUM RV INC.                           Total Check Amount: $93.08

182790  SPARKLETTS                         12/20/2019 3001    110111161       COUNCIL MTG WTR NOV19    $20.76

SPARKLETTS                                Total Check Amount: $20.76

182791  SPARKLETTS                         12/20/2019 3001    490515151       CCC FOUNTN WTR NOV19     $20.39

SPARKLETTS                                Total Check Amount: $20.39

182792  STAGED CINEMA PRODUCTIONS, INC.    12/20/2019 26808   110404542       PROP RENTAL              $75.00

STAGED CINEMA PRODUCTIONS, INC.           Total Check Amount: $75.00

182793  BONNY THOMPSON                     12/20/2019 28225   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $300.02

BONNY THOMPSON                            Total Check Amount: $300.02

182794  TS GOVERNMENT SOLUTIONS, LLC       12/20/2019 28596   110404215       EQPT REPAIR+MATLS        $450.54

12/20/2019 28596   110404215       FITNESS EQPT PREV MNT    $1,295.00

TS GOVERNMENT SOLUTIONS, LLC              Total Check Amount: $1,745.54

182795  UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD CO.         12/20/2019 9513    510707311       FOLDER #02848-60         $3,000.00

UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD CO.                Total Check Amount: $3,000.00

182797  VERIZON WIRELESS                   12/20/2019 21122   110111111       9842684981 1023-1122     $53.85

12/20/2019 21122   110111143       9842684981 1023-1122     $167.72

12/20/2019 21122   110111151       9842684981 1023-1122     $107.70

12/20/2019 21122   110111161       9842684981 1023-1122     $53.85

12/20/2019 21122   110141411       9842684981 1023-1122     $30.02

12/20/2019 21122   110141424       9842684981 1023-1122     $53.85

12/20/2019 21122   110141441       9842684981 1023-1122     $53.85

12/20/2019 21122   110141481       9842684981 1023-1122     $53.85

12/20/2019 21122   110212121       9842684981 1023-1122     $3,495.16

12/20/2019 21122   110222223       9842684981 1023-1122     $1,418.06

12/20/2019 21122   110323212       9842684981 1023-1122     $53.85

12/20/2019 21122   110323231       9842684981 1023-1122     $53.85

12/20/2019 21122   110323241       9842684981 1023-1122     $53.85

12/20/2019 21122   110323242       9842684981 1023-1122     $53.85

12/20/2019 21122   110323243       9842684981 1023-1122     $53.85

12/20/2019 21122   110404311       9842684981 1023-1122     $688.07

12/20/2019 21122   110404525       9842684981 1023-1122     $107.70

12/20/2019 21122   110515171       9842684981 1023-1122     $161.32

12/20/2019 21122   174222222       9842684981 1023-1122     $585.99

12/20/2019 21122   410515124       9842684981 1023-1122     $30.02

Dec 18, 2019 3 of 12 11:28:35 AM



City Check Register for:  Dec 20, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

182797  VERIZON WIRELESS                   12/20/2019 21122   420515131       9842684981 1023-1122     $943.13

12/20/2019 21122   430515123       9842684981 1023-1122     $759.41

12/20/2019 21122   460141474       9842684981 1023-1122     $269.25

12/20/2019 21122   475141471       9842684981 1023-1122     $989.71

VERIZON WIRELESS                          Total Check Amount: $10,291.76

182798  BRIAN WAITE                        12/20/2019 24059   420000000       NOV19 WTR 
OVERPAYMENT    

$2,158.07

BRIAN WAITE                               Total Check Amount: $2,158.07

Check Subtotal $407,914.01

V40008  ALBERT GROVER & ASSOCIATES         12/20/2019 23588   110515171       PROF SVCS OCT 2019       $3,755.00

12/20/2019 23588   110515171       PROF SVCS SEPT 2019      $10,795.00

12/20/2019 23588   510515171       PROF SVCS SEPT 2019      $1,479.00

ALBERT GROVER & ASSOCIATES                Total Check Amount: $16,029.00

V40009  ALL CITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC   12/20/2019 6604    110212132       CRSSNG GRDS 1117-1130    $1,866.38

ALL CITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC          Total Check Amount: $1,866.38

V40010  ARC DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS             12/20/2019 23645   510707470       BOOSTER 3 PLANS          $108.16

ARC DOCUMENT SOLUTIONS                    Total Check Amount: $108.16

V40011  BEN'S ASPHALT,  INC..              12/20/2019 1808    510707442       WATER PATCH REPAIRS      $9,623.11

BEN'S ASPHALT,  INC..                     Total Check Amount: $9,623.11

V40012  BLX GROUP                          12/20/2019 21902   875141431       2017 TAXREF:ARBITRAGE    $2,000.00

12/20/2019 21902   880141431       2014 TAXREF:ARBITRAGE    $2,000.00

BLX GROUP                                 Total Check Amount: $4,000.00

V40013  BRADY INDUSTRIES                   12/20/2019 27438   490515151       GYM FLOOR FINISH         $2,788.03

BRADY INDUSTRIES                          Total Check Amount: $2,788.03

V40014  BUTLER CHEMICALS, INC.             12/20/2019 6515    490515151       SR CTR DW SVC NOV19      $167.01

BUTLER CHEMICALS, INC.                    Total Check Amount: $167.01

V40015  BYRNE SOFTWARE TECHNOLOGIES, 
INC.  

12/20/2019 27471   110323241       ACCELA IMPL 1012-1018    $1,155.00

12/20/2019 27471   110323241       ACCELA IMPL 11/2-11/8    $2,970.00

12/20/2019 27471   110323241       ACCELA IMPL 1109-1115    $5,938.08

12/20/2019 27471   110323241       ACCELA IMPL 1116-1122    $330.00

BYRNE SOFTWARE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.         Total Check Amount: $10,393.08

V40016  CARDS TO GO & GIFTS TOO!           12/20/2019 11931   110             2019COOKIE FUNDRAISER    $3,639.90

CARDS TO GO & GIFTS TOO!                  Total Check Amount: $3,639.90

V40017  KELLY CARPENTER                    12/20/2019 8944    110212111       TRAINING EXPENSES        $16.00

KELLY CARPENTER                           Total Check Amount: $16.00

V40018  CDCE INCORPORATED                  12/20/2019 19356   110212142       PD TABLETS/PCS           $32,200.74

CDCE INCORPORATED                         Total Check Amount: $32,200.74

V40019  CHANDLER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.    12/20/2019 4375    110000000       INV MGMT SVCS NOV19      $18.61

12/20/2019 4375    875000000       INV MGMT SVCS NOV19      $47.22

Dec 18, 2019 4 of 12 11:28:35 AM



City Check Register for:  Dec 20, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

V40019  CHANDLER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.    12/20/2019 4375    930000000       INV MGMT SVCS NOV19      $5,266.58

CHANDLER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.           Total Check Amount: $5,332.41

V40020  COMLOCK SECURITY-GROUP             12/20/2019 13625   110515121       LOCKS                    $153.87

12/20/2019 13625   490515151       LOCKS AND KEYS           $43.56

COMLOCK SECURITY-GROUP                    Total Check Amount: $197.43

V40021  CSG CONSULTANTS                    12/20/2019 25540   110000000       BLDG PLAN RVW OCT19      $12,720.00

12/20/2019 25540   110323241       BLDG PLAN RVW OCT19      $30.00

CSG CONSULTANTS                           Total Check Amount: $12,750.00

V40022  DF POLYGRAPH                       12/20/2019 22010   110141481       POLYGRAM EXAM DEC19      $175.00

DF POLYGRAPH                              Total Check Amount: $175.00

V40023  GAIL EVERTSEN                      12/20/2019 10141   110212111       DEC 2019 MILEAGE         $23.32

12/20/2019 10141   110212111       NOV 2019 MILEAGE         $23.90

GAIL EVERTSEN                             Total Check Amount: $47.22

V40024  FACILITY BUILDERS & ERECTORS, INC  12/20/2019 23559   130404546       BRONZE INLAY:WAR MEM     $17,910.00

FACILITY BUILDERS & ERECTORS, INC         Total Check Amount: $17,910.00

V40025  FACTORY MOTOR PARTS COMPANY        12/20/2019 3504    480515161       BATTERIES                $872.25

12/20/2019 3504    480515161       WIPER BLADES             $82.87

FACTORY MOTOR PARTS COMPANY               Total Check Amount: $955.12

V40026  CANDICE FISHER                     12/20/2019 23787   110141481       TRAINING EXPENSES        $30.01

CANDICE FISHER                            Total Check Amount: $30.01

V40027  FUN WITH HORSES                    12/20/2019 15171   110404145       HORSE FUN CLASSES        $170.00

FUN WITH HORSES                           Total Check Amount: $170.00

V40028  GALLS/QUARTERMASTER                12/20/2019 16493   110222221       SHIELD BOOTS             $132.53

GALLS/QUARTERMASTER                       Total Check Amount: $132.53

V40029  GEORGE HILLS COMPANY               12/20/2019 27340   470141483       CLAIMS MGMT FEE NOV19    $530.42

GEORGE HILLS COMPANY                      Total Check Amount: $530.42

V40030  GLASBY MAINTENANCE SUPPLY CO       12/20/2019 6802    490515151       P.HALL/SC DISPENSER      $29.20

12/20/2019 6802    490515151       VACCUM PARTS             $41.87

GLASBY MAINTENANCE SUPPLY CO              Total Check Amount: $71.07

V40031  DON GOLDEN                         12/20/2019 10729   110000000       INSP SVCS 12/5-12/11     $5,006.25

12/20/2019 10729   110323242       INSP SVCS 12/5-12/11     $150.00

DON GOLDEN                                Total Check Amount: $5,156.25

V40032  GUARANTEED JANITORIAL SERVICES, 
INC

12/20/2019 28695   490515151       CLEANCARPET ALL AREAS    $3,138.00

GUARANTEED JANITORIAL SERVICES, INC       Total Check Amount: $3,138.00

V40033  HCI SYSTEMS INC                    12/20/2019 25112   490515151       CCC FIRE SYSTEM BATT     $625.00

12/20/2019 25112   490515151       FS3 FIRESYSTEM REPAIR    $540.00

HCI SYSTEMS INC                           Total Check Amount: $1,165.00

V40034  IMPRESSIVE SCREENWORKS             12/20/2019 1815    420515131       POLO SHIRTS              $106.67

Dec 18, 2019 5 of 12 11:28:35 AM



City Check Register for:  Dec 20, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

IMPRESSIVE SCREENWORKS                    Total Check Amount: $106.67

V40035  INFANTE MEDIA                      12/20/2019 24628   110404542       ALL SHOOK UP PAYOUT 1    $6,000.00

INFANTE MEDIA                             Total Check Amount: $6,000.00

V40036  MICHAEL JAMES                      12/20/2019 24674   950000000       REIMB:PARKING SEP/NOV    $104.00

MICHAEL JAMES                             Total Check Amount: $104.00

V40037  KEYSER MARSTON ASSOCIATES, INC.    12/20/2019 25482   110000000       MERCURY FISCAL STUDY     $540.00

KEYSER MARSTON ASSOCIATES, INC.           Total Check Amount: $540.00

V40038  KREUZER CONSULTING GROUP           12/20/2019 22072   510707278       IMP/BERRY INT OCT19      $3,780.00

12/20/2019 22072   510707311       PROF SVCS SEPT 2019      $258.00

12/20/2019 22072   510707453       PROF SVCS SEPT 2019      $258.00

12/20/2019 22072   510707464       PROF SVCS SEPT 2019      $259.00

12/20/2019 22072   510707627       PROF SVCS SEPT 2019      $1,025.00

KREUZER CONSULTING GROUP                  Total Check Amount: $5,580.00

V40039  LA HABRA FENCE CO., INC.           12/20/2019 3120    490515151       HR SECURITY CAGE         $2,244.00

LA HABRA FENCE CO., INC.                  Total Check Amount: $2,244.00

V40040  LONG BEACH BMW                     12/20/2019 18120   480515161       2019 BMW MOTORCYCLE      $29,150.01

LONG BEACH BMW                            Total Check Amount: $29,150.01

V40041  MAYTAG SPECIALIST                  12/20/2019 21269   490515151       FS1/FS2 DW REPAIR        $525.00

MAYTAG SPECIALIST                         Total Check Amount: $525.00

V40042  ANDREW MILLER                      12/20/2019 14522   460141474       NOV 2019 MILEAGE         $155.46

ANDREW MILLER                             Total Check Amount: $155.46

V40043  MINER, LTD                         12/20/2019 27173   110515125       PS3 COMPACTOR REPAIR     $424.93

MINER, LTD                                Total Check Amount: $424.93

V40044  MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT           12/20/2019 3784    420515131       AWIA ASSESSMENT PH2      $83,855.00

12/20/2019 3784    420515131       WATER DELIVERY NOV19     $14,223.32

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                  Total Check Amount: $98,078.32

V40045  MYERS AND SONS                     12/20/2019 21624   110515121       CITY EVENTS ROADSIGNS    $2,332.03

12/20/2019 21624   110515121       EAGLEHILLSTRACT SIGNS    $131.37

12/20/2019 21624   510707702       CITY REGULATORY SIGNS    $147.83

MYERS AND SONS                            Total Check Amount: $2,611.23

V40046  NICKEY PETROLEUM CO., INC.         12/20/2019 6667    480515161       MOTOR OIL                $2,872.45

NICKEY PETROLEUM CO., INC.                Total Check Amount: $2,872.45

V40047  PLACEWORKS, INC.                   12/20/2019 26720   110000000       BREA 265 EIR NOV19       $29,171.82

PLACEWORKS, INC.                          Total Check Amount: $29,171.82

V40048  RICHARDS, WATSON & GERSHON         12/20/2019 8978    110000000       0116 REIMB WORK NOV19    $2,430.00

12/20/2019 8978    110111112       0001 GEN LGL SVCS NOV    $12,125.02

12/20/2019 8978    110111112       0174 K-BOSM CH NOV19     $2,041.29

12/20/2019 8978    110111112       9999 GEN LGL SVCS NOV    $23,064.50

12/20/2019 8978    510707251       0145 57/LMBRT INT NOV    $506.00

Dec 18, 2019 6 of 12 11:28:35 AM



City Check Register for:  Dec 20, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

V40048  RICHARDS, WATSON & GERSHON         12/20/2019 8978    510707251       0171 OLEN POINTE NOV     $221.21

12/20/2019 8978    510707251       0172 KING Y CHAI NOV     $354.27

RICHARDS, WATSON & GERSHON                Total Check Amount: $40,742.29

V40049  RIVELLE CONSULTING SERVICES        12/20/2019 20208   470141483       ACTUARIAL SVCS           $4,200.00

12/20/2019 20208   470141483       ACTUARIAL:COST ALLOC     $500.00

RIVELLE CONSULTING SERVICES               Total Check Amount: $4,700.00

V40050  SHERYL SAVORD                      12/20/2019 15772   110404425       REIMB:T.TOTS SUPPLIES    $64.52

SHERYL SAVORD                             Total Check Amount: $64.52

V40051  SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY, LLC      12/20/2019 25942   110515125       RBCLOCK:DT IRRIGATION    $64.64

SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY, LLC             Total Check Amount: $64.64

V40052  STAGELIGHT FAMILY PRODUCTIONS      12/20/2019 7825    110404542       ANNIE MUSICAL PAYOUT1    $34,776.26

STAGELIGHT FAMILY PRODUCTIONS             Total Check Amount: $34,776.26

V40053  STATE INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS          12/20/2019 8572    490515151       FS CLEANING PRODUCTS     $568.26

STATE INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS                 Total Check Amount: $568.26

V40054  STOTZ EQUIPMENT                    12/20/2019 24388   480515161       U-BELTS/BUMPERS          $1,115.31

STOTZ EQUIPMENT                           Total Check Amount: $1,115.31

V40055  TECHNICOLOR PRINTING               12/20/2019 24354   110404424       CHAMPION SHIRTS          $346.40

TECHNICOLOR PRINTING                      Total Check Amount: $346.40

V40056  THOMSON REUTERS - WEST             12/20/2019 22020   110111112       431851 CHGS 10/5-11/4    $125.00

12/20/2019 22020   110212121       WEST INFO CHGS NOV19     $455.35

THOMSON REUTERS - WEST                    Total Check Amount: $580.35

V40057  THYSSENKRUPP ELEVATOR              12/20/2019 10308   110515125       DT PS1 ELEV SVC DEC19    $568.06

12/20/2019 10308   110515125       DT PS2 ELEV REPAIR-OT    $470.52

12/20/2019 10308   110515125       DT PS2 ELEV SVC DEC19    $568.06

12/20/2019 10308   110515125       DT PS3 ELEV SVC DEC19    $570.00

12/20/2019 10308   490515151       CCC ELEV SVC DEC19       $2,388.06

THYSSENKRUPP ELEVATOR                     Total Check Amount: $4,564.70

V40058  TIFCO INDUSTRIES                   12/20/2019 8995    480515161       SHOP SUPPLIES            $431.11

TIFCO INDUSTRIES                          Total Check Amount: $431.11

V40059  TOWNSEND PUBLIC AFFAIRS, INC.      12/20/2019 18881   110111145       CONSULTING SVCS DEC19    $1,250.00

12/20/2019 18881   410111145       CONSULTING SVCS DEC19    $1,250.00

12/20/2019 18881   420111145       CONSULTING SVCS DEC19    $1,250.00

12/20/2019 18881   430111145       CONSULTING SVCS DEC19    $1,250.00

TOWNSEND PUBLIC AFFAIRS, INC.             Total Check Amount: $5,000.00

V40060  US BANK  XX0338 CITY MGR           12/20/2019 24704   110             CALCARDS MS 112219       $6.93

12/20/2019 24704   110111111       CALCARDS MS 112219       $444.39

12/20/2019 24704   110111143       CALCARDS MS 112219       $1,189.04

US BANK  XX0338 CITY MGR                  Total Check Amount: $1,640.36

V40061  US BANK  XX0312 HR                 12/20/2019 24776   110             CAL CARDS HR 112219      ($2.33)

Dec 18, 2019 7 of 12 11:28:35 AM



City Check Register for:  Dec 20, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

V40061  US BANK  XX0312 HR                 12/20/2019 24776   110141431       CAL CARDS HR 112219      ($160.55)

12/20/2019 24776   110141481       CAL CARDS HR 112219      $2,709.81

US BANK  XX0312 HR                        Total Check Amount: $2,546.93

V40064  US BANK  XX0593 COMM SVC           12/20/2019 24777   110             CALCARDS-CP-112219       $372.20

12/20/2019 24777   110             CALCARDS-DA-112219       ($62.54)

12/20/2019 24777   110             CALCARDS-JC-112219BB     $89.62

12/20/2019 24777   110             CALCARDS-JM-112219BB     $14.98

12/20/2019 24777   110111111       CALCARDS-SM-112219       $189.41

12/20/2019 24777   110111143       CALCARDS-EC-112219       $78.04

12/20/2019 24777   110141481       CALCARDS-VU-112219       $51.37

12/20/2019 24777   110404154       CALCARDS-BH-112219       $45.24

12/20/2019 24777   110404211       CALCARDS-AC-112219       $587.56

12/20/2019 24777   110404211       CALCARDS-TN-112219       $473.73

12/20/2019 24777   110404215       CALCARDS-AC-112219       $112.53

12/20/2019 24777   110404215       CALCARDS-CC-112219       $448.00

12/20/2019 24777   110404215       CALCARDS-DA-112219       $1,038.11

12/20/2019 24777   110404215       CALCARDS-JS-112219       $321.20

12/20/2019 24777   110404217       CALCARDS-MM-112219       $32.20

12/20/2019 24777   110404217       CALCARDS-VU-112219       $565.69

12/20/2019 24777   110404224       CALCARDS-SS-112219       $18.95

12/20/2019 24777   110404311       CALCARDS-CE-112219       $42.02

12/20/2019 24777   110404311       CALCARDS-CH-112219       $43.09

12/20/2019 24777   110404311       CALCARDS-EC-112219       $461.63

12/20/2019 24777   110404311       CALCARDS-JC-112219       $455.38

12/20/2019 24777   110404311       CALCARDS-JM-112219       $314.42

12/20/2019 24777   110404311       CALCARDS-SM-112219       $21.98

12/20/2019 24777   110404421       CALCARDS-KS-112219       $96.78

12/20/2019 24777   110404421       CALCARDS-NA-112219       $304.22

12/20/2019 24777   110404421       CALCARDS-RH-112219       $142.00

12/20/2019 24777   110404421       CALCARDS-VU-112219       $59.74

12/20/2019 24777   110404424       CALCARDS-GA-112219       $47.84

12/20/2019 24777   110404425       CALCARDS-MM-112219       $118.72

12/20/2019 24777   110404425       CALCARDS-SS-112219       $667.37

12/20/2019 24777   110404429       CALCARDS-MM-112219       $147.99

12/20/2019 24777   110404429       CALCARDS-VU-112219       $241.70

12/20/2019 24777   110404521       CALCARDS-ER-112219       $253.93

12/20/2019 24777   110404521       CALCARDS-FL-112219       $2,051.89

12/20/2019 24777   110404521       CALCARDS-NG-112219       $386.11

Dec 18, 2019 8 of 12 11:28:35 AM



City Check Register for:  Dec 20, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

V40064  US BANK  XX0593 COMM SVC           12/20/2019 24777   110404521       CALCARDS-TK-112219       $868.98

12/20/2019 24777   110404523       CALCARDS-CP-112219       $254.87

12/20/2019 24777   110404541       CALCARDS-AF-112219       $565.41

12/20/2019 24777   110404541       CALCARDS-GA-112219       $54.36

12/20/2019 24777   110404541       CALCARDS-HB-112219       $46.60

12/20/2019 24777   110404542       CALCARDS-EF-112219       $1,433.61

12/20/2019 24777   110404542       CALCARDS-HG-112219       $652.70

12/20/2019 24777   110404542       CALCARDS-KK-112219       $2,245.42

12/20/2019 24777   110404542       CALCARDS-NY-112219       $435.32

US BANK  XX0593 COMM SVC                  Total Check Amount: $16,790.37

V40065  US BANK  XX0502 COMM & MKTG        12/20/2019 24778   110             CALCARDS C&MKT 112219    $261.20

12/20/2019 24778   110111143       CALCARDS C&MKT 112219    $113.19

12/20/2019 24778   110111151       CALCARDS C&MKT 112219    $36.88

12/20/2019 24778   110111152       CALCARDS C&MKT 112219    $751.92

12/20/2019 24778   110141481       CALCARDS C&MKT 112219    $26.87

12/20/2019 24778   110323214       CALCARDS C&MKT 112219    $21.09

US BANK  XX0502 COMM & MKTG               Total Check Amount: $1,211.15

V40066  US BANK  XX0353 COMM DEV           12/20/2019 24779   110             CALCARD CD/PL/BS 1119    $119.28

12/20/2019 24779   110323212       CALCARD CD/PL/BS 11/19   $987.00

12/20/2019 24779   110323214       CALCARD CD/PL/BS 11/19   $722.63

12/20/2019 24779   110323231       CALCARD CD/PL/BS 11/19   $131.41

12/20/2019 24779   110323241       CALCARD CD/PL/BS 11/19   $1,009.48

12/20/2019 24779   110323243       CALCARD CD/PL/BS 11/19   $30.47

12/20/2019 24779   110515111       CALCARD CD/PL/BS 1119    $22.36

US BANK  XX0353 COMM DEV                  Total Check Amount: $3,022.63

V40067  US BANK  XX0270 ADMIN SVCS         12/20/2019 24781   110             CAL CARDS FINANCE        $95.51

12/20/2019 24781   110111111       CALCARDS FINANCE         ($2.79)

12/20/2019 24781   110111161       CALCARDS CCLK 11/19      $1,384.22

12/20/2019 24781   110141411       CAL CARDS FINANCE        $796.99

12/20/2019 24781   110141431       CAL CARDS FINANCE        $96.84

12/20/2019 24781   110141481       CAL CARDS FINANCE        $137.56

12/20/2019 24781   110141481       CALCARDS CCLK 11/19      $53.37

12/20/2019 24781   110222213       CAL CARDS FINANCE        $108.28

12/20/2019 24781   110323241       CAL CARDS FINANCE        $25.00

12/20/2019 24781   110404311       CAL CARDS FINANCE        $318.75

12/20/2019 24781   110404421       CAL CARDS FINANCE        $220.37

12/20/2019 24781   420141421       CAL CARDS FINANCE        $41.73

12/20/2019 24781   490515151       CAL CARDS FINANCE        $9,319.60

Dec 18, 2019 9 of 12 11:28:35 AM



City Check Register for:  Dec 20, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

US BANK  XX0270 ADMIN SVCS                Total Check Amount: $12,595.43

V40068  US BANK  XX0650 FIRE               12/20/2019 24782   110             CAL CARDS FIRE NOV 19    $87.29

12/20/2019 24782   110222211       CALCARDS FIRE NOV 19     $1,446.56

12/20/2019 24782   110222213       CALCARDS FIRE NOV 19     $38.00

12/20/2019 24782   110222221       CAL CARDS FIRE NOV 19    $3,095.90

12/20/2019 24782   110222221       CALCARDS FIRE NOV 19     $1,051.36

12/20/2019 24782   110222223       CAL CARDS FIRE NOV 19    $53.58

12/20/2019 24782   174222222       CAL CARDS FIRE NOV 19    $3,514.73

12/20/2019 24782   480515161       CAL CARDS FIRE NOV 19    $952.82

US BANK  XX0650 FIRE                      Total Check Amount: $10,240.24

V40069  US BANK  XX0346 IT                 12/20/2019 24783   110             CAL CARDS IT 112219      $9.13

12/20/2019 24783   110111143       CAL CARDS ITV 112219     $41.12

12/20/2019 24783   110141431       CAL CARDS IT 112219      $29.03

12/20/2019 24783   110323212       CAL CARDS IT 112219      $41.12

12/20/2019 24783   110323214       CAL CARDS IT 112219      $41.12

12/20/2019 24783   110404154       CAL CARDS IT 112219      $38.82

12/20/2019 24783   110404311       CAL CARDS IT 112219      $41.12

12/20/2019 24783   110515111       CAL CARDS IT 112219      $41.12

12/20/2019 24783   110515125       CAL CARDS IT 112219      $190.74

12/20/2019 24783   280323215       CAL CARDS IT 112219      $14.95

12/20/2019 24783   460141474       CAL CARDS IT 112219      $1,286.90

12/20/2019 24783   475141471       CAL CARDS IT 112219      $1,182.93

12/20/2019 24783   480515161       CAL CARDS IT 112219      $64.70

US BANK  XX0346 IT                        Total Check Amount: $3,022.80

V40071  US BANK  XX0221 PW                 12/20/2019 24784   110             CALCARDS PW 112219       $17.27

12/20/2019 24784   110222211       CALCARDS PW 112219       $19.26

12/20/2019 24784   110404311       CALCARDS PW 112219       $1,348.08

12/20/2019 24784   110515121       CALCARDS PW 112219       $254.68

12/20/2019 24784   110515125       CALCARDS PW 112219       $514.74

12/20/2019 24784   110515141       CALCARDS PW 112219       $141.16

12/20/2019 24784   110515143       CALCARDS PW 112219       $39.44

12/20/2019 24784   110515144       CALCARDS PW 112219       $138.91

12/20/2019 24784   110515148       CALCARDS PW 112219       $106.12

12/20/2019 24784   110515171       CALCARDS PW 112219       $470.00

12/20/2019 24784   343515112       CALCARDS PW 112219       $58.16

12/20/2019 24784   360515145       CALCARDS PW 112219       $145.53

12/20/2019 24784   430515123       CALCARDS PW 112219       $41.17

12/20/2019 24784   480             CALCARDS PW 112219       $4.99

Dec 18, 2019 10 of 12 11:28:35 AM



City Check Register for:  Dec 20, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

V40071  US BANK  XX0221 PW                 12/20/2019 24784   480515161       CALCARDS PW 112219       $3,410.40

12/20/2019 24784   490515151       CALCARDS PW 112219       $4,228.88

US BANK  XX0221 PW                        Total Check Amount: $10,938.79

V40073  US BANK  XX0544 POLICE             12/20/2019 24785   110             CALCARD 112219 POLICE    ($111.14)

12/20/2019 24785   110212111       CALCARD 11-22-19 POLICE  $2,545.23

12/20/2019 24785   110212121       CALCARD 11-22-19 POLICE  $1,461.19

12/20/2019 24785   110212122       CALCARD 11-22-19 POLICE  $8.93

12/20/2019 24785   110212131       CALCARD 11-22-19 POLICE  $883.42

12/20/2019 24785   110212132       CALCARD 11-22-19 POLICE  $58.14

12/20/2019 24785   110212133       CALCARD 11-22-19 POLICE  $82.07

12/20/2019 24785   110212134       CALCARD 11-22-19 POLICE  $1,291.74

12/20/2019 24785   480515161       CALCARD 11-22-19 POLICE  $1,476.01

US BANK  XX0544 POLICE                    Total Check Amount: $7,695.59

V40074  US BANK  XX3401 PW- ADMIN          12/20/2019 24786   110             CALCARDS PWADM 112219    $85.12

12/20/2019 24786   110515111       CALCARDS PWADM 112219    $990.19

12/20/2019 24786   110515171       CALCARDS PWADM 112219    $215.28

12/20/2019 24786   420515131       CALCARDS PWADM 112219    $11.84

US BANK  XX3401 PW- ADMIN                 Total Check Amount: $1,302.43

V40075  VIRTUAL PROJECT MANAGER            12/20/2019 23508   510707251       CIP SW BCKUP/ST DEC19    $62.50

12/20/2019 23508   510707311       CIP SW BCKUP/ST DEC19    $62.50

12/20/2019 23508   510707315       CIP SW BCKUP/ST DEC19    $62.50

12/20/2019 23508   510707316       CIP SW BCKUP/ST DEC19    $62.50

12/20/2019 23508   510707317       CIP SW BCKUP/ST DEC19    $62.50

12/20/2019 23508   510707461       CIP SW BCKUP/ST DEC19    $62.50

12/20/2019 23508   510707941       CIP SW BCKUP/ST DEC19    $62.50

12/20/2019 23508   510707944       CIP SW BCKUP/ST DEC19    $62.50

VIRTUAL PROJECT MANAGER                   Total Check Amount: $500.00

V40076  WALTERS WHOLESALE ELECTRIC         12/20/2019 1667    110515121       CABLE TIES:EAGLEHILLS    $121.54

12/20/2019 1667    490515151       ELECTRICAL TAPE          $35.56

12/20/2019 1667    490515151       SOLAR TIES               $320.55

12/20/2019 1667    490515151       SOLAR TIES SS            $190.03

WALTERS WHOLESALE ELECTRIC                Total Check Amount: $667.68

V40077  WEBBY DANCE COMPANY                12/20/2019 25323   110404145       JAZZ/HIPHOP/TUMBLING     $168.00

WEBBY DANCE COMPANY                       Total Check Amount: $168.00

V40078  TERRI WESTERGREN                   12/20/2019 25602   110404521       SR CTR ZUMBA AUG 2019    $160.00

12/20/2019 25602   110404521       SR CTR ZUMBA JUL 2019    $120.00

12/20/2019 25602   110404521       SR CTR ZUMBA JUN 2019    $120.00

12/20/2019 25602   110404521       SR CTR ZUMBA MAY 2019    $200.00

Dec 18, 2019 11 of 12 11:28:35 AM



City Check Register for:  Dec 20, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

V40078  TERRI WESTERGREN                   12/20/2019 25602   110404521       SR CTR ZUMBA NOV 2019    $160.00

12/20/2019 25602   110404521       SR CTR ZUMBA OCT 2019    $200.00

12/20/2019 25602   110404521       SR CTR ZUMBA SEP 2019    $120.00

TERRI WESTERGREN                          Total Check Amount: $1,080.00

V40079  WEST-LITE SUPPLY CO., INC.         12/20/2019 5192    490515151       LED LIGHTING             $870.51

WEST-LITE SUPPLY CO., INC.                Total Check Amount: $870.51

V40080  WILLDAN ENGINEERING                12/20/2019 12445   110000000       PLAN CHECK SVCS 10/25    $596.00

12/20/2019 12445   110000000       PLAN CHECK SVCS 5/31     $894.00

12/20/2019 12445   110515171       PLAN CHECK SVCS 10/25    $2,831.00

12/20/2019 12445   110515171       PLAN CHECK SVCS 5/31     $2,309.50

WILLDAN ENGINEERING                       Total Check Amount: $6,630.50

V40081  ZUMAR INDUSTRIES, INC.             12/20/2019 3802    110323212       CRABTREE RET SIGN        $81.40

ZUMAR INDUSTRIES, INC.                    Total Check Amount: $81.40

Voucher Subtotal $480,114.41

TOTAL $888,028.42

Dec 18, 2019 12 of 12 11:28:35 AM



City Check Register for:  Dec 27, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget 
Unit

Description Amount

182800  FRANCHISE TAX BOARD                12/27/2019 13287   110             CD917666897 122019 PR    $132.55

FRANCHISE TAX BOARD                       Total Check Amount: $132.55

182801  FRANCHISE TAX BOARD                12/27/2019 29315   110             565594864 122019 PR      $1,289.58

FRANCHISE TAX BOARD                       Total Check Amount: $1,289.58

Check Subtotal $1,422.13

V40082  ADMINISTRATIVE & PROF              12/27/2019 3344    110             DED:4010 APEA MEMBR      $552.00

ADMINISTRATIVE & PROF                     Total Check Amount: $552.00

V40083  THE ADVANTAGE GROUP                12/27/2019 24539   110             DED:808B FSA DEPCAR      $2,965.26

12/27/2019 24539   110             DED:808C FSA UR MED      $5,173.57

THE ADVANTAGE GROUP                       Total Check Amount: $8,138.83

V40084  BPSEA MEMORIAL FOUNDATION          12/27/2019 14990   110             DED:4050 MEMORIAL        $212.50

BPSEA MEMORIAL FOUNDATION                 Total Check Amount: $212.50

V40085  BREA CITY EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION    12/27/2019 3236    110             DED:4005 BCEA MEMBR      $560.00

BREA CITY EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION           Total Check Amount: $560.00

V40086  BREA FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION      12/27/2019 3237    110             DED:4016 ASSOC MEMB      $3,076.75

BREA FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION             Total Check Amount: $3,076.75

V40087  BREA POLICE ASSOCIATION            12/27/2019 3769    110             DED:4030 BPA REG         $3,300.00

BREA POLICE ASSOCIATION                   Total Check Amount: $3,300.00

V40088  BREA POLICE ATHLETIC LEAGUE        12/27/2019 1068    110             DED:5010 B.P.A.L.        $132.50

BREA POLICE ATHLETIC LEAGUE               Total Check Amount: $132.50

V40089  BREA POLICE MANAGEMENT 
ASSOCIATION 

12/27/2019 21189   110             DED:4019 LDF MEMBRS      $13.00

12/27/2019 21189   110             DED:4020 PMA MEMBRS      $195.00

BREA POLICE MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION        Total Check Amount: $208.00

V40090  ORANGE COUNTY UNITED WAY           12/27/2019 3451    110             DED:5005 UNITED WAY      $11.75

ORANGE COUNTY UNITED WAY                  Total Check Amount: $11.75

Voucher Subtotal $16,192.33

TOTAL $17,614.46

Dec 23, 2019 1 of 1 12:06:55 PM



City Check Register for:  Jan 3, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

182802  ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN & SIGNS,INC.  01/03/2020 26146   510707903       PS3 BLADE SIGN MOVE      $9,368.50

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN & SIGNS,INC.         Total Check Amount: $9,368.50

182803  INJO BAHNG                         01/03/2020 29339   420000000       WTR ACCOUNT OVERPYMNT    $105.45

INJO BAHNG                                Total Check Amount: $105.45

182804  MATTHEW RYAN BLACKSCHELGER         01/03/2020 29329   110000000       PD REPORT REQ REFUND     $3.00

MATTHEW RYAN BLACKSCHELGER                Total Check Amount: $3.00

182805  MONIQUE BLAIR                      01/03/2020 29347   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $102.38

MONIQUE BLAIR                             Total Check Amount: $102.38

182806  MARK CAMPBELL AND JULIE CAMERON    01/03/2020 22725   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $705.63

MARK CAMPBELL AND JULIE CAMERON           Total Check Amount: $705.63

182807  NIN JIM CHEN                       01/03/2020 29350   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $21.97

NIN JIM CHEN                              Total Check Amount: $21.97

182808  BRIAN CHONG                        01/03/2020 29344   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $22.52

BRIAN CHONG                               Total Check Amount: $22.52

182809  COUNTY OF ORANGE                   01/03/2020 4799    410515132       19/20 NPDES COSTSHARE    $87,612.90

COUNTY OF ORANGE                          Total Check Amount: $87,612.90

182810  CPSI - PROPERTY SPECIALISTS, INC.  01/03/2020 26951   510707251       57/LAMBERT ROW NOV       $1,143.73

CPSI - PROPERTY SPECIALISTS, INC.         Total Check Amount: $1,143.73

182811  CYBERVISION ELECTRONICS INC        01/03/2020 29345   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $72.19

CYBERVISION ELECTRONICS INC               Total Check Amount: $72.19

182812  DAVID DAVID                        01/03/2020 29348   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $51.18

DAVID DAVID                               Total Check Amount: $51.18

182813  DELTA DENTAL INSURANCE COMPANY     01/03/2020 26074   110             05-R103125 DENTAL DEC    $1,971.27

DELTA DENTAL INSURANCE COMPANY            Total Check Amount: $1,971.27

182814  SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON         01/03/2020 3343    110515121       ELECTRICITY NOV/DEC19    $942.75

01/03/2020 3343    110515148       ELECTRICITY NOV/DEC19    $92.04

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON                Total Check Amount: $1,034.79

182815  FIRST DUE ELEVATOR RESCUE          01/03/2020 29322   110222221       ELEVATOR RESCUE KITS     $1,598.63

FIRST DUE ELEVATOR RESCUE                 Total Check Amount: $1,598.63

182816  CHRISTOPHER FLOREZ                 01/03/2020 29354   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $67.11

CHRISTOPHER FLOREZ                        Total Check Amount: $67.11

182817  THE GAS COMPANY                    01/03/2020 3749    490515151       GAS NOV/DEC 2019         $3,155.08

THE GAS COMPANY                           Total Check Amount: $3,155.08

182818  LEE GRABER                         01/03/2020 29355   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $9.85

LEE GRABER                                Total Check Amount: $9.85

182819  PAYGE HAMBY                        01/03/2020 27873   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $33.93

PAYGE HAMBY                               Total Check Amount: $33.93

182820  RON HARDING                        01/03/2020 28939   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $300.32

RON HARDING                               Total Check Amount: $300.32

Jan 2, 2020 1 of 6 3:05:58 PM



City Check Register for:  Jan 3, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

182821  THE HARTFORD                       01/03/2020 14763   470141483       2020 TRAVEL ACC INS      $750.00

THE HARTFORD                              Total Check Amount: $750.00

182822  JACK HAY                           01/03/2020 22798   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $187.40

01/03/2020 22798   110141411       STOP PAYMENT FEE         ($12.00)

JACK HAY                                  Total Check Amount: $175.40

182823  BIN HUANG                          01/03/2020 29352   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $359.43

BIN HUANG                                 Total Check Amount: $359.43

182824  INLAND WATER WORKS SUPPLY CO       01/03/2020 23904   420515131       ERTS                     $3,879.00

INLAND WATER WORKS SUPPLY CO              Total Check Amount: $3,879.00

182825  DENNIS JIMENEZ                     01/03/2020 11652   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $750.50

DENNIS JIMENEZ                            Total Check Amount: $750.50

182826  RYAN KLUG                          01/03/2020 29363   110212111       TRAINING MILEAGE         $8.06

RYAN KLUG                                 Total Check Amount: $8.06

182827  DANIEL KWON                        01/03/2020 28879   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $75.92

DANIEL KWON                               Total Check Amount: $75.92

182828  LIFE-ASSIST, INC.                  01/03/2020 10530   174222222       PM SUPPLIES FIRE STN2    $1,659.49

01/03/2020 10530   174222222       PM SUPPLIES FIRE STN3    $486.01

LIFE-ASSIST, INC.                         Total Check Amount: $2,145.50

182829  LOZEAU CONSULTING, TRAINING & 
INVES

01/03/2020 29336   110212111       HOMELESS LIAISON TRNG    $80.00

LOZEAU CONSULTING, TRAINING & INVES       Total Check Amount: $80.00

182830  SHELLEY MARKER                     01/03/2020 29341   110             REFUND:TROLLEY TOUR      $14.00

SHELLEY MARKER                            Total Check Amount: $14.00

182831  MEDPOST URGENT CARE - BREA         01/03/2020 27547   110141481       HR MED SVCS 11/4         $85.00

01/03/2020 27547   110141481       HR MED SVCS NOV 2019     $405.00

MEDPOST URGENT CARE - BREA                Total Check Amount: $490.00

182832  MARY MENDOZA                       01/03/2020 28973   110000000       DEVELOPER FEE REFUND     $398.00

MARY MENDOZA                              Total Check Amount: $398.00

182833  STEPHANIE MURET                    01/03/2020 29342   110             REFUND:TROLLEY TOUR      $42.00

STEPHANIE MURET                           Total Check Amount: $42.00

182834  NANCY MURRAY                       01/03/2020 29340   110             REFUND:TROLLEY TOUR      $14.00

NANCY MURRAY                              Total Check Amount: $14.00

182835  NPR BIO-MEDICAL INC                01/03/2020 29338   420000000       WTR ACCOUNT OVERPYMNT    $1,769.07

NPR BIO-MEDICAL INC                       Total Check Amount: $1,769.07

182836  PUENTE HILLS FORD                  01/03/2020 25742   480515161       1301 SIDE MIRROR         $619.17

01/03/2020 25742   480515161       955 SUSPENSION REPAIR    $397.30

01/03/2020 25742   480515161       CAP ASSEMBLY             $18.03

01/03/2020 25742   480515161       TIRE PRESSURE SENSOR     $68.67

01/03/2020 25742   480515161       WINDOW REGULATOR         $58.45

Jan 2, 2020 2 of 6 3:05:58 PM



City Check Register for:  Jan 3, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

PUENTE HILLS FORD                         Total Check Amount: $1,161.62

182837  HEAVEN RAMIREZ                     01/03/2020 29353   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $20.87

HEAVEN RAMIREZ                            Total Check Amount: $20.87

182838  ALFRED RODRIGUEZ                   01/03/2020 29364   110212111       TRAVEL MILEAGE           $5.45

ALFRED RODRIGUEZ                          Total Check Amount: $5.45

182839  RANDY ROMAN                        01/03/2020 29346   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $82.96

RANDY ROMAN                               Total Check Amount: $82.96

182840  ANGEL ROSALES                      01/03/2020 29349   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $65.00

ANGEL ROSALES                             Total Check Amount: $65.00

182841  SHIRISH SHAH                       01/03/2020 29176   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $63.91

SHIRISH SHAH                              Total Check Amount: $63.91

182842  ALICIA SILVA                       01/03/2020 29356   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $110.04

ALICIA SILVA                              Total Check Amount: $110.04

182843  CAROLE STONE                       01/03/2020 29333   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $48.02

CAROLE STONE                              Total Check Amount: $48.02

182844  SWRCB                              01/03/2020 14532   420515131       19/20 WTR SYSTEM FEES    $38,860.80

SWRCB                                     Total Check Amount: $38,860.80

182845  LAMARR TINNIN                      01/03/2020 29365   110212111       TRAINING MILEAGE         $12.99

LAMARR TINNIN                             Total Check Amount: $12.99

182846  TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT, INC.           01/03/2020 28282   510707903       TFCCTRL:PS3 SGN RELOC    $2,522.00

TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT, INC.                  Total Check Amount: $2,522.00

182847  KHOA TRAN                          01/03/2020 29351   420000000       CLOSED WATER ACCOUNT     $8.59

KHOA TRAN                                 Total Check Amount: $8.59

182848  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE              01/03/2020 3174    110141441       SHIPPING CHGS NOV/DEC    $216.62

UNITED PARCEL SERVICE                     Total Check Amount: $216.62

182849  UNITED RENTALS NORTHWEST, INC.     01/03/2020 7051    490515151       LIFT FOR XMAS TREE       $1,488.04

UNITED RENTALS NORTHWEST, INC.            Total Check Amount: $1,488.04

182850  VETERINARY PET INS. CO.            01/03/2020 20975   110             4436 PET INS NOV19       $689.28

VETERINARY PET INS. CO.                   Total Check Amount: $689.28

Check Subtotal $163,687.50

V40091  B & S GRAPHICS INC.                01/03/2020 24357   480515161       ROOF DECALS              $64.48

B & S GRAPHICS INC.                       Total Check Amount: $64.48

V40092  BREA DISPOSAL, INC                 01/03/2020 3330    440515122       NOV 2019 RES TONNAGE     $71,849.02

01/03/2020 3330    440515122       REFUSE COLLECTN NOV19    $159,485.48

BREA DISPOSAL, INC                        Total Check Amount: $231,334.50

V40093  C. WELLS PIPELINE MATERIALS INC    01/03/2020 13055   420515131       HYDRANT PARTS            $188.63

01/03/2020 13055   420515131       PLUMBING SUPPLIES        $2,040.25

C. WELLS PIPELINE MATERIALS INC           Total Check Amount: $2,228.88

V40094  CIVICPLUS                          01/03/2020 23925   110111151       19/20 CITY WEBSITEFEE    $5,705.85

Jan 2, 2020 3 of 6 3:05:58 PM



City Check Register for:  Jan 3, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

V40094  CIVICPLUS                          01/03/2020 23925   110111151       19/20 PLATFORM FEE       $1,586.04

01/03/2020 23925   110323214       19/20 ECONDEV WEB FEE    $669.50

01/03/2020 23925   110404215       19/20 FTNSSCTR WEBFEE    $710.28

01/03/2020 23925   110404541       19/20 GALLERY WEB FEE    $710.28

01/03/2020 23925   110404542       19/20 THEATRE WEB FEE    $710.28

01/03/2020 23925   475141471       19/20 SSL CERTIFICATE    $154.50

CIVICPLUS                                 Total Check Amount: $10,246.73

V40095  CLINICAL LABORATORY OF             01/03/2020 3390    420515131       WATER SAMPLING NOV19     $1,062.00

CLINICAL LABORATORY OF                    Total Check Amount: $1,062.00

V40096  COLONIAL LIFE PROCESSING CENTER    01/03/2020 26071   110             4504054 CRIT ILL NOV     $231.22

01/03/2020 26071   110             4504054 STD DISAB NOV    $1,362.90

COLONIAL LIFE PROCESSING CENTER           Total Check Amount: $1,594.12

V40097  CORE & MAIN LP                     01/03/2020 27049   420515131       DE-CHLOR TABLETS         $129.30

01/03/2020 27049   420515131       PLUMBING SUPPLIES        $1,670.13

01/03/2020 27049   420515131       STR MTR ENCODERS (21)    $2,822.78

01/03/2020 27049   420515131       WATER 
METERS+ENCODERS    

$6,078.52

01/03/2020 27049   420515131       WTR MTR ENCODERS (16)    $6,388.10

01/03/2020 27049   420515131       WTR MTR ENCODERS (21)    $2,822.79

CORE & MAIN LP                            Total Check Amount: $19,911.62

V40098  BRANDON CROSS                      01/03/2020 27883   110212111       TRAINING EXPENSES        $16.00

BRANDON CROSS                             Total Check Amount: $16.00

V40099  DANIELS TIRE SERVICE               01/03/2020 3133    480515161       USED TIRE DISPOSAL       $84.00

DANIELS TIRE SERVICE                      Total Check Amount: $84.00

V40100  DELTA DENTAL PLAN OF CALIFORNIA    01/03/2020 3411    110             05-04253 DENTAL DEC19    $17,726.84

DELTA DENTAL PLAN OF CALIFORNIA           Total Check Amount: $17,726.84

V40101  EXTERMINETICS OF SO CALIF INC      01/03/2020 3298    346515112       BEEHIVE REMOVAL MD#1     $325.00

EXTERMINETICS OF SO CALIF INC             Total Check Amount: $325.00

V40102  FACTORY MOTOR PARTS COMPANY        01/03/2020 3504    480515161       BATTERIES                $312.69

01/03/2020 3504    480515161       BATTERY                  $100.12

01/03/2020 3504    480515161       CREDIT:BATTERY CORES     ($569.82)

01/03/2020 3504    480515161       FUEL PUMP                $442.95

FACTORY MOTOR PARTS COMPANY               Total Check Amount: $285.94

V40103  FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE INSURANCE   01/03/2020 23035   110             9827288 VISION DEC19     $2,574.37

FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE INSURANCE          Total Check Amount: $2,574.37

V40104  FUSCOE ENGINEERING, INC.           01/03/2020 18052   110000000       BREA MALL PWQMP NOV19    $1,000.00

01/03/2020 18052   110000000       CALVARY PWQMP NOV19      $363.00

01/03/2020 18052   110000000       MERCURY/BERRY PWQMP      $1,164.00

01/03/2020 18052   410515132       NPDES SVCS NOV 2019      $6,502.75

Jan 2, 2020 4 of 6 3:05:58 PM



City Check Register for:  Jan 3, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

FUSCOE ENGINEERING, INC.                  Total Check Amount: $9,029.75

V40105  JESSE GARDUNA                      01/03/2020 16006   110212111       TRAINING EXPENSES        $68.20

JESSE GARDUNA                             Total Check Amount: $68.20

V40106  THE GARLAND COMPANY                01/03/2020 18924   510707941       FIRE STN 3 METAL ROOF    $50,283.67

THE GARLAND COMPANY                       Total Check Amount: $50,283.67

V40107  INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP, INC.   01/03/2020 28473   510707627       SEWER UPSIZE OCT 2019    $5,287.50

INTERWEST CONSULTING GROUP, INC.          Total Check Amount: $5,287.50

V40108  ITRON, INC.                        01/03/2020 3773    420141421       TECH SUPPORT 12/3        $285.00

ITRON, INC.                               Total Check Amount: $285.00

V40109  JMDIAZ, INC.                       01/03/2020 27113   110000000       ON-CALL ENGG SVCS OCT    $4,565.00

01/03/2020 27113   110515171       ON-CALL ENGG SVCS OCT    $1,760.00

01/03/2020 27113   510707267       ON-CALL ENGG SVCS OCT    $1,980.00

01/03/2020 27113   510707315       ON-CALL ENGG SVCS OCT    $330.00

01/03/2020 27113   510707320       ON-CALL ENGG SVCS OCT    $385.00

01/03/2020 27113   510707321       ON-CALL ENGG SVCS OCT    $385.00

01/03/2020 27113   510707461       ON-CALL ENGG SVCS OCT    $1,760.00

01/03/2020 27113   510707467       ON-CALL ENGG SVCS OCT    $1,815.00

JMDIAZ, INC.                              Total Check Amount: $12,980.00

V40110  ELIZABETH KUNZE                    01/03/2020 25326   110212111       TRAINING MILEAGE         $10.44

ELIZABETH KUNZE                           Total Check Amount: $10.44

V40111  LEHR                               01/03/2020 26035   480515161       1922 VW CHANGE OVER      $2,618.99

LEHR                                      Total Check Amount: $2,618.99

V40112  LINCOLN AQUATICS                   01/03/2020 17902   490515151       CHEM PUMP - PLUNGE       $543.22

LINCOLN AQUATICS                          Total Check Amount: $543.22

V40113  MINER, LTD                         01/03/2020 27173   490515151       BCC AUTO DOOR REPAIR     $1,741.18

01/03/2020 27173   490515151       FS2 BAY DOOR REPAIR      $451.17

MINER, LTD                                Total Check Amount: $2,192.35

V40114  MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT           01/03/2020 3784    420515131       ADJ TO OCT19 WTR DEL.    $112.66

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT                  Total Check Amount: $112.66

V40115  PACIFIC COAST ENTERTAINMENT        01/03/2020 21588   110404421       SNOW:TREE LIGHTING       $325.00

PACIFIC COAST ENTERTAINMENT               Total Check Amount: $325.00

V40116  NICOLE PESQUEIRA                   01/03/2020 27557   110222231       ICC TRAINING EXPENSES    $90.00

NICOLE PESQUEIRA                          Total Check Amount: $90.00

V40117  PLACEWORKS, INC.                   01/03/2020 26720   110000000       MERCURY EIR NOV19        $1,537.07

01/03/2020 26720   110323231       PROF SVCS:BCORE NOV19    $10.55

PLACEWORKS, INC.                          Total Check Amount: $1,547.62

V40118  QUALITY PLACEMENT AUTHORITY, LLC   01/03/2020 27027   110404521       TEMP STAFF 10/7-10/13    $768.06

QUALITY PLACEMENT AUTHORITY, LLC          Total Check Amount: $768.06

V40119  RCS INVESTIGATIONS & CONSULTING 01/03/2020 22534   110212111       BCKGRND INVESTIGATION    $5,250.00

Jan 2, 2020 5 of 6 3:05:58 PM



City Check Register for:  Jan 3, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

LLC

RCS INVESTIGATIONS & CONSULTING LLC       Total Check Amount: $5,250.00

V40120  RUSSELL SIGLER INC.                01/03/2020 21638   490515151       HVAC FILTERS             $65.04

RUSSELL SIGLER INC.                       Total Check Amount: $65.04

V40121  SC FUELS                           01/03/2020 16654   480515161       CLR DIESEL 1385.0 GAL    $4,416.51

01/03/2020 16654   480515161       REG ETH 4379.7 GAL       $13,297.83

SC FUELS                                  Total Check Amount: $17,714.34

V40122  SITMATIC                           01/03/2020 24416   110212111       PD MED HIGHBACK CHAIR    $445.76

SITMATIC                                  Total Check Amount: $445.76

V40123  STRAUB DISTRIBUTING COMPANY        01/03/2020 14041   110404421       BREA FEST BEER           $5,138.42

01/03/2020 14041   110404421       BREA FEST BEER RETURN    ($2,210.00)

STRAUB DISTRIBUTING COMPANY               Total Check Amount: $2,928.42

V40124  SUPERION, LLC                      01/03/2020 26879   475141471       ASP BACKUP SVCS JAN20    $2,003.72

SUPERION, LLC                             Total Check Amount: $2,003.72

V40125  THYSSENKRUPP ELEVATOR              01/03/2020 10308   110515125       DT PS3 ELEV RPR 11/15    $510.62

01/03/2020 10308   110515125       DT PS3 ELEV RPR 11/16    $1,012.73

THYSSENKRUPP ELEVATOR                     Total Check Amount: $1,523.35

V40126  TRANS UNION LLC                    01/03/2020 8371    110141481       HR SVCS 10/26-11/25      $41.47

TRANS UNION LLC                           Total Check Amount: $41.47

V40127  UNITED ROTARY BRUSH 
CORPORATION    

01/03/2020 16649   480515161       SWEEPER BROOM            $371.22

UNITED ROTARY BRUSH CORPORATION           Total Check Amount: $371.22

V40128  VENDINI                            01/03/2020 24179   110404542       TICKET FEES NOV 2019     $1,113.92

VENDINI                                   Total Check Amount: $1,113.92

V40129  VISTA PAINT CORPORATION            01/03/2020 4573    110515125       PARKING STR PAINT        $650.92

01/03/2020 4573    490515151       PAINT:FIRE CHF OFFICE    $67.39

VISTA PAINT CORPORATION                   Total Check Amount: $718.31

V40130  WILLDAN ENGINEERING                01/03/2020 12445   510707219       PLAN CHECK SVCS 5/31     $1,087.50

WILLDAN ENGINEERING                       Total Check Amount: $1,087.50

Voucher Subtotal $406,859.99

TOTAL $570,547.49

Jan 2, 2020 6 of 6 3:05:58 PM



City Check Register for:  Jan 10, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

182851  THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON        01/10/2020 16062   930141424       S/A AB 2013 TAX ALLOC    $2,220.00

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON               Total Check Amount: $2,220.00

182852  CALIFORNIA NEWSPAPER PARTNERSHIP   01/10/2020 26287   110404421       AD:2019 BREA FEST        $1,909.78

CALIFORNIA NEWSPAPER PARTNERSHIP          Total Check Amount: $1,909.78

182853  CALIFORNIA PEACE OFFICERS ASSN     01/10/2020 4687    110212111       CANINE PROGRAM MGMT      $280.00

CALIFORNIA PEACE OFFICERS ASSN            Total Check Amount: $280.00

182854  CHICAGO TITLE COMPANY              01/10/2020 24835   290323215       PIRT:2489 SOMMERSET      $100.00

CHICAGO TITLE COMPANY                     Total Check Amount: $100.00

182855  CITY OF BREA                       01/10/2020 13577   950000000       ILJAOC 19/20 FIN SVCS    $57,122.00

CITY OF BREA                              Total Check Amount: $57,122.00

182856  CITY OF FULLERTON                  01/10/2020 12001   110222211       SHRDCMND 6/29-10/4/19    $48,802.36

01/10/2020 12001   110222221       SHRDCMND 6/29-10/4/19    $104,319.10

01/10/2020 12001   110222223       SHRDCMND 6/29-10/4/19    $334.22

01/10/2020 12001   110222231       SHRDCMND 6/29-10/4/19    $1,207.50

01/10/2020 12001   480515161       SHRDCMND 6/29-10/4/19    $1,667.26

CITY OF FULLERTON                         Total Check Amount: $156,330.44

182857  WILLIAM SAMUEL CLARIDA             01/10/2020 29366   110             RECEIVABLE-REFUND        $100.00

WILLIAM SAMUEL CLARIDA                    Total Check Amount: $100.00

182858  COTTON ON                          01/10/2020 23521   110             RECEIVABLE-REFUND        $120.00

COTTON ON                                 Total Check Amount: $120.00

182859  THE COUNSELING TEAM 
INTERNATIONAL  

01/10/2020 13933   110222221       BACIS CSIM 9/4-9/5       $199.99

01/10/2020 13933   110222221       EMPL SUPP SVCS NOV19     $660.00

THE COUNSELING TEAM INTERNATIONAL         Total Check Amount: $859.99

182860  COUNTY OF ORANGE                   01/10/2020 4799    110212122       PRKNG CITATIONS NOV19    $6,186.50

COUNTY OF ORANGE                          Total Check Amount: $6,186.50

182861  COUNTY OF ORANGE                   01/10/2020 4799    110212122       PRKNG CITATIONS OCT19    $6,754.00

COUNTY OF ORANGE                          Total Check Amount: $6,754.00

182862  COUNTY OF ORANGE                   01/10/2020 4799    110212122       OCATS/ROUTER NOV 2019    $1,104.51

COUNTY OF ORANGE                          Total Check Amount: $1,104.51

182863  CSULB FOUNDATION                   01/10/2020 10182   110212111       T15 CRSE/HOLDING FAC     $133.00

CSULB FOUNDATION                          Total Check Amount: $133.00

182864  CSULB FOUNDATION                   01/10/2020 10182   110212111       MH DECISION MAKING       $146.00

CSULB FOUNDATION                          Total Check Amount: $146.00

182865  DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRIAL 
RELATIONS 

01/10/2020 21957   470141483       7131:19/20 ASSESSMENT    $48,989.44

DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS        Total Check Amount: $48,989.44

182866  DJS PLUS                           01/10/2020 8022    110404217       6TH GR MS DANCE 12/6     $400.00

DJS PLUS                                  Total Check Amount: $400.00

182867  SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON         01/10/2020 3343    110515121       ELECTRICITY NOV/DEC19    $17,236.34

Jan 8, 2020 1 of 7 2:32:33 PM



City Check Register for:  Jan 10, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

182867  SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON         01/10/2020 3343    110515125       ELECTRICITY NOV/DEC19    $10.92

01/10/2020 3343    341515112       ELECTRICITY NOV/DEC19    $81.49

01/10/2020 3343    343515112       ELECTRICITY NOV/DEC19    $173.04

01/10/2020 3343    345515112       ELECTRICITY NOV/DEC19    $40.21

01/10/2020 3343    346515112       ELECTRICITY NOV/DEC19    $89.63

01/10/2020 3343    430515123       ELECTRICITY NOV/DEC19    $663.77

01/10/2020 3343    490515151       ELECTRICITY NOV/DEC19    $4,336.09

01/10/2020 3343    880515113       ELECTRICITY NOV/DEC19    $10.11

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON                Total Check Amount: $22,641.60

182868  FRANCHISE TAX BOARD                01/10/2020 29315   110             565594864 010320 PR      $921.22

FRANCHISE TAX BOARD                       Total Check Amount: $921.22

182869  THE GAS COMPANY                    01/10/2020 3749    490515151       GAS NOV/DEC 2019         $236.56

THE GAS COMPANY                           Total Check Amount: $236.56

182870  IN TIME SERVICES INC.              01/10/2020 20876   950000000       ILJAOC ISE TRNG 12/10    $1,500.00

IN TIME SERVICES INC.                     Total Check Amount: $1,500.00

182871  INTELLI-TECH                       01/10/2020 8774    475141471       DESKTOPS IMAGING         $2,375.00

INTELLI-TECH                              Total Check Amount: $2,375.00

182872  DENNIS JIMENEZ                     01/10/2020 11652   110000000       REFUND OF INSP FEES      $429.57

DENNIS JIMENEZ                            Total Check Amount: $429.57

182873  MANAGEMENT PARTNERS                01/10/2020 24541   110212111       DEPT NEEDS ASSESSMENT    $27,400.00

MANAGEMENT PARTNERS                       Total Check Amount: $27,400.00

182874  SOCORRO MARTINEZ                   01/10/2020 25841   110404425       VOLUNTEEN STIPEND        $180.00

SOCORRO MARTINEZ                          Total Check Amount: $180.00

182875  YEVGENIYA MIKHAILIK                01/10/2020 28440   110404541       WW ARTIST-IN-RESIDNCE    $150.00

YEVGENIYA MIKHAILIK                       Total Check Amount: $150.00

182876  CAITLIN MOHNEY                     01/10/2020 29108   110404521       SR CTR YOGA NOV 2019     $50.00

CAITLIN MOHNEY                            Total Check Amount: $50.00

182877  NATIONAL TESTING NETWORK, INC      01/10/2020 25909   110141481       NTN ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP    $750.00

NATIONAL TESTING NETWORK, INC             Total Check Amount: $750.00

182878  NDS, LLC                           01/10/2020 25312   110141441       PRESORT MAILSVC DEC19    $313.66

NDS, LLC                                  Total Check Amount: $313.66

182879  NEOPOST USA INC                    01/10/2020 20201   110141441       POSTAGE INK              $265.05

NEOPOST USA INC                           Total Check Amount: $265.05

182880  ORANGE COUNTY WINWATER WORKS       01/10/2020 28030   420515131       GASKETS                  $49.57

ORANGE COUNTY WINWATER WORKS              Total Check Amount: $49.57

182881  OFFICE DEPOT, INC                  01/10/2020 4743    110222211       OFFICE SUPPLIES          $35.91

OFFICE DEPOT, INC                         Total Check Amount: $35.91

182882  PETTY CASH CUSTODIAN               01/10/2020 15768   110             PETTY CASH REPL 12/23    $39.00

PETTY CASH CUSTODIAN                      Total Check Amount: $39.00

Jan 8, 2020 2 of 7 2:32:33 PM



City Check Register for:  Jan 10, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

182883  RIVERSIDE COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPT    01/10/2020 10660   110212111       POST SUPERVISORY CRSE    $277.00

RIVERSIDE COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPT           Total Check Amount: $277.00

182884  RIVERSIDE COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPT    01/10/2020 10660   110212111       CANINE HANDLER UPDATE    $177.00

RIVERSIDE COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPT           Total Check Amount: $177.00

182885  SIMPLUS MAMAGEMENT                 01/10/2020 26641   510707467       EAGLE HILLS WTRLN RVW    $3,737.50

SIMPLUS MAMAGEMENT                        Total Check Amount: $3,737.50

182886  U.S. POSTAL SERVICE                01/10/2020 13260   110404421       P#8138 BREA ARTS 2019    $235.00

U.S. POSTAL SERVICE                       Total Check Amount: $235.00

182887  VERIZON CONNECT NWF, INC.          01/10/2020 25293   480515161       GPS FEES NOV 2019        $893.00

VERIZON CONNECT NWF, INC.                 Total Check Amount: $893.00

182888  VERIZON WIRELESS                   01/10/2020 21122   420515131       9843018962 1027-1126     $38.01

VERIZON WIRELESS                          Total Check Amount: $38.01

182889  VERIZON WIRELESS                   01/10/2020 21122   110212121       9843454823 11/4-12/3     $54.53

VERIZON WIRELESS                          Total Check Amount: $54.53

182890  KELLY WALKER                       01/10/2020 19627   110000000       S/UP:2020 BRIDAL SHOW    $750.00

KELLY WALKER                              Total Check Amount: $750.00

182891  WESTERN AUDIO VISUAL               01/10/2020 24433   475141471       SECURITY INST/TESTING    $4,921.57

WESTERN AUDIO VISUAL                      Total Check Amount: $4,921.57

182892  XEROX CORPORATION                  01/10/2020 3349    110141441       BLACK CPR/PRNTR OCT19    $493.54

01/10/2020 3349    110141441       HI PERF COLOR CPR OCT    $220.27

01/10/2020 3349    110141441       HISPEED PRNTR/CPR OCT    $717.42

01/10/2020 3349    110141441       PROD CLRCPR/PRNTR OCT    $1,446.97

01/10/2020 3349    110141441       UDIRECTS MNT OCT19       $113.40

XEROX CORPORATION                         Total Check Amount: $2,991.60

Check Subtotal $354,168.01

V40131  ADAMSON POLICE PRODUCTS            01/10/2020 4023    231212141       M300 MINI SCOUT LIGHT    $1,014.47

ADAMSON POLICE PRODUCTS                   Total Check Amount: $1,014.47

V40132  ADLERHORST INT'L INC               01/10/2020 2223    110212131       O/S TRNG:JARVIS DEC19    $192.50

ADLERHORST INT'L INC                      Total Check Amount: $192.50

V40133  ADMINISTRATIVE & PROF              01/10/2020 3344    110             DED:4010 APEA MEMBR      $528.00

ADMINISTRATIVE & PROF                     Total Check Amount: $528.00

V40134  THE ADVANTAGE GROUP                01/10/2020 24539   110             DED:808B FSA DEPCAR      $2,549.76

01/10/2020 24539   110             DED:808C FSA UR MED      $5,092.61

01/10/2020 24539   110141481       FLEX ACCT FEES NOV19     $369.50

THE ADVANTAGE GROUP                       Total Check Amount: $8,011.87

V40135  BPSEA MEMORIAL FOUNDATION          01/10/2020 14990   110             DED:4050 MEMORIAL        $212.50

BPSEA MEMORIAL FOUNDATION                 Total Check Amount: $212.50

V40136  BREA CITY EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION    01/10/2020 3236    110             DED:4005 BCEA MEMBR      $560.00

Jan 8, 2020 3 of 7 2:32:33 PM



City Check Register for:  Jan 10, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

BREA CITY EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION           Total Check Amount: $560.00

V40137  BREA FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION      01/10/2020 3237    110             DED:4016 ASSOC MEMB      $3,076.75

BREA FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION             Total Check Amount: $3,076.75

V40138  BREA POLICE ASSOCIATION            01/10/2020 3769    110             DED:4030 BPA REG         $3,300.00

BREA POLICE ASSOCIATION                   Total Check Amount: $3,300.00

V40139  BREA POLICE ATHLETIC LEAGUE        01/10/2020 1068    110             DED:5010 B.P.A.L.        $132.50

BREA POLICE ATHLETIC LEAGUE               Total Check Amount: $132.50

V40140  BREA POLICE MANAGEMENT 
ASSOCIATION 

01/10/2020 21189   110             DED:4019 LDF MEMBRS      $13.00

01/10/2020 21189   110             DED:4020 PMA MEMBRS      $195.00

BREA POLICE MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION        Total Check Amount: $208.00

V40141  C. WELLS PIPELINE MATERIALS INC    01/10/2020 13055   420515131       PIPE WRENCH              $173.48

C. WELLS PIPELINE MATERIALS INC           Total Check Amount: $173.48

V40142  CALIFORNIA DOMESTIC WATER CO       01/10/2020 3388    420515131       WTR CONSUMPTION DEC19    $212,276.05

CALIFORNIA DOMESTIC WATER CO              Total Check Amount: $212,276.05

V40143  CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.     01/10/2020 20648   110141441       001-0549207-006 JAN20    $101.29

CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.            Total Check Amount: $101.29

V40144  CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA, INC       01/10/2020 15260   110141441       2714 PACIFIC RM AUG19    $54.72

01/10/2020 15260   110141441       3047 SR CTR AUG19        $17.15

01/10/2020 15260   110141441       3054 PW AUG19            $11.63

01/10/2020 15260   110141441       3056 BCC/LOBBY AUG19     $50.96

01/10/2020 15260   110141441       3110 PD REC 2 AUG19      $13.54

01/10/2020 15260   110141441       3118 PD REC 1 AUG19      $26.31

01/10/2020 15260   110141441       3124 PD INV AUG19        $6.62

01/10/2020 15260   110141441       3142 MGMT SVCS AUG19     $39.36

01/10/2020 15260   110141441       5154 FIRE DEPT AUG19     $23.00

01/10/2020 15260   110141441       5327 PD P&E AUG19        $142.23

01/10/2020 15260   110141441       6569 COMM DEV AUG19      $140.33

CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA, INC              Total Check Amount: $525.85

V40145  JASON CELMER                       01/10/2020 11286   110212111       CNCA CONFERENCE          $120.00

JASON CELMER                              Total Check Amount: $120.00

V40146  BRANDON CHUNG                      01/10/2020 18773   460141474       MILEAGE DEC 2019         $89.78

BRANDON CHUNG                             Total Check Amount: $89.78

V40147  CORE & MAIN LP                     01/10/2020 27049   420515131       WATER 
METERS+ENCODERS    

$3,039.26

CORE & MAIN LP                            Total Check Amount: $3,039.26

V40148  DENNIS GRUBB & ASSOCIATES, LLC.    01/10/2020 25568   110000000       PLAN CHK SVCS NOV19      $1,485.00

DENNIS GRUBB & ASSOCIATES, LLC.           Total Check Amount: $1,485.00

V40149  CLAMPETT INDUSTRIES LLC DBA EMG    01/10/2020 26703   490515151       FINAL:FAC COND ASSMNT    $4,806.00

CLAMPETT INDUSTRIES LLC DBA EMG           Total Check Amount: $4,806.00

Jan 8, 2020 4 of 7 2:32:33 PM



City Check Register for:  Jan 10, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

V40150  EQUIPMENT DIRECT INC               01/10/2020 4522    110515121       RAIN GEAR                $196.86

01/10/2020 4522    110515125       BOMBER JACKETS (3)       $127.60

01/10/2020 4522    420515131       CLOTHING                 $254.91

01/10/2020 4522    420515131       SAFETY EARMUFF           $22.47

EQUIPMENT DIRECT INC                      Total Check Amount: $601.84

V40151  GIBSON TRANSPORTATION 
CONSULTING   

01/10/2020 22903   110000000       B.MALL/SEARS REDEV       $5,391.25

GIBSON TRANSPORTATION CONSULTING          Total Check Amount: $5,391.25

V40152  DON GOLDEN                         01/10/2020 10729   110000000       INSP SVCS 12/12-12/31    $11,831.25

01/10/2020 10729   110323242       INSP SVCS 12/12-12/31    $431.25

DON GOLDEN                                Total Check Amount: $12,262.50

V40153  GRAINGER                           01/10/2020 13634   110212131       BATTERIES                $177.79

01/10/2020 13634   420515131       PLUMBING SUPPLIES        $251.82

GRAINGER                                  Total Check Amount: $429.61

V40154  KAREN E GREENO                     01/10/2020 22361   110404145       CHRISTMAS MUSIC          $385.00

KAREN E GREENO                            Total Check Amount: $385.00

V40155  CHRISTOPHER HARVEY                 01/10/2020 10364   110212111       POST MGMT CRSE MOD B     $154.00

CHRISTOPHER HARVEY                        Total Check Amount: $154.00

V40156  ADAM HAWLEY                        01/10/2020 5028    110212111       POST COMMND COLL 66-5    $194.00

ADAM HAWLEY                               Total Check Amount: $194.00

V40157  HUNTINGTON COURT 
REPORTS&TRANSCRIP.

01/10/2020 18131   110212122       39669 DIGITAL DICTATN    $264.60

HUNTINGTON COURT REPORTS&TRANSCRIP.       Total Check Amount: $264.60

V40158  JEFFREY HUNZIKER                   01/10/2020 26172   110212111       CNCA CONFERENCE          $120.00

JEFFREY HUNZIKER                          Total Check Amount: $120.00

V40159  ITRON, INC.                        01/10/2020 3773    420141421       HARDWRE MNT JAN-MAR20    $1,773.82

01/10/2020 3773    420141421       SOFTWRE MNT JAN-MAR20    $754.42

ITRON, INC.                               Total Check Amount: $2,528.24

V40160  MICHAEL JAMES                      01/10/2020 24674   950000000       ILJAOC MJ MLG JUL-DEC    $534.76

MICHAEL JAMES                             Total Check Amount: $534.76

V40161  JAX AUTO                           01/10/2020 20187   480515161       1006 SMOG TEST           $36.70

01/10/2020 20187   480515161       26022 SMOG TEST          $70.75

01/10/2020 20187   480515161       28028 SMOG TEST          $36.70

01/10/2020 20187   490515151       1415 SMOG TEST           $36.70

JAX AUTO                                  Total Check Amount: $180.85

V40162  KELLY PAPER                        01/10/2020 7039    110141441       PAPER                    $475.40

KELLY PAPER                               Total Check Amount: $475.40

V40163  LUCY KRUSE                         01/10/2020 16529   110212111       TRAINING MILEAGE         $5.34

LUCY KRUSE                                Total Check Amount: $5.34

V40164  LIBERTY FLAGS INC.                 01/10/2020 5457    490             FLAGS                    ($124.20)

Jan 8, 2020 5 of 7 2:32:33 PM



City Check Register for:  Jan 10, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

V40164  LIBERTY FLAGS INC.                 01/10/2020 5457    490515151       FLAGS                    $1,726.90

LIBERTY FLAGS INC.                        Total Check Amount: $1,602.70

V40165  MARGARITO MENDEZ                   01/10/2020 26196   110212111       TRAINING EXPENSES        $16.00

MARGARITO MENDEZ                          Total Check Amount: $16.00

V40166  MUNISERVICES, LLC                  01/10/2020 10627   110141424       STARS SVC 2019 QTR 2     $800.00

MUNISERVICES, LLC                         Total Check Amount: $800.00

V40167  ORANGE COUNTY SANITATION DIST.     01/10/2020 14689   110             RES SEWER FEES NOV19     $3,424.00

01/10/2020 14689   110000000       5% COLL RES SF NOV19     ($171.20)

ORANGE COUNTY SANITATION DIST.            Total Check Amount: $3,252.80

V40168  ORANGE COUNTY UNITED WAY           01/10/2020 3451    110             DED:5005 UNITED WAY      $7.31

ORANGE COUNTY UNITED WAY                  Total Check Amount: $7.31

V40169  PLACEWORKS, INC.                   01/10/2020 26720   110323231       CORE PLAN OCT 2019       $6,468.90

PLACEWORKS, INC.                          Total Check Amount: $6,468.90

V40170  READWRITE EDUCATIONAL, INC.        01/10/2020 3444    110404145       SOUND-START READING      $153.00

READWRITE EDUCATIONAL, INC.               Total Check Amount: $153.00

V40171  RED HAWK FIRE & SECURITY           01/10/2020 24636   475141471       S/A HALON INSP 11/25     $393.75

RED HAWK FIRE & SECURITY                  Total Check Amount: $393.75

V40172  RICHARDS, WATSON & GERSHON         01/10/2020 8978    420141421       180 ADV COLLACO NOV19    $2,186.11

RICHARDS, WATSON & GERSHON                Total Check Amount: $2,186.11

V40173  MACY SANCHEZ                       01/10/2020 27495   110212111       BASIC CRISIS NEGOTTNS    $40.00

MACY SANCHEZ                              Total Check Amount: $40.00

V40174  TODD SCHMALTZ                      01/10/2020 26048   110212111       TRAINING EXPENSES        $16.00

TODD SCHMALTZ                             Total Check Amount: $16.00

V40175  KATHRYN DE MESA SEBASTIAN          01/10/2020 29360   110515171       TRAINING EXPENSES        $71.17

KATHRYN DE MESA SEBASTIAN                 Total Check Amount: $71.17

V40176  SHRED-IT USA                       01/10/2020 7438    110111161       DOC SHRED OCT/NOV19      $10.66

01/10/2020 7438    110212122       PD DOC SHRED OCT/NOV     $206.68

01/10/2020 7438    470141483       DOC SHRED OCT/NOV19      $10.66

SHRED-IT USA                              Total Check Amount: $228.00

V40177  SMART & FINAL                      01/10/2020 3269    110404217       COOKING CLUB SUPPLIES    $25.74

01/10/2020 3269    110404425       TINY TOTS FOOD           $91.36

01/10/2020 3269    110404429       ASP CAFE SUPPLIES        $120.86

01/10/2020 3269    110404429       CAFE/DANCE SUPPLIES      $153.77

SMART & FINAL                             Total Check Amount: $391.73

V40178  SPICERS PAPER, INC.                01/10/2020 18883   110141441       PAPER                    $5,777.12

SPICERS PAPER, INC.                       Total Check Amount: $5,777.12

V40179  STEVEN ENTERPRISES, INC.           01/10/2020 26543   110515111       3YR PLOTTERSVC AGRMNT    $1,076.00

STEVEN ENTERPRISES, INC.                  Total Check Amount: $1,076.00

V40180  STOTZ EQUIPMENT                    01/10/2020 24388   480515161       WATER PUMP               $388.50

Jan 8, 2020 6 of 7 2:32:33 PM



City Check Register for:  Jan 10, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

STOTZ EQUIPMENT                           Total Check Amount: $388.50

V40181  SUPERION, LLC                      01/10/2020 26879   110141431       COGNOS11TRNG 10/20-26    $472.50

01/10/2020 26879   475141471       ASP BACKUP SVCS DEC19    $2,003.72

SUPERION, LLC                             Total Check Amount: $2,476.22

V40182  TENNIS ANYONE ACADEMY              01/10/2020 12688   110404145       TENNIS ACADEMY           $1,272.50

TENNIS ANYONE ACADEMY                     Total Check Amount: $1,272.50

V40183  LETICIA TRUJILLO                   01/10/2020 22054   110404521       SR CR ZUMBA SEP-DEC19    $330.00

LETICIA TRUJILLO                          Total Check Amount: $330.00

V40184  TURBO DATA SYSTEMS, INC.           01/10/2020 1472    110212122       CITATION PROC NOV19      $1,125.10

TURBO DATA SYSTEMS, INC.                  Total Check Amount: $1,125.10

V40185  LINDSAY TURNER                     01/10/2020 26028   110212111       TRAINING MILEAGE         $116.00

LINDSAY TURNER                            Total Check Amount: $116.00

V40186  VALVERDE CONSTRUCTION, INC.        01/10/2020 14201   410515124       CATCH BASIN REPAIR       $4,453.00

VALVERDE CONSTRUCTION, INC.               Total Check Amount: $4,453.00

V40187  WESTERN GOLF PROPERTIES, LLC       01/10/2020 29071   110515149       BREA CREEK CGS DEC19     $2,144.97

01/10/2020 29071   110515149       BREA CREEK MGMT DEC19    $51,350.00

WESTERN GOLF PROPERTIES, LLC              Total Check Amount: $53,494.97

V40188  WILLDAN FINANCIAL SERVICES         01/10/2020 23058   875141431       1819 SB1029 CDIAC RPT    $950.00

WILLDAN FINANCIAL SERVICES                Total Check Amount: $950.00

V40189  ZOLL MEDICAL CORPORATION           01/10/2020 23538   174222222       PM SUPPLIES FS2          $1,406.13

ZOLL MEDICAL CORPORATION                  Total Check Amount: $1,406.13

Voucher Subtotal $351,873.70

TOTAL $706,041.71

Jan 8, 2020 7 of 7 2:32:33 PM



City Check Register for:  Jan 17, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

182893  BC TRAFFIC SPECIALIST              01/17/2020 17405   410515124       GRAVEL BAGS              $1,882.42

BC TRAFFIC SPECIALIST                     Total Check Amount: $1,882.42

182894  BREA MALL                          01/17/2020 14558   110515121       RING ROAD MAINT JAN20    $10,367.28

BREA MALL                                 Total Check Amount: $10,367.28

182895  BREA OLINDA UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT

01/17/2020 1970    490515151       18/19 MNT/OPS TRUE UP    $4,088.42

BREA OLINDA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT       Total Check Amount: $4,088.42

182896  BUSINESS CARD                      01/17/2020 18749   110             BSCARD CS II 122319      ($120.82)

01/17/2020 18749   110141481       BSCARD HR 122319         ($59.00)

01/17/2020 18749   110222223       BSCARD FIRE 122319       $58.52

01/17/2020 18749   110222231       BSCARD FIRE 122319       $305.00

01/17/2020 18749   110404211       BSCARD CS II 122319      $1,972.21

01/17/2020 18749   110404215       BSCARD CS II 122319      $129.30

01/17/2020 18749   110404311       BSCARD CS II 122319      $312.31

01/17/2020 18749   110404429       BSCARD CS 122319         $79.65

01/17/2020 18749   420515131       BSCARD WATER 122319      $912.39

01/17/2020 18749   950             ILJAOC BSCARD MJ 1219    $260.97

01/17/2020 18749   950000000       ILJAOC BSCARD MJ 1219    $27.67

BUSINESS CARD                             Total Check Amount: $3,878.20

182897  CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL STATISTICS 
INC

01/17/2020 10631   110141431       6/30/19 CAFR             $500.00

CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL STATISTICS INC       Total Check Amount: $500.00

182898  CALIFORNIA NEWSPAPER 
PARTNERSHIP   

01/17/2020 26287   110404421       AD:NUTCRACKER            $865.02

01/17/2020 26287   110404421       AD:VETERAN'S DAY         $149.60

CALIFORNIA NEWSPAPER PARTNERSHIP          Total Check Amount: $1,014.62

182899  CALIFORNIA NEWSPAPER 
PARTNERSHIP   

01/17/2020 26287   110000000       LEGAL NOTICE AUG 2019    $1,063.44

01/17/2020 26287   510707944       LEGAL NOTICE AUG 2019    $570.00

CALIFORNIA NEWSPAPER PARTNERSHIP          Total Check Amount: $1,633.44

182900  CALIFORNIA STREET LIGHTING         01/17/2020 28262   110515121       LT POLE INSTALLATION     $2,500.00

CALIFORNIA STREET LIGHTING                Total Check Amount: $2,500.00

182901  CINTAS                             01/17/2020 24347   110404211       BCC FIRST AID RESTOCK    $69.84

01/17/2020 24347   110404542       THTR FIRSTAID RESTOCK    $55.04

CINTAS                                    Total Check Amount: $124.88

182902  CITY OF BREA - WATER DEPT          01/17/2020 2039    110515149       WATER 10/7-11/6/2019     $5,901.69

01/17/2020 2039    341515112       WATER 10/7-11/6/2019     $1,907.89

01/17/2020 2039    343515112       WATER 10/7-11/6/2019     $1,480.24

01/17/2020 2039    345515112       WATER 10/7-11/6/2019     $1,954.71

01/17/2020 2039    346515112       WATER 10/7-11/6/2019     $5,288.10

01/17/2020 2039    347515112       WATER 10/7-11/6/2019     $820.72

Jan 15, 2020 1 of 14 10:54:27 AM



City Check Register for:  Jan 17, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

182902  CITY OF BREA - WATER DEPT          01/17/2020 2039    880515113       WATER 10/7-11/6/2019     $30.31

CITY OF BREA - WATER DEPT                 Total Check Amount: $17,383.66

182903  CITY OF BREA - WATER DEPT          01/17/2020 2039    110515149       WATER 11/6-12/5/2019     $1,598.44

01/17/2020 2039    341515112       WATER 11/6-12/5/2019     $1,237.09

01/17/2020 2039    343515112       WATER 11/6-12/5/2019     $1,459.44

01/17/2020 2039    345515112       WATER 11/6-12/5/2019     $1,231.91

01/17/2020 2039    346515112       WATER 11/6-12/5/2019     $3,088.50

01/17/2020 2039    347515112       WATER 11/6-12/5/2019     $467.12

01/17/2020 2039    880515113       WATER 11/6-12/5/2019     $25.11

CITY OF BREA - WATER DEPT                 Total Check Amount: $9,107.61

182904  CITY OF BREA - WATER DEPT          01/17/2020 2039    346515112       WATER 9/6-10/8/2019      $1,165.86

CITY OF BREA - WATER DEPT                 Total Check Amount: $1,165.86

182905  COUNTY OF ORANGE                   01/17/2020 4799    110212131       ANIMALSHLTR OCT-DEC19    $10,636.86

COUNTY OF ORANGE                          Total Check Amount: $10,636.86

182906  DEPT OF FORESTRY & FIRE 
PROTECTION 

01/17/2020 24625   110222221       WILDLAND EQUIPMENT       $128.00

DEPT OF FORESTRY & FIRE PROTECTION        Total Check Amount: $128.00

182907  DMS CONSULTANTS CIVIL ENGINEERS 
INC

01/17/2020 28706   510707319       ALLEY REHAB PROJ 12/3    $5,213.00

01/17/2020 28706   510707320       ALLEY REHAB PROJ 12/3    $5,213.00

01/17/2020 28706   510707321       ALLEY REHAB PROJ 12/3    $5,214.00

DMS CONSULTANTS CIVIL ENGINEERS INC       Total Check Amount: $15,640.00

182908  SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON         01/17/2020 3343    110515121       ELECTRICITY DEC/JAN20    $1,915.78

01/17/2020 3343    110515125       ELECTRICITY DEC/JAN20    $10.67

01/17/2020 3343    110515141       ELECTRICITY DEC/JAN20    $2,011.55

01/17/2020 3343    110515143       ELECTRICITY DEC/JAN20    $677.35

01/17/2020 3343    110515144       ELECTRICITY DEC/JAN20    $1,083.19

01/17/2020 3343    360515145       ELECTRICITY DEC/JAN20    $738.01

01/17/2020 3343    420515131       ELECTRICITY DEC/JAN20    $2,278.60

01/17/2020 3343    490515151       ELECTRICITY DEC/JAN20    $14,393.58

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON                Total Check Amount: $23,108.73

182909  ENCHANTED CHARACTERS               01/17/2020 28626   110             CHARACTERS 10/31/19      $400.00

ENCHANTED CHARACTERS                      Total Check Amount: $400.00

182910  FACILITY PROCESS SOLUTIONS         01/17/2020 28887   430515123       COMPRESSOR PART (SVC)    $412.53

01/17/2020 28887   430515123       SWR LFT STN MNT DEC19    $4,297.00

FACILITY PROCESS SOLUTIONS                Total Check Amount: $4,709.53

182911  FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS            01/17/2020 26183   475141471       5621820146 1216-0115     $44.73

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS                   Total Check Amount: $44.73

182912  FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS            01/17/2020 26183   420515131       5621821220 1228-0127     $188.99

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS                   Total Check Amount: $188.99

Jan 15, 2020 2 of 14 10:54:27 AM



City Check Register for:  Jan 17, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

182913  THE GAS COMPANY                    01/17/2020 3749    420515131       GAS DEC19/JAN20          $15.29

THE GAS COMPANY                           Total Check Amount: $15.29

182914  INTELESYSONE, INC.                 01/17/2020 28212   475141471       EMERG PHONE SYSTM RPR    $14,440.00

INTELESYSONE, INC.                        Total Check Amount: $14,440.00

182915  LAW OFFICES OF JONES & MAYER       01/17/2020 12144   110212111       LEGAL SVCS:PD OCT19      $793.32

LAW OFFICES OF JONES & MAYER              Total Check Amount: $793.32

182916  LIFE-ASSIST, INC.                  01/17/2020 10530   174222222       PM SUPPLIES FS1          $2,625.86

01/17/2020 10530   174222222       PM SUPPLIES FS3          $599.09

LIFE-ASSIST, INC.                         Total Check Amount: $3,224.95

182917  MY COMMUNITY GUIDE                 01/17/2020 23827   110404421       HALF PAGE MAGAZINE AD    $250.00

MY COMMUNITY GUIDE                        Total Check Amount: $250.00

182918  OFFICE DEPOT, INC                  01/17/2020 4743    110141411       OFFICE SUPPLIES          $46.84

01/17/2020 4743    110141411       TONER                    $144.27

01/17/2020 4743    110141441       OFFICE SUPPLIES          $31.76

01/17/2020 4743    110212111       OFFICE SUPPLIES          $85.23

01/17/2020 4743    110212111       TONER                    $329.70

01/17/2020 4743    110212111       TONERS (2)               $376.28

01/17/2020 4743    110212111       TONERS (4)               $686.91

01/17/2020 4743    110212122       OFFICE SUPPLIES          $32.99

01/17/2020 4743    110404311       OFFICE SUPPLIES          $287.08

OFFICE DEPOT, INC                         Total Check Amount: $2,021.06

182919  PLUMBING WHOLESALE OUTLET, INC.    01/17/2020 18392   490515151       BAR SINK FAUCET          $274.66

01/17/2020 18392   490515151       PLUMBING PARTS           $239.36

PLUMBING WHOLESALE OUTLET, INC.           Total Check Amount: $514.02

182920  PVP COMMUNICATIONS                 01/17/2020 25744   110212131       MOTOR KIT PCB MODULE     $335.58

PVP COMMUNICATIONS                        Total Check Amount: $335.58

182921  RIVERSIDE COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPT    01/17/2020 10660   110212111       FIREARMS INSTR COURSE    $312.00

RIVERSIDE COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPT           Total Check Amount: $312.00

182922  ROBERTSON'S                        01/17/2020 3464    420515131       SLURRY                   $654.50

ROBERTSON'S                               Total Check Amount: $654.50

182923  SADDLEBACK COLLEGE                 01/17/2020 1097    174222222       NRE EXAM FEE 9/27/19     $360.00

SADDLEBACK COLLEGE                        Total Check Amount: $360.00

182924  TES SCHAFF                         01/17/2020 28326   110404542       20/21 THTR BROCHURE      $812.50

TES SCHAFF                                Total Check Amount: $812.50

182925  SOAPTRONIC, LLC                    01/17/2020 12699   110212131       SOAP - PATROL            $336.78

SOAPTRONIC, LLC                           Total Check Amount: $336.78

182926  STETSON ENGINEERS INC.             01/17/2020 21629   420515131       EMERG ACTN PLAN NOV19    $2,684.25

STETSON ENGINEERS INC.                    Total Check Amount: $2,684.25

182927  TARGET SOLUTIONS, INC              01/17/2020 23187   110222221       TRNG SOFTWARE MNT        $1,901.75

Jan 15, 2020 3 of 14 10:54:27 AM



City Check Register for:  Jan 17, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

182927  TARGET SOLUTIONS, INC              01/17/2020 23187   174222222       TRNG SOFTWARE MNT        $1,901.75

TARGET SOLUTIONS, INC                     Total Check Amount: $3,803.50

182928  TIME WARNER CABLE                  01/17/2020 19304   110111143       CABLE CHGS 1/2-2/1       $29.48

01/17/2020 19304   110111151       CABLE CHGS 1/2-2/1       $58.93

01/17/2020 19304   110111161       CABLE CHGS 1/2-2/1       $19.44

01/17/2020 19304   110141481       CABLE CHGS 1/2-2/1       $19.44

01/17/2020 19304   110212111       CABLE CHGS 1/2-2/1       $371.07

01/17/2020 19304   110222211       CABLE CHGS 1/2-2/1       $77.77

01/17/2020 19304   110323212       CABLE CHGS 1/2-2/1       $78.37

01/17/2020 19304   110404211       CABLE 1/2-2/1 40955      $129.61

01/17/2020 19304   110404311       CABLE CHGS 1/2-2/1       $19.44

01/17/2020 19304   110404521       CABLE 1/2-2/1 15759      $30.56

01/17/2020 19304   420515131       CABLE 1/2-2/1 20981      $138.87

01/17/2020 19304   420515131       CABLE 1/2-2/1 49861      $98.91

01/17/2020 19304   490515151       CABLE CHGS 1/2-2/1       $19.44

TIME WARNER CABLE                         Total Check Amount: $1,091.33

182929  UNITED RENTALS NORTHWEST, INC.     01/17/2020 7051    490515151       LIGHT TOWER RENTAL       $541.42

UNITED RENTALS NORTHWEST, INC.            Total Check Amount: $541.42

182930  URBAN GRAFFITI ENTERPRISES INC.    01/17/2020 4352    110515121       GRAFFTI REMOVAL DEC19    $2,000.00

01/17/2020 4352    110515121       GRAFFTI REMOVAL NOV19    $2,000.00

URBAN GRAFFITI ENTERPRISES INC.           Total Check Amount: $4,000.00

182932  VERIZON WIRELESS                   01/17/2020 21122   110111111       9844761610 1123-1222     $53.85

01/17/2020 21122   110111143       9844761610 1123-1222     $137.72

01/17/2020 21122   110111151       9844761610 1123-1222     $3.74

01/17/2020 21122   110111161       9844761610 1123-1222     $53.85

01/17/2020 21122   110141411       9844761610 1123-1222     $30.02

01/17/2020 21122   110141424       9844761610 1123-1222     $53.85

01/17/2020 21122   110141441       9844761610 1123-1222     $53.85

01/17/2020 21122   110141481       9844761610 1123-1222     $53.85

01/17/2020 21122   110212121       9844761610 1123-1222     $3,602.03

01/17/2020 21122   110222222       9844761610 1123-1222     $53.85

01/17/2020 21122   110222223       9844761610 1123-1222     $1,663.39

01/17/2020 21122   110323212       9844761610 1123-1222     ($28.63)

01/17/2020 21122   110323231       9844761610 1123-1222     $53.85

01/17/2020 21122   110323241       9844761610 1123-1222     $66.10

01/17/2020 21122   110323242       9844761610 1123-1222     $53.85

01/17/2020 21122   110323243       9844761610 1123-1222     $53.85

01/17/2020 21122   110404311       9844761610 1123-1222     $562.77

Jan 15, 2020 4 of 14 10:54:27 AM



City Check Register for:  Jan 17, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

182932  VERIZON WIRELESS                   01/17/2020 21122   110404525       9844761610 1123-1222     $107.70

01/17/2020 21122   110515171       9844761610 1123-1222     $173.44

01/17/2020 21122   174222222       9844761610 1123-1222     $532.14

01/17/2020 21122   410515124       9844761610 1123-1222     $30.02

01/17/2020 21122   420515131       9844761610 1123-1222     $953.10

01/17/2020 21122   430515123       9844761610 1123-1222     $769.38

01/17/2020 21122   460141474       9844761610 1123-1222     $269.25

01/17/2020 21122   475141471       9844761610 1123-1222     $622.13

VERIZON WIRELESS                          Total Check Amount: $9,978.95

182933  WE-DO EQUIPMENT REPAIR & SUPPLY    01/17/2020 14756   420515131       CLAY DIGGER              $1,138.37

WE-DO EQUIPMENT REPAIR & SUPPLY           Total Check Amount: $1,138.37

182934  WESTERN AUDIO VISUAL               01/17/2020 24433   110111153       COMM RM A/B A/V UPGRD    $3,291.53

WESTERN AUDIO VISUAL                      Total Check Amount: $3,291.53

182935  DR. ROBERT L. WILKINSON            01/17/2020 19024   110141481       DOT PHYSICALS DEC19      $85.00

DR. ROBERT L. WILKINSON                   Total Check Amount: $85.00

Check Subtotal $159,187.58

V40190  ALL CITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC   01/17/2020 6604    110212132       CRSNG GRDS 1201-1214     $3,732.75

ALL CITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC          Total Check Amount: $3,732.75

V40191  JUDY ALLEN                         01/17/2020 20447   110404215       CLASS INSTR BCC DEC19    $325.00

JUDY ALLEN                                Total Check Amount: $325.00

V40192  ALLSTAR FIRE EQUIPMENT             01/17/2020 8353    110222221       HELMET LABELS            $164.06

ALLSTAR FIRE EQUIPMENT                    Total Check Amount: $164.06

V40193  AVCOGAS PROPANE SALES & 
SERVICES   

01/17/2020 22047   480515161       PROPANE 296.5 GAL        $707.23

01/17/2020 22047   480515161       PROPANE 360 GAL          $836.30

AVCOGAS PROPANE SALES & SERVICES          Total Check Amount: $1,543.53

V40194  CORRINE BARRIOS GAMINO             01/17/2020 28084   110404215       YOGA BCC DEC19           $120.00

CORRINE BARRIOS GAMINO                    Total Check Amount: $120.00

V40195  CHRISTINE BOATNER                  01/17/2020 18460   110404215       BECKMAN ADMIN DEC19      $408.00

01/17/2020 18460   110404215       BECKMAN FITNESS DEC19    $52.00

01/17/2020 18460   110404215       CLASS INSTR BCC DEC19    $300.00

CHRISTINE BOATNER                         Total Check Amount: $760.00

V40196  BREA DISPOSAL, INC                 01/17/2020 3330    440515122       REFUSE COLLECTN DEC19    $159,843.96

BREA DISPOSAL, INC                        Total Check Amount: $159,843.96

V40197  BREA TOWING                        01/17/2020 16399   110212121       1911-0483 TOW 11/7       $677.50

BREA TOWING                               Total Check Amount: $677.50

V40198  OMAR BRIOSO                        01/17/2020 15737   110212111       TRAINING MILEAGE         $34.34

01/17/2020 15737   110212131       BRISTOL IND FIRE EXP     $55.94

OMAR BRIOSO                               Total Check Amount: $90.28

Jan 15, 2020 5 of 14 10:54:27 AM



City Check Register for:  Jan 17, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

V40199  RENEE BROWNE                       01/17/2020 29102   110404215       POUND BECKMAN DEC19      $50.00

RENEE BROWNE                              Total Check Amount: $50.00

V40200  CALIFORNIA HEALTH & SAFETY INC.    01/17/2020 15491   110222221       SCBA EQUIPMENT           $1,990.12

CALIFORNIA HEALTH & SAFETY INC.           Total Check Amount: $1,990.12

V40201  ARLINDA CANTU                      01/17/2020 26312   110404215       BECKMAN FITNESS DEC19    $50.00

01/17/2020 26312   110404215       CLASS INSTR BCC DEC19    $150.00

01/17/2020 26312   110404215       PSNL TRAINR BCC DEC19    $1,291.60

ARLINDA CANTU                             Total Check Amount: $1,491.60

V40202  SARAH CARBAJAL                     01/17/2020 28362   110404215       YOGA BECKMAN DEC19       $104.00

SARAH CARBAJAL                            Total Check Amount: $104.00

V40203  ANDREW CATOR                       01/17/2020 6646    460141474       DEC 2019 MILEAGE         $150.80

ANDREW CATOR                              Total Check Amount: $150.80

V40204  MARIANITA CAUSEY                   01/17/2020 15943   110404215       YOGA BCC DEC19           $27.00

MARIANITA CAUSEY                          Total Check Amount: $27.00

V40205  CDCE INCORPORATED                  01/17/2020 19356   475141471       ROUTER W/ WIFI (3YR)     $4,778.04

CDCE INCORPORATED                         Total Check Amount: $4,778.04

V40206  CHANDLER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.    01/17/2020 4375    110000000       INV MGMT SVCS DEC19      $18.61

01/17/2020 4375    890000000       INV MGMT SVCS DEC19      $47.23

01/17/2020 4375    930000000       INV MGMT SVCS DEC19      $5,270.71

CHANDLER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.           Total Check Amount: $5,336.55

V40207  CORELOGIC                          01/17/2020 25542   280323215       REAL EST LISTNG NOV19    $185.00

CORELOGIC                                 Total Check Amount: $185.00

V40208  DAVID CRABTREE                     01/17/2020 7163    110141481       RETIREMNT PARTY REIMB    $1,244.11

DAVID CRABTREE                            Total Check Amount: $1,244.11

V40209  JOEL DACANAY                       01/17/2020 28068   110404215       MSG THERAPIST BCC DEC    $65.00

JOEL DACANAY                              Total Check Amount: $65.00

V40210  DENNIS GRUBB & ASSOCIATES, LLC.    01/17/2020 25568   110000000       PLAN CHECK FEES DEC19    $330.00

DENNIS GRUBB & ASSOCIATES, LLC.           Total Check Amount: $330.00

V40211  MICHAEL DURALDE                    01/17/2020 25228   110404215       BREA MOVEMENT DEC19      $703.80

01/17/2020 25228   110404215       FIT U FITNESS DEC19      $379.20

01/17/2020 25228   110404215       PSNL TRAINR BCC DEC19    $306.99

01/17/2020 25228   110404215       SILVR SNKRS BCC DEC19    $87.00

MICHAEL DURALDE                           Total Check Amount: $1,476.99

V40212  MYRA DUVALL                        01/17/2020 18083   110404215       YOGA BCC DEC19           $125.00

MYRA DUVALL                               Total Check Amount: $125.00

V40213  ECONOLITE SYSTEMS, INC.            01/17/2020 27147   110515121       E/O MNT THRU 11/29/19    $7,055.06

01/17/2020 27147   110515121       MO. SIGNAL PM NOV19      $3,025.56

01/17/2020 27147   110515121       NETWORK EQPT REPAIR      $523.25

01/17/2020 27147   510707219       FIBER CABLE REPAIR       $16,738.00

Jan 15, 2020 6 of 14 10:54:27 AM



City Check Register for:  Jan 17, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

ECONOLITE SYSTEMS, INC.                   Total Check Amount: $27,341.87

V40214  CLAMPETT INDUSTRIES LLC DBA EMG    01/17/2020 26703   510707934       FINAL:FACILITY ASSMNT    $1,500.00

CLAMPETT INDUSTRIES LLC DBA EMG           Total Check Amount: $1,500.00

V40215  ENVIROSUPPLY & SERVICE             01/17/2020 28518   110222221       GAS MONITOR SUPPLIES     $479.41

ENVIROSUPPLY & SERVICE                    Total Check Amount: $479.41

V40216  FILARSKY & WATT LLP                01/17/2020 2043    110141481       PROF LEGAL SVCS DEC19    $1,317.50

FILARSKY & WATT LLP                       Total Check Amount: $1,317.50

V40217  FLEMING ENVIRONMENTAL, INC.        01/17/2020 18487   480515161       FUEL TANK VAPOR TEST     $800.00

FLEMING ENVIRONMENTAL, INC.               Total Check Amount: $800.00

V40218  FUN WITH HORSES                    01/17/2020 15171   110404145       HOLIDAY CAMP             $300.00

FUN WITH HORSES                           Total Check Amount: $300.00

V40219  GALLS/QUARTERMASTER                01/17/2020 16493   110212111       CADET UNIFORM            $130.70

GALLS/QUARTERMASTER                       Total Check Amount: $130.70

V40220  JESSE GARDUNA                      01/17/2020 16006   110212111       TRAVEL EXPENSES          $135.70

JESSE GARDUNA                             Total Check Amount: $135.70

V40221  GEORGE HILLS COMPANY               01/17/2020 27340   470141483       CLAIMS MGMT FEE DEC19    $530.42

GEORGE HILLS COMPANY                      Total Check Amount: $530.42

V40222  MELISSA GIFFORD                    01/17/2020 10645   110404215       CLASS INSTR BCC DEC19    $175.00

MELISSA GIFFORD                           Total Check Amount: $175.00

V40223  GEOFFREY GOBLE                     01/17/2020 27565   110212111       TRAINING MILEAGE         $54.74

GEOFFREY GOBLE                            Total Check Amount: $54.74

V40224  MARITZA GONZALEZ                   01/17/2020 28459   110404215       ZUMBA BCC DEC19          $125.00

01/17/2020 28459   110404215       ZUMBA BECKMAN DEC19      $52.00

MARITZA GONZALEZ                          Total Check Amount: $177.00

V40225  MONA HERNANDEZ                     01/17/2020 23114   110404215       MSG THERAPIST BCC DEC    $996.40

MONA HERNANDEZ                            Total Check Amount: $996.40

V40226  HITECH SOFTWARE INC                01/17/2020 19937   110515125       CARCOUNT SYST MNT JAN    $1,345.00

HITECH SOFTWARE INC                       Total Check Amount: $1,345.00

V40227  JEFFREY HUNZIKER                   01/17/2020 26172   110212111       CANINE HANDLER UPDATE    $24.00

01/17/2020 26172   110212111       TRAINING MILEAGE         $2.03

JEFFREY HUNZIKER                          Total Check Amount: $26.03

V40228  PAMELA JOHNSTON                    01/17/2020 28025   110404215       ZUMBA BCC DEC19          $125.00

PAMELA JOHNSTON                           Total Check Amount: $125.00

V40229  KAREN KIESS                        01/17/2020 21414   110404215       CLASS INSTR BCC DEC19    $200.00

KAREN KIESS                               Total Check Amount: $200.00

V40230  LA HABRA FENCE CO., INC.           01/17/2020 3120    110212134       EXTEND CHAINLINK CAGE    $1,372.00

LA HABRA FENCE CO., INC.                  Total Check Amount: $1,372.00

V40231  DOLLY LAI                          01/17/2020 18084   110404215       YOGA BCC DEC19           $90.00

DOLLY LAI                                 Total Check Amount: $90.00

Jan 15, 2020 7 of 14 10:54:27 AM



City Check Register for:  Jan 17, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

V40232  SCOTT LAI                          01/17/2020 10963   460141474       NOV 2019 MILEAGE         $293.02

01/17/2020 10963   460141474       OCT 2019 MILEAGE         $393.41

SCOTT LAI                                 Total Check Amount: $686.43

V40233  RENEE F. LAVACOT                   01/17/2020 6754    110404215       ZUMBA BCC DEC19          $250.00

RENEE F. LAVACOT                          Total Check Amount: $250.00

V40234  PRISCILLA J. LEON                  01/17/2020 29029   110404215       BECKMAN FITNESS DEC19    $50.00

PRISCILLA J. LEON                         Total Check Amount: $50.00

V40235  BERRY LIANG                        01/17/2020 25640   110404215       BECKMAN ADMIN DEC19      $442.00

01/17/2020 25640   110404215       BECKMAN FITNESS DEC19    $72.00

01/17/2020 25640   110404215       CARDIO KICK BCC DEC19    $69.00

01/17/2020 25640   110404215       PSNL TRAINR BCC DEC19    $503.91

BERRY LIANG                               Total Check Amount: $1,086.91

V40236  LINEGEAR                           01/17/2020 23894   110222221       WILDLAND COATS           $2,713.68

LINEGEAR                                  Total Check Amount: $2,713.68

V40237  TANYA LOSCUTOFF                    01/17/2020 22092   110404215       CLASS INSTR BCC DEC19    $182.00

01/17/2020 22092   110404215       POWER TRNG CLUB DEC19    $396.00

01/17/2020 22092   110404215       PSNL TRAINR BCC DEC19    $910.52

TANYA LOSCUTOFF                           Total Check Amount: $1,488.52

V40238  KRIS MARUMOTO                      01/17/2020 17803   110404215       YOGA BCC DEC19           $275.00

01/17/2020 17803   110404215       YOGA BECKMAN DEC19       $50.00

KRIS MARUMOTO                             Total Check Amount: $325.00

V40239  ANDREA MCGRANAHAN                  01/17/2020 26046   110404215       BECKMAN FITNESS DEC19    $52.00

01/17/2020 26046   110404215       CLASS INSTR BCC DEC19    $675.00

01/17/2020 26046   110404215       PSNL TRAINR BCC DEC19    $271.79

ANDREA MCGRANAHAN                         Total Check Amount: $998.79

V40240  MARGARITO MENDEZ                   01/17/2020 26196   110212111       FIREARMS INST COURSE     $40.00

MARGARITO MENDEZ                          Total Check Amount: $40.00

V40241  ANDREW MILLER                      01/17/2020 14522   460141474       DEC 2019 MILEAGE         $314.93

ANDREW MILLER                             Total Check Amount: $314.93

V40242  JENNIFER MONZON-SCROFINI           01/17/2020 20158   110404215       GET PUMPED BCC DEC19     $52.00

JENNIFER MONZON-SCROFINI                  Total Check Amount: $52.00

V40243  NATASHA MOORE                      01/17/2020 10711   110404215       BODY PUMP BCC DEC19      $75.00

NATASHA MOORE                             Total Check Amount: $75.00

V40244  MSL ELECTRIC INC.                  01/17/2020 15993   110515121       CRANE SVC:ST LT INST     $706.00

MSL ELECTRIC INC.                         Total Check Amount: $706.00

V40245  ADRIANA MUÑOZ                      01/17/2020 27997   110404215       ZUMBA BCC DEC19          $25.00

ADRIANA MUÑOZ                             Total Check Amount: $25.00

V40246  MYERS AND SONS                     01/17/2020 21624   110515121       TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS    $339.84

01/17/2020 21624   510707702       ROAD SIGN MATERIALS      $339.84

Jan 15, 2020 8 of 14 10:54:27 AM



City Check Register for:  Jan 17, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

V40246  MYERS AND SONS                     01/17/2020 21624   510707702       SPECIAL EVENT SIGNS      $698.22

MYERS AND SONS                            Total Check Amount: $1,377.90

V40247  ANTHONY NGUYEN                     01/17/2020 25978   110212111       LEICASCAN STN/SW TRNG    $24.00

ANTHONY NGUYEN                            Total Check Amount: $24.00

V40248  PACIFIC TELEMANAGEMENT SERVICES    01/17/2020 19696   475141471       7147920398 JAN 2020      $75.00

PACIFIC TELEMANAGEMENT SERVICES           Total Check Amount: $75.00

V40249  PIERRE PASA                        01/17/2020 11096   110404215       CARDIO KICK BCC DEC19    $155.00

PIERRE PASA                               Total Check Amount: $155.00

V40250  HERMAN PERDOMO JR,                 01/17/2020 20265   110404215       BODY PUMP BCC DEC19      $100.00

HERMAN PERDOMO JR,                        Total Check Amount: $100.00

V40251  IRACEMA PERDOMO                    01/17/2020 14135   110404215       BPUMP/CYCLE BCC DEC19    $150.00

IRACEMA PERDOMO                           Total Check Amount: $150.00

V40252  BRIANA PERLSON                     01/17/2020 28024   110404215       YOGA BCC DEC19           $23.00

BRIANA PERLSON                            Total Check Amount: $23.00

V40253  PLACEWORKS, INC.                   01/17/2020 26720   110000000       BREA MALL CEQA NOV19     $35,047.54

01/17/2020 26720   110000000       BREA PLZ APTS EIR AUG    $285.90

01/17/2020 26720   110000000       BREA PLZ APTS EIR JUL    $884.87

PLACEWORKS, INC.                          Total Check Amount: $36,218.31

V40254  PLUMBERS DEPOT INC.                01/17/2020 14542   430515123       CCTV CAMERA CONNECTOR    $196.69

01/17/2020 14542   430515123       CCTV TRUCK CAMERA        $1,575.06

01/17/2020 14542   430515123       VACTOR TRK HOSE PARTS    $439.57

PLUMBERS DEPOT INC.                       Total Check Amount: $2,211.32

V40255  DAVID PRICE                        01/17/2020 29120   174222222       PARAMEDIC ACCRED CERT    $73.00

DAVID PRICE                               Total Check Amount: $73.00

V40256  KAYLA RABJOHNS                     01/17/2020 28472   110404215       CLASS INSTR BCC DEC19    $138.00

KAYLA RABJOHNS                            Total Check Amount: $138.00

V40257  JOSHUA SAZDANOFF                   01/17/2020 21272   110404215       PSNL TRAINR BCC DEC19    $55.00

JOSHUA SAZDANOFF                          Total Check Amount: $55.00

V40258  SC FUELS                           01/17/2020 16654   480515161       CLR DIESEL 1600.1 GAL    $4,276.18

01/17/2020 16654   480515161       REG ETH 4011.5 GAL       $12,058.24

SC FUELS                                  Total Check Amount: $16,334.42

V40259  LAURENE SCHULZE                    01/17/2020 18034   110404215       YOGA BCC DEC19           $46.00

LAURENE SCHULZE                           Total Check Amount: $46.00

V40260  KATHRYN DE MESA SEBASTIAN          01/17/2020 29360   110515171       PHONE CASE/PROTECTOR     $17.22

KATHRYN DE MESA SEBASTIAN                 Total Check Amount: $17.22

V40261  ISMAEL O SILVA                     01/17/2020 24370   110404215       ZUMBA BCC DEC19          $240.00

ISMAEL O SILVA                            Total Check Amount: $240.00

V40262  SPECTRUM GAS PRODUCTS, INC.        01/17/2020 16060   174222222       OXYGEN                   $81.50

SPECTRUM GAS PRODUCTS, INC.               Total Check Amount: $81.50

Jan 15, 2020 9 of 14 10:54:27 AM



City Check Register for:  Jan 17, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

V40263  STATE INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS          01/17/2020 8572    110222223       DETERGENT:FIRE STNS      $432.21

STATE INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS                 Total Check Amount: $432.21

V40264  SUPERCO SPECIALTY PRODUCTS         01/17/2020 16084   430             SEWER LID PULLER         ($30.62)

01/17/2020 16084   430515123       SEWER LID PULLER         $425.73

SUPERCO SPECIALTY PRODUCTS                Total Check Amount: $395.11

V40265  SWAGIT PRODUCTIONS LLC             01/17/2020 24078   475141471       AGENDA QUICK 1920 LIC    $5,800.00

01/17/2020 24078   475141471       VIDEO STREAMING 19/20    $11,400.00

SWAGIT PRODUCTIONS LLC                    Total Check Amount: $17,200.00

V40266  TRANS UNION LLC                    01/17/2020 8371    110141481       HR SVCS 11/26-12/25      $28.06

TRANS UNION LLC                           Total Check Amount: $28.06

V40267  TRENCH SHORING COMPANY             01/17/2020 16935   420515131       4-WK PLATE RENTAL        $408.00

TRENCH SHORING COMPANY                    Total Check Amount: $408.00

V40268  TROPICAL PLAZA NURSERY, INC        01/17/2020 2062    110515143       CITY LANDSCAPES DEC19    $12,732.76

01/17/2020 2062    110515148       TRACKS LNDSCAPE DEC19    $5,419.22

01/17/2020 2062    341515112       MD#1 LANDSCAPE DEC19     $1,190.24

01/17/2020 2062    343515112       MD#3 LANDSCAPE DEC19     $2,019.51

01/17/2020 2062    345515112       MD#5 LANDSCAPE DEC19     $2,424.84

01/17/2020 2062    346515112       MD#6 LANDSCAPE DEC19     $5,340.55

01/17/2020 2062    347515112       MD#7 LANDSCAPE DEC19     $1,068.48

01/17/2020 2062    361515148       CITY MEDIANS DEC19       $203.91

01/17/2020 2062    420515131       CITY RESERVOIRS DEC19    $1,380.43

01/17/2020 2062    880515113       GATEWAY CTR MNT DEC19    $1,228.75

TROPICAL PLAZA NURSERY, INC               Total Check Amount: $33,008.69

V40269  LETICIA TRUJILLO                   01/17/2020 22054   110404215       SILVR SNKRS BCC DEC19    $24.00

LETICIA TRUJILLO                          Total Check Amount: $24.00

V40270  TURBO DATA SYSTEMS, INC.           01/17/2020 1472    110212132       HH LEASE TPM DEC 2019    $193.95

TURBO DATA SYSTEMS, INC.                  Total Check Amount: $193.95

V40271  EDEN TURNER                        01/17/2020 21951   110404215       CLASS INSTR BCC DEC19    $250.00

EDEN TURNER                               Total Check Amount: $250.00

V40272  UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT/SC       01/17/2020 4537    420515131       DSB FEE NOV 2019         $81.06

01/17/2020 4537    420515131       UNDRGRND TCKTS NOV19     $109.00

UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT/SC              Total Check Amount: $190.06

V40273  UNITED ROTARY BRUSH 
CORPORATION    

01/17/2020 16649   480515161       SWEEPER BROOMS (2)       $247.48

UNITED ROTARY BRUSH CORPORATION           Total Check Amount: $247.48

V40274  US BANK  XX0338 CITY MGR           01/17/2020 24704   110             CALCARDS CMG 122319      $15.59

01/17/2020 24704   110111111       CALCARDS CMG 122319      $2,337.44

01/17/2020 24704   110111143       CALCARDS CMG 122319      $2,155.42

01/17/2020 24704   110141481       CALCARDS CMG 122319      $506.60

Jan 15, 2020 10 of 14 10:54:27 AM



City Check Register for:  Jan 17, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

V40274  US BANK  XX0338 CITY MGR           01/17/2020 24704   480515161       CALCARDS CMG 122319      $108.28

US BANK  XX0338 CITY MGR                  Total Check Amount: $5,123.33

V40275  US BANK  XX0312 HR                 01/17/2020 24776   110141431       CALCARDS HR 122319       $37.99

01/17/2020 24776   110141481       CALCARDS HR 122319       $3,916.60

01/17/2020 24776   470141483       CALCARDS HR 122319       $122.50

US BANK  XX0312 HR                        Total Check Amount: $4,077.09

V40277  US BANK  XX0593 COMM SVC           01/17/2020 24777   110             CALCARD-EC/CP-122319     ($3.92)

01/17/2020 24777   110141481       CALCARD-CP-122319        $82.42

01/17/2020 24777   110404154       CALCARD-MM-122319        $32.29

01/17/2020 24777   110404211       CALCARD-AC-122319        $419.21

01/17/2020 24777   110404211       CALCARD-NA-122319        $19.37

01/17/2020 24777   110404211       CALCARD-RH-122319        $32.26

01/17/2020 24777   110404211       CALCARD-TN-122319        $62.73

01/17/2020 24777   110404215       CALCARD-AC-122319        $69.90

01/17/2020 24777   110404215       CALCARD-CC-122319        $500.40

01/17/2020 24777   110404215       CALCARD-DA-122319        $25.05

01/17/2020 24777   110404215       CALCARD-JS-122319        $303.95

01/17/2020 24777   110404217       CALCARD-MM-122319        $66.92

01/17/2020 24777   110404217       CALCARD-VU-122319        $12.99

01/17/2020 24777   110404311       CALCARD-EC-122319        $67.34

01/17/2020 24777   110404311       CALCARD-JM-122319        $14.00

01/17/2020 24777   110404311       CALCARD-LT-122319        $12.00

01/17/2020 24777   110404311       CALCARD-SM-122319        $29.99

01/17/2020 24777   110404421       CALCARD-KS-122319        $74.45

01/17/2020 24777   110404421       CALCARD-SM-122319        $172.27

01/17/2020 24777   110404424       CALCARD-BH-122319        $44.59

01/17/2020 24777   110404425       CALCARD-SS-122319        $75.17

01/17/2020 24777   110404429       CALCARD-VU-122319        $604.89

01/17/2020 24777   110404521       CALCARD-ER-122319        $42.00

01/17/2020 24777   110404521       CALCARD-FL-122319        $952.60

01/17/2020 24777   110404521       CALCARD-NG-122319        $150.71

01/17/2020 24777   110404521       CALCARD-TT-122319        $59.99

01/17/2020 24777   110404523       CALCARD-CP-122319        $260.15

01/17/2020 24777   110404541       CALCARD-AF-122319        $19.00

01/17/2020 24777   110404541       CALCARD-EC-122319        ($36.96)

01/17/2020 24777   110404541       CALCARD-HB-122319        $191.72

01/17/2020 24777   110404542       CALCARD-EF-122319        $314.32

01/17/2020 24777   110404542       CALCARD-HG-122319        $195.51

Jan 15, 2020 11 of 14 10:54:27 AM



City Check Register for:  Jan 17, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

V40277  US BANK  XX0593 COMM SVC           01/17/2020 24777   110404542       CALCARD-KK-122319        $343.32

01/17/2020 24777   110404542       CALCARD-NY-122319        $141.21

01/17/2020 24777   475141471       CALCARD-JC-122319        $46.05

US BANK  XX0593 COMM SVC                  Total Check Amount: $5,397.89

V40278  US BANK  XX0502 COMM & MKTG        01/17/2020 24778   110111151       CALCARDS CMKT 122319     $36.75

01/17/2020 24778   110111152       CALCARDS CMKT 122319     $837.19

01/17/2020 24778   110141481       CALCARDS CMKT 122319     $400.22

01/17/2020 24778   110323214       CALCARDS CMKT 122319     $8.91

01/17/2020 24778   110323231       CALCARDS CMKT 122319     $100.00

US BANK  XX0502 COMM & MKTG               Total Check Amount: $1,383.07

V40279  US BANK  XX0353 COMM DEV           01/17/2020 24779   110             CALCARD CD 122319        $1,225.68

01/17/2020 24779   110000000       CALCARD CD 122319        $350.48

01/17/2020 24779   110111143       CALCARD CD 122319        $120.63

01/17/2020 24779   110323212       CALCARD CD 122319        $430.79

01/17/2020 24779   110323214       CALCARD CD 122319        $455.38

01/17/2020 24779   110323231       CALCARD CD 122319        $193.43

01/17/2020 24779   110323241       CALCARD CD 122319        $143.01

01/17/2020 24779   110323242       CALCARD CD 122319        $149.72

US BANK  XX0353 COMM DEV                  Total Check Amount: $3,069.12

V40280  US BANK  XX0270 ADMIN SVCS         01/17/2020 24781   110             CALCARDS FIN 122319      $580.98

01/17/2020 24781   110111161       CALCARDS CCLK 122319     $1,138.81

01/17/2020 24781   110141411       CALCARDS FIN 122319      $21.12

01/17/2020 24781   110141431       CALCARDS FIN 122319      $81.27

01/17/2020 24781   110141441       CALCARDS FIN 122319      $1,399.67

01/17/2020 24781   110141481       CALCARDS FIN 122319      $42.33

01/17/2020 24781   110323241       CALCARDS FIN 122319      $25.00

01/17/2020 24781   110515125       CALCARDS FIN 122319      $1,423.41

01/17/2020 24781   420             CALCARDS FIN 122319      $285.00

01/17/2020 24781   420141421       CALCARDS FIN 122319      $36.25

01/17/2020 24781   490515151       CALCARDS FIN 122319      $3,297.33

US BANK  XX0270 ADMIN SVCS                Total Check Amount: $8,331.17

V40281  US BANK  XX0650 FIRE               01/17/2020 24782   110222211       CALCARDS FIRE 122319     $1,926.24

01/17/2020 24782   110222213       CALCARDS FIRE 122319     $107.80

01/17/2020 24782   110222221       CALCARDS FIRE 122319     $769.38

01/17/2020 24782   110222223       CALCARDS FIRE 122319     $471.42

01/17/2020 24782   110222231       CALCARDS FIRE 122319     $153.01

01/17/2020 24782   174222222       CALCARDS FIRE 122319     $3,262.40

01/17/2020 24782   480515161       CALCARDS FIRE 122319     $113.42

Jan 15, 2020 12 of 14 10:54:27 AM



City Check Register for:  Jan 17, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

US BANK  XX0650 FIRE                      Total Check Amount: $6,803.67

V40282  US BANK  XX0346 IT                 01/17/2020 24783   110             CALCARDS IT 122319       $23.18

01/17/2020 24783   110404154       CALCARDS IT 122319       $38.82

01/17/2020 24783   110515125       CALCARDS IT 122319       $286.11

01/17/2020 24783   280323215       CALCARDS IT 122319       $14.95

01/17/2020 24783   460141474       CALCARDS IT 122319       $221.12

01/17/2020 24783   475141471       CALCARDS IT 122319       $2,951.78

US BANK  XX0346 IT                        Total Check Amount: $3,535.96

V40285  US BANK  XX0221 PW                 01/17/2020 24784   110404421       CALCARDS PW 122319       $36.64

01/17/2020 24784   110515111       CALCARDS PW 122319       $165.09

01/17/2020 24784   110515121       CALCARDS PW 122319       $459.55

01/17/2020 24784   110515125       CALCARDS PW 122319       $325.42

01/17/2020 24784   110515141       CALCARDS PW 122319       $670.91

01/17/2020 24784   110515143       CALCARDS PW 122319       $470.75

01/17/2020 24784   110515144       CALCARDS PW 122319       $426.93

01/17/2020 24784   110515148       CALCARDS PW 122319       $8.58

01/17/2020 24784   360515145       CALCARDS PW 122319       $186.05

01/17/2020 24784   420515131       CALCARDS PW 122319       $493.28

01/17/2020 24784   430             CALCARDS PW 122319       ($1.59)

01/17/2020 24784   430515123       CALCARDS PW 122319       $185.61

01/17/2020 24784   440515126       CALCARDS PW 122319       $10.76

01/17/2020 24784   480515161       CALCARDS PW 122319       $7,860.13

01/17/2020 24784   490515151       CALCARDS PW 122319       $1,505.48

US BANK  XX0221 PW                        Total Check Amount: $12,803.59

V40286  US BANK  XX0544 POLICE             01/17/2020 24785   110             CAL CARDS PD 122319      ($71.69)

01/17/2020 24785   110212111       CAL CARDS PD 122319      $5,313.76

01/17/2020 24785   110212121       CAL CARDS PD 122319      $633.33

01/17/2020 24785   110212122       CAL CARDS PD 122319      $75.00

01/17/2020 24785   110212131       CAL CARDS PD 122319      $2,103.41

01/17/2020 24785   110212132       CAL CARDS PD 122319      $344.64

01/17/2020 24785   110212133       CAL CARDS PD 122319      $18.70

01/17/2020 24785   110212134       CAL CARDS PD 122319      $794.29

01/17/2020 24785   480515161       CAL CARDS PD 122319      $811.00

US BANK  XX0544 POLICE                    Total Check Amount: $10,022.44

V40287  US BANK  XX3401 PW- ADMIN          01/17/2020 24786   110141471       CALCARDS PWA 122319      $122.53

01/17/2020 24786   110212111       CALCARDS PWA 122319      $122.54

01/17/2020 24786   110323211       CALCARDS PWA 122319      $122.53

01/17/2020 24786   110515111       CALCARDS PWA 122319      $393.51

Jan 15, 2020 13 of 14 10:54:27 AM



City Check Register for:  Jan 17, 2020

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

V40287  US BANK  XX3401 PW- ADMIN          01/17/2020 24786   110515171       CALCARDS PWA 122319      $507.97

US BANK  XX3401 PW- ADMIN                 Total Check Amount: $1,269.08

V40288  LINDA WATSON                       01/17/2020 11871   110404215       YOGA BCC DEC19           $180.00

LINDA WATSON                              Total Check Amount: $180.00

V40289  KAREN WELCH                        01/17/2020 27434   110404215       PILATES BCC DEC19        $120.00

KAREN WELCH                               Total Check Amount: $120.00

V40290  MATTHEW WENDLING                   01/17/2020 27564   110212111       TRAINING MILEAGE         $31.32

MATTHEW WENDLING                          Total Check Amount: $31.32

V40291  CHRISTINE WHITE                    01/17/2020 18977   110222211       OCT-DEC 2019 MILEAGE     $24.36

CHRISTINE WHITE                           Total Check Amount: $24.36

V40292  ELEANOR YBARRA                     01/17/2020 27904   110404215       CLASS INSTR BCC DEC19    $225.00

ELEANOR YBARRA                            Total Check Amount: $225.00

V40293  ZOLL DATA MANAGEMENT               01/17/2020 21490   475141471       TELESTAFF JAN-MAR20      $1,587.50

ZOLL DATA MANAGEMENT                      Total Check Amount: $1,587.50

Voucher Subtotal $404,202.14

TOTAL $563,389.72

Jan 15, 2020 14 of 14 10:54:27 AM



Agenda Item   32. 
City of Brea 

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

FROM: Bill Gallardo, City Manager 

DATE: 01/21/2020

SUBJECT: December 22, 2019 Successor Agency Check Register - Receive and file. 

Attachments
12-22-19 Successor Agency Check Register 



Successor Agency Check Register for:  Dec 22, 2019

Check 
#

Vendor Name Check 
Date

Vendor 
#

Budget Unit Description Amount

2782    BANDERA ESTATES                    12/22/2019 3121    511626224       SENIOR SUBSIDY           $508.00

BANDERA ESTATES                           Total Check Amount: $508.00

2783    THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON        12/22/2019 4202    731000000       2010 LEASE REV BOND      $2,597.00

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON        12/22/2019 4202    732000000       2016 TAX ALLC BOND A     $2,000.00

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON        12/22/2019 4202    732000000       2016 TAX ALLC BOND B     $2,000.00

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON        12/22/2019 4202    813000000       2017 TAX ALLC BOND A     $2,250.00

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON        12/22/2019 4202    813000000       2017 TAX ALLC BOND B     $2,250.00

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON               Total Check Amount: $11,097.00

2784    BLX GROUP LLC                      12/22/2019 4457    813000000       2011 TAX ALLC BOND A     $2,000.00

BLX GROUP LLC                      12/22/2019 4457    813000000       2017 TAX ALLC BOND A     $2,500.00

BLX GROUP LLC                      12/22/2019 4457    813000000       2017 TAX ALLC BONDS A    $200.00

BLX GROUP LLC                      12/22/2019 4457    813000000       2017 TAX ALLOC BOND B    $1,000.00

BLX GROUP LLC                             Total Check Amount: $5,700.00

2785    BROOKDALE - BREA                   12/22/2019 4623    511626224       SENIOR SUBSIDY           $254.00

BROOKDALE - BREA                          Total Check Amount: $254.00

2786    CITY OF BREA                       12/22/2019 1003    511             REIMB COST 19/20 NOV     $1,782.16

CITY OF BREA                       12/22/2019 1003    511             REIMB COST 19/20 OCT     $3,179.43

CITY OF BREA                              Total Check Amount: $4,961.59

2787    HERITAGE PLAZA APARTMENTS          12/22/2019 1917    511626224       SENIOR SUBSIDY           $254.00

HERITAGE PLAZA APARTMENTS                 Total Check Amount: $254.00

2788    HOLLYDALE MOBILE ESTATES           12/22/2019 4577    511626224       SENIOR SUBSIDY           $254.00

HOLLYDALE MOBILE ESTATES                  Total Check Amount: $254.00

2789    KEYSER MARSTON ASSOCIATES, INC.    12/22/2019 2005    813000000       PROJ AB FIS CONSULT      $540.00

KEYSER MARSTON ASSOCIATES, INC.           Total Check Amount: $540.00

2790    LAKE PARK BREA                     12/22/2019 2433    511626224       SENIOR SUBSIDY           $1,270.00

LAKE PARK BREA                            Total Check Amount: $1,270.00

2791    ORANGE VILLA SENIOR APARTMENTS     12/22/2019 2132    511626224       SENIOR SUBSIDY           $254.00

ORANGE VILLA SENIOR APARTMENTS            Total Check Amount: $254.00

2792    VINTAGE CANYON SENIOR APARTMENTS   12/22/2019 4081    511626224       SENIOR SUBSIDY           $1,016.00

VINTAGE CANYON SENIOR APARTMENTS          Total Check Amount: $1,016.00

Overall - Total $26,108.59

Dec 18, 2019 1 of 1 11:31:18 AM


	Agenda
	_2476
	Att1_OC Mosquito and Vector Control District Letter
	_2477
	Public Hearing to Consider Solid Waste Services Rate Increase for Residential Customers in Conformance with Assembly Bill 1594
	Att1_Attachment 1 - Public Hearing Notice
	Att2_Resolution
	A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BREA, CALIFORNIA ADJUSTING SOLID WASTE SERVICES RATES FOR RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS IN CONFORMANCE WITH ASSEMBLY BILL 1594 (2014)
	B. RESOLUTION:
	2483_Exhibit A_AB 1594 Resolution_Rate Increase.pdf
	Rate Adjustment

	2483_Exhibit B_AB 1594 Resolution_Rate Calculation.pdf
	Rate Adjustment


	Att3_Amendment No. 1
	Att4_Exhibit F - Amendment No. 1 - Rate Increase
	Rate Adjustment

	Att5_Exhibit G - Amendment No. 1 - Rate Calculation
	Rate Adjustment

	Att6_Presentation
	Application for participation in the Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) for FY 2020-21, 2021-22 and 2022-23
	Att1_Application Package 
	Att2_Resolution - HR
	Att3_Application for Public Facilities and Improvement Funds
	Att4_Resolution - PFI 
	_2487
	Att1_1. Draft Resolution 
	Att2_1._Brea Connecting the Core Active Transportation Plan
	_2484
	Att1_Draft Minutes 
	Reso to Oppose the Regional Housing Needs Assessment allocation methodology adopted by SCAG and request the HCD to intervene
	Att1_Resolution
	Att2_Cover Letter
	Annual Maintenance Assessments in Landscape and Lighting Maintenance Districts 1 Through 7
	Att1_Reso LLMD 1 
	Att2_Reso LLMD 2
	Att3_Reso LLMD 3
	Att4_Reso LLMD 4
	Att5_Reso LLMD 5
	Att6_Reso LLMD 6
	Att7_Reso LLMD 7
	Agreement with Linscott Law & Greenspan for City Traffic Engineering Services
	Att1_Agreement
	Att2_AGA - Cliffwood Scope of Work
	Construction Contract for Civic Center Security System Improvement Project No. 7954
	Att1_PeopleSpace Proposal
	Professional Services Agreements for Annual As-Needed Construction Materials & Soils Testing Services for Various Capital Improvement Projects 
	Att1_Agreement - Harrington
	Att2_Agreement - Koury
	Att3_Agreement - Leighton
	Att4_Agreement - United
	Purchase Agreement for Brea Police Department Patrol Rifles
	Att1_Proforce Quote
	A RESOLUTION, 1) AMENDING THE CITY_S CLASSIFICATION PLAN BY ADDING TWO NEW JOB DESCRIPTIONS OF GOLF COURSE SPECIALIST, AND RECYCLING COORDINATOR_ 2) A
	Att1_Resolution
	Att2_Exhibit A
	Att3_Exhibit B
	Att4_Exhibit C
	December Outgoing Payment Log and December 13, 20 & 27, 2019 and January 3, 10 & 17, 2020 Check Registers
	Att1_December Outgoing Payment Log
	Att2_12-13-19 City Check Register
	Att3_12-20-19 City Check Register
	Att4_12-27-19 City Check Register
	Att5_01-03-20 City Check Register
	Att6_01-10-20 City Check Register
	Att7_01-17-20 City Check Register
	December 22, 2019 Successor Agency Check Register
	Att1_12-22-19 Successor Agency Check Register

